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PART I  

Item 1.   Business  

Overview and Operating Strategy  

       ENSCO International Incorporated ("ENSCO" or the "Company") is an international 
offshore contract drilling company that also provides marine transportation services in the 
Gulf of Mexico. The Company's complement of offshore drilling rigs includes 37 jackup 
rigs, nine barge rigs, seven platform rigs and one semisubmersible rig currently under 
construction. The Company's marine transportation fleet currently consists of 32 vessels. 
The Company's operations are integral to the exploration, development and production of oil 
and natural gas.  

       Since 1987, the Company has pursued a strategy of building its fleet of offshore drilling 
rigs through corporate acquisitions, rig acquisitions and rig construction. The Company 
acquired Penrod Holding Corporation in August 1993 and DUAL DRILLING COMPANY 
("Dual") in June 1996, which added 19 rigs and 17 rigs, respectively, to the Company's 
current 54-rig fleet. The Company has acquired five jackup rigs since 1994, including four 
harsh environment jackup rigs for its North Sea fleet. Since 1993, the Company has 
constructed 11 barge rigs, three of which were completed in 1999 and commenced five-year 
term contracts. In February 2000, the Company completed construction of the ENSCO 101, 
an international class, harsh environment jackup rig that is currently mobilizing to the North 
Sea with arrival scheduled for April 2000. Construction continues on the ENSCO 7500, a 
dynamically positioned semisubmersible rig which is expected to be delivered during the 
fourth quarter of 2000.  



       With the Company's increasing emphasis on offshore markets, the Company has 
disposed of businesses that are not offshore oriented or that management believed would not 
meet the Company's standards for financial performance. Accordingly, the Company sold its 
supply business in 1993, its land rigs in 1994 and 1996 and its technical services business in 
1995. Four of the Company's barge rigs constructed in 1993 were sold in 1998 pursuant to 
purchase options provided for in the original charter agreements.  

       The Company was formed as a Texas corporation in 1975 and was reincorporated in 
Delaware in 1987. The Company's principal office is located at 2700 Fountain Place, 1445 
Ross Avenue, Dallas, Texas, 75202-2792 and its telephone number is (214) 922-1500. The 
Company's website is www.enscous.com.  

Contract Drilling Operations  

       The Company's contract drilling operations are conducted by a number of subsidiaries 
(the "Subsidiaries"), substantially all of which are wholly-owned. The Subsidiaries engage 
in the drilling of oil and gas wells in domestic and international markets under contracts 
with major international oil and gas companies, government owned oil and gas companies 
and independent oil and gas companies. The Company currently owns 37 jackup rigs, nine 
barge rigs, seven platform rigs and one semisubmersible rig, which is under construction. Of 
the 37 jackup rigs, 22 are located in the Gulf of Mexico, seven are located in the North Sea 
and seven are located in the Asia Pacific region. In addition, construction of the ENSCO 
101 jackup rig was completed in February 2000, and the rig is currently mobilizing to the 
North Sea with arrival scheduled for April 2000. The nine barge rigs are all located in 
Venezuela and the seven platform rigs are all located in the Gulf of Mexico. The Company 
is currently constructing a semisubmersible drilling rig, the ENSCO 7500, and it expects to 
complete the construction during the fourth quarter of 2000. Upon satisfactory completion 
of construction, the ENSCO 7500 has been contracted to Burlington Resources for a three-
year term.  

       The Company's contract drilling services and equipment are used in connection with the 
process of drilling and completing oil and gas wells. Demand for the Company's drilling 
services is based upon many factors over which the Company has no control, including the 
market price of oil and gas, the stability of such prices, the production levels and other 
activities of OPEC and other oil and gas producers, the regional supply and demand for 
natural gas, the worldwide expenditures for oil and gas drilling, the level of worldwide 
economic activity and the long-term effect of worldwide energy conservation measures.  

       The drilling services provided by the Company are conducted on a "daywork" contract 
basis. Under daywork contracts, the Company receives a fixed amount per day for drilling 
the well, and the customer bears a major portion of the ancillary costs of constructing the 
well. The customer may pay the cost of moving the equipment to the job site and 
assembling and dismantling the equipment. In some cases, the Company provides drilling 
services on a daywork contract basis along with "well management" services which provide 
additional incentive compensation to the Company for completion of drilling activity ahead 
of budgeted targets set by the customer. The Company does not provide "turnkey" or other 
risk based drilling services.  

Marine Transportation Operations  

       The Company conducts its marine transportation operations through a wholly owned 
subsidiary, ENSCO Marine Company ("ENSCO Marine"), based in Broussard, Louisiana. 
The Company currently has a marine transportation fleet of 32 vessels consisting of five 
anchor handling tug supply ("AHTS") vessels, 23 supply vessels and four mini-supply 
vessels. The Company owns all of the marine transportation vessels in its fleet with the 
exception of one 6,000 horsepower AHTS vessel, which is being leased. The Company has 



an option to purchase the leased vessel beginning February 2001. All of the Company's 
marine transportation vessels are currently located in the Gulf of Mexico.  

       The Company's five AHTS vessels support semisubmersible drilling rigs and large 
offshore construction projects or provide towing services including moving some of the 
Company's jackup rigs between drilling locations. The 23 supply vessels and four mini-
supply vessels support general drilling and production activity by ferrying supplies from 
land and between offshore rigs. The Company's supply vessels are oftentimes supplied to 
customers in combination with the Company's offshore drilling rigs to present a more 
competitive bid.  

       The Company evaluates the performance of its vessels on an ongoing basis, and seeks 
opportunities to sell older, less capable and less competitive vessels. The Company sold five 
vessels recently, including two mini-supply vessels in the fourth quarter of 1999, two mini-
supply vessels in the first quarter of 2000 and one AHTS vessel in the first quarter of 2000.  

Backlog Information  

       During the past several years, contracts for the Company's rigs have typically been 
short-term, particularly in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico where the Company has its largest 
concentration of rigs. The Company's marine transportation vessels are typically chartered 
on a well-to-well basis, or on term contracts which may be terminated on short notice.  

       The current and historic backlog of unfilled business for the Company's contract drilling 
and marine transportation operations is shown below (in millions):  
  

              As of February 1,     
       2000       1999     

                                  
                   Contract Drilling   $565 .4     $541.0          
                   Marine Transportation   3 .9 7.2        

                   Total   $569 .3 $548.2       

  
       Approximately $346.3 million of the backlog for contract drilling services as of 
February 1, 2000 will be realized after December 31, 2000. All of the marine transportation 
services backlog as of February 1, 2000 will be realized before December 31, 2000.  

       The contract drilling backlog as of February 1, 2000 and 1999 includes approximately 
$190 million associated with the ENSCO 7500, the Company's dynamically positioned 
semisubmersible rig that is currently under construction. The ENSCO 7500 has a three-year 
contract with Burlington Resources ("Burlington") that is scheduled to commence upon 
satisfactory completion of construction. The Company expects to complete construction 
during the fourth quarter of 2000. However, if the rig is not delivered in accordance with the 
specifications agreed with Burlington prior to the contractual delivery deadline of March 24, 
2001, Burlington has the right to terminate the drilling contract.  

 

Segment Information  

       The following table provides information regarding the Company's two segments, 
contract drilling and marine transportation, for each of the last five years in the period ended 
December 31, 1999:  
  



1999 1998 1997 1996(1) 1995 
Offshore Drilling Rig Utilization and Day Rates             
     Utilization:   
         Jackup rigs   
                   North America   93% 93% 96% 93% 90% 
                   Europe   48%   97%   100%   88%   73%   
                   Asia Pacific   46%   61%   79%   86%   --  

                          Total jackup rigs   75%   88%   93%   92%   87%   
          Barge rigs - South America   31%   100%   100%   91%   86%   
          Platform rigs   51%   89%   63%   78%   --  

                   Total   65%   90%   90%   90%   86%   

     Average day rates:   
          Jackup rigs   
                   North America   $18,400   $43,473   $46,530   $27,793   $20,559   
                   Europe   51,266   95,307   79,548   47,714   42,631   
                   Asia Pacific   41,217   49,328   39,363   26,751   --  

                          Total jackup rigs   24,286   54,242   51,438   31,505   24,813   
         Barge rigs - South America   35,113   22,069   22,628   22,608   19,631   
         Platform rigs   23,204   25,534   19,148   16,913   --  

                  Total   $24,945   $45,112   $42,838   $28,238   $23,196   

Marine Fleet Utilization and Day Rates   
     Utilization:   
                  AHTS(2)   65%   67%   83%   79%   84%   
                  Supply   74%   87%   91%   92%   84%   
                  Mini-supply   25%   73%   95%   87%   65%   

                       Total   62%   81%   91%   89%   79%   

     Average day rates:   
                  AHTS(2)   $13,600   $15,870   $13,380   $  9,321   $  7,732   
                  Supply   2,774   6,917   7,789   4,729   3,136   
                  Mini-supply   2,019   4,041   3,997   2,972   1,985   

                       Total   $  4,394   $  7,308   $  7,687   $  5,016   $  3,753   

  
   (1)   Offshore Drilling Rig information includes the results of Dual rigs from the June 12, 1996 

acquisition date. The Company acquired its Asia Pacific and platform rigs in the June 1996 Dual 
acquisition. 

    
(2) 

  Anchor handling tug supply vessels. 

   

       Financial information regarding the Company's operating segments and foreign and 
domestic operations is presented in Note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." Additional 
financial information regarding the Company's operating segments is presented in "Item 7. 
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations."  

Major Customers  

       The Company provides its services to a broad customer base which includes major 
international oil and gas companies, government owned oil and gas companies and 
independent oil and gas companies.  

       During 1999, aggregate revenues provided to the Company's contract drilling and 



marine transportation operations by subsidiaries of Chevron Corporation were $45.5 
million, or 13% of total revenues. Additionally, aggregate contract drilling and marine 
transportation revenues of $44.5 million, or 12% of total revenues, were provided to the 
Company by subsidiaries of ExxonMobil Corporation.  

Industry Conditions and Competition  

       The market for offshore drilling and marine transportation services is largely 
determined by the level of capital spending of the oil companies which in turn is influenced 
by the level of oil and gas prices. From the mid-1980s to the early 1990s, demand for 
offshore drilling and marine equipment was generally depressed following the collapse of 
oil prices in 1986 and the resulting contraction of oil company spending, while the over 
supply of offshore drilling and marine equipment gradually decreased, primarily due to 
attrition. Between 1994 and the first part of 1998, oil company spending steadily improved 
and, as a result, day rates and utilization for offshore drilling and marine equipment 
increased. Technological advancements, such as three dimensional seismic, extended reach 
drilling, and multilateral drilling techniques, have lowered the cost of finding and 
developing oil and gas reserves. During 1998, concern over excess oil supplies, due in part 
to the economic slowdown in Southeast Asia, caused oil prices to decrease to levels not 
experienced since the mid-1980's. As a result, oil companies decreased their exploration and 
production budgets, which led to a decrease in demand for drilling and marine transportation 
services. The supply of drilling rigs exceeded the demand on a worldwide basis throughout 
1999, and this resulted in a dramatic drop in the day rates and utilization of the Company's 
rigs and marine transportation vessels.  

       As a result of the industry downturn that began in the second quarter of 1998, the 
Company and several of its competitors experienced early terminations of long-term 
contracts by customers. During the first and second quarters of 1999, the Company 
experienced early contract terminations on six barge rigs in Venezuela, four jackup rigs in 
the North Sea and one platform rig in the Gulf of Mexico. However, the contracts associated 
with the six barge rigs and four jackup rigs were originally scheduled to expire during 1999, 
and only the platform rig contract was terminated with in excess of a year remaining on its 
original term. At present, the Company's only contracts with remaining terms in excess of a 
year are associated with three barge rigs in Venezuela, two platform rigs in the Gulf of 
Mexico, one jackup rig in Southeast Asia and one semisubmersible rig currently under 
construction.  

       Recent improvement in oil prices and U.S. natural gas prices have increased demand for 
drilling rigs and marine vessels in domestic markets, and during the fourth quarter of 1999 
the Company began experiencing increases in domestic day rates. While there have been 
indications that industry conditions are beginning to improve in some international markets, 
as of this date there has been no appreciable increase in day rates for drilling rigs in 
international markets.  

       The contract drilling business is highly competitive and ENSCO competes with other 
drilling contractors on the basis of price, quality of service, equipment suitability and 
availability, reputation and technical expertise. Competition is usually on a regional basis, 
but the Company's drilling rigs are mobile and may be moved from one region to another in 
response to demand. Drilling operations are generally conducted throughout the year with 
some seasonal declines in winter months.  

       As the Company's marine transportation services are used primarily in connection with 
the process of servicing offshore oil and gas operations, demand for these services is largely 
dependent on the factors affecting the level of activity in the offshore oil and gas industry. 
ENSCO Marine competes with numerous vessel operators on the basis of price, quality of 
service, vessel suitability and availability and reputation. Marine transportation operations 



are conducted throughout the year, but some reductions in vessel utilization and charter rates 
may be experienced during winter months due to seasonal declines in offshore activities.  

       Additional information regarding industry conditions is presented in "Item 7. 
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations."  

Governmental Regulation  

       The Company's businesses are affected by political developments and by federal, state, 
foreign and local laws and regulations that relate directly to the oil and gas industry. The 
industry is also affected by changing tax laws, price controls and other laws affecting the 
energy business. The adoption of laws and regulations curtailing exploration and 
development drilling for oil and gas for economic, environmental or other policy reasons 
adversely affects the Company's operations by limiting available drilling and other 
opportunities in the energy service industry, as well as increasing the costs of operations.  

       The Company and its rigs and operations are subject to federal, state, local and foreign 
laws and regulations relating to engineering, design, structural, safety and operational and 
inspection standards.  

       Most of the Company's marine transportation operations are conducted in U.S. waters 
and are subject to the coastwise laws of the United States, principally, the Jones Act. Such 
laws reserve marine transportation between points in the United States to vessels built and 
documented under U.S. laws and owned and manned by U.S. citizens. From time to time, 
interests opposed to the Jones Act have expressed a desire to seek changes to the Jones Act. 
Although the Company believes it is unlikely that the Jones Act will be substantively 
modified or repealed, there can be no assurance that the Jones Act may not be modified or 
repealed. Any substantive modifications in, or the repeal of, the Jones Act could have a 
material adverse effect on the Company's operations and financial condition.  

Environmental Matters  

       The Company's operations are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations 
controlling the discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to the 
protection of the environment. Laws and regulations specifically applicable to the 
Company's business activities could impose significant liability on the Company for 
damages, clean-up costs and penalties in the event of the occurrence of oil spills or similar 
discharges of pollutants into the environment in the course of the Company's operations, 
although, to date, such laws and regulations have not had a material adverse effect on the 
Company's results of operations, nor has the Company experienced an accident that has 
exposed it to material liability for discharges of pollutants into the environment. In addition, 
events in recent years have heightened environmental concerns about the oil and gas 
industry generally. From time to time, legislative proposals have been introduced which 
would materially limit or prohibit offshore drilling in certain areas. To date, no proposals 
which would materially limit or prohibit offshore drilling in the Company's principal areas 
of operation have been enacted into law. If laws are enacted or other governmental action is 
taken that restrict or prohibit offshore drilling in the Company's principal areas of operation 
or impose environmental protection requirements that materially increase the cost of 
offshore exploration, development or production of oil and gas, the Company could be 
materially adversely affected.  

       The United States Oil Pollution Act of 1990 ("OPA 90"), as amended, and other federal 
statutes applicable to the Company and its operations, as well as similar state statutes in 
Texas, Louisiana and other coastal states, address oil spill prevention and control and 
significantly expand liability exposure across all segments of the oil and gas industry. These 



statutes and related regulations, both federal and state, impose a variety of obligations on the 
Company related to the prevention of oil spills and liability for resulting damages. For 
instance, OPA 90 imposes strict and, with limited exceptions, joint and several liability upon 
each responsible party for oil removal costs and a variety of damages. A failure to comply 
with these statutes, including without limitation, OPA 90, may subject a responsible party to 
civil or criminal enforcement action.  

Operational Risks and Insurance  

       Contract drilling and oil and gas operations are subject to various risks including 
blowouts, craterings, fires and explosions, each of which could result in damage to or 
destruction of drilling rigs and oil and gas wells, personal injury and property damage, 
suspension of operations or environmental damage through oil spillage or extensive, 
uncontrolled fires. The Company's marine transportation operations are subject to various 
risks, which include property and environmental damage and personal injury. The Company 
generally insures its drilling rigs and marine transportation vessels for amounts not less than 
the estimated fair market value thereof. The Company also maintains liability insurance 
coverage in amounts and scope which management believes are comparable to the levels of 
coverage carried by other energy service companies. To date, the Company has not 
experienced difficulty in obtaining insurance coverage. While the Company believes its 
insurance coverages are customary for the energy service industry, the occurrence of a 
significant event not fully insured against could have a material adverse effect on the 
Company's financial position. Also, there can be no assurance that any particular insurance 
claim will be paid or that the Company will be able to procure adequate insurance coverage 
at commercially reasonable rates in the future.  

International Operations  

       A significant portion of the Company's contract drilling operations are conducted in 
foreign countries. Revenues from international operations as a percentage of the Company's 
total revenues were 45% in both 1999 and 1998. The Company's international operations are 
subject to political, economic, and other uncertainties, such as the risks of expropriation of 
its equipment, expropriation of a customer's property or drilling rights, repudiation of 
contracts, adverse tax policies, general hazards associated with international sovereignty 
over certain areas in which the Company operates and fluctuations in international 
economies.  

       The Company's international operations also face the risk of fluctuating currency values 
and exchange controls. Occasionally the countries in which the Company operates have 
enacted exchange controls. Historically, the Company has been able to limit these risks by 
obtaining compensation in U.S. dollars or freely convertible international currency and, to 
the extent possible, by limiting acceptance of foreign currency to amounts which match its 
expenditure requirements in such currencies.  

       The Company currently has contract drilling operations in certain countries that have 
experienced substantial devaluations of their currency compared to the U.S. dollar. 
However, as the Company's drilling contracts generally stipulate payment in U.S. dollars, 
the Company has experienced no significant losses due to the devaluation of such 
currencies.  

 

Executive Officers of the Registrant  

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the executive officers of the 
Company:  



           Name   Age Position with the Company 
          
Carl F. Thorne   59   Chairman of the Board, President, Chief  

Executive Officer and Director 
          
Richard A. Wilson   62   Senior Vice President, Chief Operating Officer  

and Director 
          
Marshall Ballard   57   Vice President - Business Development  

  
          
William S. Chadwick, Jr.   52   Vice President - Administration and Secretary  

  
          
Eugene R. Facey   52   Vice President - Operations  

  
          
C. Christopher Gaut   43   Vice President - Finance and Chief Financial 

Officer  
  

          
H. E. Malone   56   Vice President - Controller and Chief  

Accounting Officer 
          
Phillip J. Saile   48   Vice President - Operations  

  
          
Ogden U. Thomas, Jr.   54   Vice President - Marine Operations 
          
Frank Williford   60   Vice President - Engineering  

  
          
Richard A. LeBlanc   49   Treasurer  

  
          

       Set forth below is certain additional information concerning the executive officers of 
the Company, including the business experience of each executive officer for at least the last 
five years.  

  

       Carl F. Thorne has been a director of the Company since December 1986. He was 
elected President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in May 1987 and was elected 
Chairman of the Board of Directors in November 1987. Mr. Thorne holds a Bachelor of 
Science Degree in Petroleum Engineering from The University of Texas and a Juris 
Doctorate Degree from Baylor University College of Law.  

       Richard A. Wilson has been a director of the Company since June 1990. Mr. Wilson 
joined the Company in July 1988 and was elected President of ENSCO Drilling Company in 
August 1988. Mr. Wilson was elected Senior Vice President - Operations of the Company in 
October 1989 and to his present position of Senior Vice President and Chief Operating 
Officer in June 1991. Mr. Wilson holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Petroleum 



Engineering from the University of Wyoming.  

       Marshall Ballard joined the Company in connection with the acquisition of Penrod 
Holding Corporation and was elected Vice President of Business Development in August 
1993. From September 1977 through August 1993, Mr. Ballard served in various capacities 
as an employee of Penrod Holding Corporation, most recently as President. Mr. Ballard 
holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in History from the University of North Carolina and a Law 
Degree from Tulane University.  

       William S. Chadwick, Jr. joined the Company as Director of Administration in June 
1987, has been a Vice President of the Company since July 1988 and was elected Secretary 
of the Company in May 1993. Mr. Chadwick holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in 
Industrial Management from the University of Pennsylvania.  

       Eugene R. Facey joined the Company in August 1996 and was elected Vice President - 
Operations effective April 1, 1999. Prior to his appointment, Mr. Facey served as Unit 
Manager for the Asia Pacific Unit. From 1990 to 1996, Mr. Facey served in various 
capacities as an employee of Wilrig AS and Transocean AS, most recently as Vice President 
International Operations. Mr. Facey holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil 
Engineering from the University of Virginia.  

       C. Christopher Gaut joined the Company in December 1987 and was elected Treasurer 
and Chief Financial Officer in February 1988 and Vice President - Finance in January 1991. 
Mr. Gaut holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Engineering Science from Dartmouth College 
and a Master of Business Administration Degree in Finance from The Wharton School of 
the University of Pennsylvania.  

       H. E. Malone joined the Company in August 1987 and was elected Controller and Chief 
Accounting Officer in January 1988 and Vice President - Controller and Chief Accounting 
Officer in February 1995. Mr. Malone holds Bachelor of Business Administration Degrees 
from The University of Texas and Southern Methodist University and a Master of Business 
Administration Degree from the University of North Texas.  

       Phillip J. Saile joined the Company in August 1987 and was elected Vice President - 
Operations effective April 1, 1999. Prior to his appointment, Mr. Saile served the Company 
in various capacities, most recently as Unit Manager for the North America Unit. Mr. Saile 
holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from the University of Mississippi.  

       Ogden U. Thomas, Jr. joined the Company in March 1988 and was elected Vice 
President in May 1999. Mr. Thomas has served as the President of ENSCO Marine 
Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company since 1991.  Mr. Thomas holds a 
Bachelor of Business Administration degree from Nicholls State University.  

       Frank B. Williford joined the Company and was elected Vice President - Engineering in 
February 1996. From January 1966 through January 1996, Mr. Williford served in various 
capacities as an employee of Sedco, Inc. and Sedco Forex, most recently as Vice President 
and General Manager of Engineering. Mr. Williford holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in 
Structural Engineering from Texas A and M University.  
 
       Richard A. LeBlanc joined the Company in July 1989 as Manager of Finance. He 
assumed responsibilities for the investor relations function in March 1993 and was elected 
Treasurer in May 1995. Mr. LeBlanc holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Finance and a 
Master of Business Administration degree from Louisiana State University.  

       Officers each serve for a one-year term or until their successors are elected and 



qualified to serve. Mr. Thorne and Mr. Malone are brothers-in-law.  

  
Employees  

       The Company had approximately 2,650 full-time employees worldwide as of February 
1, 2000. The Company considers relations with its employees to be satisfactory. None of the 
Company's domestic employees are represented by unions. The Company has not 
experienced any significant work stoppages or strikes as a result of labor disputes.  

 
Item 2.    Properties  

Contract Drilling  

       The following table provides certain information about the Company's drilling rig fleet 
as of February 15, 2000:  

  
JACKUP RIGS 

Rig Name 
Year Built/  
   Rebuilt        Rig Make       

Water Depth/  
Rated Depth 

    Current  
    Location     

Current  
Customer 

  
North America                        

ENSCO 51       1981   FG-780II-C   300'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   UPRC   

ENSCO 54   1982/1997   FG-780II-C   300'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Taylor Energy   

ENSCO 55   1981/1997   FG-780II-C   300'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Samedan   

ENSCO 60   1981/1997   Lev-111-C   300'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Chevron   

ENSCO 64       1973   MLT-53-S   250'/30,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Spinnaker Exploration   

ENSCO 67   1976/1996   MLT-84-S   400'/30,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Remington   

ENSCO 68       1976   MLT-84-S   350'/30,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Triton   

ENSCO 69   1976/1995   MLT-84-S   400'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Triton   

ENSCO 81       1979   MLT-116-C   350'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Texaco   

ENSCO 82       1979   MLT-116-C   300'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   BP Amoco   

ENSCO 83       1979   MLT-82 SD-C   250'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Equitable Resources   

ENSCO 84       1981   MLT-82 SD-C   250'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Devon   

ENSCO 86       1981   MLT-82 SD-C   250'/30,000'   Gulf of Mexico   ExxonMobil   

ENSCO 87       1982   MLT-116-C   350'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Apache Energy   

ENSCO 88       1982   MLT-82 SD-C   250'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   ExxonMobil   

ENSCO 89       1982   MLT-82 SD-C   250'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   ExxonMobil   

ENSCO 90       1982   MLT-82 SD-C   250'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Texaco   

ENSCO 93       1982   MLT-82 SD-C   250'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Amerada Hess   

ENSCO 94       1981   Hitachi-250-C   250'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Chevron   

ENSCO 95       1981   Hitachi-250-C   250'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Stone Energy   

ENSCO 98       1977   MLT-82 SD-C   250'/25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Coastal Oil and Gas   

ENSCO 99       1985   MLT-82 SD-C   250'/30,000'   Gulf of Mexico   ExxonMobil   

  
Europe   
ENSCO 70   1981/1996   Hitachi-300-C NS   250'/30,000'   The Netherlands   Committed(1)   

ENSCO 71   1982/1995   Hitachi-300-C NS   225'/25,000'   The Netherlands   Committed(1)   

ENSCO 72   1981/1996   Hitachi-300-C NS   225'/25,000'   United Kingdom   Committed(1)   

ENSCO 80   1978/1995   MLT-116-CE   225'/30,000'   The Netherlands   Committed(1)   

ENSCO 85   1981/1995   MLT-116-C   225'/25,000'   The Netherlands   Committed(1)   

ENSCO 92   1982/1996   MLT-116-C   225'/25,000'   United Kingdom   Conoco   

ENSCO 100   1987/2000   MLT-150-88-C   325'/30,000'   The Netherlands   Shipyard(2)   

ENSCO 101       2000   KFELS - MOD V   400'/30,000'   Mobilizing   Available(3)   

  
Asia Pacific   
ENSCO 50   1983/1998   FG-780II-C   300'/25,000'   New Zealand   Fletcher Challenge Energy   

ENSCO 52   1983/1997   FG-780II-C   300'/25,000'   Singapore   Available(4)   

ENSCO 53   1982/1998   FG-780II-C   300'/25,000'   Singapore   Available(4)   



ENSCO 56   1982/1997   FG-780II-C   300'/25,000'   Australia   Apache Energy   

ENSCO 57   1982/1997   FG-780II-C   300'/25,000'   Thailand   Unocal   

ENSCO 96   1982/1997   Hitachi-250-C   250'/25,000'   Abu Dhabi   National Drilling Company   

ENSCO 97   1980/1997   MLT-82 SD-C   250'/25,000'   Pakistan   Ocean Pakistan Corporation   

BARGE RIGS 

Rig Name 
Year Built/  
   Rebuilt    Rated Depth 

Current  
Location 

    Current  
    Customer     

                    

ENSCO I       1999       30,000'   Venezuela   Chevron   

ENSCO II       1999       30,000'   Venezuela   Chevron   

ENSCO III       1999       30,000'   Venezuela   Chevron   

ENSCO V   1982/1996       15,000'   Venezuela   Available(4)   

ENSCO VI   1991/1996       15,000'   Venezuela   Available(4)   

ENSCO XI       1994       25,000'   Venezuela   Stacked(4)   

ENSCO XII       1994       25,000'   Venezuela   Stacked(4)   

ENSCO XIV       1994       25,000'   Venezuela   Stacked(4)   

ENSCO XV       1994       25,000'   Venezuela   Stacked(4)   

PLATFORM RIGS 

Rig Name 
Year Built/  
   Rebuilt    Rated Depth 

Current  
Location 

    Current  
    Customer     

                    

ENSCO 21   1982/1996       25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Stacked(4)   

ENSCO 22   1982/1997       25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Stacked(4)   

ENSCO 23   1980/1998       25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Amerada Hess   

ENSCO 24   1980/1998       25,000'   Gulf of Mexico   ExxonMobil   

ENSCO 25   1980/1998       30,000'   Gulf of Mexico   Committed(1)   

ENSCO 26   1982/1999       30,000'   Gulf of Mexico   ExxonMobil   

ENSCO 29   1981/1997       30,000'   Gulf of Mexico   AEDC   

CONSTRUCTION PROJECT - SEMISUBMERSIBLE RIG 

Rig Name                         Type                   
   Water  
   Depth    

   Rated  
   Depth    

                

ENSCO 7500(5)   Semisubmersible - Dynamically Positioned         8,000'       30,000'   

                        
Notes: 
   (1)   Rig is currently idle but has secured a contract or letter of intent under which drilling operations 

are to commence during the second quarter of 2000. 

   (2)   The ENSCO 100 is presently in the shipyard undergoing enhancements and upgrades which are 
expected to be completed in the third quarter of 2000. 

   (3)   Construction of the ENSCO 101 was completed in February 2000 at the Keppel FELS Shipyard in 
Singapore. The rig is currently mobilizing to the North Sea with arrival scheduled for April 2000. 

   (4)   Rigs classified as available are being actively marketed and can commence work on short notice. 
Stacked rigs do not have operating crews immediately available and may require some 
recommissioning before commencing operations. 

   (5)   The ENSCO 7500 is being constructed at Friede Goldman Halter, Inc.'s shipyard in Orange, Texas 
with delivery scheduled in the fourth quarter of 2000. Upon completion, the rig has a long-term 
contract with Burlington Resources. 

       The Company's drilling rigs consist of engines, drawworks, derricks, pumps to circulate 
the drilling fluid, blowout preventers, drill string and related equipment. The engines power 
a drive mechanism that turns the drill string and drill bit so that the hole is drilled by 
grinding subsurface materials, which are then carried to the surface by the drilling fluid. The 
intended well depth and the drilling conditions are the principal factors that determine the 
size and type of rig most suitable for a particular drilling job.  

       Jackup rigs stand on the ocean floor with their hull and drilling equipment elevated 
above the water on connected leg supports. Jackup rigs are generally preferred in water 



depths of 350 feet or less. All of the Company's jackup rigs are of the independent leg 
design. The majority of the Company's jackup units are equipped with cantilevers, which 
allow the drilling equipment to extend outward from their hulls over fixed platforms 
enabling drilling of both exploratory and development wells. The jackup rig hull supports 
the drilling equipment, jacking system, crew quarters, storage and loading facilities, 
helicopter landing pad and related equipment.  

       Barge rigs are towed to the drilling location and are held in place by anchors while 
drilling activities are conducted. The Company's barge rigs have all of the crew quarters, 
storage facilities and related equipment mounted on floating barges, with the drilling 
equipment cantilevered from the stern of the barge.  

       Platform rigs are designed to be temporarily installed on permanently constructed 
offshore platforms. The platform rig sections are lifted onto the offshore platforms with 
heavy lift cranes. A platform rig typically stays at a location for a longer period of time than 
a jackup rig, because several wells can be drilled from a single offshore platform.  

       A semisubmersible rig is a floating offshore drilling unit that has pontoons and columns 
that, when flooded with water, cause the unit to be partially submerged to a predetermined 
depth. Semisubmersibles can be held in a fixed location over the ocean floor by being either 
anchored to the sea bottom with mooring chains or dynamically positioned by computer-
controlled propellers, or "thrusters." The Company's new semisubmersible rig, which will be 
capable of drilling in water depths up to 8,000 feet, will be constructed as a dynamically 
positioned rig, but it can be adapted for moored operations also.  

       The Company owns all of the rigs in its fleet. Over the life of a typical rig, several of 
the major components are replaced due to normal wear and tear. All of the Company's rigs 
are in good condition.  

Marine Transportation  

       As of February 15, 2000, the Company has a marine transportation fleet of 32 vessels 
consisting of five anchor handling tug supply vessels, 23 supply vessels and four mini-
supply vessels. All of the Company's marine transportation vessels are currently located in 
the Gulf of Mexico. Substantially all of the Company's marine transportation vessels, which 
had a combined net book value of $38.0 million at December 31, 1999, are pledged as 
collateral to secure payment of secured term loans with an outstanding balance of $4.0 
million at December 31, 1999.  

       The following table provides certain information regarding the Company's current 
marine transportation vessel fleet:  

MARINE FLEET  

 
    Vessel Type 

No. Of  
Vessels 

    Year  
     Built   

      
Horsepower 

 
  Length     Location 

                      
KODIAK - AHTS   1           1983       12,000       225'   Gulf of Mexico   
OTHER - AHTS   4       1975-1983   5,800-8,100   195'-230'   Gulf of Mexico   
SUPPLY   23       1977-1985   1,800-3,500   166'-220'   Gulf of Mexico   
MINI -SUPPLY   4       1981-1984         1,200   140'-146'   Gulf of Mexico   

   

       Currently, three of the Company's supply vessels and two mini-supply vessels are 
stacked. The Company owns all of the marine transporation vessels in its fleet with the 
exception of one 6,000 horsepower AHTS vessel, which is leased. The Company has an 
option to purchase the leased vessel beginning in February 2001.  



Other Property  

       The Company leases its executive offices in Dallas, Texas. The Company owns offices 
and other facilities in Louisiana and Scotland. The Company rents office space in Abu 
Dhabi, Australia, Malaysia, the Netherlands, New Zealand, Pakistan, Qatar, Singapore, 
Thailand and Venezuela.  

Item 3.   Legal Proceedings  

     The Company is from time to time involved in litigation incidental to the conduct of its 
business. In the opinion of management, none of such litigation in which the Company is 
currently involved would, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on 
its financial condition or results of operations.  

Item 4.   Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders  

       There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders in the fourth quarter of 
1999.  

 

PART II  

Item 5.   Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters  

       The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices for each period indicated for 
the Company's common stock, $.10 par value (the "common stock"), for each of the last two 
fiscal years:  
  

  
   First  
Quarter 

 Second  
Quarter 

   Third  
Quarter 

 Fourth  
Quarter 

   
Year 

  
1999 High     $14.69     $21.44     $24.81     $25.00   $ 25.00   
1999 Low     $  8.75     $12.06     $17.06     $14.88   $   8.75   
  
1998 High     $33.56     $30.75     $18.44     $15.75   $ 33.56   
1998 Low     $23.69     $16.44     $10.38     $  8.69   $   8.69   

  
       The Company's Common Stock (Symbol: ESV) is traded on the New York Stock 
Exchange. At February 1, 2000, there were approximately 2,400 stockholders of record of 
the Company's common stock.  

       The Company initiated the payment of a $.025 per share quarterly cash dividend on its 
common stock during the third quarter of 1997. Cash dividends per share paid in 1999, 1998 
and 1997 were $.10, $.10 and $.05, respectively. The Company currently intends to continue 
to pay such quarterly dividends for the foreseeable future. However, the final determination 
of the timing, amount and payment of dividends on the common stock is at the discretion of 
the Board of Directors and will depend on, among other things, the Company's profitability, 
liquidity, financial condition and capital requirements.  

 

Item 6.   Selected Consolidated Financial Data  

     The selected consolidated financial data set forth below for the five years in the period 



ended December 31, 1999 has been derived from the Company's audited consolidated 
financial statements. This information should be read in conjunction with the audited 
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in "Item 8. Financial 
Statements and Supplementary Data."  
  

  
                  Year Ended December 31,                 

   
     1999    1998    1997    1996(1)    1995 
  (in millions, except per share amounts) 

  
Consolidated Statement of Income Data             
   Operating revenues   $363 .7 $813 .2 $815 .1 $468 .8 $279 .1 
   Operating expenses, excluding (D and A)   262 .0 344 .5 321 .0 238 .3 165 .5 
   Depreciation and amortization (D and A)   98 .2 83 .5 104 .8 81 .8 58 .4 

   Operating income   3 .5 385 .2 389 .3 148 .7 55 .2 
   Other income (expense), net   1 .7 (2 .7) (13 .5) (6 .0) (7 .9) 

   Income from continuing operations before  
     income taxes and minority interest   5 .2 382 .5 375 .8 142 .7 47 .3 
   Provision (benefit) for income taxes   (2 .9) 123 .8 137 .8 44 .0 3 .4 
   Minority interest   1 .4 4 .8 3 .1 3 .3 2 .1 

   Income from continuing operations   6 .7 253 .9 234 .9 95 .4 41 .8 
   Income from discontinued operations(2)   --  --  --  --  6 .3 

   Income before extraordinary item   6 .7 253 .9 234 .9 95 .4 48 .1 
   Extraordinary item-extinguishment of debt   --  --  (1 .0) --  --  

   Net income   $    6 .7 $253 .9 $233 .9 $  95 .4 $  48 .1 

   Basic earnings per share:(3)                       
       Continuing operations   $  .0 5 $  1.8 2 $  1.6 7 $  .7 3 $  .3 5 
       Discontinued operations   --  --  --  --      .0 5 
       Extraordinary item   --  --      (.0 1) --  --  

       Net income per share   $  .0 5 $  1.8 2 $  1.6 6 $  .7 3 $  .4 0 

   Diluted earnings per share:(3)                     
      Continuing operations   $  .0 5 $  1.8 1 $  1.6 4 $  .7 2 $  .3 5 
      Discontinued operations   --  --  --  --      .0 5 
      Extraordinary item   --  --      (.0 1) --  --  

      Net income per share   $  .0 5 $  1.8 1 $  1.6 4 $  .7 2 $  .4 0 

   Weighted average common shares outstanding: (3)   
      Basic   136 .5 139 .6 141 .0 131 .5       119 .9 
      Diluted   137 .7 140 .6 142 .9 133 .1 120 .8 
   Cash dividends per common share   $   .1 0 $   .1 0 $   .0 5 $   --  $   --  

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data   
   Working capital   $  138 .0 $  316 .9 $  316 .2 $  107 .5 $  78 .9 
   Total assets   1,978 .0 1,992 .8 1,772 .0 1,315 .4 821 .5 
   Long-term debt, net of current portion   371 .2 375 .5 400 .8 258 .6 159 .2 
   Stockholders' equity   1,241 .0 1,245 .0 1,076 .7 845 .9 531 .2 

  
   (1)   The Company acquired DUAL DRILLING COMPANY ("Dual") on June 12, 1996. Consolidated 

Statement of Income Data include the results of Dual from the acquisition date. 

   (2)   The Company sold its technical services segment in 1995 and the 1995 results include a gain of 
$5.2 million in connection with the sale. 

   (3)   Earnings per share and weighted average common shares outstanding amounts have been adjusted 
for the two-for-one stock split on September 15, 1997 and the adoption of Statement of Financial 



Accounting Standards No. 128, "Earnings per Share." 

 

Item 7.   Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of  
            Operations  

Business Environment  

       ENSCO International Incorporated (“ENSCO” or the “Company”) is one of the leading 
international providers of offshore drilling and marine transportation services to the oil and 
gas industry. The Company’s operations are concentrated in the geographic regions of North 
America, Europe, Asia Pacific and South America.  

       Demand for the Company’s services is significantly affected by worldwide 
expenditures for oil and gas drilling. Expenditures for oil and gas drilling activity fluctuate 
based upon many factors including world economic conditions, the legislative environment 
in the U.S. and other major countries, production levels and other activities of OPEC and 
other oil and gas producers, and the impact that these and other events have on the current 
and expected future pricing of oil and natural gas.  

       Concern over excess oil supplies adversely impacted oil prices during 1998 and early 
1999. As a result of the decrease in oil prices, oil companies curtailed or deferred 
exploration and development spending, which adversely impacted industry conditions 
during 1999. Oil prices have been increasing since early 1999, and recently prices for West 
Texas Intermediate crude oil have exceeded $30.00 per barrel. The increase in oil prices is 
due primarily to cutbacks in oil production by OPEC and to a more favorable outlook for 
worldwide oil demand. Whether or not the recent increase in oil prices will be sustained is 
not determinable at the present time. Although higher oil prices improves the likelihood of 
oil companies increasing their exploration and development spending, the timing of any 
exploration and development spending increase and the impact on the Company’s 
operations and financial results are uncertain.  

       The recent improvement in oil prices and U.S. natural gas prices has increased demand 
for drilling rigs and marine vessels in domestic markets, and the Company began 
experiencing increases in domestic day rates and utilization during the fourth quarter of 
1999. However, an increase in demand for drilling rigs in international markets appears to 
be lagging the domestic markets, and the Company does not expect improvement in 
international markets until later in 2000.  

Results of Operations  

       The Company's 1999 results reflect the impact of the industry downturn that began in 
1998. The Company's average day rates and utilization in 1999 were substantially lower 
than those achieved in 1998 and 1997. The following table highlights the Company's 
consolidated operating results for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 
1999 (in millions):  
  

   1999   1998   1997  
Operating Results         
   Revenues   $363 .7 $813 .2 $815 .1 
   Operating expenses, excluding D and A   262 .0 344 .5 321 .0 
   Depreciation and amortization (D and A)   98 .2 83 .5 104 .8 

   Operating income   3 .5 385 .2 389 .3 
   Other income (expense), net   1 .7 (2 .7) (13 .5) 
   Provision (benefit) for income taxes   (2 .9) 123 .8 137 .8 



   Minority interest   1 .4 4 .8 3 .1 

   Income before extraordinary item   6 .7 253 .9 234 .9 
   Extraordinary item - extinguishment of debt   --  --  (1 .0) 

   Net income   $  6 .7 $253 .9 $233 .9 

  
       The following is an analysis of the Company's revenues and operating margin for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1999 (in millions):  

  
  

  1999 1998 1997 
Revenues         
      Contract drilling   
           Jackup rigs   
                 North America   $136 .4 $324 .1 $357 .9 
                 Europe   60 .5 217 .4 173 .8 
                 Asia Pacific   49 .0 78 .3 80 .0 

                      Total jackup rigs   245 .9 619 .8 611 .7 
           Barge rigs - South America   52 .1 71 .1 82 .8 
           Platform rigs   29 .6 42 .6 26 .4 

                      Total contract drilling   327 .6 733 .5 720 .9 

      Marine transportation   
           AHTS(1)   17 .4 18 .4 22 .2 
           Supply   17 .3 52 .7 60 .9 
           Mini-supply   1 .4 8 .6 11 .1 

                      Total marine transportation   36 .1 79 .7 94 .2 

                            Total   $363 .7 $813 .2 $815 .1 

Operating Margin(2)   
      Contract drilling   
           Jackup rigs   
                North America   $   28 .7 $200 .9 $240 .8 
                Europe   26 .7 155 .7 117 .7 
                Asia Pacific   16 .1 35 .7 36 .2 

                      Total jackup rigs   71 .5 392 .3 394 .7 
            Barge rigs - South America   25 .0 34 .6 48 .7 
            Platform rigs   12 .6 18 .9 8 .0 

                      Total contract drilling   109 .1 445 .8 451 .4 

      Marine transportation   
           AHTS(1)   6 .6 8 .8 12 .6 
           Supply   (1 .9) 26 .0 38 .0 
           Mini-supply   ( .9) 3 .5 6 .4 

                      Total marine transportation   3 .8 38 .3 57 .0 

                            Total   $112 .9 $484 .1 $508 .4 

  
   (1)   Anchor handling tug supply vessels. 

   (2)   Defined as operating revenues less operating expenses, exclusive of depreciation and amortization 
and general and administrative expenses. 

  



       Discussions relative to each of the Company's operating segments and geographic 
operations are set forth below.  

        Contract Drilling. The following is an analysis of the geographic locations of the 
Company's offshore drilling rigs at December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997.  
  

1999 1998 1997 
             Jackup rigs:         
                     North America   22   22   22   
                     Europe   7   7   7   
                     Asia Pacific   7   7   7 

                              Total jackup rigs   36   36   36   
             Barge rigs - South America(1)   9   6   10   
             Platform rigs(2)   7   8   8   

                             Total   52   50   54   

  
   (1)   The Company sold four barge rigs in October 1998 and completed construction of 

three new barge rigs that were added to the Company's fleet during the first and 
second quarters of 1999. 

   (2)   In April 1999, the Company completed the operating contract for a platform rig 
that was located off the coast of China. The platform rig was not owned by the 
Company, but operated under a management contract. The Company's seven 
remaining platform rigs are all located in the Gulf of Mexico. 

  

       In 1999, revenues for the contract drilling segment decreased by $405.9 million, or 
55%, and operating margin decreased by $336.7 million, or 76%, as compared to 1998. The 
decrease in revenues and operating margin is primarily due to a 55% decrease in the average 
day rates of the Company's jackup rigs and a decrease in the utilization of the Company's 
drilling rig fleet, to 65% in 1999 from 90% in 1998. Operating expenses for the contract 
drilling segment decreased $69.2 million, or 24%, from the prior year due to reduced 
utilization and the impact of cost savings measures, which included, among other things, 
reductions in personnel and decreases in performance based compensation and benefits.  

       In 1998, revenues for the contract drilling segment increased by $12.6 million, or 2%, 
while operating margin decreased by $5.6 million, or 1%, from 1997. The increase in 
revenues is due primarily to a 5% increase in average day rates for the Company's jackup 
rigs, and a 33% increase in average day rates for the Company's platform rigs. In addition, 
the acquisition of the ENSCO 100 jackup rig, in December 1997, increased revenues by 
$14.2 million in 1998. These increases were offset in part by a decrease in utilization for the 
Company's jackup rigs, to 88% in 1998 from 93% in 1997, and the sale of four barge rigs in 
Venezuela in October 1998. The contract drilling operating margin was negatively impacted 
by an $18.2 million, or 7%, increase in operating expenses. The increase in operating 
expenses is due primarily to higher wages and benefits and increased oilfield equipment and 
materials costs.  

   North America Jackup Rigs  

       In 1999, revenues for the North America jackup rigs decreased by $187.7 million, or 
58%, and operating margin decreased by $172.2 million, or 86%, as compared to 1998. The 
decrease in revenues and operating margin is primarily attributable to a 58% decrease in 
average day rates in 1999. Operating expenses decreased $15.5 million, or 13%, from the 
prior year due primarily to cost savings measures.  

       In 1998, revenues for the North America jackup rigs decreased by $33.8 million, or 9%, 



and operating margin decreased by $39.9 million, or 17%, as compared to 1997. The 
decrease in revenues and operating margin is due primarily to an approximate 7% decrease 
in average day rates and a decrease in utilization to 93% in 1998 from 96% in 1997. In 
addition to the decrease in revenues, operating margin was negatively impacted by a $6.1 
million increase in operating expenses in 1998, due primarily to higher wages and benefits 
and increased oilfield equipment and materials costs.  

   Europe Jackup Rigs  

       In 1999, revenues for the Europe jackup rigs decreased by $156.9 million, or 72%, and 
operating margin decreased by $129.0 million, or 83%, as compared to 1998. The decrease 
in revenues and operating margin is primarily attributable to a 46% decline in average day 
rates and to a decrease in utilization, to 48% in 1999 from 97% in 1998. Operating expenses 
decreased $27.9 million, or 45%, from the prior year due primarily to cost savings measures 
and substantially lower utilization.  

       In 1998, revenues for the Europe jackup rigs increased by $43.6 million, or 25%, and 
operating margin increased by $38.0 million, or 32%, as compared to 1997. The increase in 
revenues and operating margin is due primarily to a 20% increase in average day rates in 
1998 as compared to 1997 and the addition of the ENSCO 100 jackup rig, in December 
1997, which added revenues of $14.2 million in 1998. These increases in revenues were 
offset in part by a decrease in utilization to 97% in 1998 as compared to 100% in 1997. 
Operating margin was negatively impacted by a $5.6 million increase in operating expenses 
in 1998, due primarily to higher wages and benefits and increased oilfield equipment and 
materials costs.  

   Asia Pacific Jackup Rigs  

       In 1999, revenues for the Asia Pacific jackup rigs decreased by $29.3 million, or 37%, 
and operating margin decreased by $19.6 million, or 55%, as compared to 1998. The 
decrease in revenues and operating margin is primarily attributable to a 16% decline in 
average day rates and to a decrease in utilization, to 46% in 1999 from 61% in 1998. 
Operating expenses decreased $9.7 million, or 23%, from the prior year due primarily to 
cost savings measures and lower utilization.  

       In 1998, revenues for the Asia Pacific jackup rigs decreased by $1.7 million, or 2%, and 
operating margin decreased by $.5 million, or 1%, as compared to 1997. The decrease in 
revenues is due primarily to a decrease in utilization, to 61% in 1998 as compared to 79% in 
1997, offset in part by a 25% increase in average day rates. The decrease in utilization is due 
to shipyard downtime and additional idle time resulting from the slowdown in drilling 
activity in Southeast Asia.  

   South America Barge Rigs  

       In 1999, revenues for the South America barge rigs decreased by $19.0 million, or 27%, 
and operating margin decreased by $9.6 million, or 28%, as compared to 1998. The decrease 
in revenues and operating margin is primarily attributable to reduced utilization. Four of the 
ten barge rigs that operated during the prior year were sold in October 1998, and the 
remaining six barge rigs were idle for the majority of 1999 after experiencing early contract 
terminations in January 1999. The decrease in revenues and operating margin attributable to 
these ten barge rigs was partially offset by the operating results of three newly constructed 
barge rigs that commenced operations in March, April and June of 1999, and by lump-sum 
early contract termination payments totaling $18.4 million in January 1999. Operating 
expenses decreased $9.4 million, or 26%, from the prior year, as cost reductions attributable 
to cost savings measures, the four barge rigs sold in October 1998 and the reduced 



utilization of the remaining six barge rigs that operated during the prior year were only 
partially offset by the costs associated with the three newly constructed barge rigs.  

       In 1998, revenues for the South America barge rigs decreased by $11.7 million, or 14%, 
and operating margin decreased by $14.1 million, or 29%, as compared to 1997. The 
decrease in revenues and operating margin is due primarily to the sale of four barge rigs in 
October 1998 whose initial contract periods expired during the second quarter of 1998.  

       In October 1998, the Company sold four barge rigs to Petroleos de Venezuela 
("PDVSA") in connection with contractual purchase options exercised by PDVSA. At the 
date of sale, the Company received cash proceeds of $49.4 million, and the Company and 
PDVSA reached a reservation of rights agreement for the resolution of certain contractual 
disputes relating to additional consideration the Company believed it was entitled to receive 
in connection with the sale. Based on the cash proceeds received, the Company recognized 
an insignificant gain in the fourth quarter of 1998 after taxes and a required payment of $4.8 
million to ENSCO's minority interest holder. In December 1999, the Company reached a 
settlement with PDVSA for additional consideration and recognized a gain of $6.8 million, 
or approximately $5.2 million net after taxes and minority interest (see Note 2 to the 
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements).  

   Platform Rigs  

       In 1999, revenues from the platform rigs decreased by $13.0 million, or 31%, and 
operating margin decreased by $6.3 million, or 33%, as compared to 1998. The decrease in 
revenues and operating margin is primarily attributable to a 9% decline in average day rates 
and to a decrease in utilization, to 51% in 1999 from 89% in 1998. Operating expenses 
decreased $6.7 million, or 28%, from the prior year due primarily to cost savings measures 
and lower utilization.  

       In 1998, revenues for the platform rigs increased by $16.2 million, or 61%, and 
operating margin increased by $10.9 million, or 136%, as compared to 1997. The increase in 
revenues is due to an increase in utilization, to 89% in 1998 from 63% in 1997, and a 33% 
increase in day rates. The increase in utilization is due primarily to less shipyard downtime 
in 1998 as compared to 1997 and reduced idle time due to increased demand. Operating 
margin was negatively impacted by a $5.3 million increase in operating expenses. The 
increase in operating expenses is due primarily to the additional operating days in 1998.  

        Marine Transportation .   At December 31, 1999, the Company had a marine 
transportation fleet of 35 vessels, consisting of six anchor handling tug supply ("AHTS") 
vessels, 23 supply vessels and six mini-supply vessels. Three of these vessels, including one 
AHTS vessel and two mini-supply vessels, were sold during the first quarter of 2000. The 
Company also sold two mini-supply vessels during the fourth quarter of 1999 (see Note 2 to 
the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements). During the third quarter of 1999, the 
Company added a 196-foot, 6,000 horsepower AHTS vessel to its fleet. The AHTS vessel is 
being leased, and the Company has an option to purchase the vessel beginning February 
2001.  

       In September 1998, one of the Company's large AHTS vessels sank while supporting 
drilling operations for a customer in the Gulf of Mexico. The vessel was fully insured and 
the Company recognized a gain on the loss of the vessel (see "Other Income (Expense)" and 
Note 2 to the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements). All of the Company's marine 
transportation vessels are located in the Gulf of Mexico.  

       In 1999, revenues for the marine transportation segment decreased by $43.6 million, or 
55%, and operating margin decreased by $34.5 million, or 90%, as compared to 1998. The 



decrease in revenues and operating margin is primarily attributable to a 40% decline in 
average day rates and to a decrease in utilization, to 62% in 1999 from 81% in 1998. 
Operating expenses decreased $9.1 million, or 22%, from the prior year due primarily to 
cost savings measures and lower utilization.  

       In 1998, revenues for the marine transportation segment decreased by $14.5 million, or 
15%, and operating margin decreased by $18.7 million, or 33%, as compared to 1997. The 
decrease in revenues and operating margin is due primarily to a decrease in utilization, to 
81% in 1998 from 91% in 1997, and a 5% decrease in average day rates. In addition, 
revenues decreased due to the loss of a vessel in September 1998. Operating expenses 
increased $4.2 million, or 11%, due primarily to increased drydocking expense and higher 
personnel costs.  

        Depreciation and Amortization . Depreciation and amortization expense in 1999 
increased $14.7 million, or 18%, as compared to 1998. The increase is due primarily to rig 
enhancement projects that were completed in 1998 and construction of the three new barge 
rigs that commenced operations in 1999, offset in part by the sale of four barge rigs in 
October 1998.  

       In 1998, depreciation and amortization expense decreased by $21.3 million, or 20%, 
due primarily to a change in the estimated useful lives of the Company's drilling rigs and 
marine vessels effective January 1, 1998. Based on an engineering and economic study of 
the Company's asset base completed in the fourth quarter of 1997, the depreciable lives of 
the Company's drilling rigs and marine vessels were extended by an average of five to six 
years. The effect of this change on the Company's financial results for the year ended 
December 31, 1998 was to reduce depreciation expense by $35.2 million, or $.25 per basic 
and diluted share. The decrease in depreciation expense caused by the increase in the 
estimated useful lives was offset in part by the increase in the Company's asset base 
resulting from acquisitions in 1997 and capital additions to drilling rigs and marine vessels 
during 1997 and 1998.  

        General and Administrative .   General and administrative expense decreased $4.2 
million, or 27%, in 1999 as compared to 1998. The decrease is due primarily to a reduction 
of performance-based compensation and other cost savings measures.  

       In 1998, general and administrative expenses increased by $1.1 million, or 8%, as 
compared to 1997. The increase in general and administrative expenses is due primarily to 
increased professional fees and higher personnel costs.  

        Other Income (Expense) .  Other income (expense) for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31, 1999, is as follows (in millions):  
  

1999  
  

1998  
  

      1997  
  

       Interest income   $13 .7 $15 .1 $  7 .4 
       Interest expense, net:   
            Interest expense   (31 .7) (32 .5) (22 .8) 
            Capitalized interest   12 .4 6 .3 1 .4 

    (19 .3) (26 .2) (21 .4) 
       Other, net   7 .3 8 .4 .5 

    $  1 .7 $ (2 .7) $(13 .5) 

  

       Interest income decreased $1.4 million in 1999, as compared to 1998, due primarily to 
slightly lower average cash balances. Interest income increased $7.7 million in 1998 from 



1997 due to higher average outstanding cash balances. The increase in average cash 
balances from 1997 to 1998 is primarily a result of increased cash flow from operations and 
cash received from the issuance of $300.0 million in public debt in November 1997.  

       Interest expense decreased approximately $800,000 in 1999, as compared to 1998. The 
decrease is primarily attributable to lower average debt balances, as the Company repaid 
certain term loans in the first quarter of 1999 in connection with early contract terminations 
in South America. Interest expense increased $9.7 million in 1998, as compared to 1997. 
The increase resulted from higher average debt balances. The increase in average debt 
balances from 1997 to 1998 resulted from the issuance of $300.0 million in public debt in 
November 1997, offset in part by the retirement of other debt outstanding.  

       Capitalized interest increased $6.1 million in 1999, as compared to 1998. The increase 
is primarily attributable to the ENSCO 101 and ENSCO 7500 construction projects, which 
began during 1998 and remained in process at December 31, 1999. Capitalized interest 
increased $4.9 million in 1998, as compared to 1997. The increase is primarily attributable 
to construction projects initiated during 1998 for three barge rigs and the ENSCO 101.  

       Other, net in 1999 consists primarily of a $6.8 million gain recognized in connection 
with the resolution of certain contractual disputes relating to the sale of four barge rigs in 
October 1998 (see "Contract Drilling - South America Barge Rigs" and Note 2 to the 
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements). Other, net in 1998 consists primarily of a 
$10.0 million gain recorded on the loss of the Kodiak II marine vessel, which sank in 
September 1998. The gain represents the insurance proceeds in excess of the net book value 
of the vessel (see Note 2 to the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements).  

        Provision for Income Taxes .   In 1999, the Company recorded a benefit for income 
taxes of $2.9 million, and in 1998 and 1997 the Company recorded income tax expense of 
$123.8 million and $137.8 million, respectively. The $126.7 million decrease in the income 
tax provision from 1998 to 1999 is primarily due to the reduced level of profitability and to 
the impact of restructuring certain foreign operations during 1999. The $14.0 million 
decrease in the income tax provision from 1997 to 1998 is primarily due to a favorable 
settlement of a foreign tax matter and an adjustment of prior year accruals in 1998.  

Liquidity and Capital Resources  

        Cash Flow from Operations and Capital Expenditures .  
              Year Ended December 

31,         
1999 1998      1997 

(in millions) 
  
Cash flow from operations   $115 .0 $448 .7 $336 .6 

    
Capital expenditures:   
     New construction and acquisitions   $215 .9 $127 .1 $119 .9 
     Enhancements   21 .1 159 .6 131 .8 
     Sustaining   11 .1 44 .1 30 .6 

    $248 .1 $330 .8 $282 .3 

  

       In 1999, cash flow from operations decreased by $333.7 million, or 74%, as compared 
to 1998. The 1999 decrease in cash flow from operations is primarily a result of reduced 
operating margins and reduced cash flow from working capital changes. In 1998, cash flow 
from operations increased $112.1 million, or 33%, as compared to 1997. The 1998 increase 



in cash flow from operations was due primarily to working capital changes.  

       As part of the Company's ongoing enhancement program, $312.5 million has been 
invested over the last three years in upgrading the capability and extending the service lives 
of the Company's drilling rigs and marine vessels. In addition, the Company has expanded 
the size of its drilling rig fleet through acquisitions and construction. In 1997, the Company 
acquired a harsh environment, Gorilla class, jackup rig located in the North Sea and 
purchased the remaining 51% interest in a previously jointly-owned jackup rig located in 
Southeast Asia. During 1998, the Company began construction of three barge rigs, a harsh 
environment jackup rig and a semisubmersible rig. Construction of the three barge rigs was 
completed in the first and second quarters of 1999. Construction of the harsh environment 
jackup rig was completed in February 2000, and completion of the semisubmersible rig 
construction is projected for the fourth quarter of 2000.  

       Capital expenditures, including capitalized interest, related to the new construction 
projects will be approximately $155.0 million in 2000. In addition, management anticipates 
that capital expenditures will be approximately $80.0 million for upgrades and 
enhancements and $20.0 million for sustaining operations in 2000. The Company may 
spend additional funds to construct or acquire rigs or vessels in 2000 depending on market 
conditions and opportunities.  

        Financing and Capital Resources. The Company's long-term debt, total capital and debt 
to capital ratios are summarized below (in millions, except percentages):  
  

                                   At December 31,     
                

         1999            1998               1997   
Long-term debt   $   371 .2 $   375 .5 $   400 .8 
Total capital   1,612 .2 1,620 .5 1,477 .5 
Long-term debt to total capital   23.0 % 23.2 % 27.1 % 
  

       In June 1999, the Company received a commitment from the United States Maritime 
Administration ("MARAD") for the guarantee of approximately $195 million of long-term 
debt for the construction of the ENSCO 7500, the Company's new semisubmersible rig. The 
MARAD guarantee covers interim construction financing, as well as 15-year bonds to be 
issued upon completion of construction. In December 1999, the Company entered into a 
floating rate term loan agreement (the "Facility") with a major financial institution (the 
"Lender") to provide interim financing during the rig construction period. Interest on 
amounts borrowed under the Facility will be payable semi-annually at a variable rate based 
on the Lender's cost of funds plus .15% (6.3% at December 31, 1999). At December 31, 
1999, there were no amounts outstanding under the Facility, and the Company expects to 
begin drawing funds in the first quarter of 2000. Amounts borrowed under the Facility will 
be repaid with proceeds from 15-year bonds to be issued after completion of rig construction 
and repaid in 30 semi-annual payments of principal and interest. The Company currently 
expects to complete the rig construction in the fourth quarter of 2000.  

       In May 1998, the Company entered into a $185.0 million unsecured revolving credit 
agreement (the "Credit Agreement") with a syndicate of banks. Interest on amounts 
borrowed under the Credit Agreement are based on LIBOR plus an applicable margin rate 
(currently .4%) depending on the Company's credit rating. The Company also pays a 
commitment fee (currently .15% per annum) on the undrawn portion of the available credit 
line, which is also based on the Company's credit rating. The Company is required to 
maintain certain financial covenants under the Credit Agreement which include the 
Company meeting a specified level of interest coverage, assets to indebtedness, leverage 
ratio and tangible net worth. As of December 31, 1999, the Company had $185.0 million 
available for borrowings under the Credit Agreement. The Credit Agreement matures in 



May 2003.  

       The Company's total capital decreased in 1999 as compared to 1998 primarily due to 
the payment of $13.7 million in dividends in 1999 and the decrease in long-term debt in 
1999, offset in part by the profitability of the Company in 1999. The Company's total capital 
increased in 1998 as compared to 1997 due primarily to the profitability of the Company in 
1998, offset in part by the repurchase of approximately 5.5 million shares of the Company's 
common stock at a cost of $74.2 million, and payment of cash dividends of $14.1 million in 
1998.  

       The Company's liquidity position is summarized in the table below (in millions, except 
ratios):  

                                At December 31,               
     

     1999      1998             1997 
           Cash and short-term investments   $165 .3 $330 .1 $262 .2 
           Working capital   138 .0 316 .9 316 .2 
            Current ratio   2 .0 3 .0 3 .4 

  

       Based on the current financial condition of the Company, management believes cash 
flow from operations, the ENSCO 7500 financing guaranteed by MARAD, the Company's 
existing Credit Agreement and the Company's working capital should be sufficient to fund 
the Company's ongoing liquidity needs for the foreseeable future.  

       On February 14, 2000, the Company notified holders of its 9-7/8% Senior Subordinated 
Notes due 2004 (the "Dual Notes") of its intent to exercise its option to redeem. All 
outstanding Dual Notes will be redeemed on March 15, 2000, at a price equal to 103.29% of 
the principal amount, which equates to approximately $74.2 million (see Note 12 to the 
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements).  

Market Risk  

       The Company occasionally uses derivative financial instruments to hedge against its 
exposure to changes in foreign currencies. The Company does not use derivative financial 
instruments for trading purposes. The Company predominantly structures its drilling rig 
contracts in U.S. dollars to mitigate its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currencies. The 
Company will, however, from time to time, hedge its known liabilities or projected 
payments in foreign currencies to reduce the impact of foreign currency gains and losses in 
its financial results. At December 31, 1999, the Company had foreign currency exchange 
contracts outstanding to exchange U.S. dollars for Dutch guilders and Singapore dollars 
totaling $21.6 million. At December 31, 1999, there were no material unrealized gains or 
losses on open foreign currency exchange derivative hedges. Management believes that the 
Company's hedging activities do not expose the Company to any material interest rate risk, 
foreign currency exchange rate risk, commodity price risk or any other market rate or price 
risk (see Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).  

       In 2000, the Company will have exposure to market risk in connection with the variable 
interest rate on amounts borrowed under the Facility, the Company's interim construction 
financing guaranteed by MARAD (see "Liquidity and Capital Resources - Financing and 
Capital Resources" and Note 3 to the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements). As the 
interest rate on amounts borrowed under the Facility is ultimately based on changes in 
LIBOR, the Company's exposure to interest rate risk due to changes in the Facility interest 
rate are not expected to be material.  

Year 2000 Update  



       Prior to January 1, 2000, the Company performed an assessment of its critical 
information technology (IT) and non-IT systems, corrected all deficiencies identified, and 
developed contingency plans for potential Year 2000 issues. To date, the Company has 
experienced no problems in connection with Year 2000 issues.  

       The total cost to make the Company's systems and equipment Year 2000 compliant was 
approximately $750,000, including software and systems replaced in the Company's normal 
upgrade cycle. The total cost does not include internal labor costs for employees who spent 
part of their time working on the Company's Year 2000 project.  

Outlook and Forward-Looking Statements  

       Due to the short-term nature of many of the Company's contracts and the unpredictable 
nature of oil and natural gas prices, which affect demand for drilling activity, timing of the 
improvement in industry conditions experienced during 1999 cannot be accurately 
predicted. Whether recent oil price levels will be sustained is not determinable at the present 
time, and even if current price levels persist, significantly higher average day rates for the 
Company's fleet as a whole will probably not be realized for several quarters.  

       Improved oil prices and U.S. natural gas prices increased demand for drilling rigs and 
marine vessels in domestic markets during the latter part of 1999, and the Company 
experienced an increase in domestic day rates in the fourth quarter of 1999. In the near term, 
the Company believes that improvements in day rates in domestic markets will generally 
continue.  

       Although there have been early signs that demand for drilling rigs in international 
markets may be beginning to improve, as of this date there has been no appreciable 
improvement in day rates in international markets. Providing that current oil price levels are 
sustained, management expects a recovery in international markets to commence during the 
latter part of 2000.  

       The Company stacked certain rigs and vessels during 1999 as a result of industry 
conditions. The Company's policy is to stack its rigs and vessels if it does not believe there 
will be a market for the equipment in the near term or if sufficient cash flow cannot be 
generated to cover cash operating costs. The Company did not stack, and has no plans to 
stack, any of its North America jackup rigs. In Europe, the Company stacked rigs in 1999 as 
a result of early terminations of long-term contracts. Six of the Company's rigs currently 
located in the Europe region are idle. However, five of the six idle rigs have secured 
contracts or letters of intent to commence drilling operations during the second quarter of 
2000, and the remaining idle rig is in the shipyard undergoing enhancements and upgrades, 
which the Company expects to complete in the third quarter of 2000. In addition, 
construction of the ENSCO 101 was completed in Singapore in February 2000, and the rig 
is currently mobilizing to the North Sea, with arrival scheduled for April 2000. Currently, 
the ENSCO 101 is not under contract, and the Company is actively marketing the rig. In the 
Asia Pacific region, the Company has two rigs that are currently idle, both of which are 
being actively marketed. The Company has six idle barge rigs in South America, four of 
which are stacked and two of which continue to be marketed. In the marine transportation 
segment, there are currently three supply vessels and two mini-supply vessels stacked. The 
Company anticipates recommissioning and marketing the three supply vessels in the second 
half of 2000.  

       During 1998, the Company began construction of the ENSCO 7500, a dynamically 
positioned semisubmersible rig. The ENSCO 7500 has an approximate $190 million, three-
year contract with Burlington Resources ("Burlington") that is scheduled to commence upon 
satisfactory completion of construction. The Company expects to complete construction 
during the fourth quarter of 2000. Construction of a semisubmersible rig such as the 



ENSCO 7500 involves complex design and engineering, as well as extensive equipment and 
supply delivery coordination throughout the construction period. It is not unusual for 
shipyards to encounter design and engineering changes, equipment delivery schedule 
changes, and other factors that impact the ability to complete construction in accordance 
with original contractual budgets and delivery schedules. The shipyard constructing the 
ENSCO 7500 has recently experienced cost overruns and delays on other rig construction 
projects, including certain barge rigs built for the Company. To date, the Company has not 
experienced significant cost overruns or unanticipated delays in connection with the 
ENSCO 7500 construction. However, if construction delays should occur and the ENSCO 
7500 is not delivered in accordance with the specifications agreed with Burlington prior to 
the delivery deadline under the Burlington contract of March 24, 2001, Burlington has the 
right to terminate the contract. Termination of the Burlington contract could have a material 
adverse effect on the Company's operating results.  

       This report contains forward-looking statements based on current expectations that 
involve a number of risks and uncertainties. Generally, forward-looking statements include 
words or phrases such as "management anticipates," "the Company believes," "the 
Company anticipates," "the Company expects," "the Company plans" and words and 
phrases of similar impact, and include but are not limited to statements regarding future 
operations and business environment. The forward-looking statements are made pursuant to 
safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The factors 
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking 
statements include the following: (i) industry conditions and competition, (ii) cyclical nature 
of the industry, (iii) worldwide expenditures for oil and gas drilling, (iv) operational risks 
and insurance, (v) risks associated with operating in foreign jurisdictions, (vi) environmental 
liabilities which may arise in the future which are not covered by insurance or indemnity, 
(vii) the impact of current and future laws and government regulation, as well as repeal or 
modification of same, affecting the oil and gas industry and the Company's operations in 
particular, (viii) changes in the dates the Company's rigs being constructed or undergoing 
enhancement will enter service, (ix) renegotiation, nullification, or breach of contracts with 
customers or other parties, and (x) the risks described elsewhere, herein and from time to 
time in the Company's other reports to the Securities and Exchange Commission.  

New Accounting Pronouncements  

       In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities." This statement requires companies to record derivatives on the balance sheet as 
assets and liabilities, measured at fair value. Gains and losses resulting from changes in the 
values of those derivatives would be accounted for depending on the use of the derivative 
and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting. This statement is not expected to have a 
material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. This statement, as 
amended by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 137 "Accounting for 
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities - Deferral of the Effective Date of FASB 
Statement No. 133," is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000, with earlier 
adoption encouraged. ENSCO will adopt this accounting standard as required by January 1, 
2001.  

Item 7A.   Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk  

       Information required under Item 7A. has been incorporated into Management's 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Market Risk.  

Item 8.   Financial Statements and Supplementary Data  

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT  



       The management of ENSCO International Incorporated and its subsidiaries has 
responsibility for the preparation, integrity and reliability of the consolidated financial 
statements and related financial information contained in this report.  

       The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles and prevailing practices of the industries in which the 
Company operates. In some instances, these financial statements include amounts that are 
based on management's best estimates and judgments.  

       The Company maintains a system of procedures and controls over financial reporting 
that is designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Company's management and Board 
of Directors regarding the integrity and the fair and reliable preparation and presentation, in 
all material respects, of its published financial statements. This system of financial controls 
and procedures is reviewed, modified, and improved as changes occur in business 
conditions and operations, and as a result of suggestions from the independent accountants. 
There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of internal control and even 
an effective system of internal control can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to 
the financial statement preparation and may vary over time. Management believes that, as of 
December 31, 1999, the Company's internal control system provides reasonable assurance 
that material errors or irregularities will be prevented or detected within a timely period and 
is cost effective.  

       As part of management's responsibility for monitoring compliance with established 
policies and procedures, it relies on, among other things, audit procedures performed by 
corporate auditors and independent accountants to give assurance that established policies 
and procedures are adhered to in all areas subject to their audits. The Board of Directors, 
operating through its Audit Committee composed solely of outside directors, meets 
periodically with management and the independent accountants for the purpose of 
monitoring their activities to ensure that each is properly discharging its responsibilities. 
The Audit Committee and independent accountants have unrestricted access to one another 
to discuss their findings.  

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS  
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of ENSCO International Incorporated  

       In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related 
consolidated statements of income and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of ENSCO International Incorporated and its subsidiaries at December 
31, 1999 and 1998, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 31, 1999, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, which require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.  

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  

Dallas, Texas  



January 24, 2000, except as to Note 12, which is as of February 14, 2000  

ENSCO INTERNATIONAL INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME  

(in millions, except per share amounts)  
    Year Ended December 31,     

  1999 1998 1997 
REVENUES         
     Contract drilling   $327 .6 $733 .5 $720 .9 
     Marine transportation   36 .1 79 .7 94 .2 

    363 .7 813 .2 815 .1 

OPERATING EXPENSES   
     Contract drilling   218 .5 287 .7 269 .5 
     Marine transportation   32 .3 41 .4 37 .2 
     Depreciation and amortization   98 .2 83 .5 104 .8 
     General and administrative   11 .2 15 .4 14 .3 

    360 .2 428 .0 425 .8 

OPERATING INCOME   3 .5 385 .2 389 .3 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)   
     Interest income   13 .7 15 .1 7 .4 
     Interest expense, net   (19 .3) (26 .2) (21 .4) 
     Other, net   7 .3 8 .4 .5 

    1 .7 (2 .7) (13 .5) 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTEREST   5 .2 382 .5 375 .8 
PROVISION (BENEFIT) FOR INCOME TAXES   
     Current income taxes   (22 .4) 73 .2 82 .1 
     Deferred income taxes   19 .5 50 .6 55 .7 

    (2 .9) 123 .8 137 .8 
MINORITY INTEREST   1 .4 4 .8 3 .1 

INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM   6 .7 253 .9 234 .9 
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM - EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT     --   -- (1 .0) 

NET INCOME   $  6 .7 $253 .9 $233 .9 

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE   
     Income before extraordinary item   $  .0 5 $  1.8 2 $  1.6 7 
     Extraordinary item   -- -- (.0 1) 

     Net income   $  .0 5 $  1.8 2 $  1.6 6 

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE   
     Income before extraordinary item   $  .0 5 $  1.8 1 $  1.6 4 
     Extraordinary item   -- -- (.0 1) 

     Net income   $  .0 5 $  1.8 1 $  1.6 4 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING   
     Basic   136 .5 139 .6 141 .0 
     Diluted   137 .7 140 .6 142 .9 
CASH DIVIDENDS PER COMMON SHARE   $  .1 0 $  .1 0 $  .0 5 

    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  



  
  

ENSCO INTERNATIONAL INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET  

(in millions, except par value amounts)  
        December 31,      

    1999     1998   
                                                                              ASSETS  
        
CURRENT ASSETS   
    Cash and cash equivalents   $  144 .4 $  330 .1 
    Short-term investments   20 .9   -- 
    Accounts receivable, net   85 .3 118 .4 
    Prepaid expenses and other   22 .2 27 .8 

       Total current assets   272 .8 476 .3 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, AT COST   2,077 .5 1,799 .2 
    Less accumulated depreciation   500 .4 409 .8 

       Property and equipment, net   1,577 .1 1,389 .4 

OTHER ASSETS, NET   128 .1 127 .1 

    $1,978 .0 $1,992 .8 

  
                                        LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY  
    
CURRENT LIABILITIES   
    Accounts payable   $    8 .1 $    9 .1 
    Accrued liabilities   122 .7 126 .7 
    Current maturities of long-term debt   4 .0 23 .6 

       Total current liabilities   134 .8 159 .4 

LONG-TERM DEBT   371 .2 375 .5 
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES   199 .5 180 .0 
OTHER LIABILITIES   14 .3 17 .1 
MINORITY INTEREST   17 .2 15 .8 
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES   
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY   
    First preferred stock, $1 par value, 5.0 million shares authorized,   
       none issued     --   -- 
    Preferred stock, $1 par value, 15.0 million shares authorized,   
       none issued     --   -- 
    Common stock, $.10 par value, 250.0 million shares authorized,   
       155.9 million and 155.6 million shares issued   15 .6 15 .6 
    Additional paid-in capital   850 .3 846 .1 
    Retained earnings   531 .4 538 .4 
    Restricted stock (unearned compensation)   (6 .3) (7 .7) 
    Cumulative translation adjustment   (1 .1) (1 .1) 
    Treasury stock, at cost, 18.7 million and 18.5 million shares   (148 .9) (146 .3) 

       Total stockholders' equity   1,241 .0 1,245 .0 

    $1,978 .0 $1,992 .8 

    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  
  
  



ENSCO INTERNATIONAL INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  

(in millions) 
Year Ended December 31, 

  1999 1998 1997 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES         
        Net income   $    6 .7 $253 .9 $233 .9 
        Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided   
           by operating activities:   
              Depreciation and amortization   98 .2 83 .5 104 .8 
              Deferred income tax provision   19 .5 50 .6 55 .7 
              Amortization of other assets   10 .0 10 .1 8 .6 
              Gain on asset dispositions   (7 .9) (10 .6) (1 .6) 
              Other   1 .6 4 .5 .9 
              Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   
                 (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable   33 .1 38 .8 (46 .7) 
                 (Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other   (2 .5) 1 .0 (33 .3) 
                 Increase (decrease) in accounts payable   (1 .0) 1 .3 (9 .1) 
                 Increase (decrease) in accrued and other liabilities   (42 .7) 15 .6 23 .4 

                      Net cash provided by operating activities   115 .0 448 .7 336 .6 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
        Additions to property and equipment   (248 .1) (330 .8) (282 .3) 
        Net proceeds from disposition of assets   10 .5 68 .4 2 .1 
        Purchase of short-term investments   (20 .9)   --   -- 
        Other     --   -- .6 

                     Net cash used by investing activities   (258 .5) (262 .4) (279 .6) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
        Reduction of long-term borrowings   (23 .7) (30 .6) (160 .0) 
        Net proceeds from public debt offering     --   -- 287 .8 
        Repurchase of common stock     -- (74 .2)   -- 
        Cash dividends paid   (13 .7) (14 .1) (7 .1) 
        Tax benefit from stock compensation   1 .2 .6 5 .2 
        Deferred financing costs   (6 .3) ( .7) ( .5) 
        Other   .3 .6 ( .9) 

                     Net cash provided (used) by financing activities   (42 .2) (118 .4) 124 .5 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   (185 .7) 67 .9 181 .5 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR   330 .1 262 .2 80 .7 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR   $144 .4 $330 .1 $262 .2 

  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

  
  
  

ENSCO INTERNATIONAL INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

   

1.  DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT  
      ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

   Organization and Business  

       ENSCO International Incorporated (the "Company") is one of the leading international 
providers of offshore drilling and marine transportation services to the oil and gas industry. 
All of the Company's domestic and foreign operations are conducted through wholly-owned 



subsidiaries, with the exception of certain portions of the Company's Venezuelan operations 
in which the Company holds an 85% interest and a private Venezuelan company owns the 
remaining 15%. On February 10, 2000, the Company purchased the remaining 15% interest 
in portions of its Venezuela operations from the private Venezuelan company (see Note 12 
"Subsequent Events").  

       The Company's operations are integral to the exploration, development and production 
of oil and gas. Business levels for the Company, and its corresponding operating results, are 
significantly affected by worldwide expenditures for oil and gas drilling. Expenditures for 
oil and gas drilling activity fluctuate based upon many factors, including world economic 
conditions, the legislative environment in the U.S. and other major countries, production 
levels and other activities of OPEC and other oil and gas producers, and the impact that 
these and other events have on the current and expected future pricing of oil and natural gas 
(see Note 8 "Segment Information" for additional information concerning the Company's 
operations by segment and geographic region).  

   Principles of Consolidation  

       The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the 
Company and its majority owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and 
transactions have been eliminated.  

   Pervasiveness of Estimates  

       The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the related revenues and expenses, and 
disclosure of gain and loss contingencies at the date of the financial statements. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates.  

   Foreign Currency Translation  

       The U.S. dollar is the functional currency of all the Company's foreign subsidiaries. The 
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are remeasured in U.S. dollars based on a 
combination of both current and historical exchange rates. Gains and losses caused by the 
remeasurement process applicable to foreign subsidiaries are reflected in the consolidated 
statement of income. Translation gains and losses were insignificant for all years in the three 
year period ended December 31, 1999. In prior years, the financial statements of certain 
foreign subsidiaries were maintained in the local foreign currency. Foreign currency 
translation adjustments for those subsidiaries were accumulated as a separate component of 
stockholders' equity.  

   Cash Equivalents  

       The Company considers all highly liquid investments to be cash equivalents if they 
have maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase.  

   Short-Term Investments  

       Short-term investments are comprised of highly liquid investments having maturities of 
greater than three months but less than one year at the date of purchase. Short-term 
investments at December 31, 1999, consisted of high-grade commercial paper.  

   Property and Equipment  



       Depreciation of drilling rigs and related equipment and marine vessels acquired after 
1990 is computed using the straight line method over estimated useful lives ranging from 4 
to 22 years. Depreciation of drilling rigs and related equipment and marine vessels acquired 
prior to 1991 is computed using the units-of-production method over estimated useful lives 
ranging from 12 to 24 years. Under the units-of-production method, depreciation is based on 
the utilization of the drilling rigs and vessels with a minimum provision when the rigs or 
vessels are idle. Depreciation of other equipment and of buildings and improvements is 
computed using the straight line method over estimated useful lives ranging from 2 to 6 
years and 2 to 30 years, respectively.  

       During the latter part of 1997, the Company performed an engineering and economic 
study of the Company's asset base. As a result of this study, the Company, effective January 
1, 1998, extended the depreciable lives of its drilling rigs and marine vessels by an average 
of five to six years. The Company believes that this change provides a better matching of 
the revenues and expenses of the Company's assets over their anticipated useful lives. The 
effect of this change on the Company's financial results for the year ended December 31, 
1998 was to reduce depreciation expense by approximately $35.2 million or $.25 per basic 
and diluted share.  

       Maintenance and repair costs are charged to expense as incurred. Major renewals and 
improvements are capitalized. Upon retirement or replacement of assets, the related cost and 
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is 
included in income.  

   Goodwill  

       Goodwill arising from acquisitions is amortized on the straight-line basis over periods 
ranging from 10 to 40 years. Amortization of goodwill was $3.3 million, $3.3 million and 
$3.1 million for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization, was $110.1 million and $113.4 million at 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively, and is included in Other Assets, Net. 
Accumulated amortization of goodwill at December 31, 1999 and 1998 was $13.9 million 
and $10.6 million, respectively.  

   Impairment of Assets  

       The Company evaluates the carrying value of its long-lived assets, consisting primarily 
of property and equipment and goodwill, when events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying value of such assets may be impaired. The determination of impairment is 
based upon expectations of undiscounted future cash flows, before interest, of the related 
asset.  

   Revenue Recognition  

       The Company's drilling and marine services contracts generally provide for payment on 
a day rate basis, and revenues are recognized as the work is performed.  

   Income Taxes  

       Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the anticipated future tax effects of 
temporary differences between the financial statement basis and the tax basis of the 
Company's assets and liabilities using the enacted tax rates in effect at year end. A valuation 
allowance for deferred tax assets is recorded when it is more likely than not that the benefit 
from the deferred tax asset will not be realized.  



   Minority Interest  

       Certain portions of the Company's Venezuelan operations are conducted through 
ENSCO Drilling (Caribbean), Inc. ("Caribbean"), in which the Company owns an 85% 
equity interest. Minority interest expense for the three years in the period ended December 
31, 1999 reflects the minority shareholder's 15% equity interest in Caribbean. The minority 
shareholder is also entitled to an additional 15% of the net proceeds from any future sale of 
six barge rigs currently owned by Caribbean.  

       On February 10, 2000, the Company purchased the minority shareholder's interest in 
Caribbean and Caribbean became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (see Note 12 
"Subsequent Events").  

   Stock-Based Employee Compensation  

       The Company uses the intrinsic value method of accounting for employee stock-based 
compensation in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, 
"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees." Under the intrinsic value method, if the 
exercise price of the Company's stock options equals the market value of the underlying 
stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized.  

   Earnings Per Share  

       For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1999, there were no 
adjustments to net income for purposes of calculating basic and diluted earnings per share. 
The following is a reconciliation of the weighted average common shares used in the basic 
and diluted earnings per share computations (in millions):  

  Year Ended December 31, 
  1999 1998 1997 

                
Weighted average common shares outstanding (basic)   136 .5 139 .6 141 .0 
Potentially dilutive common shares:   
   Restricted stock grants   .3 .3 .5 
   Stock options   .9 .7 1 .4 

Weighted average common shares outstanding (diluted)   137 .7 140 .6 142 .9 

  
       Options to purchase 1.7 million shares of common stock in 1999 and 1.6 million shares 
of common stock in 1998 were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share 
because the exercise price of the options exceeded the average market price of the common 
stock. No options to purchase common stock were excluded from the computation of diluted 
earnings per share in 1997. All earnings per share amounts and weighted average common 
shares outstanding have been adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split on September 
15, 1997 (see Note 4 "Stockholders' Equity").  

   Reclassifications  

       Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 1999 
presentation.  

2.  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT  

       Property and equipment at December 31, 1999 and 1998 consists of the following (in 
millions):  

                1999                      1998 
Drilling rigs and equipment           



Drilling rigs and equipment   $1,678 .8 $1,522 .3 
Marine vessels   90 .1 87 .7 
Other   26 .7 25 .8 
Work in progress   281 .9 163 .4 

    $2,077 .5 $1,799 .2 

  
       In the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company sold two mini-supply vessels for aggregate 
proceeds of $1.9 million and recognized a net gain of approximately $500,000 on the sales.  

       In October 1998, the Company sold four barge rigs to Petroleos de Venezuela 
("PDVSA") in connection with contractual purchase options exercised by PDVSA. At the 
date of sale, the Company received cash proceeds of $49.4 million, and the Company and 
PDVSA reached a reservation of rights agreement for the resolution of certain contractual 
disputes relating to additional consideration the Company believed it was entitled to receive 
in connection with the sale. Based on the cash proceeds received, the Company recognized 
an insignificant gain in the fourth quarter of 1998 after consideration of taxes and a required 
payment of $4.8 million to ENSCO's minority interest holder. In December 1999, the 
Company settled the contractual disputes with PDVSA for additional consideration and 
recognized a gain of $6.8 million, or approximately $5.2 million net after taxes and minority 
interest ($.04 per basic and diluted share). The $6.8 million gain is recorded in "Other, net" 
under Other Income (Expense) in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended 
December 31, 1999.  

       In September 1998, one of the Company's large anchor handling tug supply vessels, the 
Kodiak II, sank while supporting drilling operations for a customer in the Gulf of Mexico. 
The Company received insurance proceeds of $21.0 million on the loss of the vessel, 
resulting in a financial statement gain of $10.0 million ($6.5 million net of tax or $.05 per 
basic and diluted share). The gain represents the insurance proceeds in excess of the retired 
net book value of the vessel and is recorded in "Other, net" under Other Income (Expense) 
in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 1998.  

       During 1998, the Company began construction of three barge rigs, a harsh environment 
jackup rig and a semisubmersible rig. Construction of the three barge rigs was completed in 
the first and second quarters of 1999. Construction of the harsh environment jackup rig was 
completed in February 2000, and completion of the semisubmersible rig construction is 
projected in the fourth quarter of 2000. Additions to property and equipment for these 
projects totaled $253.5 million and $136.9 million in 1999 and 1998, respectively. The 
Company's additions to property and equipment in 1999 and 1998 also include $20.4 
million and $162.9 million, respectively, in connection with major modifications and 
enhancements of rigs and vessels.  

3.  LONG-TERM DEBT  

       Long-term debt at December 31, 1999 and 1998 consists of the following (in millions):  
  

  1999          1998 
    
6.75% Notes due 2007   $149 .2 $149 .1 
7.20% Debentures due 2027   148 .2 148 .1 
9.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2004   73 .8 74 .2 
Secured term loans (non-recourse to the Company)   -- 19 .6 
Secured term loans   4 .0 8 .1 

    375 .2 399 .1 
Less current maturities   (4 .0) (23 .6) 



Total long-term debt   $371 .2 $375 .5 

  

       In June 1999, the Company received a commitment from the United States Maritime 
Administration ("MARAD") for the guarantee of approximately $195 million of long-term 
debt for the construction of the ENSCO 7500, the Company's new semisubmersible rig. The 
MARAD guarantee covers interim construction financing, as well as 15-year bonds to be 
issued upon completion of construction. In December 1999, the Company entered into a 
floating rate term loan agreement (the "Facility") with a major financial institution (the 
"Lender") to provide interim financing during the rig construction period. Interest on 
amounts borrowed under the Facility will be payable semi-annually at a variable rate based 
on the Lender's cost of funds plus .15% (6.3% at December 31, 1999). At December 31, 
1999, there were no amounts outstanding under the Facility, and the Company expects to 
begin drawing funds in the first quarter of 2000. Amounts borrowed under the Facility will 
be repaid with proceeds from 15-year bonds to be issued after completion of rig construction 
and repaid in 30 semi-annual payments of principal and interest. The Company currently 
expects to complete the rig construction in the fourth quarter of 2000.  

    Revolving Credit Agreement  

       In May 1998, the Company entered into a $185.0 million unsecured revolving credit 
agreement (the "Credit Agreement") with a syndicate of banks. Interest on amounts 
borrowed under the Credit Agreement are based on LIBOR plus an applicable margin rate 
(currently .4%) depending on the Company's credit rating. The Company also pays a 
commitment fee (currently .15% per annum) on the undrawn portion of the available credit 
line, which is also based on the Company's credit rating. The Company is required to 
maintain certain financial covenants under the Credit Agreement which include the 
Company meeting a specified level of interest coverage, assets to indebtedness, leverage 
ratio and tangible net worth. As of December 31, 1999, there were no amounts outstanding 
under the Credit Agreement. The Credit Agreement matures in May 2003.  

     Notes due 2007 and Debentures due 2027  

       In November 1997, the Company issued $300.0 million of unsecured debt in a public 
offering, consisting of $150.0 million of 6.75% Notes due November 15, 2007 (the “Notes”) 
and $150.0 million of 7.20% Debentures due November 15, 2027 (the “Debentures”). 
Interest on the Notes and the Debentures is payable semiannually on May 15 and November 
15. The Notes and the Debentures were issued pursuant to a $500.0 million universal shelf 
registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in October 1997. 
The net proceeds from the offering totaled approximately $287.8 million after selling and 
underwriting discounts and the settlement of interest rate hedges. Approximately $75.0 
million of the net proceeds were used to retire the Company’s revolving credit facility in 
November 1997 and $103.2 million of the net proceeds were used to acquire a harsh 
environment, Gorilla class, jackup rig in December 1997. The company recorded an 
extraordinary charge of $1.0 million, net of income taxes, upon retirement of the revolving 
credit facility.  

       The Notes and Debentures may be redeemed at any time at the option of the Company, 
in whole or in part, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued 
and unpaid interest, if any, and a make-whole premium. The indenture under which the 
Notes and the Debentures were issued contains limitations on the incurrence of indebtedness 
secured by certain liens, and limitations on engaging in certain sale/leaseback transactions 
and certain merger, consolidation or reorganization transactions. The Notes and Debentures 
are not subject to any sinking fund requirements.  

     Senior Subordinated Notes due 2004  



       In connection with the acquisition of DUAL DRILLING COMPANY ("Dual") in June 
1996, the Company assumed Dual's 9.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2004 (the "Dual 
Notes"). The carrying value of the Dual Notes in the Consolidated Financial Statements at 
December 31, 1999 and 1998 includes the unamortized premium assigned in 1996 as a 
result of purchase accounting. The Dual Notes are unsecured obligations and are guaranteed 
by certain of the former Dual subsidiaries. The Dual Notes' indenture contains certain 
restrictive covenants relating to debt, restricted payments, disposition of proceeds of asset 
sales, transactions with affiliates, limitations on the payment of dividends and other payment 
restrictions, limitations on sale/leaseback transactions and restrictions on mergers, 
consolidations and transfers of assets. Interest on the Dual Notes is payable semiannually 
and the Dual Notes are redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in part. The 
Dual Notes are redeemable at prices decreasing annually from 103.29% of the face amount 
on January 15, 2000, to 101.64% of the face amount on January 15, 2001, to par on January 
15, 2002 and thereafter.  

       On February 14, 2000, the Company notified holders of the Dual Notes of its intent to 
exercise its option to redeem (see Note 12 "Subsequent Events").  

     Secured term loans (non-recourse to the Company)  

       During 1993 and 1994, a subsidiary of the Company entered into two financing 
arrangements, in an original principal amount totalling $143.0 million, with a subsidiary of a 
Japanese corporation in connection with the construction of eight barge rigs that were 
delivered to Venezuela. The financing arrangements consisted of eight secured term loans, 
one for each barge rig. The eight secured term loans had an average fixed rate of 8.17% and 
were each repayable in 60 equal monthly installments of principal and interest ending in 
April 1998 through January 2000. During 1998, four of these term loans were paid in full 
and the remaining four term loans were repaid on February 5, 1999 in connection with the 
early termination of the four barge drilling rig contracts with PDVSA.  

     Secured term loans  

       In October 1993, the Company entered into a $25.0 million loan agreement with a 
financial institution. The seven-year secured term loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 7.91% 
per annum, repayable in 28 equal quarterly installments ending October 2000. In September 
1998, the Company repaid approximately $1.3 million of outstanding debt under the loan 
agreement, in addition to scheduled maturities, representing the outstanding portion of the 
debt related to the Kodiak II which sank in September 1998. The term loan is collateralized 
by certain of the Company's marine transportation vessels which had a combined net book 
value of $35.0 million at December 31, 1999. The loan agreement requires that the 
Company maintain a specified minimum tangible net worth and that the Company not 
exceed a certain ratio of liabilities to tangible net worth.  

       In December 1995, in connection with the purchase of four supply vessels that were 
previously leased, the Company entered into a $4.7 million loan agreement with the seller. 
The five-year secured term loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 7.75% per annum, repayable 
in 20 equal quarterly installments ending December 2000. The term loan is collateralized by 
the four supply vessels purchased which had a combined net book value of $3.0 million at 
December 31, 1999.  

    Maturities  

       Maturities of long-term debt, excluding amortization of discount or premium, are as 
follows: $4.0 million in 2000, none in 2001 through 2003, $73.8 million in 2004 and $297.4 
million thereafter.  



4.  STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY  

       The Company initiated the payment of a $.025 per share quarterly cash dividend on its 
common stock during the third quarter of 1997. Cash dividends per share paid in 1999, 1998 
and 1997 were $.10, $.10 and $.05, respectively.  

       During 1998, the Company repurchased 5.5 million shares of its common stock at a cost 
of approximately $74.2 million (an average cost of $13.50 per share).  

       At the Company's annual meeting of stockholders on May 13, 1997, the stockholders 
approved an increase in the Company's authorized shares of common stock from 125.0 
million shares to 250.0 million shares.  

       In August 1997, the Company's Board of Directors approved a two-for-one stock split 
of the Company's common stock effective September 15, 1997. Accordingly, all references 
to weighted average common shares outstanding and earnings per share amounts in the 
financial statements and footnotes have been adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split.  

       A summary of activity in the various stockholders' equity accounts for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 1999 is as follows (shares in thousands, dollars in 
millions):  

  
Restricted 

Additional Stock 
Common Stock Paid-In Retained ( Unearned Treasury 

Shares Amounts Capital Earnings Compensation) Stock 
                      $    
BALANCE, December 31, 1996   77,175   $  7 .7 $835 .4 $  71 .8 $(4 .9) $  (63 .0) 
  Net income   --  -- -- 233 .9 -- -- 
  Cash dividends paid   --  -- -- (7 .1) -- -- 
  Common stock issued under   
    employee and director incentive   
    plans, net   505   .1 8 .4 -- (3 .1) (7 .8) 
  Amortization of unearned   
    stock compensation   --  -- -- -- 1 .2 -- 
  Tax benefit from stock   
    compensation   --  -- 5 .2 -- -- -- 
  Two-for-one stock split   77,494   7 .7 (7 .7) -- -- -- 

BALANCE, December 31, 1997   155,174   15 .5 841 .3 298 .6 (6 .8) (70 .8) 
  Net income   --  -- -- 253 .9 -- -- 
  Cash dividends paid   --  -- -- (14 .1) -- -- 
  Common stock issued under   
    employee and director incentive   
    plans, net   402   .1 4 .2 -- (2 .3) 1 .3 
  Repurchase of common stock   --  -- -- -- -- (74 .2) 
  Amortization of unearned   
    stock compensation   --  -- -- -- 1 .4 -- 
  Tax benefit from stock   
    compensation   --  -- .6 -- -- -- 

BALANCE, December 31, 1998   155,576   15 .6 846 .1 538 .4 (7 .7) (146 .3) 
  Net income   --  -- -- 6 .7 -- -- 
  Cash dividends paid   --  -- -- (13 .7) -- -- 
  Common stock issued under   
    employee and director incentive   
    plans, net   334   -- 3 .0 -- ( .1) (2 .6) 
  Amortization of unearned   
    stock compensation   --  -- -- -- 1 .5 -- 
  Tax benefit from stock   
    compensation   --  -- 1 .2 -- -- -- 



BALANCE, December 31, 1999   155,910   $15 .6 $850 .3 $531 .4 $(6 .3) $(148 .9) 

  

       At December 31, 1999 and 1998, the outstanding shares of the Company's common 
stock, net of treasury shares, were 137.2 million and 137.1 million, respectively.  

       On February 21, 1995, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted a shareholder 
rights plan and declared a dividend of one preferred share purchase right (a "Right") for 
each share of the Company's common stock outstanding on March 6, 1995. Each Right 
initially entitled its holder to purchase 1/100th of a share of the Company's Series A Junior 
Participating Preferred Stock for $50.00, subject to adjustment. In March 1997, the plan was 
amended to increase the purchase price from $50.00 to $250.00. The Rights generally will 
not become exercisable until 10 days after a public announcement that a person or group has 
acquired 15% or more of the Company's common stock (thereby becoming an "Acquiring 
Person") or the commencement of a tender or exchange offer upon consummation of which 
such person or group would own 15% or more of the Company's common stock (the earlier 
of such dates being called the "Distribution Date"). Rights will be issued with all shares of 
the Company's common stock issued from March 6, 1995 to the Distribution Date. Until the 
Distribution Date, the Rights will be evidenced by the certificates representing the 
Company's common stock and will be transferrable only with the Company's common 
stock. If any person or group becomes an Acquiring Person, each Right, other than Rights 
beneficially owned by the Acquiring Person (which will thereupon become void), will 
thereafter entitle its holder to purchase, at the Rights' then current exercise price, shares of 
the Company's common stock having a market value of two times the exercise price of the 
Right. If, after a person or group has become an Acquiring Person, the Company is acquired 
in a merger or other business combination transaction or 50% or more of its assets or 
earning power are sold, each Right (other than Rights owned by an Acquiring Person which 
will have become void) will entitle its holder to purchase, at the Rights' then current exercise 
price, that number of shares of common stock of the person with whom the Company has 
engaged in the foregoing transaction (or its parent) which at the time of such transaction will 
have a market value of two times the exercise price of the Right. After any person or group 
has become an Acquiring Person, the Company's Board of Directors may, under certain 
circumstances, exchange each Right (other than Rights of the Acquiring Person) for shares 
of the Company's common stock having a value equal to the difference between the market 
value of the shares of the Company's common stock receivable upon exercise of the Right 
and the exercise price of the Right. The Company will generally be entitled to redeem the 
Rights for $.01 per Right at any time until 10 days after a public announcement that a 15% 
position has been acquired. The Rights expire on February 21, 2005.  

5.  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS  

   Stock Options  

       In May 1998, the stockholders approved the ENSCO International Incorporated 1998 
Incentive Plan (the "1998 Plan"). The 1998 Plan replaced the Company's previous stock 
incentive plan, the ENSCO Incentive Plan. Under the 1998 Plan, a maximum of 11.3 million 
shares are reserved for issuance as options and awards of restricted stock. However, no more 
than 1.13 million shares may be issued as grants of restricted stock. Stock options generally 
become exercisable in 25% increments over a four-year period and to the extent not 
exercised, expire on the fifth anniversary of the date of grant. Restricted stock grants 
generally vest at the rate of 10% per year.  

       In May 1996, the stockholders approved the Company's 1996 Non-Employee Directors 
Stock Option Plan ("Directors Plan"). Under the Directors Plan, a maximum of 600,000 
shares are reserved for issuance. Options granted under the Directors Plan become 
exercisable six months after the date of grant and expire, if not exercised, five years 



thereafter.  

       The exercise price of stock options under the 1998 Plan and the Directors Plan is the 
market value of the stock at the date the option is granted.  

       Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by SFAS 
No. 123, and has been determined as if the Company had accounted for its employee stock 
options under the fair value method of that statement. The fair value of each option grant is 
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the 
following weighted average assumptions:  
  

1999 1998            1997 
          Risk-free interest rate   5 .1% 5 .5% 6 .4% 
          Expected life (in years)   4 .3 4 .5 4 .0 
          Expected volatility   44 .2% 38 .9% 36 .0% 
          Dividend yield   1 .1% .5% -- 

  
       The following table reflects pro forma net income and earnings per share under the fair 
value approach of SFAS No. 123 (in millions, except per share amounts):  
  

     1999           1998           1997      
As Reported Pro forma As Reported Pro forma As Reported Pro forma 

                            
        Net income   $6.7   $1 .9 $253 .9 $249 .6 $233 .9 $230 .9 
        Basic net income per share   .05   .0 1 1.8 2 1.7 9 1.6 6 1.6 4 
        Diluted net income per share   .05   .0 1 1.8 1 1.7 8 1.6 4 1.6 2 

  
       These pro forma amounts may not be representative of future disclosures since the 
estimated fair value of stock options is amortized to expense over the vesting period, and 
additional options may be granted in future years.  

       A summary of stock option transactions under the 1998 Plan, Directors Plan and the 
ENSCO Incentive Plan is as follows (shares in thousands):  
  

               1999                            1998                                 1997             
        Weighted         Weighted         Weighted 
        Average         Average         Average 
         Exercise          Exercise          Exercise 

     Shares          Price      Shares          Price      Shares          Price 
            

                            
Outstanding at beginning of year           2,922   $18 .44         3,105   $17 .36         2,301   $  8 .83 
        Granted           2,176   9 .19         125   21 .22 1,583           24 .74 
        Exercised           (319 ) 8 .63         (268 ) 7 .10 (721 )         6 .39 
        Forfeited           (43 ) 15 .92         (40 ) 19 .04 (58 )         16 .59 

Outstanding at end of year           4,736   $14 .87         2,922   $18 .44         3,105   $17 .36 

  
Exercisable at end of year           1,718   $17 .61         1,307   $15 .11 773                $  9 .38 
Weighted average fair value of   
   options granted during the year       $  3 .60     $  8 .27             $  9 .34 

  
       The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at 
December 31, 1999 (shares in thousands):  
  

                                          Options Outstanding                                          Options Exercisable         
Number Weighted Average Number 

Outstanding Remaining       Weighted Average Exercisable Weighted Average 
Exercise Prices at 12/31/99 Contractual Life          Exercise Price    at 12/31/99    Exercise Price    



                        
$ 8 - $  9   2,671   3.4 years $  8 .82 570   $  8 .16 

13 - 16   243   1.4 years 14 .87 181   14 .91 
16 - 20   252   2.9 years 17 .04 142   16 .83 
22 - 25   1,501   2.4 years 24 .66 773   24 .61 
25 - 32   69   3.0 years 28 .48 52   28 .76 

  4,736   2.9 years $14 .87 1,718   $17 .61 

  

       At December 31, 1999, 8.9 million shares were available for grant as options or 
incentive grants under the 1998 Plan and 456,000 shares were available for grant as options 
under the Directors Plan.  

   Incentive Stock Grants  

       Key employees, who are in a position to contribute materially to the Company’s growth 
and development and to its long-term success, are eligible for incentive stock grants under 
the 1998 Plan and previously under the ENSCO Incentive Plan. Shares of common stock 
subject to incentive grants vest on such a basis as determined by a committee of the Board 
of Directors. Through 1999, incentive stock grants for 2.7 million shares of common stock 
were granted, of which 1.9 million were vested at December 31, 1999. During 1999, 1998 
and 1997, incentive stock grants for 10,000 shares, 130,000 shares and 100,000 shares, 
respectively, were granted. The remaining outstanding incentive stock grants vest as 
follows: 211,000 shares in 2000, 51,500 shares in years 2001 through 2004, 39,500 shares in 
2005, 29,000 shares in 2006, 24,000 shares in 2007, 14,000 shares in 2008 and 1,000 shares 
in 2009.  

    Savings Plan  

        The Company has a profit sharing plan (the “ENSCO Savings Plan”) which covers 
eligible employees with more than one year of service, as defined. Profit sharing 
contributions require Board of Directors approval and may be in cash or grants of the 
Company’s common stock. The Company recorded no profit sharing contribution provision 
for the year ended December 31, 1999, and profit sharing contributions of $8.9 million and 
$8.4 million were recorded for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively.  

       The ENSCO Savings Plan includes a 401(k) savings plan feature which allows eligible 
employees with more than three months of service to make tax deferred contributions to the 
plan. The Company makes matching contributions based on the amount of employee 
contributions and rates set by the Company’s Board of Directors. Matching contributions 
totaled $2.6 million, $2.6 million and $2.1 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 
The Company has reserved 1.0 million shares of common stock for issuance as matching 
contributions under the ENSCO Savings Plan.  

    Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan  

        The Company’s Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the “SERP”) provides a tax 
deferred savings plan for certain highly compensated employees whose participation in the 
profit sharing and 401(k) savings plan features of the ENSCO Savings Plan is restricted due 
to funding and contribution limitations of the Internal Revenue Code. The SERP is a non-
qualified plan and eligibility for participation is determined by the Company’s Board of 
Directors. The contribution and Company matching provisions of the SERP are identical to 
the ENSCO Savings Plan, except that each participant’s contributions and matching 
contributions under the SERP are further limited by contribution amounts under the 401(k) 
savings plan feature of the ENSCO Savings Plan. Matching contributions totaled $117,000 



in 1999, $118,000 in 1998 and $56,000 in 1997. A SERP liability of $2.6 million and $1.3 
million is included in Other Liabilities at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively.  

6. INCOME TAXES  

       The Company had a loss of $40.1 million and income of $240.2 million and $240.5 
million from its operations before income taxes in the United States and income of $45.3 
million, $142.3 million and $135.3 million from its operations before income taxes in 
foreign countries for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.  

       The components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes for each of the three years 
in the period ended December 31, 1999 are as follows (in millions):  

1999 1998 1997 
          
Current:         
      Federal   $(28 .9) $  41 .5 $  61 .2 
      State   -- 1 .0 1 .3 
      Foreign   6 .5 30 .7 19 .6 

    (22 .4) 73 .2 82 .1 

Deferred:   
      Federal   17 .3 56 .1 42 .9 
      Foreign   2 .2 (5 .5) 12 .8 

    19 .5 50 .6 55 .7 

      Total income tax expense (benefit)   $  (2 .9) $123 .8 $137 .8 

  
       Significant components of deferred income tax assets (liabilities) as of December 31, 
1999 and 1998 are comprised of the following (in millions):  

     1999       1998 
        
Deferred tax assets:       
      Net operating loss carryforwards   $    9 .9 $  15 .3 
      Foreign tax credit carryforwards   10 .3 7 .7 
      Liabilities not deductible for tax purposes   3 .9 3 .3 
      Accrued benefits   1 .1 2 .3 
      Safe harbor leases   .3 2 .2 
      Other   1 .7 3 .2 

      Total deferred tax assets   27 .2 34 .0 

Deferred tax liabilities:   
      Property   (208 .8) (192 .0) 
      Maritime capital construction fund   (7 .0) (5 .3) 
      Tax gain recognized on transfer of assets   -- (3 .2) 
      Other   (5 .9) (8 .5) 

      Total deferred tax liabilities   (221 .7) (209 .0) 

          Net deferred tax liabilities   $(194 .5) $(175 .0) 

  
Net current deferred tax asset   $     5 .0 $     5 .0 
Net noncurrent deferred tax liability   (199 .5) (180 .0) 

          Net deferred tax liability   $(194 .5) $(175 .0) 

  

       The consolidated effective income tax rate for each of the three years in the period 



ended December 31, 1999, differs from the United States statutory income tax rate as 
follows:  
  

1999 1998       1997 
                
Statutory income tax rate   35 .0% 35 .0% 35 .0% 
Foreign taxes   (91 .5) 3 .1 (0 .5) 
Goodwill amortization   22 .4 0 .3 0 .3 
Adjustment of prior year accruals   -- (2 .4) -- 
Other   (21 .7) (3 .6) 1 .9 

Effective income tax rate   (55 .8)% 32 .4% 36 .7% 

  

       At December 31, 1999, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of 
approximately $28.3 million and foreign tax credit carryforwards of $10.3 million. If not 
utilized, the net operating loss carryforwards expire from 2003 through 2011 and the foreign 
tax credit carryforwards expire from 2001 through 2004. As a result of certain acquisitions 
in prior years, the utilization of a portion of the Company's net operating loss carryforwards 
are subject to limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. However, the 
Company does not expect such limitations to have an effect upon its ability to utilize its net 
operating loss carryforwards.  

       It is the policy of the Company to consider that income generated in foreign subsidiaries 
is permanently invested. A significant portion of the Company's undistributed foreign 
earnings at December 31, 1999 were generated by controlled foreign corporations. A portion 
of the undistributed foreign earnings were taxed, for U.S. tax purposes, in the year that such 
earnings arose. Upon distribution of foreign earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise, 
the Company may be subject to additional U.S. income taxes. However, deferred taxes 
related to the future remittance of these funds are not expected to be significant to the 
financial statements of the Company.  

7.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

    Leases  

       The Company is obligated under leases for certain of its offices and equipment. Rental 
expense relating to operating leases was $3.3 million in 1999, $4.6 million in 1998 and $3.9 
million in 1997. Future minimum rental payments under the Company's noncancellable 
operating lease obligations having initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year are 
as follows: $3.6 million in 2000; $2.9 million in 2001; $2.2 million in 2002; $900,000 in 
2003; $160,000 in 2004 and none thereafter.  

    ENSCO 7500  

       During 1998, the Company began construction of the ENSCO 7500, a dynamically 
positioned semisubmersible rig. The ENSCO 7500 has an approximate $190 million, three-
year contract with Burlington Resources ("Burlington") that is scheduled to commence upon 
satisfactory completion of construction. The Company expects to complete construction 
during the fourth quarter of 2000. However, if the rig is not delivered in accordance with the 
specifications agreed with Burlington prior to the contractual delivery deadline of March 24, 
2001, Burlington has the right to terminate the drilling contract.  

   Other  

       At December 31, 1999, there were no other contingencies, claims or lawsuits against 



the Company which, in the opinion of management, would have a material adverse effect on 
its financial condition or results of operations.  

8.  SEGMENT INFORMATION  

       The Company's operations are categorized into two operating segments which are 
differentiated based on the core services provided by the Company, (1) contract drilling 
services and (2) marine transportation services. At December 31, 1999, the Company's 
contract drilling segment owned and operated a fleet of 52 offshore drilling rigs, including 
36 jackup rigs, nine barge rigs and seven platform rigs. At December 31, 1999, the 
Company's marine transportation segment owned or operated a fleet of 35 oilfield support 
vessels. Operating income for each segment includes an allocation of general and 
administrative expenses of the Company's corporate office. Assets and depreciation expense 
of the Company's corporate office are not allocated to the operating segments. Segment 
information for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1999 is as follows 
(in millions):  

INDUSTRY SEGMENT 
Contract Marine 
Drilling Transportation Corporate        Total 

1999         
Revenues   $    327 .6 $  36 .1 $    -- $    363 .7 
Operating income (loss)   7 .4 (2 .2) (1 .7) 3 .5 
Assets   1,811 .6 72 .7 93 .7 1,978 .0 
Capital expenditures   246 .5 .9 .7 248 .1 
Depreciation and amortization   91 .4 5 .1 1 .7 98 .2 
1998   
Revenues   $    733 .5 $  79 .7 $    -- $    813 .2 
Operating income (loss)   354 .5 32 .2 (1 .5) 385 .2 
Assets   1,660 .6 72 .2 260 .0 1,992 .8 
Capital expenditures   315 .4 13 .0 2 .4 330 .8 
Depreciation and amortization   77 .2 4 .8 1 .5 83 .5 
1997   
Revenues   $    720 .9 $  94 .2 $    -- $    815 .1 
Operating income (loss)   341 .7 48 .2 ( .6) 389 .3 
Assets   1,424 .7 77 .3 270 .0 1,772 .0 
Capital expenditures   268 .8 9 .7 3 .8 282 .3 
Depreciation and amortization   96 .7 7 .4 .7 104 .8 

  
       The Company's operations are concentrated in four geographic regions: North America, 
Europe, Asia Pacific and South America. In North America, the Company's operations 
consist of 22 jackup rigs, seven platform rigs and 35 oilfield support vessels, all located in 
the U.S. waters of the Gulf of Mexico. The Company's European operations consist of seven 
jackup rigs currently deployed in the United Kingdom and the Netherlands territorial waters 
of the North Sea. In Asia Pacific, the Company's operations consist of seven jackup rigs 
deployed in various locations. In South America, the Company's operations consist of nine 
barge rigs all located on Lake Maracaibo, Venezuela. The Company attributes revenues and 
assets to geographic locations based on the location of a drilling rig or marine vessel. For 
new construction projects, assets are attributed to the location of future operation if known 
or to the location of construction if ultimate location of operation is undetermined.  

       Information by country for those countries that account for more than 10% of total 
revenues or 10% of the Company’s long-lived assets is as follows (in millions):  
  

                Revenues                               Long-lived Assets               
     1999      1998      1997      1999      1998      1997 

                        $    
United States   $201 .7 $444 .9 $475 .3 $  625 .3 $  544 .2 $  458 .9 
Netherlands   20 .5 142 .2 121 .0 334 .9 146 .4 150 .3 
Venezuela   52 .1 71 .1 82 .8 198 .6 161 .3 125 .9 
Singapore   -- -- -- 143 .2 153 .7 .7 



Other foreign countries   89 .4 155 .0 136 .0 275 .1 383 .8 441 .3 

     Total   $363 .7 $813 .2 $815 .1 $1,577 .1 $1,389 .4 $1,177 .1 

  
       Revenues from two customers in 1999 were $45.5 million, or 13% of consolidated 
revenues, and $44.5 million, or 12% of consolidated revenues. Revenues from these 
customers in 1998 and 1997 did not exceed 10% of the Company's consolidated revenue. 
Revenues from a third customer were $142.2 million or 17% of consolidated revenues in 
1998, and $121.0 million or 15% of consolidated revenues in 1997. Revenues from a fourth 
customer were $82.8 million or 10% of consolidated revenues in 1997.  

9.  TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES  

       In January 1997, a director of the Company settled a $675,000 note payable to the 
Company. The note payable related to the director's purchase of 168,750 shares (337,500 
shares post split) of restricted common stock of the Company in 1988. The note was settled 
through the delivery to the Company of restricted shares of the Company's common stock 
valued at a formula price provided for in the 1988 stock purchase agreement. The director 
retained 132,998 net shares (265,996 shares post split) of common stock and $238,000 cash 
after repayment of the note.  

10.  SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

        Consolidated Balance Sheet Information . Accounts receivable, net at December 31, 
1999 and 1998 consists of the following (in millions):  
  

     1999               1998 
                   

Trade   $58 .7 $115 .6 
Income tax refunds   24 .8 -- 
Other   6 .2 8 .4 

    89 .7 124 .0 
Allowance for doubtful accounts   (4 .4) (5 .6) 

    $85 .3 $118 .4 

  
       Prepaid expenses and other at December 31, 1999 and 1998 consists of the following 
(in millions):  
  

        1999                     1998 
    

Deferred tax asset   $  5 .0 $  5 .0 
Prepaid expenses   7 .2 6 .5 
Inventory   5 .1 4 .2 
Deposits   .4 5 .7 
Other   4 .5 6 .4 

    $22 .2 $27 .8 

  
       Accrued liabilities at December 31, 1999 and 1998 consists of the following (in 
millions):  
  

       1999               1998 
    



Operating expenses   $  14 .3 $  16 .1 
Payroll   9 .3 25 .7 
Taxes   33 .0 49 .0 
Insurance   2 .7 1 .8 
Deferred revenue   .1 6 .2 
Accrued interest   7 .3 6 .2 
Accrued capital additions   55 .9 19 .0 
Other   .1 2 .7 

    $122 .7 $126 .7 

  
        Consolidated Statement of Income Information . Maintenance and repairs expense for 
the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 is as follows (in millions):  
  

     1999      1998           1997 
      

Maintenance and repairs   $31 .5 $42 .0 $38 .3 

  
        Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Information . Cash paid for interest and income 
taxes for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1999 is as follows (in 
millions):  
  

     1999      1998          1997 
      

Interest, net of amounts capitalized   $16 .8 $29 .5 $20 .4 
Income taxes   15 .8 51 .7 69 .2 

  
       The Company capitalized interest of approximately $12.4 million in 1999, $6.3 million 
in 1998, and $1.4 million in 1997.  

        Fair Value of Financial Instruments . The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of 
the Company's financial instruments at December 31, 1999 and 1998 are as follows (in 
millions):  
  

           1999                    1998           
Estimated Estimated 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
Amount Value Amount Value 

        
6.75% Notes   $149 .2 $139 .8 $149 .1 $152 .5 
7.20% Debentures   148 .2 133 .2 148 .1 145 .8 
9.875% Senior Subordinated Notes   73 .8 74 .2 74 .2 75 .6 
Other long-term debt, including current maturities   4 .0 4 .0 27 .7 27 .8 

  
       The estimated fair values were determined as follows:  

        Notes, Debentures and Senior Subordinated Notes - Quoted market price.  

        Other long-term debt - Interest rates currently available to the Company for issuance of 
debt with similar terms and remaining maturities.  

       The estimated fair value of the Company's cash and cash equivalents, short-term 
investments, receivables, trade payables and other liabilities approximated their carrying 
values at December 31, 1999 and 1998. The Company has cash, receivables and payables 
denominated in currencies other than functional currencies. These financial assets and 
liabilities create exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. When warranted, the Company 
hedges such risk by entering into purchase options or futures contracts. The Company does 



not enter into such contracts for trading purposes or to engage in speculation. The fair value 
of such contracts outstanding at December 31, 1999 and 1998 was insignificant.  

        Concentration of Credit Risk . The Company provides services to the offshore oil and 
gas industry and the Company's customers consist primarily of major and independent oil 
and gas producers as well as government-owned oil companies. The Company performs 
ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not require material 
collateral. The Company maintains reserves for potential credit losses, which to date have 
been within management's expectations. The Company's cash and cash equivalents are 
maintained in major banks and high-grade investments. As a result, the Company believes 
the credit risk in such instruments is minimal.  

11.  UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA  

       A summary of unaudited quarterly consolidated financial information for 1999 and 
1998 is as follows (in millions, except per share amounts):  
  

First Second Third Fourth 
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year 

1999           
Revenues  
   Contract drilling   $117 .5 $  71 .0 $  67 .6 $  71 .5 $327 .6 
   Marine transportation   10 .2 8 .4 8 .8 8 .7 36 .1 

    127 .7 79 .4 76 .4 80 .2 363 .7 

Direct operating expenses   
   Contract drilling   58 .9 54 .3 53 .9 51 .4 218 .5 
   Marine transportation   8 .6 8 .0 8 .2 7 .5 32 .3 

    67 .5 62 .3 62 .1 58 .9 250 .8 

Operating margin   60 .2 17 .1 14 .3 21 .3 112 .9 
Depreciation and amortization   23 .6 24 .9 25 .2 24 .5 98 .2 
General and administrative   2 .9 2 .9 2 .8 2 .6 11 .2 

Operating income (loss)   33 .7 (10 .7) (13 .7) (5 .8) 3 .5 
Interest income   4 .1 3 .5 3 .1 3 .0 13 .7 
Interest expense, net   5 .4 4 .8 4 .6 4 .5 19 .3 
Other income (expense)   ( .1) -- -- 7 .4 7 .3 

Income before income taxes and minority interest   32 .3 (12 .0) (15 .2) .1 5 .2 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes   11 .3 (1 .7) (3 .9) (8 .6) (2 .9) 
Minority interest   1 .0 ( .5) ( .3) 1 .2 1 .4 

Net income   $  20 .0 $  (9 .8) $ (11 .0) $  7 .5 $  6 .7 

Earnings (loss) per share 
   Basic   $  .1 5 $ (.0 7) $  (.0 8) $  .0 5 $  .0 5 
   Diluted   .1 5 (.0 7) (.0 8) .0 5 .0 5 

            
            

1998           
Revenues  
   Contract drilling   $220 .8 $211 .2 $161 .7 $139 .8 $733 .5 
   Marine transportation   25 .6 22 .8 18 .1 13 .2 79 .7 

    246 .4 234 .0 179 .8 153 .0 813 .2 

Direct operating expenses   
   Contract drilling   73 .4 73 .2 70 .0 71 .1 287 .7 
   Marine transportation   10 .3 10 .4 10 .5 10 .2 41 .4 



    83 .7 83 .6 80 .5 81 .3 329 .1 

Operating margin   162 .7 150 .4 99 .3 71 .7 484 .1 
Depreciation and amortization   19 .8 20 .2 20 .9 22 .6 83 .5 
General and administrative   3 .6 4 .1 3 .8 3 .9 15 .4 

Operating income   139 .3 126 .1 74 .6 45 .2 385 .2 
Interest income   2 .7 3 .8 4 .0 4 .6 15 .1 
Interest expense, net   7 .6 6 .6 6 .2 5 .8 26 .2 
Other income (expense)   ( .1) .1 10 .0 (1 .6) 8 .4 

Income before income taxes and minority interest   134 .3 123 .4 82 .4 42 .4 382 .5 
Provision for income taxes   45 .8 42 .3 22 .3 13 .4 123 .8 
Minority interest   1 .3 .5 1 .1 1 .9 4 .8 

Net income   $  87 .2 $  80 .6 $  59 .0 $  27 .1 $253 .9 

Earnings per share 
   Basic   $  .6 2 $  .5 7 $  .4 2 $  .2 0 $  1. 82 
   Diluted   .6 1 .5 7 .4 2 .2 0 1. 81 

  
12.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  

       Portions of the Company's Venezuelan operations are conducted through ENSCO 
Drilling (Caribbean), Inc. ("Caribbean"). For each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 1999, the Company held an 85% interest in Caribbean and a private 
Venezuelan company held the remaining 15%. On February 10, 2000, the Company 
purchased the remaining 15% interest in Caribbean from the private Venezuelan company.  

       On February 14, 2000, the Company notified holders of its 9-7/8% Senior Subordinated 
Notes due 2004 (the "Dual Notes") of its intent to exercise its option to redeem. All 
outstanding Dual Notes will be redeemed on March 15, 2000 at a price equal to 103.29% of 
the principal amount, which equates to approximately $74.2 million. The Company will 
recognize an after tax loss of approximately $300,000 on the early extinguishment of the 
Dual Notes in the first quarter of 2000.  

Item 9.   Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial 
Disclosure  

       None.  

PART III  

Item 10.   Directors and Executive Officers , Item 11.   Executive Compensation , Item 
12.   Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management , and Item 13.   
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions  

       Certain information regarding the executive officers of the Company has been presented 
in "Executive Officers of the Registrant" as included in "Item 1. Business."  

       Pursuant to General Instruction G(3), the additional information required by these items 
is hereby incorporated by reference to the Company's definitive proxy statement, which 
involves the election of directors and will be filed with the Commission not later than 120 
days after the end of the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999.  

 
PART IV  

  



Item 14.   Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K 

   
(a) 

  Financial statements, financial statement schedules and exhibits filed as 
part of this report: 

  

  

        
(1) 

Financial statements of ENSCO International Incorporated Page 

      Report of Independent Accountants - PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 24 

      Consolidated Statement of Income 25 

      Consolidated Balance Sheet 26 

      Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 27 

      Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 28 

        
(2) 

Exhibits   

        The following instruments are included as exhibits to this Report. Exhibits 
incorporated by reference are so indicated by parenthetical information. 

  

  

Exhibit No.   Document 

2.1 - Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated March 21, 1996, between ENSCO 
International Incorporated, DDC Acquisition Company and DUAL 
DRILLING COMPANY (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.7 to the 
Registrant's Form 8-K dated March 21, 1996, File No. 1-8097). 

2.2 - Principal Stockholder Agreement between ENSCO International 
Incorporated and Dual Invest AS (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
99.8 to the Registrant's Form 8-K dated March 21, 1996, File No. 1-
8097). 

2.3 - Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated May 7, 1996, 
between ENSCO International Incorporated, DDC Acquisition Company 
and DUAL DRILLING COMPANY (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
2.2 of Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on 
Form S-4 filed May 10, 1996, Registration No. 333-3411). 

3.1 - Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1997, File No. 1-8097). 

3.2 - Bylaws of the Company, as amended (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 1992, File No. 1-8097). 

4.1 - Indenture, dated November 20, 1997, between the Company and Bankers 
Trust Company, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to 
the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 24, 1997, 
File No. 1-8097). 

4.2 - First Supplemental Indenture, dated November 20, 1997, between the 
Company and Bankers Trust Company, as trustee, supplementing the 
Indenture dated as of November 20, 1997 (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated 
November 24, 1997, File No. 1-8097). 

4.3 - Form of Note (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant's 
Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 24, 1997, File No. 1-8097). 

4.4 - Form of Debenture (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the 
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 24, 1997, File 



No. 1-8097). 

4.5 - Rights Agreement, dated February 21, 1995, between the Company and 
American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, as Rights Agent, which 
includes as Exhibit A the Form of Certificate of Designations of Series A 
Junior Participating Preferred Stock of ENSCO International 
Incorporated, as Exhibit B the Form of Right Certificate, and as Exhibit C 
the Summary of Rights to Purchase Shares of Preferred Stock of ENSCO 
International Incorporated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to 
Registrant's Form 8-K dated February 21, 1995, File No. 1-8097). 

4.6 - First Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated March 3, 1997, between 
ENSCO International Incorporated and American Stock Transfer and 
Trust Company, as Rights Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 
to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 3, 1997, File 
No. 1-8097). 

4.7 - Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock 
of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the 
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 
31, 1995, File No. 1-8097). 

10.1 - ENSCO Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.1 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 1993, File No. 1-8097). 

10.2 - Amendment to ENSCO Incentive Plan, dated November 11, 1997 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997, File No. 1-
8097). 

10.3 - Loan Agreement dated October 14, 1993, by and among ENSCO Marine 
Company and The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc. (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993, File No. 1-8097). 

10.4 - Partial Satisfaction of Mortgage, dated November 29, 1994, between 
Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee for the benefit of The CIT 
Group/Equipment Financing, Inc., and ENSCO Marine Company 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Registrant's Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994, File No. 1-
8097). 

10.5 - Modification and Amendment of First Preferred Fleet Ship Mortgage, 
dated January 23, 1995, by ENSCO Marine Company and Wilmington 
Trust Company, as trustee for the benefit of The CIT Group/Equipment 
Financing, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the 
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 
31, 1994, File No. 1-8097). 

10.6 - ENSCO Savings Plan, as revised and restated (incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 10.17 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
year ended December 31, 1997, File No. 1-8097). 

10.7 - ENSCO Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended and 
restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997, File 
No. 1-8097). 

10.8 - Indemnification Agreement between the Company and its officers and 
directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrant's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997, File 
No. 1-8097). 



10.9 - Credit Agreement among ENSCO International Incorporated, ENSCO 
Offshore Company, Dual Holding Company, various lending institutions, 
Bankers Company as Administrative Agent, Den Norske Bank ASA, New 
York Branch as Syndication Agent and ABN Amro Bank N.V. as 
Documentation Agent concerning a $185 million Revolving Credit Loan, 
dated as of May 21, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the 
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 
30, 1998, File No. 1-8097). 

10.10 - ENSCO International Incorporated 1998 Incentive Plan (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Form S-8 filed on July 7, 1998, 
Registration No. 333-58625). 

*10.11 - Commitment to Guarantee Obligations dated December 15, 1999, by the 
United States of America under Title XI of the Merchant Marine 
Act,1936, as amended, for the benefit of ENSCO Offshore Company. 

*10.12 - Trust Indenture dated December 15, 1999, between ENSCO Offshore 
Company and Bankers Trust Company, as Indenture Trustee, which 
includes as Schedule A the Schedule of Definitions to the Trust Indenture, 
as Exhibit 1 the General Provisions of the Trust Indenture, and as Exhibit 
2 the Forms of Floating Rate Note, Guarantee and Trustee's 
Authentication Certificate. 

*10.13 - Security Agreement dated December 15, 1999, between ENSCO Offshore 
Company and the United States of America pursuant to Title XI of the 
Merchant Marine Act, 1936, as amended, which includes as Schedule X 
the Schedule of Definitions to the Security Agreement, and as Exhibit 1 
the General Provisons of the Security Agreement. 

*10.14 - Credit Agreement dated December 15, 1999, among ENSCO Offshore 
Company, Govco Incorporated, Citibank N.A., Citibank International Plc, 
and Citibank North America, Inc. 

*21.1 - Subsidiaries of the Registrant. 

*23.1 - Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. 

*27.1 - Financial Data Schedule (EDGAR version only). 

                    
* Filed herewith 

 
Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements 
       The following is a list of all executive compensation plans and arrangements required to 
be filed as an exhibit to this Form 10-K: 

1.   ENSCO International Incorporated 1998 Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 
10.10 hereto and incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the 
Registrant's Form S-8 filed on July 7, 1998, Registration No. 333-58625). 

2.   ENSCO Incentive Plan, as amended (filed as Exhibit 10.1 hereto and 
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993, File No. 1-
8097). 

3.   Amendment to ENSCO Incentive Plan, dated November 11, 1997 (filed 
as Exhibit 10.2 hereto and incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the 
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 
31, 1997, File No. 1-8097). 

4.   ENSCO Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended and 
restated (filed as Exhibit 10.7 hereto and incorporated by reference to 



Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
year ended December 31, 1997, File No. 1-8097). 

  
       The Company will furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request, all 
constituent instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Company not 
filed herewith as permitted by paragraph 4(iii)(A) of Item 601 of Regulation S-K. 
  

(b)   Reports on Form 8-K 

    No Current Reports on Form 8-K were filed by the Company during the 
fourth quarter of the year ended December 31, 1999. 

 
SIGNATURES  

       Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned thereunto duly authorized, on February 25, 2000.  
  
    ENSCO International Incorporated  

                (Registrant) 
      
    By    /s/ CARL F. THORNE            

           Carl F. Thorne  
           Chairman, President and  
            Chief Executive Officer 

  
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been 
signed by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the 
date indicated. 
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  February 25, 2000 

          
/s/     H. E. MALONE                        
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  Vice President, Chief  
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    Controller 

  February 25, 2000 
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  Director  
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  Director  
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Contract No. MA-13550  

COMMITMENT TO GUARANTEE OBLIGATIONS  

by  

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA  

Accepted by  

ENSCO OFFSHORE COMPANY  
Shipowner  

     THIS COMMITMENT TO GUARANTEE OBLIGATIONS, dated December , 1999 
(the "Guarantee Commitment"), made and entered into by the UNITED STATES OF 
AMERICA (the "United States"), represented by the SECRETARY OF 
TRANSPORTATION, acting by and through the MARITIME ADMINISTRATOR (the 
"Secretary"), and accepted on said date by ENSCO OFFSHORE COMPANY, a Delaware 
corporation (the "Shipowner").  

RECITALS :  

     A. The Shipowner will be the sole owner of the semi-submersible drilling unit now 
known as the ENSCO 7500 (the ("Vessel") currently under construction pursuant to the 
Construction Contract with Friede Goldman Offshore Texas, Limited Partnership (formerly 
known as TDI-Halter, L.P.), a Louisiana limited partnership (the "Shipyard").  

     B. To aid in financing the construction of the Vessel, the Shipowner will borrow an 
aggregate principal amount equal to no more than 87.5% of the Actual Cost of the Vessel, as 
of the Note Closing Date. To accomplish such financing, the Shipowner has accepted this 
Guarantee Commitment subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein.  

     C. As one means of financing the construction of the Vessel, the Shipowner has entered 
into the Credit Agreement (the "Credit Agreement") with Govco, Inc. (the "Lender") 
providing for the issuance by the Shipowner, on the Note Closing Date, of one or more 
promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $194,855,000 to be designated 
"United States Government Guaranteed Ship Financing Note, 1999 Series" (the "Note") 
having the maturity date and interest rate set forth therein, and providing for one or more 
advances (each, an "Advance") to the Shipowner of the principal amount of the Note.  

     D. On or before the Bond Closing Date, the Shipowner shall enter into one or more Bond 
Purchase Agreements providing for the sale and delivery of obligations in the aggregate 
principal amount of up to $194,736,000 to be designated "United States Government 
Guaranteed Ship Financing Bonds, 7500 Series" (the "Bonds" and together with the Note, 



the "Obligations"), having the maturity date and interest rate set forth therein, to repay the 
amounts outstanding under the Note.  

     E. As security for the Guarantees and the Secretary's Note, the Shipowner will execute 
and deliver the Security Agreement, Contract No. MA-13552, and the following agreements 
shall be executed and delivered: the Indenture, the Authorization Agreement, Contract No. 
MA-13551, the Secretary's Note, the Mortgage, Contract No. MA-13554 (upon delivery of 
the Vessel to the Shipowner), the Financial Agreement, Contract MA-13553, and the 
Depository Agreement, Contract No. MA-13555.  

W I T N E S S E T H :  

     That under the provisions of Title XI of the Merchant Marine Act, 1936, as amended and 
in consideration of (i) the covenants of the Shipowner contained herein and (ii) other good 
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the Secretary hereby commits itself as herein provided.  

ARTICLE I  

Findings and Determinations of Secretary  

     Pursuant to Section 1104A(b)(1) of Title XI, the Secretary has approved the Shipowner 
as responsible and possessing the ability, experience, financial resources and other 
qualifications necessary to the adequate operation and maintenance of the Vessel.  

     Pursuant to Section 1104A(b)(2) of Title XI, the Secretary has determined that the Actual 
Cost of the Vessel is $222,691,757. Prior to the Note Closing Date, the Secretary, in its 
discretion, may redetermine the Actual Cost of the Vessel. On the Note Closing Date, the 
aggregate principal amount of the Note will not exceed 87.5% of the Actual Cost.  

     Pursuant to Sections 1104A(b)(3), 1104A(b)(4) and 1104A(b)(5) of Title XI, the 
Secretary has determined that: (1) the maturity date of the Note is satisfactory, (2) payments 
of principal required by the Note is satisfactory and (3) the interest rate to be borne by the 
Note to be issued on the Note Closing Date is reasonable.  

     Pursuant to Section 1104A(d) of Title XI, the Secretary has found that the Shipowner's 
proposed use of the Vessel will be economically sound.  

ARTICLE II  

Commitment to Guarantee Obligations  

     The United States, represented by the Secretary, HEREBY COMMITS ITSELF TO 
GUARANTEE the payment of the unpaid interest on, and the unpaid balance of the 
principal of, the Obligations, including interest accruing between the date of default under 
the Obligations and the payment in full of the Guarantees, and, to effect this Guarantee 
Commitment, hereby commits itself to execute and deliver the Authorization Agreement, 
Security Agreement, Mortgage (on delivery of the Vessel), Financial Agreement, and 
Depository Agreement on the Note Closing Date or the Bond Closing Date, as the case may 
be, pursuant to the terms of the Guarantee Commitment.  

ARTICLE III  

The Obligations  



     The Obligations shall be as provided in the Indenture and in the form of the Obligations 
annexed as Exhibits 2A and 2B to the Indenture. The Obligations shall be subject to all of 
the terms and conditions set forth in the Indenture.  

ARTICLE IV  

Conditions to Execution and Delivery of the Guarantee  

     A. The obligation of the Secretary to execute and deliver the Guarantee on the Note 
Closing Date shall be subject to the following conditions unless waived in writing by the 
Secretary:  

       (a) the Note Closing Date shall occur on or prior to March 23, 2000;  

       (b) the Shipowner and the Shipyard shall have executed and delivered to the Secretary a 
copy of the Construction Contract and the Shipyard shall have executed the Consent of 
Shipyard;  

       (c) the Shipowner shall have executed and delivered the following documents in the 
form attached hereto: the Security Agreement, Financial Agreement, Trust Indenture, 
Secretary's Note, Note, Credit Agreement, and Depository Agreement;  

       (d) the Indenture Trustee shall have executed, in the form attached hereto, the 
Authorization Agreement and Trust Indenture, the Depository shall have executed the 
Depository Agreement; and the Obligee shall have executed the Credit Agreement;  

       (e) the following documents shall have been delivered to the Secretary: (i) one executed 
counterpart and one copy of the Credit Agreement; (ii) two executed counterparts of the 
Indenture, (iii) two specimen copies of the Note; (iv) two executed originals of the legal 
opinion issued under section (j) of this Article; (v) two copies of the legal opinion delivered 
to the Obligees pursuant to the Credit Agreement, and (vi) two originals of all other 
documents delivered by the Shipowner, Indenture Trustee, the Obligees or the Depository in 
connection with this Closing;  

       (f) the Shipowner shall have executed an Officer's Certificate representing and 
warranting the truth of the following statements as of the Note Closing Date:  

         (i) each of the representations and warranties set out at  

Section 2.01 of the General Provisions of the Security Agreement in Appendix  
III; and  

         (ii) the Shipowner is not in violation of any Federal laws having a substantial adverse 
effect on the interests of the United States of America and that the consummation of the 
Commitment complies with non-Title XI Federal law.  

       (g) the Secretary shall have received the Guarantee Fee payable under Section 1104A 
(e) of Title XI and the Investigation Fee, due under Section 1104A (f) of Title XI;  

       (h) the Shipowner shall have complied in all material respects with its agreements under 
this Guarantee Commitment;  

       (i) there shall not have occurred any event which constitutes (or after any period of time 
or any notice, or both, would constitute) a "Default" under the Security Agreement;  



       (j) there shall have been delivered to the Secretary by the Shipowner an opinion of 
counsel acceptable to the Secretary, in the form annexed hereto as Schedule 1 which shall 
include, among other things, an opinion to the effect that: (i) by the terms of the Security 
Agreement, the Shipowner has granted to the Secretary a fully perfected, first priority 
security interest in each of the assets which constitutes the Security (except for the assets 
covered by the Mortgage and the marine insurances on the Vessel); and (ii) all filings, 
recordings, notices and other actions required to perfect the Secretary's interests in the 
Security (except for the assets covered by the Mortgage and the marine insurances on the 
Vessel) and to render such security interests valid and enforceable under applicable State 
law have been duly effected;  

       (k) the Secretary shall have received a letter agreement from the Shipowner to provide 
the Secretary within a reasonable time after the Closing Date, with eight conformed copies 
of the Guarantee Commitment and each of the Appendices and Exhibits thereto executed on 
or prior to such date;  

       (l) on the Note Closing Date, the qualifying requirements set forth in Section 8 of the 
Financial Agreement shall have been complied with and certified to as required therein;  

       (m) at least ten days prior to the Note Closing Date, there shall have been delivered to 
the Secretary, pro forma balance sheets for the Guarantor and the Shipowner as of the Note 
Closing Date, certified by an officer of the Guarantor and Shipowner, respectively, showing, 
among other things, all non-Title XI debt of the Shipowner;  

       (n) on the Note Closing Date, the Shipowner shall certify that all non-Title XI loans to 
the Shipowner relating to the Vessel, if any, have been discharged or subordinated 
satisfactorily to the Secretary;  

       (o) at least ten days prior to the Note Closing Date, the Shipowner shall have provided 
or caused to be provided to the Secretary satisfactory evidence of builder's risk insurance; 
and  

       (p) on the Note Closing Date, the Shipowner shall have presented an Officer's 
Certificate to the Secretary certifying that the Halter Guaranty (as defined in the Security 
Agreement) remains in full force and effect.  

     B. Each Advance shall be made subject to the following conditions having been fulfilled 
unless waived in writing by the Secretary:  

       (a) the Shipowner shall have executed an Officer's Certificate representing and 
warranting the truth of the following statements as of the date of such Advance:  

         (i) each of the representations and warranties set out at Section 2.01 of the General 
Provisions of the Security Agreement in Appendix III; and  

         (ii) the Shipowner is. not in violation of any Federal laws having a substantial adverse 
effect on the interests of the United States of America and that the consummation of the 
Commitment complies with non-Title XI Federal law.  

       (b) the Shipowner shall have complied in all material respects with its agreements under 
this Guarantee Commitment;  

       (c) there shall not have occurred any event which constitutes (or after any period of time 
or any notice, or both, would constitute) a "Default" under the Security Agreement;  



       (d) A Responsible Officer of the Shipowner shall deliver an Officer's Certificate, in 
form and substance satisfactory to the Secretary, stating that (A) there is neither a Default 
under the Construction Contract nor the Security Agreement; (B) there have been no 
occurrences which have or would adversely and materially affect the condition of the 
Vessel, its hull or any of its component parts; (C) the amounts of the Request in connection 
with such Advance is in accordance with the Construction Contract including the approved 
disbursement schedule and each item in these amounts is properly included in the 
Secretary's approved estimate of Actual Cost; (D) with respect to the Request, once the 
Shipyard is paid there will be no liens or encumbrances on the applicable Vessel, its hull or 
component parts for which the withdrawal is being requested except for those already 
approved by the Secretary; and (E) if the Vessel has already been delivered, it is in class and 
is being maintained in the highest and best condition. The Shipowner shall also attach an 
Officer's Certificate of the Shipyard, in form and substance satisfactory to the Secretary, 
stating that there are no liens or encumbrances as provided in clause (D) of this subsection 
and attaching the invoices and receipts supporting each proposed Advance to the satisfaction 
of the Secretary.  

     C. The Bond Closing shall be subject to the following conditions having been fulfilled 
unless waived in writing by the Secretary:  

       (a) the Bond Closing Date shall occur on or prior to the earlier of (i) eighteen (18) 
months following the Delivery or (ii) June 30, 2002;  

       (b) the Shipowner shall have executed and delivered the following documents in the 
form attached hereto: the Supplemental Trust Indenture, each Bond, each Bond Purchase 
Agreement and the Mortgage (if the Vessel shall have been delivered);  

       (c) the Indenture Trustee shall have executed, in the form attached hereto, the 
Supplemental Trust Indenture; and the Obligee shall have executed the Bond Purchase 
Agreement;  

       (d) the following documents shall have been delivered to the Secretary: (i) one executed 
counterpart and one copy of each Bond Purchase Agreement; (ii) two executed counterparts 
of the Supplemental Indenture, (iii) two specimen copies of the Bonds; (iv) two executed 
originals of the legal opinion issued under section (j) of this Section C.; (v) two copies of the 
legal opinion delivered to the Obligees pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreement, and (vi) 
two originals of all other documents delivered by the Shipowner, the Obligees or Indenture 
Trustee in connection with this Closing;  

       (e) the Shipowner shall have executed an Officer's Certificate representing and 
warranting the truth of the following statements as of the Bond Closing Date:  

         (i) each of the representations and warranties set out at Section 2.01 of the Genera 
Provisions of the Security Agreement in Appendix III; and  

         (ii) the Shipowner is not in violation of any Federal laws having a substantial adverse 
effect on the interests of the United States of America and that the consummation of the 
Commitment complies with non-Title XI Federal law.  

       (f) the Shipowner shall have complied in all material respects with its agreements under 
this Guarantee Commitment;  

       (g) there shall not have occurred any event which constitutes (or after any period of 
time or any notice, or both, would constitute) a "Default" under the Security Agreement;  



       (h) on the Bond Closing Date, the qualifying requirements set forth in Section 8 of the 
Financial Agreement shall have been complied with and certified to as required therein;  

       (i) the Shipowner shall have provided an Officer's Certificate certifying to the Secretary 
that the Drilling Contract (as defined in the Security Agreement) is in full force and effect;  

       (j) there shall have been delivered to the Secretary by the Shipowner an opinion of 
counsel acceptable to the Secretary, which shall include, among other things, an opinion to 
the effect that: (i) by the terms of the Security Agreement, the Secretary continues to 
maintain a fully perfected, first priority security interest in each of the assets which 
constitutes the Security; and (ii) no additional filings, recordings, notices and other actions 
are required to perfect the Secretary's interests in the Security or to render such security 
interests valid and enforceable under applicable State law; and  

       (k) the Shipowner and the Secretary shall have executed an Endorsement to the 
Secretary's Note extending the maturity date of the Secretary's Note to the maturity date of 
the Bonds.  

     D. On the Delivery Date, the following conditions shall have been fulfilled by the 
Shipowner unless waived in writing by the Secretary:  

       (a) the Shipowner shall have executed and delivered the Mortgage;  

       (b) the following documents shall have been delivered to the Secretary: (i) two executed 
originals of the legal opinion issued under section (h) of this Section D.; (ii) a current 
Confirmation of Class with respect to the Vessel issued by the American Bureau of 
Shipping, (iii) an appraisal of the Vessel in form and substance satisfactory to the Secretary, 
and (iv) two duplicate photocopies of the original Builder's Certificate for the Vessel from 
the Shipyard, certifying, among other things, that the Vessel has been built in accordance 
with the terms and specifications of the Construction Contract and is delivered to the 
Shipowner free and clear of all liens and encumbrances;  

       (c) the Shipowner shall have executed an Officer's Certificate representing and 
warranting the truth of the following statements as of the Delivery Date:  

         (i) each of the representations and warranties set out at Section 2.01 of the General 
Provisions of the Security Agreement in Appendix III;  

         (ii) the Shipowner is not in violation of any Federal laws having a substantial adverse 
effect on the interests of the United States of America and that the consummation of the 
Commitment complies with non-Title XI Federal law.  

       (d) the Shipowner shall have complied in all material respects with its agreements under 
this Guarantee Commitment;  

       (e) there shall not have occurred any event which constitutes (or after any period of time 
or any notice, or both, would constitute) a "Default" under the Security Agreement;  

       (f) at least ten days prior to the Delivery Date, the Shipowner shall have provided or 
cause to be provided to the Secretary satisfactory evidence of marine insurance as required 
by the Security Agreement;  

       (g) the Shipowner shall have provided an Officer's Certificate certifying to the Secretary 
that the Drilling Contract (as defined in the Security Agreement) is in full force and effect; 
and  



       (h) there shall have been delivered to the Secretary by the Shipowner an opinion of 
counsel acceptable to the Secretary, which shall include, among other things, an opinion to 
the effect that: (i) by the terms of the Mortgage, the Shipowner has granted to the Secretary 
a fully perfected, first priority security interest in the Vessel and the marine insurances on 
the Vessel; and (ii) all filings, recordings, notices and other actions required to perfect the 
Secretary's interests in the Vessel and the marine insurances on the Vessel and to render 
such security interests valid and enforceable under applicable Federal law have been duly 
effected.  

ARTICLE V  

Variation of Guarantee Commitment  

     No variation from the terms and conditions hereof shall be permitted except pursuant to 
an amendment executed by the Secretary and the Shipowner.  

ARTICLE VI  

Termination or Assignment of Guarantee Commitment  

     This Guarantee Commitment may be terminated and the parties hereto shall have no 
further rights or obligations hereunder, upon written notice by the Secretary of the 
termination of the obligations of the United States pursuant to the Shipowner's failure to 
satisfy one or more conditions set forth in Article V hereof or upon the Secretary's 
determination, at or before the Note Closing Date, that (i) the Shipowner is in violation of 
Federal law and such violation would have a substantial, adverse effect on the interests of 
the United States of America or (ii) the consummation of the Commitment would violate 
non-Title XI Federal law. The Shipowner's warranties and representations shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement and the Secretary's issuance of the Guarantees. This 
Guarantee Commitment may not be assigned by the Shipowner without the prior written 
approval of the Secretary and any attempt to do so shall be null and void ab initio.  

ARTICLE VII  

Miscellaneous  

     (a) The table of contents and the titles of the Articles are inserted as a matter of 
convenient reference and shall not be construed as a part of this Guarantee Commitment. 
This Guarantee Commitment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
shall be an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same 
instrument.  

     (b) For all purposes of this Guarantee Commitment, unless otherwise expressly provided 
or unless the context shall otherwise require, capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
meaning given in Schedule X to the Security Agreement.  

     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Commitment to Guarantee Obligations has been 
executed by the United States and accepted by the Shipowner, all as of the day and year first 
above written.  

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA  
SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTATION  
 
BY: MARITIME ADMINISTRATION  
 
BY:                                         



      Secretary  
      Maritime Administration 

      
Attest:  
                          
Assistant Secretary  
Maritime Administration 
      
      

ACCEPTED BY:  
ENSCO OFFSHORE COMPANY, as Shipowner  
 
BY:                                 
NAME:                          
TITLE:                         

      
Attest:  
 
BY:                         

Appendix II to Guarantee Commitment Document  
5.01  

Contract MA-13550 

TRUST INDENTURE  
SPECIAL PROVISIONS  

        THIS TRUST INDENTURE, dated December __, 1999 (the “Indenture” or the 
“Agreement”), between (i) ENSCO OFFSHORE COMPANY, a Delaware corporation (the 
“Shipowner”), and (ii) BANKERS TRUST COMPANY, a New York banking corporation 
(the “Indenture Trustee”).  

RECITALS:  
WHEREAS, pursuant to the understandings set forth in the Security Agreement, the 
Shipowner has authorized the issuance of certain Obligations pursuant to this Indenture in 
an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $194,855,000 to finance the cost of 
construction of the Vessel; and  

WHEREAS, The Secretary, on behalf of the United States, has agreed to Guarantee the 
payment of the unpaid interest to the date of such payment on, and the unpaid balance of the 
principal of, such Obligations under the provisions of Title XI of the Act, and has authorized 
the Indenture Trustee to cause the Guarantees to be imprinted on the Obligations pursuant to 
the Authorization Agreement.  

A. To aid in financing the construction of the Vessel, the Shipowner has duly executed this 
Indenture, has duly authorized the issuance hereunder of the Obligations and has entered, or 
will enter, into (i) on the date hereof, a floating interest rate term loan facility agreement (the 
“Credit Agreement”) providing for a loan of up to the aggregate principal amount of One 
Hundred Ninety Four Million Eight Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand United States Dollars 
(US$194,855,000) with Govco Incorporated (the “Primary Lender”) and Citibank, N.A. (the 
“Alternate Lender”) (the Primary Lender and the Alternate Lender, collectively the 
“Lenders”) to be evidenced by one or more promissory notes (the “Note”) duly issued by 
the Shipowner pursuant to Section 2.03 of Exhibit 1 of this Indenture, designated “United 



States Government Ship Financing Note, 1999 Series,” having the maturity date and interest 
rate set forth therein, and, (ii) on or before the Bond Closing Date, one or more bond 
purchase agreements (each a “Bond Purchase Agreement”) with the purchasers named 
therein, providing for the sale and delivery of up to the aggregate principal amount of One 
Hundred Ninety Four Million Eight Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand United States Dollars 
(US$194,855,000) bonds (the “Bonds”) duly issued by the Shipowner pursuant to Section 
2.03 of Exhibit 1 of this Indenture, designated “United States Government Guaranteed Ship 
Financing Bonds, 7500 Series”, having the maturity date and interest rate set forth therein; if 
a Note has been issued by the Shipowner, on or before the Mandatory Note Redemption 
Date, the Shipowner shall redeem the Note with proceeds of Bonds to be issued on such 
Redemption Date. The Note and the Bonds issued (as the case may be) shall be known as 
the “Obligations”. In no event shall the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the 
Obligations exceed 87 1/2% of the Actual Cost as of the Delivery Date of the Vessel or the 
Depreciated Actual Cost after the Delivery Date of the Vessel;  

        NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, of the purchase of the Obligations by the Holders thereof, and of other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which the parties hereby acknowledge, 
and for the equal and proportionate benefit of all the present and future Holders of the 
Obligations, the parties hereto agree as follows:  

ARTICLE FIRST  
        Incorporation of General Provisions. This Indenture shall consist of two parts: the 
Special Provisions and the General Provisions attached hereto as Exhibit 1, and they shall be 
treated as one instrument. In the event of a conflict, the terms of the Special Provisions shall 
prevail.  

ARTICLE SECOND  
        The Obligations.  

        (a)(1) The Note or Bonds issued hereunder from time to time shall be designated 
“United States Government Guaranteed Ship Financing Note, 1999 Series,” or “United 
States Government Guaranteed Ship Financing Bonds, 7500 Series” and shall be in the 
forms of Exhibits 2-A and 2-B to this Indenture; and the aggregate principal amount of 
Obligations which may be issued and outstanding under this Indenture shall not exceed One 
Hundred Ninety Four Million Eight Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand United States Dollars 
(US$194,855,000); and each shall mature and bear interest and have such other terms and 
provisions as set forth therein.  

        (2) The denominations of the Obligations shall be in integral multiples of $1,000.  

        (b) Limits on Guarantees. The Guarantees extend only to principal and interest owed 
under the Note and Bonds and only to the extent specified therein. The United States does 
not guarantee the payment of any other indebtedness of the Shipowner to the Holders or any 
other Person no matter how the indebtedness arises or whether it is in any way related to the 
borrowings of the principal amount which is the subject of any Note or Bond, including, but 
not limited to fees and expenses arising under the Credit Agreement, “Indemnified 
Amounts” as defined therein, Liquidation Fees, Breakage Fees, Make Whole Premium, 
“Taxes” or “Other Taxes” as defined in the Credit Agreement or in this Trust Indenture, 
default interest under Section 4.02(b) of the Credit Agreement, interest for any “Post-
Maturity Period” in excess of the “Guaranteed Interest” (as such terms are defined in the 
Credit Agreement), or any other charges, costs or expenses owed to any Person by the 
Shipowner and not constituting principal or interest owed under the Note or Bonds.  



        (c) The Shipowner shall at all times cause to be maintained in the City of Dallas, State 
of Texas an office or agency for the purposes specified in Section 5.03 of this Indenture.  

        (d) The Indenture Trustee shall at all times have its Corporate Trust Office in the City 
of New York, State of New York.  

ARTICLE THIRD  
CERTAIN REDEMPTIONS  

        (a) If any Note has been issued hereunder, on or before the Stated Maturity of such 
Note, the Shipowner may redeem any or all of such Note by issuing on the Redemption 
Date of such Note, Bonds in a principal amount equal to the outstanding principal amount of 
and interest accrued on the Note to be so redeemed. All proceeds of Bonds issued pursuant 
to this paragraph (a), shall be applied by the Shipowner to pay in full the outstanding 
principal and interest of the outstanding Note to be redeemed on the Redemption Date. 
Notwithstanding any contrary provision of Section 3.09 and 3.10 of Exhibit 1 hereto, 
proceeds of Bonds issued pursuant to this paragraph (a) may be paid on the Redemption 
Date to any such account as the Holder may designate in writing to the Indenture Trustee 
and the Shipowner, whether or not such account is maintained with the Indenture Trustee, 
and delivery to such Holder by the Shipowner of an amount sufficient to repay such 
Holder’s Note in full shall constitute conclusive evidence of such payment for all purposes 
under this Indenture.  

        (b) Mandatory Redemption of Obligations. (1) The Obligations are subject to 
repayment, upon the terms and conditions provided in this Indenture, through the operation 
of a mandatory repayment schedule providing for the repayment in consecutive semi-annual 
installments of a principal amount as indicated in each such Obligation, commencing on the 
date which is the earlier of (A) six (6) months after delivery of the Vessel and (B) December 
31, 2001 (the “Initial Payment Date”), and semi-annually thereafter commencing with the 
date that is six months following the Initial Payment Date (each a “Payment Date”) to and 
including, for the Note, the Stated Maturity, and for the Bonds, the date that is no later than 
fifteen (15) years following the Delivery Date, at one hundred percent (100%) of the 
principal amount thereof plus interest accrued thereon to such date; provided, however, that 
notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this paragraph, in case the principal amount of 
the Note shall be reduced by reason of any prepayment or redemption described in 
paragraph (c) of this Article Third, the principal amount of the Obligations to be repaid 
through the operation of the mandatory repayment schedule on each subsequent scheduled 
mandatory redemption date shall be subject to reduction as provided in this Indenture. In the 
event the Note has been issued hereunder which is being redeemed through the issuance of 
Bonds, (i) the first regularly scheduled principal installment under the Bonds shall be due on 
the first Payment Date which falls after the first date of issue of the Bonds; (ii) the 
remaining principal payments shall be payable according to the schedule incorporated into 
the Bonds and (iii) the last Payment Date for each Bond shall be no later than 15 years from 
the Delivery Date of the Vessel.  

        (2) The Note issued hereunder is also subject to mandatory redemption at a redemption 
price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof, together with 
interest accrued thereon to the date of redemption, on the Stated Maturity of such Note or, if 
earlier, the applicable “Mandatory Note Redemption Date” which shall be the tenth (10th) 
Business Day after receipt by the Shipowner from the Indenture Trustee of the notice 
specified in the paragraph (b)(3) below of this Article Third, provided that the Secretary 
may, in his or her discretion, waive in writing the requirement to make such payment on 
such Mandatory Note Redemption Date. Redemption of the Note on the Mandatory Note 
Redemption Date shall be subject also to the payment of any Liquidation Fees or Breakage 
Fees. On the Mandatory Note Redemption Date, the Shipowner may redeem the Note using 



the proceeds of Bonds issued on such Mandatory Note Redemption Date in accordance with 
the provisions of paragraph (b) of Article Third hereof.  

        (3) So long as any Note shall be outstanding, the Indenture Trustee shall determine the 
Benchmark Rate on each Business Day and shall notify the Shipowner, the Secretary and 
each Holder in writing if the applicable Benchmark Rate equals or exceeds the Trigger Rate. 

        (c) Optional Obligation Redemptions. (1) At its option, the Shipowner may redeem the 
Note from time to time, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to one hundred 
percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof, together with interest thereon to such 
redemption date, and any Liquidation Fees and Breakage Fees in such amounts as set forth 
in a written notice by the Agent to the Secretary, the Shipowner and the Indenture Trustee. 
Any partial redemption of the Note pursuant to Section 8.01 of Exhibit 1 to this Indenture 
shall be subject to payment of any Liquidation Fees or Breakage Fees.  

        (2) At its option, the Shipowner may redeem the Bonds, in whole or in part, on any 
Payment Date, at a redemption price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal 
amount being redeemed, together with interest accrued thereon to such date, together with 
the Make Whole Premium specified in such Bonds. No Make Whole Premium shall be 
owed in connection with any mandatory redemptions of the Bonds, any redemptions of the 
Bonds at the option of the Secretary, or any other redemption of the Bonds pursuant to any 
provisions of this Indenture not set forth in this paragraph.  

        (3) The right to make any such optional redemption of Obligations shall not be 
cumulative. If the Shipowner shall elect to make any such optional redemption, the 
Shipowner shall, at least five (5) Business Days in the case of the Note, and fifteen (15) 
days in the case of the Bonds, but not more than sixty (60) days, prior to such Redemption 
Date, deliver to the Indenture Trustee a Request stating that the Shipowner intends to 
exercise its right as set forth in this paragraph (c)(3) to make such optional redemption and 
specifying the principal amount of Obligations which the Shipowner intends to redeem on 
such Redemption Date.  

ARTICLE FOURTH  
ADDITIONS, DELETIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO EXHIBIT 1  

        (a) Concerning Payment of the Obligations. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
in Exhibit 1 hereto, the Obligations to be issued hereunder shall be payable as to principal, 
premium (if any), and interest, at an office or agency maintained by the Shipowner for such 
purpose at the Corporate Trust Office of the Indenture Trustee, or at the option of the 
Shipowner, as to payments of principal, premium (if any), or interest by check mailed by 
such Corporate Trust Office to the addresses of the Obligees as such addresses shall appear 
in the Obligation Register, subject in any event to the provisions hereof concerning home 
office payment. The Indenture Trustee agrees that within 30 days from the date of any 
payment of principal or interest when the same shall become due and payable by reason of 
maturity or redemption, a Responsible Officer in the Corporate Trust Office of the Indenture 
Trustee shall ascertain to his satisfaction that checks in payment of such amounts have been 
mailed by such Corporate Trust Office to the addresses of the Obligees as provided above, if 
payment is to be made by check, or if payment is to be made by wire transfer, or by credit to 
an account maintained by the Obligee with the Indenture Trustee, that such funds have been 
wired or credited, or if payment is to be made at the Corporate Trust Office, that funds were 
held by the Indenture Trustee for such payment on the date the payment was due. The 
Indenture Trustee shall have no obligation to determine whether such checks or payments 
were received by the Obligees.  



        (b) Concerning Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed. Notwithstanding the provisions of 
Section 3.07 of Exhibit 1 to this Indenture, (i) if less than all the Obligations are to be 
optionally redeemed under any of the provisions contained or referred to in Article Third 
hereof or Article III of said Exhibit 1, the Indenture Trustee shall select, pursuant to written 
instructions of the Shipowner, the portions ($1,000 or any integral multiple thereof) of the 
Obligations to be redeemed on the Redemption Date by allocating the principal amount to 
be redeemed among the Holders of the Obligations in proportion to the respective principal 
amount of the Obligations registered in their respective names.  

        (c) Concerning Home Office Payment. Notwithstanding any terms of this Indenture or 
the Obligations to the contrary, the Shipowner may enter into an agreement with any Holder 
of an Obligation providing for payment to such Holder by check, or at the request of such 
Holder, by credit to an account maintained by the Holder with the Indenture Trustee, or by 
wire transfer of the principal of and the premium (if any), and interest on such Obligation or 
any part thereof at a place other than the place or places specified in such Obligation as the 
place for such payment, and for the making of notation (if any), of such payment on such 
Obligation by such Holder, or by an agent of the Shipowner or of the Indenture Trustee 
without presentation of such Obligation. The Shipowner will furnish to the Indenture 
Trustee a copy of each such agreement.  

        (d) Concerning Section 7.02. The amount “$25,000,000” in Section 7.02 of Exhibit 1 
hereto is hereby deleted, and there is substituted therefor the amount “$100,000,000.”  

        (e) Concerning Section 7.03. A new Section 7.03(r) is hereby added to Exhibit 1 and 
reads as follows:  
  “The Indenture Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers hereunder or perform any  

duties hereunder either directly or by or through agents, attorneys, custodians  
or nominees appointed with due care.”  

  
        (f) Concerning Section 7.04. The words starting with “(2) indemnify” in the first 
sentence of Section 7.04 of Exhibit 1 are hereby deleted and replaced with the following:  
  
  “indemnify the Indenture Trustee and its agents, attorneys, custodians or nominees for,  

and hold each of them harmless against, any loss, liability or expense which any of them  
may incur or suffer without negligence or bad faith in acting under this Indenture  
or the Authorization Agreement.”  

  
ARTICLE FIFTH  

MISCELLANEOUS  
        (a) Concerning Notices. Subject to the provisions of Section 13.01 of Exhibit 1 to this 
Indenture, any notice, request, demand, direction, consent, waiver, approval or other 
communication to be given to a party hereto or the Secretary, shall be deemed to have been 
sufficiently given or made when addressed to:  
The Indenture Trustee as: 
      Bankers Trust Company  
      Corporate Trust and Agency Services  
      Four Albany Street  
      New York, New York 10006  
      Attention: Project Finance Group 
The Agent: 

      Citicorp North America, Inc.  
      Attn: Structured Trade Finance  



      399 Park Avenue  
      New York, New York 10043 
The Shipowner as: 
      ENSCO Offshore Company  
      2700 Fountain Place  
      1445 Ross Avenue  
      Dallas, Texas, 75202  
      Attention: Corporate Secretary 
The Secretary as: 
      SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTATION  
      c/o Maritime Administrator  
      U.S. Department of Transportation  
      400 Seventh Street, SW  
      Washington, D.C. 20590 
        (b) Governing Law. This Indenture and each Obligation shall be construed, enforced, 
and governed by the federal laws of the United States of America, but to the extent they are 
inapplicable, then by the laws of the State of New York of the United States of America 
without regard to its conflict of laws provisions (other than Section 5-1401 of the New York 
General Obligations Law).  

        (c) Jurisdiction and Consent to Suit. Any proceeding to enforce this Indenture may be 
brought in the United States Federal district court for the Southern District of New York. 
Each of the Shipowner and the Indenture Trustee hereby irrevocably waives any present or 
future objection to such venue, and for each of itself and in respect of any of its property 
hereby irrevocably consents and submits unconditionally to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of 
such court. Each of the Shipowner and the Indenture Trustee further irrevocably waives any 
claim that any such court is not a convenient forum for any such proceeding. The Shipowner 
agrees that any service of process, writ, judgment or other notice of legal process by a party 
in connection with this Indenture shall be deemed and held in every respect to be effectively 
served upon it in connection with such proceedings in such court, if delivered to CT 
Corporation, presently located at 111 Eighth Avenue, New York, New York 10011, United 
States of America, which it irrevocably designates and appoints as its authorized agent for 
the service of process by a party in connection with this Agreement in the United States 
Federal district court for the Southern District of New York. The Shipowner further agrees 
that final judgment against it in any such action or proceeding arising out of or relating to 
this Indenture shall be conclusive and may be enforced in any other jurisdiction within or 
outside the United States of America by suit on the judgment, a certified or exemplified 
copy of which shall be conclusive evidence of that fact and of the judgment.  

        (d) Execution of Counterparts. This Indenture may be executed in any number of 
counterparts. All such counterparts shall be deemed t be originals, and shall constitute but 
one and the same instrument.  

        IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Trust Indenture has been duly executed by the parties 
hereto as of the day and year first above written.  

ENSCO OFSHORE COMPANY, Shipowner 
      
Attest:  
                           

  BY:                                         
      Name:  
      Title:  
      BANKERS TRUST COMPANY, solely in its  
      capacity as Indenture Trustee 

      
Attest:  
                           

  BY:                                         
      Name:  



      Title: 

 

Schedule A to the Indenture  
Document 5.03  

Schedule of Definitions  

"Act" means the Merchant Marine Act, 1936, as amended and in effect on the Closing Date.  

"Advance" shall mean the funding under the Credit Agreement of any portion of the Note.  

"Advance Date" means, in relation to any Advance, the Business Day on which the 
applicable Lender shall have initially funded the outstanding principal amount thereof.  

"Act of Obligees" means any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, 
waiver or other action to be given or taken by the Obligees and embodied in one or more 
documents as required by the Indenture.  

"Agent" means Citicorp North America, Inc., a Delaware corporation, as Agent for the 
Primary Lender under the Credit Agreement, and any successor Primary Lender Agent 
under the Credit Agreement.  

"Alternate Lender" means Citibank, N.A., a national banking association, as Alternate 
Lender under the Credit Agreement, and any successor Alternate Lender.  

"Applicable Interest Rate" (i) with respect to the Bonds, means the fixed rate of interest per 
annum as provided in such Bonds and (ii) with respect to the Note, has the following 
meaning:  
  

  

(a) with respect to any portion of the Note that is funded by the Primary Lender 
through its issuance of commercial paper notes and so long as the Primary Lender is 
the holder of the indebtedness related to such funded portion, the sum of (i) the 
Primary Lender's weighted average cost (defined below) related to the issuance of 
commercial paper notes and other short-term borrowings or the sale of participation 
interests (collectively, "Commercial Paper"), which in each case have been 
allocated by the Primary Lender to the Note, which rate includes related issuance 
costs incurred by the Primary Lender plus (ii) 0.15% per annum, as calculated by 
the Indenture Trustee for each Interest Period based on the weighted average cost of 
Commercial Paper specified in a written notice sent by the Agent to the Indenture 
Trustee, the Shipowner and the Secretary at least five (5) Business Days prior to 
each Interest Payment Date on which the interest so calculated is payable. The 
Applicable Interest Rate shall, based on such notice, be specified in a written notice 
sent by the Indenture Trustee to the Shipowner, the Agent and the Secretary at least 
four (4) Business Days prior to each Interest Payment Date on which the interest so 
calculated is payable. For purposes of the foregoing, the Primary Lender's 
"weighted average cost" of Commercial Paper shall consist of (i) the actual interest 
or discount paid to purchasers of Commercial Paper, (ii) the costs associated with 
the issuance of the Commercial Paper and (iii) other borrowings the Primary Lender 
may incur, including the amount to fund small or odd dollar amounts that are not 
easily accommodated in the commercial paper market; and 

  
(b) with respect to any portion of the Note that is funded by the Alternate Lender or 
to the extent that a portion of the Note held by the Primary Lender is assigned to the 
Alternate Lender or to any other assignee, then, from and after the applicable 



  

Advance Date or the effective date of such assignment, as the case may be, a rate 
per annum equal to LIBOR plus 0.15%; provided, however, that, if the Indenture 
Trustee shall have received notice from the Alternate Lender or assignee that such 
Alternate Lender or assignee shall have determined, prior to the commencement of 
any Interest Period that: (A) Dollar deposits of sufficient amount and maturity for 
funding an Advance are not available to such Lender in the London interbank 
market in the ordinary course of business; or (B) by reason of circumstances 
affecting the relevant market, adequate and fair means do not exist for ascertaining 
the rate of interest to be applicable to the Note; or (C) the relevant rate of interest 
referred to in the definition of LIBOR which is to be used to determine the rate of 
interest for the Note does not cover the funding cost to such Lender of funding or 
maintaining the Note; or (D) the Lender is unable to establish LIBOR for the 
relevant Interest Period; then, in any such event, the Indenture Trustee shall give 
notice to the Shipowner and the Secretary of such condition and interest shall, 
effective as of the date of such notice and so long as such condition shall exist, 
accrue during each applicable Interest Period at the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.15%; 
provided, further, however that if, in the applicable Lender's reasonable judgment, it 
becomes unlawful at any time for such Lender to make or maintain fundings under 
the Note based upon LIBOR, the Lender shall so notify the Indenture Trustee and 
the Secretary, who shall give notice to the Shipowner of such determination and, 
effective, as of the date of such notice and so long as such condition shall exist, 
interest shall thereafter accrue during each applicable Interest Period at the Federal 
Funds Rate plus 0.15%. 

  

"Authorization Agreement" means the Authorization Agreement, Contract No. MA-13551, 
between the Secretary and the Indenture Trustee, whereby the Secretary authorizes the 
Guarantee of the United States to be endorsed on each of the Obligations, as the same is 
originally executed, or as modified, amended or supplemented therein.  

"Authorized Newspapers" means The Wall Street Journal and The Journal of Commerce or 
if they cease to exist, then in such other newspapers as the Secretary may designate.  

"Benchmark Rate" means, as of any date of determination:  

     (i) either (a) if and so long as the Note is funded by the Primary Lender through its 
issuance of commercial paper notes, then the Fed AA Composite Rate calculated by the 
Federal Reserve Bank for commercial paper with a designated maturity of thirty (30) days 
as reported on Telerate Access Service (page 120 or the relevant page at the date of 
determination) or, if such data cease to be available, any publicly available sources of 
similar market data representing an average rate of AA-rated commercial paper with 
comparable maturities, as selected by the Indenture Trustee at approximately 10:00 a.m. 
(New York City time) on the date of determination, or (b) if the Note has been funded by 
the Alternate Lender, then the higher of (i) the Applicable Interest Rate most recently 
quoted by the Agent or (ii) the rate of interest per annum determined by the Indenture 
Trustee to be equal to the arithmetic mean of the offered rates, if any, for deposits in Dollars 
having a maturity of six months commencing on the second succeeding Business Day and 
appearing on Telerate Page 3750 or any equivalent successor to the relevant page as of 
approximately 10:00 a.m. (New York City time) on the date of determination, or, if no such 
offered rates appear on such Telerate Page 3750, then the rate per annum determined by the 
Indenture Trustee to be equal to the arithmetic mean of the rates notified to the Indenture 
Trustee as the rates which five selected money center banks were offering to prime banks in 
the London Interbank Market at or about 11:00 a.m. (London time) on the date of such 
determination for deposits in Dollars for a six-month period to commence on the second 
succeeding Business Day; and  

     (ii) an interest rate per annum determined by the Indenture Trustee as equivalent to the 



yield of most recently issued United States Treasury securities having maturities of ten (10) 
years, respectively, as determined by reference to the yields as indicated by Telerate Access 
Service (page 8003 or the relevant page at the date of determination indicating such yields) 
or, if such data cease to be available, any publicly available sources of similar market data 
selected by the Indenture Trustee at approximately 10:00 a.m. (New York City time) on the 
date of determination.  

"Bond" means any Bond issued pursuant to the applicable Bond Purchase Agreement in the 
form attached as an exhibit to the Indenture.  

"Bond Closing Date" means any date on which the purchaser to be named in the Bond 
Purchase Agreement shall acquire Bonds in accordance with the terms thereof.  

"Bond Purchase Agreement" means the agreement for the purchase of the Bonds, executed 
by the Shipowner and the purchasers named therein, as originally executed, modified or 
supplemented.  

Breakage Fees" means, with respect to any prepayment of the Note to the extent that (i) the 
Note (or the portion so prepaid) is being "Breakage Fees" means, with respect to any 
prepayment of the Note to the extent that (i) the Note (or the portion so prepaid) is being 
funded by the Alternate Lender and (ii) such prepayment is other than on an Interest 
Payment Date, such amounts as such Alternate Lender has specified by written notice to the 
Indenture Trustee and the Shipowner as the amount necessary (in the reasonable judgment 
of the Alternate Lender) to compensate such Alternate Lender for any loss, expense or 
liability (including, without limitation, any loss, expense or liability incurred by reason of 
the liquidation or redeployment of deposits from third parties or in connection with 
obtaining funds to maintain any funding under the Note) which such Alternate Lender 
reasonably determines is attributable to such prepayment.  

"Business Day" means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a bank holiday under the 
laws of the United States or the State of New York; provided, that with respect to any 
determination of LIBOR or matters relating thereto a Business Day means any such day 
described above on which dealings in Dollar deposits are carried on in the London interbank 
market and on which commercial banks in London are open for domestic and foreign 
exchange business.  

"Commercial Paper" shall have the meaning set forth in the definition of Applicable Interest 
Rate.  

"Corporate Trust Office" means the principal office of the Indenture Trustee at which, at any 
time, its corporate trust business is administered, which office is currently located at Four 
Albany Street, New York, New York 10006.  

"CP Fixed Period" means, for any Advance or portion thereof funded through the Primary 
Lender's issuance of Commercial Paper, (i) a period of days commencing on the Advance 
Date for such Advance or portion thereof and ending any number of days thereafter not 
exceeding one hundred eighty (180) days as shall be selected by the Agent, and (ii) 
thereafter a period of days commencing on the last day of the prior CP Fixed Period and 
ending any number of days thereafter not exceeding one hundred eighty (180) days as shall 
be selected by the Agent; provided that:  

     (i) any CP Fixed Period which would otherwise end on a date which is not a Business 
Day shall end on the next succeeding Business Day;  

     (ii) any CP Fixed Period which commences before an Interest Payment Date and would 



otherwise end on a date later than such Interest Payment Date must end no later than such 
Interest Payment Date;  

     (iii) in the event the Primary Lender assigns its interest in an Advance or any portion 
thereof to the Alternate Lender during the CP Fixed Period relating thereto, then the Agent 
shall immediately notify the Indenture Trustee and the Secretary of such fact and such CP 
Fixed Period shall end on the date on which the Primary Lender shall so assign such 
Advance or portion thereof; and  

     (iv) if the Indenture Trustee has notified the Shipowner, the Secretary and the Agent 
pursuant to the Indenture that the applicable Benchmark Rate is equal to or greater than the 
Trigger Rate, all outstanding CP Fixed Periods shall immediately terminate on the next 
succeeding Business Day and all CP Fixed Periods thereafter occurring shall be a period of 
one (1) Business Day.  

"Credit Agreement" means that certain agreement providing for a floating rate term loan 
facility to be executed by the Shipowner, as Borrower, Govco Incorporated, as Primary 
Lender, Citibank, N.A., as Alternate Lender, the Facility Agent and the Agent, as originally 
executed or as modified or supplemented in accordance with the applicable provisions 
thereof.  

"Eurodollar Reserve Percentage" means with respect to any Interest Period the reserve 
percentage applicable to Citibank, N.A. during such period under regulations issued from 
time to time by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (or any successor) 
(or if more than one such percentage shall be so applicable, the daily average of such 
percentages for those days in such period during which such reserve shall be so applicable) 
for determining the maximum reserve requirement (including, without limitation, any 
emergency, supplemental or marginal reserve requirement) for Citibank, N.A. in respect of 
liabilities or assets consisting of or including Eurocurrency Liabilities as that term is used in 
Regulation D of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System as in effect from 
time to time, and as the same has been specified by written notice given from the Agent to 
the Shipowner, the Indenture Trustee and the Secretary.  

"Facility Agent" means Citibank International plc, as Facility Agent under the Credit 
Agreement, and any successor Facility Agent under the Credit Agreement.  

"Federal Funds Rate" means, for any period, a fluctuating interest rate per annum equal for 
each day during such period to the weighted average of the rates on overnight Federal funds 
transactions with members of the Federal Reserve System arranged by Federal funds 
brokers, as published for such day (or, if such day is not a Business Day, for the next 
preceding Business Day) by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or, if such rate is not 
so published for any day which is a Business Day, the average of the quotations for such day 
for such transactions received by Citibank, N.A. from three Federal funds brokers of 
recognized standing selected by it as specified by written notice from the Agent to the 
Shipowner, the Indenture Trustee and the Secretary delivered on each Monday (or if such 
day is not a Business Day, on the next succeeding Business Day) for the preceding calendar 
week.  

"Guarantee" means each, and the "Guarantees" means every, guarantee of an Obligation by 
the United States pursuant to Title XI of the Act, as provided in the Authorization 
Agreement.  

"Holder" means each, and "Holders" means every, registered holder of an Obligation.  

Indenture" means the Trust Indenture dated as of the Closing Date between the Shipowner 



and the Indenture Trustee, as originally "Indenture" means the Trust Indenture dated as of 
the Closing Date between the Shipowner and the Indenture Trustee, as originally executed, 
or as modified, amended or supplemented.  

"Indenture Default" has the meaning specified in Article VI of the Indenture.  

"Indenture Trustee" means Bankers Trust Company, a New York banking corporation, and 
any successor trustee under the Indenture.  

"Interest Payment Date" means with respect to any Obligation, the date when any 
installment of interest on such Obligation is due and payable.  

"Interest Period" means, with respect to any Advance or portion thereof, (i) the period 
commencing on the Advance Date relating thereto and extending up to, but not including, 
the next Interest Payment Date; and (ii) thereafter, the period commencing on each Interest 
Payment Date and extending up to, but not including, the next Interest Payment Date; 
provided, that, in the event the Primary Lender assigns its interest to the Alternate Lender in 
an Advance or any portion thereof on a date other than an Interest Payment Date, then, upon 
written notice from the Agent to the Indenture Trustee of such event, (i) such Interest Period 
shall end on the date on which the Primary Lender shall so assign such Advance or such 
portion thereof and (ii) a new Interest Period with respect to such Advance or such shall 
commence on such date and shall end on the next Interest Payment Date.  

"LIBOR" means, in relation to any Interest Period, an interest rate per annum equal to (i) the 
rate of interest per annum (rounded upward, if necessary, to the nearest 1/16 of 1%) quoted 
by the principal London office of Citibank, N. A., at approximately 11:00 a.m. (London 
time) two Business Days prior to the first day of such Interest Period for the offering to 
leading banks in the London interbank market of U.S. Dollar deposits for a period and in an 
amount comparable to such Interest Period and the principal amount upon which interest is 
to be paid during such Interest Period; divided by (ii) one hundred percent (100%) minus the 
Eurodollar Reserve Percentage, as specified by the Agent in a written notice to the 
Shipowner, the Indenture Trustee and the Secretary given not later than one Business Day 
prior to such Interest Period (or, if such Interest Period commences as a result of an 
assignment from the Primary Lender to the Alternate Lender, given not later than the second 
Business Day of such Interest Period).  

"Liquidation Fee" means an amount determined by the Agent and notified to the Indenture 
Trustee in writing as the amount owed under the Credit Agreement in connection with any 
prepayment of an Advance or portion thereof funded by the Primary Lender on any date 
other than the last day of a CP Fixed Period or in connection with any termination of a CP 
Fixed Period prior to its originally scheduled duration pursuant to clause (iv) or (v) of the 
proviso contained in the definition thereof, which amount shall be equal to (x) the amount of 
yield that the Primary Lender is required to pay to holders of its Commercial Paper during 
the Liquidation Period on an amount of commercial paper having an aggregate issue price 
equal to the amount of the Shipowner's prepayment or the outstanding principal amount of 
the Note previously allocated to the CP Fixed Period whose duration has been shortened less 
(y) the amount of the estimated investment earnings, as determined by the Agent and 
specified by written notice to the Indenture Trustee, on such prepayment amount or such 
outstanding principal amount during the Liquidation Period.  

"Liquidation Period" means the period (i) commencing on the date on which a prepayment 
is made or a CP Fixed Period has been terminated prior to its scheduled duration pursuant to 
clause (iii) or (iv) of the proviso contained in the definition thereof and (ii) continuing to the 
earliest date on which the Primary Lender's total amount of Commercial Paper related to the 
funding of the related Note can be reduced (without prepayment thereof) by an amount 
equal to the amount of the Shipowner's prepayment or to the outstanding principal amount 



of the Note previously allocated to the CP Fixed Period whose duration has been shortened, 
as applicable.  

"Make Whole Premium" means, with respect to Bonds of the same series, the amount which 
the Indenture Trustee determines as of the second Business Day prior to such Redemption 
Date is equal to the excess, if any, of the sum of the respective Payment Values (as defined 
below) of each Prospective Payment (as defined below). "Redemption" means, with respect 
to the redemption of Bonds, the repayment or prepayment of Bonds, as applicable.  

"Mandatory Note Redemption Date" shall have the meaning set forth in Article Third, 
paragraph (b)(2) of the Indenture.  

"Maturity" when used with respect to any Obligation, means the date on which the principal 
of such Obligation becomes due and payable as therein provided, whether at the Stated 
Maturity or by redemption or declaration of acceleration or otherwise.  

"Mortgage" means the first preferred ship mortgage on the Vessel, Contract No. MA-13554, 
by the Shipowner to the Secretary, as originally executed, modified, amended or 
supplemented.  

"Note" means the Note issued by the Shipowner pursuant to the Credit Agreement in the 
form attached as an exhibit to the Indenture..  

"Obligation" means each and every obligation of the Shipowner bearing a Guarantee, 
including any Note or Bond, and authenticated and delivered pursuant to the Indenture and 
the Authorization Agreement.  

"Obligation Register" has the meaning specified in Section 2.07 of the Indenture.  

"Obligee" means each, and "Obligees" means every, Holder of an Obligation.  

"Officer's Certificate" means a certificate conforming to Section 1.02 of the Indenture.  

"Original Issue Date" means a date on which an Obligation was initially authenticated by 
the Indenture Trustee even if the Obligation is subsequently given a later date by reason of 
transfer, exchange or substitution.  

"Outstanding" when used with reference to the Obligations, shall mean all Obligations 
theretofore issued under the Indenture, except: (1) Obligations Retired or Paid; and (2) 
Obligations in lieu of which other Obligations have been issued under the Indenture. 
Obligations which are not Outstanding shall not be entitled to any rights or benefits 
provided in the Indenture. For the purposes of Articles VI and X of the Indenture, and also 
in determining whether the Holders of a stated percentage of the principal amount of 
Outstanding Obligations have made an Act of Obligees required or permitted by the 
Indenture, Obligations owned by the Shipowner or by any Affiliate of the Shipowner shall 
be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding; provided that, for the purpose of 
determining whether the Indenture Trustee shall be protected in relying on any such Act of 
Obligees, only Obligations which the Indenture Trustee has actual knowledge are so owned 
shall be so disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding.  

"Paying Agent" means any bank or trust company meeting the qualifications in Sections 
7.02(a) of the Indenture and appointed by the Shipowner under Section 4.02 of the Indenture 
to pay the principal of (and premium if any) or interest on the Obligations on behalf of the 
Shipowner.  



"Payment Default" has the meaning specified in Section 6.01 of the Indenture.  

"Payment Value" of each Prospective Payment (as defined below) shall be determined by 
discounting such Prospective Payment at the Reinvestment Rate for the period from the 
Payment Date on which such Prospective Payment was scheduled to be paid to the 
applicable Redemption Date. "Prospective Payment" means, with respect to any Bonds: (i) 
each scheduled interest payment on each scheduled principal amount to be prepaid; and (ii) 
the scheduled principal amount to be prepaid.  

"Person" or "Persons" means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, 
association, limited liability company, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated 
organization, government, or any agency or political subdivision thereof.  

"Primary Lender" means Govco Incorporated, a Delaware corporation, as Primary Lender 
under the Credit Agreement, and any successor Primary Lender.  

"Redemption Date" means a date fixed for the redemption of an Obligation by the Indenture. 

"Redemption Price" means the price at which an Obligation is redeemed under the 
Indenture.  

"Reinvestment Rate" means the yield determined by the Indenture Trustee to be the yield of 
the issue of actively traded United States Treasury securities having a maturity equal to the 
Weighted Average Life to Final Maturity (as defined below); provided, however, that if 
such Weighted Average Life to Final Maturity is not equal to the maturity of an actively 
traded United States Treasury security (rounded to the nearest one-twelfth of a year), such 
yield shall be obtained by linear interpolation from the yields of actively traded Untied 
States Treasury securities having the greater maturity closest to and the lesser maturity 
closest to such Weighted Average Life to Final Maturity. The yields shall be determined by 
reference to the yields as indicated by Telerate Access Service (page 8003 or the relevant 
page at the date of determination indicating such yields) or, if such data cease to be 
available, any publicly available sources of similar market data selected by the Indenture 
Trustee at approximately 11:00 a.m. (New York City time) on the second Business Day 
prior to such Redemption Date.  

"Remaining Dollar Years" means the sum of the amounts obtained by multiplying: (i) the 
amount of each remaining scheduled payment of principal of the Bonds and without giving 
effect to such Redemption (as defined above) by (ii) the number of years (rounded to the 
nearest one-twelfth) which will elapse between the Redemption Date and the Payment Date 
for such scheduled principal amount.  

"Request" means a written request to a Person for the action therein specified, signed by a 
Responsible Officer of the Person making such request.  

"Responsible Officer" means (1) in the case of any business entity, the chairman of the 
board of directors, the president, any executive or senior vice president, the secretary, the 
treasurer, member or partner, (2) in the case of any commercial bank, the chairman or vice-
chairman of the executive committee of the board of directors or trustees, the president, any 
executive or senior vice president, the secretary, the treasurer, any trust officer, and (3) with 
respect to the Indenture Trustee, any Vice President, any Assistant Vice President, any 
Managing Director, any Assistant Secretary, any Assistant Treasurer, any Senior Trust 
Officer, any Assistant Trust Officer, any Trust Officer or any other officer associated with 
the corporate trust department of the Indenture Trustee customarily performing functions 
similar to those performed by any of the above designated officers and also means, with 
respect to a particular corporate trust matter, any other officer to whom such matter is 



referred because of that officer's knowledge of and familiarity with the particular subject.  

" Retired or Paid," as applied to Obligations and the indebtedness evidenced thereby, means 
that such Obligations shall be deemed to have been so retired or paid and shall no longer be 
entitled to any rights or benefits provided in the Indenture if: (1) such Obligations shall have 
been paid in full; (2) such Obligations shall have been canceled by the Indenture Trustee 
and shall have been delivered to the Indenture Trustee for cancellation; or (3) such 
Obligations shall have become due and payable at Maturity and funds sufficient for the 
payment of such Obligations (including interest to the date of Maturity, or in the case of a 
payment after Maturity, to the date of payment, together with any premium thereon) and 
available for such payment (whether as a result of payment pursuant to the Guarantees or 
otherwise) shall be held by the Indenture Trustee or any Paying Agent in trust for the 
purpose, or with irrevocable directions, to apply the same; provided that, the foregoing 
definition is subject to Section 6.08 of the Indenture.  

"Secretary" means the Secretary of Transportation.  

"Secretary's Notice" means a notice from the Secretary to the Indenture Trustee that a 
Default, within the meaning of Section 6.01(b) of the Security Agreement has occurred.  

"Secretary's Supplemental Indenture" means a Supplemental Indenture, pursuant to Section 
6.09 of the Indenture, evidencing the succession of the Secretary to the Shipowner, and the 
Secretary's assumption of the Shipowner's obligations under the Indenture.  

"Security Agreement" means the security agreement, Contract No. MA-13552, dated as of 
the Closing Date, consisting of the special provisions, the general provisions and Schedule 
X thereto, executed by the Shipowner as security for the Secretary, as originally executed or 
as modified, amended or supplemented.  

"Shipowner" means ENSCO Offshore Company, a Delaware corporation, and shall include 
its successors and assigns.  

"Stated Maturity" means the date determinable as set forth in any Obligation as the final 
date on which the principal of such Obligation is due and payable.  

"Title XI" means Title XI of the Act.  

"Trigger Rate" means, with respect to the Benchmark Rate referred to in clause (i) of the 
definition thereof, 10.25% and, with respect to the Benchmark Rate referred to in clause (ii) 
of the definition thereof, 9.5%.  

"Weighted Average Life to Final Maturity" means the number of years (rounded up to the 
nearest one-twelfth of a year) obtained by dividing: (i) the then Remaining Dollar Years (as 
defined above) by (ii) the total amount of the then remaining aggregate unpaid principal 
amount of such Bonds (including Bonds issued subsequent to the Closing Date) (without 
giving effect to such Redemption).  

"Vessel" means the vessel, to be named ENSCO 7500, and financed with the Obligations.  
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ARTICLE I  

DEFINITIONS; OFFICER'S CERTIFICATES  

AND OPINIONS OF COUNSEL  

      SECTION 1.01. Definitions. For the purposes of this Indenture, capitalized terms shall 
have the meanings specified in Schedule A to the Indenture unless otherwise expressly 
provided.  



      SECTION 1.02. Officer's Certificate and Opinions of Counsel . The Responsible 
Officer of the Person executing an Officer's Certificate with respect to a covenant or 
condition provided for in this Indenture shall certify that the officer (a) has read such 
covenant or condition; (b) has made or caused to be made such independent examination or 
investigation as is necessary to enable him to express an informed opinion with respect to 
such covenant or condition; and (c) believes to the best of his knowledge that such condition 
or covenant has been met. A lawyer issuing an Opinion of Counsel shall include the same 
representations, except that insofar as it relates to factual matters, if it is in the lawyer's 
professional opinion that reliance upon a certificate or an Opinion of Counsel is appropriate, 
the lawyer may so rely upon such certificate or opinion. Each Officer's Certificate and 
Opinion of Counsel shall set forth the pertinent supporting information and shall be subject 
to the Secretary's review of its adequacy and accuracy.  

ARTICLE II  
THE OBLIGATIONS  

      SECTION 2.01. Issuance of Obligations of Initial Series . (a) At any time and from time 
to time after the execution and delivery of this Indenture, the Shipowner may deliver to the 
Indenture Trustee Obligations of the initial series issuable under this Indenture duly 
executed by the Shipowner, accompanied by a Request of the Shipowner, and thereupon the 
Indenture Trustee shall authenticate such Obligations, after endorsing thereon and 
authenticating the Guarantees of the United States in accordance with the Authorization 
Agreement, and shall deliver such Obligations and Guarantees in accordance with such 
Request. Each such Request shall specify the principal amounts, interest rates and Stated 
Maturities of the Obligations to be authenticated and the names and addresses of the Persons 
in whose name the Obligations are to be registered.  

     (b) The initial series of Obligations shall set forth their respective principal amounts (in 
the denominations provided in the Special Provisions), interest rates per annum, and Stated 
Maturities, and shall be payable as to principal and interest and premium, if any, in any legal 
coin or currency of the United States and shall be subject to redemption as provided in 
Article III.  

     (c) The principal and interest and any premium due on the Obligations shall be paid by 
(i) the Corporate Trust Office or (ii) a Paying Agent by (x) certified or official bank check 
mailed by first class postage prepaid to the addresses of the Obligees appearing on the 
Obligation Register or (y) at the request of an Obligee, received by the Indenture Trustee at 
least three Business Days prior to the date of payment, by wire transfer to a commercial 
bank in the United States or by credit to an account maintained by the Obligee with the 
Indenture Trustee without presentment of the Obligation. Prior to any sale, assignment or 
transfer of such Obligation, the Holder is required to present the Obligation to the Indenture 
Trustee so that a proper notation of all principal payments under (y) are made on the 
Obligation.  

     (d) The Indenture Trustee agrees that within 30 days from the date of any payment of 
principal or interest when the same shall become due and payable by reason of Maturity or 
redemption, a Responsible Officer in the Corporate Trust Office of the Indenture Trustee 
shall ascertain to his satisfaction that checks in payment of such amounts have been mailed 
to the addresses of the Obligees as provided above, if payment is to be made by check, or if 
payment is to be made by wire transfer, or by credit to an account maintained by the Obligee 
with the Indenture Trustee, that such funds have been wired or credited, or if payment is to 
be made at the Corporate Trust Office, that funds were held by the Indenture Trustee for 
such payment on the date the payment was due. The Indenture Trustee shall have no 
obligation to determine whether such checks or payments were received by the Obligees.  

     (e) If the Maturity of any Obligation or an Interest Payment Date for any Obligation shall 



be a day other than a Business Day, then such payment may be made on the next succeeding 
Business Day, with the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date for such 
payment, and no interest shall accrue thereon for the period after said nominal date.  

      SECTION 2.02. Additional Obligations; Obligations of Additional Series . At any time, 
the Shipowner may, with the approval of the Secretary, issue additional Obligations of any 
series and Stated Maturity theretofore issued or of one or more additional series, which shall 
be for the purpose of aiding in financing or refinancing the construction, reconstruction or 
reconditioning of one or more of the Vessels and shall be (i) in such principal amount, and 
mature on such dates, bear interest at such rate or rates, be in such form or forms and have 
such other terms and provisions, as shall be set forth in a Supplemental Indenture providing 
for the issue thereof and (ii) guaranteed by the United States under the Act pursuant to a 
supplement to the Authorization Agreement.  

      SECTION 2.03. Legends on Obligations . Any Obligation may have imprinted or 
stamped thereon any legend, consistent herewith, which is prescribed by the Shipowner and 
approved by the Indenture Trustee, and approved by the Secretary.  

     SECTION 2.04. Dates of Obligations . Each Obligation of any series shall be dated the 
date of its authentication by the Indenture Trustee.  

      SECTION 2.05. Execution of Obligations . The Obligations shall from time to time be 
executed on behalf of the Shipowner by a Responsible Officer thereof (whose signature may 
be a facsimile), and its corporate seal (which may be a facsimile), if any, shall be imprinted 
thereon and attested by its secretary, assistant secretary or assistant trust officer (whose 
signature may be a facsimile). If a Shipowner's officer, whose signature appears on any 
Obligation, shall cease to be such an officer before such Obligation shall have been 
authenticated by the Indenture Trustee, the Obligation nevertheless may be delivered with 
the same force and effect as though the person had not ceased to be a Shipowner's officer.  

      SECTION 2.06. Authentication of Obligations and Guarantees . No Obligation or the 
Guarantee of the United States thereon shall be valid unless such Obligation shall bear 
thereon an authentication certificate, executed by the Indenture Trustee in accordance with 
the terms and conditions of the Authorization Agreement. A duly executed authentication 
certificate shall be conclusive evidence, and the only competent evidence, that such 
Obligation and such Guarantee have been duly executed, authenticated and delivered 
hereunder.  

     SECTION 2.07. Registration, Transfer and Exchange . (a) The Indenture Trustee shall 
keep an Obligation Register at the Corporate Trust Office for the registration of ownership, 
transfers and exchanges of Obligations.  

     (b) A registered Obligee may transfer an Obligation, at the Corporate Trust Office, by 
surrender of such Obligation for cancellation, accompanied by an instrument of transfer in 
form satisfactory to the Shipowner and the Indenture Trustee, duly executed by the Obligee 
or its duly authorized attorney, and thereupon the Shipowner shall execute, and the 
Indenture Trustee shall authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee, a new 
Obligation, and the Guarantee of the United States thereon, in authorized denominations of 
like series, tenor, interest accrual date and Stated Maturity and for the same aggregate 
principal amount.  

     (c) The Shipowner shall not be required to register transfers or make exchanges of (1) 
Obligations for a period of 15 days immediately prior to (A) an Interest Payment Date or (B) 
any selection of Obligations to be redeemed, (2) Obligations after demand for payment of 
the Guarantees and prior to the payment thereof or rescission of such demand pursuant to 



Section 6.02(a), or (3) any Obligation which has been selected for redemption in whole or in 
part. If any Obligation surrendered for transfer or exchange has been selected for 
redemption in whole or in part, there may be endorsed on any Obligation issued therefor an 
appropriate notation of such fact.  

     (d) Any Obligation may be exchanged for a like principal amount of Obligations of the 
same series, tenor, interest accrual date and Stated Maturity but of different authorized 
denominations. Obligations to be exchanged shall be surrendered at the Corporate Trust 
Office, and the Shipowner shall execute, and the Indenture Trustee shall authenticate and 
deliver in exchange therefor, the Obligation or Obligations, and the Guarantee or Guarantees 
of the United States thereon, requested by the Obligee in accordance with this paragraph.  

     (e) As a condition precedent to any transfer or exchange of Obligations, the Shipowner 
may require the payment of a sum sufficient to reimburse it for any taxes or other 
governmental charges that may be imposed with respect thereto and a sum not exceeding 
$2.00 for each Obligation delivered upon any such transfer or exchange.  

      SECTION 2.08. Who Treated as Owners . The Shipowner, the Indenture Trustee, the 
Secretary, and any Paying Agent for the payment of principal of (and premium, if any) or 
interest on the Obligations may deem the Person in whose name any Obligation is registered 
in the Obligation Register as the absolute owner of such Obligation for all purposes, and 
neither the Shipowner, the Indenture Trustee, the Secretary, nor any such Paying Agent shall 
be affected by any notice to the contrary, whether such Obligation shall be past due or not. 
All payments of or on account of principal (and premium, if any) or interest, or pursuant to 
the Guarantee, to such registered Obligee shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and 
discharge the liability of the Shipowner and the Secretary to the extent of the sum or sums 
so paid, except as otherwise provided in Section 6.08.  

      SECTION 2.09. Lost, Stolen, Destroyed or Mutilated Obligations . Upon receipt by the 
Shipowner and the Indenture Trustee of evidence satisfactory to them of the loss, theft, 
destruction or mutilation of any Outstanding Obligation (ALost Obligation@), the 
Shipowner may execute, and upon request of the Shipowner, the Indenture Trustee shall 
authenticate and deliver, a new replacement Obligation, with the Guarantee of the United 
States thereon, of like series, tenor, interest accrual date, principal amount and Stated 
Maturity (which may bear such notation as may be required by the Indenture Trustee and 
which shall bear a serial number different from that of the Lost Obligation) and in the event 
such Lost Obligation has or is about to become due and payable, the Indenture Trustee may 
deem the applicant with respect thereto to be the owner of said Obligation for the purpose of 
receiving any payments due on account thereof; provided that (1) the Shipowner, the 
Indenture Trustee and the Secretary shall receive an indemnity satisfactory to the 
Shipowner, the Indenture Trustee and the Secretary, (2) the Shipowner shall be reimbursed 
for all reasonable expenses (including any fees or expenses of the Indenture Trustee) 
incident thereto, and (3) a mutilated Obligation shall be surrendered. Once the Indenture 
Trustee has issued a replacement Obligation, the Lost Obligation shall not be enforceable. 
The provisions of this Section are exclusive and shall preclude (to the extent lawful) all 
other rights and remedies with respect to the replacement or payment of Lost Obligations.  

      SECTION 2.10. Reacquired Obligations; Cancellation and Disposition of Obligations . 
In the event the Shipowner shall reacquire any Obligations (whether by purchase or 
otherwise), such Obligations shall forthwith be delivered to the Indenture Trustee for 
cancellation. Except as provided in Section 3.10(b), all Obligations surrendered for the 
purpose of payment, redemption, transfer, exchange, or substitution, or in discharge in 
whole or in part of any sinking fund payment shall, if surrendered to the Shipowner or any 
Paying Agent, be delivered to the Indenture Trustee and shall be cancelled by it. No 
Obligation shall be authenticated in lieu of or in exchange for any Obligation cancelled as 
provided in this Section, except as may be expressly permitted by this Indenture. 



Obligations cancelled by the Indenture Trustee shall be delivered or disposed of as directed 
by a Request of the Shipowner.  

ARTICLE III  
REDEMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS  

      SECTION 3.01. Redemptions Suspended During Default . Notwithstanding the 
following provisions of this Article III, neither the Shipowner nor the Indenture Trustee 
shall redeem any Obligations, except pursuant to Sections 3.04 or 3.05, during the 
continuance of any Indenture Default, except that, where the mailing of notice of 
redemption of any Obligations shall have theretofore been made, the Indenture Trustee shall 
redeem or cause to be redeemed such Obligations if it shall have received a sum sufficient 
for such redemption. Except as aforesaid, any moneys received by the Indenture Trustee for 
the redemption of Obligations which may not be applied to the redemption thereof shall be 
held in trust by the Indenture Trustee and applied in the following manner: (1) in case such 
Indenture Default or such event shall no longer be continuing, such moneys shall thereafter 
be applied to the redemption of Obligations in accordance with the applicable provisions of 
the Obligations and of this Article III, (2) in the event the Secretary shall have assumed the 
Obligations pursuant to Section 6.09 or shall have been required to pay the Guarantees, such 
moneys shall be paid over by the Indenture Trustee to the Secretary or (3) if no Obligation 
shall be Outstanding, and the Secretary shall not have been required to pay the Guarantees, 
such moneys shall be paid to the Shipowner.  

      SECTION 3.02. Redemptions Without Premium . (a) Mandatory Sinking Fund 
Redemptions . The Obligations are subject to redemption at a Redemption Price equal to 
100% of the principal amount thereof, together with interest accrued thereon to the 
Redemption Date, through the operation of a mandatory sinking fund providing for semi-
annual redemption commencing and continuing on the dates and in the principal amounts 
specified in the Obligations, plus interest accrued thereon to the applicable sinking fund 
Redemption Date; provided, however , that in the event of any special redemption pursuant 
to Sections 3.04, 3.05 or 3.06 below, the principal amount of Obligations to be redeemed on 
each subsequent mandatory sinking fund Redemption Date shall be reduced by an amount 
equal to the principal amount of the Obligations retired by reason of such special 
redemption divided by the number of mandatory sinking fund Redemption Dates (including 
the Stated Maturity of the Obligations) scheduled thereafter.  

     (b) Credit Against Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemptions . In lieu of making all or any 
part of any such mandatory sinking fund redemption of the Obligations, the Shipowner may, 
at its option, receive 100% credit for Obligations that have been (1) redeemed by the 
Shipowner pursuant to the optional redemption provision provided in subsection (c) below, 
or (2) purchased or acquired by the Shipowner (other than by redemption) and delivered to 
the Indenture Trustee for cancellation pursuant to Section 2.10 above. These Obligations 
shall be credited by the Indenture Trustee only under the following conditions: at least 40 
days but not more than 60 days prior to the due date for such mandatory sinking fund 
redemption, the Shipowner delivers a Request to the Indenture Trustee, (i) specifying the 
principal amount of Obligations to be credited, (ii) certifying that none of the Obligations 
have previously been made the basis of any credit and that the Shipowner is not restricted by 
contract from seeking the requested credit, and (iii) presenting the uncancelled Obligations 
to be credited  

     (c) Optional Sinking Fund Redemptions . At its option, the Shipowner may redeem on 
any mandatory sinking fund Redemption Date, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the 
principal amount thereof, an additional principal amount of Obligations up to the principal 
amount of the Obligations required to be redeemed under subsection (a) above on such date, 
and before any reduction pursuant to the proviso of that subsection. The right to make any 
such optional sinking fund redemption shall not be cumulative. If the Shipowner shall elect 



to make any such optional sinking fund redemption, the Shipowner shall, at least 40 days 
but not more than 60 days prior to such mandatory sinking fund Redemption Date, deliver to 
the Indenture Trustee a Request stating that the Shipowner intends to exercise its right as set 
forth in this subsection to make such optional sinking fund redemption and specifying the 
additional principal amount of Obligations which the Shipowner intends to redeem on such 
mandatory sinking fund Redemption Date.  

     (d) Mandatory Redemptions Without Premium . The Obligations of each series shall be 
subject to redemption without premium when redemption is required by the conditions 
specified in Sections 3.02, 3.04, 3.05 and 3.06.  

     (e) Adjustments of Redemption Payments . If there is an adjustment in mandatory 
redemption payments as a result of redemptions under this Section or any other provision of 
the Indenture, the Shipowner shall recompute the remaining mandatory redemption 
payments pursuant to such provisions and shall, at least 60 days prior to the next Interest 
Payment Date, submit to the Secretary for his review of such recomputation to ascertain 
compliance with the provisions of this Indenture, a table of revised mandatory redemption 
payments on the Obligations of such series reflecting the adjustments made pursuant to such 
provisions as a result of such redemption. Upon advice by the Secretary that he finds such 
recomputation to comply with such provisions, the Shipowner shall submit said table to the 
Indenture Trustee and the Indenture Trustee shall promptly submit a copy thereof to each 
Holder of an Obligation of such series.  

      SECTION 3.03. Optional Redemptions of Obligations at Premium . At its option, the 
Shipowner may redeem the Obligations, in whole or in part, at any time, at the redemption 
prices specified in the Obligations, together with the interest accrued thereon; provided that , 
no such redemption shall be made prior to the date specified in the Special Provisions, 
directly or indirectly with the proceeds of, or in anticipation of, borrowing by or for the 
account of the Shipowner if such borrowing has an effective interest cost (calculated in 
accordance with generally accepted financial practice) of less than the rate of interest borne 
by the Obligations. The Shipowner may redeem such Obligations on a date at least 40 days 
but not more than 60 days from the Indenture Trustee's receipt of the Request to make such 
an optional redemption and specifying the Redemption Date and the principal amount of 
Obligations which the Shipowner intends to redeem. If this Request proposes a redemption 
prior to the date specified in the Special Provisions, the Shipowner shall include with the 
Request an Officer's Certificate stating that the redemption complies with the proviso 
relating to early redemptions.  

      SECTION 3.04. Redemptions to Comply with Section 1104A(b)(2) of the Act . The 
Shipowner and the Secretary may Request a Redemption Date, at least 40 days but not more 
than 60 days from the Indenture Trustee's receipt of the Request, for the redemption of 
certain Obligations because the principal amount of the Outstanding Obligations are in 
excess of the amount eligible for guarantee by the United States under Section 1104A(b)(2) 
of the Act. Upon receipt, the Indenture Trustee shall promptly give notice to the Holders of 
the Redemption Date as provided in Section 3.08 and on that date shall redeem the principal 
amount of Obligations specified in the instruction together with the interest accrued thereon. 

      SECTION 3.05. Redemption after Total Loss, Requisition of Title, Seizure or 
Forfeiture of a Vessel or Termination of Certain Contracts . The Shipowner and the 
Secretary may Request a Redemption Date, at least 40 days but not more than 60 days from 
the Indenture Trustee's receipt of the Request, for the redemption of certain Obligations 
because of (1) an actual, constructive, agreed or compromised total loss of a Vessel, (2) 
requisition of title to, or seizure or forfeiture of a Vessel or (3) termination of a primary 
Construction Contract. Upon receipt, the Indenture Trustee shall promptly give notice to the 
Holders of the Redemption Date as provided in Section 3.08 and on that date shall redeem 
such principal amount of Obligations together with the interest accrued thereon.  



      SECTION 3.06. Redemption After Assumption by the Secretary . At any time after the 
Secretary has assumed the Obligations under Section 6.09 of the Indenture, the Secretary 
may Request a Redemption Date, at least 40 days but not more than 60 days from the 
Indenture Trustee's receipt of the Request, for the redemption of all or part of the 
Obligations. Upon receipt, the Indenture Trustee shall promptly give notice to the Holders 
of the Redemption Date as provided in Section 3.08 and on that date shall redeem such 
principal amount of Obligations together with the interest accrued thereon.  

      SECTION 3.07. Determination of Obligations to be Redeemed . If less than all the 
Obligations are to be redeemed pursuant to Sections 3.03, 3.04 or 3.05, the Indenture 
Trustee shall select the particular Obligations to be redeemed by multiplying the total 
principal amount to be redeemed by a fraction, the numerator of which is the amount each 
Holder of an Outstanding Obligation is owed and the denominator is the total principal 
amount of the Outstanding Obligations, making adjustment so that the principal amount of 
any Obligation to be redeemed shall be $1,000 or an integral multiple thereof.  

      SECTION 3.08. Notices of Redemption . (a) In case of any redemption of Obligations, 
whether mandatory or optional, the Indenture Trustee shall send a notice of redemption 
indicating (1) the Redemption Date, (2) the Redemption Price, (3) if only a part of such 
Obligations is to be redeemed, the numbers or other identification of the Obligations and the 
principal amount thereof to be redeemed, (4) the place of payment upon redemption and (5) 
that interest shall cease to accrue after the Redemption Date if the Indenture Trustee or any 
Paying Agent shall have in fact received the required moneys. A copy of the notice shall be 
mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, at least 30 days prior to the Redemption Date, to 
each Holder of an Outstanding Obligation that is to be redeemed in whole or in part, at the 
last address appearing upon the Obligation Register.  

      SECTION 3.09. Deposit of Redemption Moneys . Prior to the opening of business on 
any Redemption Date, the Shipowner shall cause to be deposited with the Indenture Trustee 
or with any Paying Agent an amount sufficient for such redemption with irrevocable 
directions to it to so apply the same. Failure to so deposit the amounts with the Indenture 
Trustee or the Paying Agent shall render any notice to redeem of no effect.  

      SECTION 3.10. Payment of Redemption Price . (a) If notice of redemption shall have 
been given as provided above, the Obligations or portions thereof specified in such notice 
shall become due and payable on the Redemption Date and at the place of payment and the 
Redemption Price stated in such notice, and on and after said Redemption Date (unless the 
Shipowner shall default in payment of the Redemption price or shall decide to cancel the 
notice of optional redemption) interest on the Obligations or portions thereof so called for 
redemption shall cease to accrue. Upon presentation and surrender of such Obligations in 
accordance with such notice, such Obligations or the specified portions thereof shall be paid 
and redeemed at the applicable Redemption Price.  

     (b) Upon presentation of any Obligation redeemed in part only, the Shipowner shall 
execute and the Indenture Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to the order of the Holder 
thereof, at the expense of the Shipowner, a new Obligation or Obligations of like series and 
Stated Maturity, of authorized denominations, having endorsed thereon a Guarantee 
executed by the Secretary, in principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the 
Obligation so presented, or, at the option of such Holder, there may be noted thereon by the 
Indenture Trustee or, at its direction, by any Paying Agent the payment of the portion of the 
principal amount of such Obligation so called for redemption.  

ARTICLE IV  
CASH HELD BY INDENTURE TRUSTEE OR PAYING AGENTS  

      SECTION 4.01. Generally . (a) To the extent required by the Obligations, cash received 



by the Indenture Trustee or a Paying Agent shall be promptly paid to the Holders of the 
Outstanding Obligations and all other cash shall be held by the Indenture Trustee or a 
Paying Agent as a special deposit in trust for application in accordance with this Indenture.  

     (b) Cash held by the Indenture Trustee or any Paying Agent (other than the Shipowner) 
under this Indenture: (1) need not be segregated; (2) shall not be invested; and (3) shall not 
bear interest except to the extent the Shipowner and the Indenture Trustee or Paying Agent 
may agree.  

     SECTION 4.02. Paying Agents . (a) A Paying Agent appointed in writing by the 
Shipowner shall enter into a contract with the Indenture Trustee,  
agreeing that the Paying Agent will:  

     (1) hold in trust all sums held by it for the payment of the principal of (and premium, if 
any) or interest on Obligations for the benefit of the Holders of such Obligations, and for the 
benefit of the Indenture Trustee;  

     (2) forthwith give written notice to a Responsible Officer in the Corporate Trust Office 
signed by a Responsible Officer of the Paying Agent of (A) any payment by the Shipowner 
of the principal of (and premium, if any) or interest on Obligations, specifying the amount 
paid, segregated as to principal (premium, if any) and interest, and identifying each 
Obligation on which any payment was made by number, date, series, Stated Maturity and 
the name of the Obligee, and (B) any failure of the Shipowner to make any such payment 
when the same shall be due and payable; and  

     (3) promptly, and in no event later than ten days after any payment made by it hereunder, 
give written notice to a Responsible Officer in the Corporate Trust Office of all payments of 
Obligations made by it, including and identifying all endorsements of payment made on 
Obligations by it, signed and containing the specified information as provided in 
subparagraph (2) above, and deliver for cancellation to the Indenture Trustee all Obligations 
surrendered to the Paying Agent.  

     (b) The Shipowner may at any time cause to be paid to the Indenture Trustee all sums 
held in trust by any Paying Agent pursuant to this Section, such sums to be held by the 
Indenture Trustee upon the same trusts.  

      SECTION 4.03. Unclaimed Amounts . Subject to applicable law, including State 
escheat laws, any moneys received by the Indenture Trustee or a Paying Agent, for the 
payment of Obligations or Guarantees and remaining unclaimed by the Holders thereof for 6 
years after the date of the Maturity of said Obligations shall be paid to the Shipowner upon 
its delivery of a Request to the Indenture Trustee, unless the Secretary has previously paid 
the Guarantees, in which case it shall be paid only upon a request of the Secretary. In such 
event, such Holders shall thereafter be entitled to look only to the Person that received the 
unclaimed amounts for the payment thereof, and the Indenture Trustee or such Paying 
Agent, as the case may be, shall thereupon be relieved from all responsibility to such 
Holders. No such Request or payment shall be construed to extend any statutory period of 
limitations which would have been applicable in the absence of such Request or payment.  

      SECTION 4.04. Application of Funds . If at any time the Indenture Trustee shall hold 
funds under Section 4.03, the application, distribution or payment of which is not governed 
by a Request of the Shipowner or the Secretary delivered pursuant to any provision of the 
Indenture, the Indenture Trustee shall give written notice, in the absence of an Indenture 
Default, thereof to the Shipowner or to the Secretary if the an Indenture Default exists or the 
Secretary has paid the Guarantees. The Shipowner or the Secretary, as applicable, shall 
promptly thereafter deliver to the Indenture Trustee a Request.  



ARTICLE V  
SHIPOWNER'S REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS  

     The Shipowner hereby represents and agrees, so long as Obligations are Outstanding, as 
follows:  

     SECTION 5.01. A uthorization, Execution and Delivery of Indenture . The Shipowner 
has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Indenture.  

      SECTION 5.02. Payment . The Shipowner will duly and punctually pay the principal of 
(and premium, if any) and interest on the Obligations according to  
the terms thereof and of this Indenture.  

      SECTION 5.03. Offices or Agencies of Shipowner . The Shipowner shall at all times 
maintain an office in the location within the United States specified in Article Second of the 
Special Provisions. Obligations and demands to or upon the Shipowner may be presented 
for payment, registration of transfer and exchange at this office. The Corporate Trust Office 
and a Paying Agent shall also be deemed offices for such purpose.  

ARTICLE VI  
INDENTURE DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES  

      SECTION 6.01. What Constitutes "Indenture Defaults." (a) Each of the following 
events shall constitute an "Indenture Default": (1) Default in the payment of the whole or 
any part of the principal or interest on any of the Outstanding Obligations when the same 
shall become due and payable, whether by reason of Maturity, redemption, acceleration or 
otherwise, or any default referred to in Section 6.08, and continuation of any such default 
for a period of 30 days (herein called a "Payment Default"); and (2) The giving of a 
Secretary's Notice to the Indenture Trustee.  

     (b) The Indenture Trustee shall give to the Obligees, the Secretary and the Shipowner 
prompt notice in writing of any Indenture Default (unless such default shall have been 
remedied prior to the giving of such notice); provided that , the Indenture Trustee shall have 
no duty to give any such notice until a Responsible Officer of the Corporate Trust Office, 
has actual knowledge of such Indenture Default. The notice of an Indenture Default to the 
Obligees shall (1) specify the nature of such Indenture Default, (2) state that, by reason 
thereof, the Indenture Trustee is entitled under the Indenture to demand payment by the 
Secretary of the Guarantees, (3) set forth the provisions of Section 6.04(b)(3) and (5), and 
(4) advise the Obligees of the provisions of Section 6.02.  

      SECTION 6.02. Demand for Payment of Guarantees . (a) If an Indenture Default shall 
have occurred and be continuing, the Indenture Trustee shall, no later than 60 days from the 
date of such Indenture Default, demand payment by the Secretary of the unpaid interest to 
the date of such payment on, and the unpaid balance of the principal of, all Outstanding 
Obligations, whereupon the entire unpaid principal amount of the Outstanding Obligations 
and all unpaid interest thereon shall become due and payable no later than 30 days from the 
date of such demand; provided that, in the case of a demand made as a result of a Payment 
Default, if, prior to the expiration of 30 days from the date of such demand and prior to any 
payment of the Guarantees by the Secretary, the Secretary shall find, and give written notice 
to the Shipowner and the Indenture Trustee to the effect that, there was no Payment Default 
or that such Payment Default was remedied prior to such demand, such demand and the 
Indenture Default shall be of no legal effect or consequence. In each such case, the 
Guarantees shall remain in full force and effect. The Indenture Trustee shall give to each 
Obligee and to the Shipowner prompt written notice of any demand made by the Indenture 
Trustee pursuant to this paragraph (a), any such notice to Obligees to be given as provided 



in Section 13.01.  

     (b) If the Indenture Trustee shall not have made the demand referred to in paragraph (a) 
of this Section on or before the 30th day following an Indenture Default which shall have 
occurred and be continuing and if the Holders of all Outstanding Obligations shall not have 
theretofore elected to terminate the Guarantees as provided in Section 6.04(a)(2), any 
Holder of an Outstanding Obligation, by an Act of Obligees delivered to the Secretary (with 
copies thereof to the Indenture Trustee and the Shipowner), may, in place of the Indenture 
Trustee and on behalf of all Holders of Outstanding Obligations, make such demand, subject 
to all the provisions of, and with the effect provided in, paragraph (a) of this Section.  

      SECTION 6.03. Appointment of Indenture Trustee and Holders of Outstanding 
Obligations as Attorneys-in-Fact . Each Holder of an Outstanding Obligation by the 
purchase and acceptance of its Obligation, irrevocably appoints the Indenture Trustee and 
each other Holder of an Outstanding Obligation its agent and attorney-in-fact for the 
purpose of making the demand provided for in Section 6.02 and (in the case of the Indenture 
Trustee) of receiving and distributing any payment or payments by the Secretary made 
pursuant to any such demand.  

      SECTION 6.04. Termination and Payment of the Guarantees . (a) Except as otherwise 
provided in Section 6.08, the Guarantee with respect to any Obligation shall only terminate 
in case of the occurrence of one or more of the following events:  

(1) Such Obligation shall have been Retired or Paid;  

     (2) The Holders of all Outstanding Obligations shall have elected, by Act of Obligees 
delivered to the Secretary, to terminate the Guarantees;  

     (3) Such Guarantee shall have been paid in full in cash by the Secretary; or  

     (4) The Indenture Trustee and each Obligee shall have failed to demand payment of such 
Guarantee as provided herein or in such Guarantee or in the Act.  

     (b) Subject to the provisions of Section 6.08, when the Secretary shall pay the 
Guarantees in full in cash to the Indenture Trustee:  

     (1) The Indenture Trustee shall hold the entire amount thereof in trust for the sole 
purpose of providing for the payments specified in subparagraph (5) below;  

     (2) No Obligation or Obligations shall thereafter be issued;  

     (3) The Obligations (A) shall represent only the right to receive the payments from the 
Indenture Trustee specified in subparagraph (5) below, (B) shall otherwise no longer 
constitute or represent an obligation of the Shipowner, and (C) shall not be entitled to any 
other rights or benefits under this Indenture;  

     (4) The Indenture Trustee shall forthwith give written notice to the Shipowner and to 
each of the Obligees, stating that it has received payment of the Guarantees in full in cash 
from the Secretary and that the same is available for distribution to the Obligees in the 
manner specified in subparagraph (5) below (and the Indenture Trustee shall give like notice 
to the Holders of the Obligations at least annually thereafter for a period of 6 years or until 
all Obligations shall have been cancelled, whichever is earlier); and  

     (5) Upon the surrender for cancellation of any Obligation, the Indenture Trustee shall 
forthwith pay to the Holder of such Obligation in cash an amount (less the amount, if any, 



required to be withheld in respect of transfer or other taxes on payment to such Holder) 
equal to the unpaid principal amount of such Obligation and the unpaid interest accrued 
thereon to the date on which the Secretary shall have paid the Guarantees in full in cash to 
the Indenture Trustee.  

     (c) If the Secretary shall not have paid the Guarantees in full in cash to the Indenture 
Trustee within 30 days after any demand therefor pursuant to Section 6.02 (whether or not 
because the Secretary makes any of the findings or takes the action referred to in the proviso 
of Section 6.02(a)), the Indenture Trustee shall give prompt written notice of such 
nonpayment to each Obligee and the Shipowner. If the Indenture Trustee shall have received 
notice of any of these findings or actions, such notice to each Obligee shall so state.  

      SECTION 6.05. Rights of Indenture Trustee After Indenture Default . Unless the 
Guarantees have terminated as provided herein, the Indenture Trustee's sole right shall be to 
demand and receive payment of the Guarantees from the Secretary and to take all action, on 
behalf of itself and each Holder, to enforce its rights against the Secretary under the 
Guarantees, including but not limited to the institution and prosecution of all judicial and 
other proceedings. If the Guarantees have terminated under Section 6.04(a)(4) without 
payment by the Secretary, the Indenture Trustee shall have the right on behalf of itself and 
each Holder to take all action to enforce its rights directly against the Shipowner (but not the 
Secretary), including but not limited to the institution and prosecution of all judicial and 
other proceedings.  

      SECTION 6.06. Obligees' Right to Direct Indenture Trustee After Indenture Default . 
(a) During the continuance of any Indenture Default, the Holders of a majority in principal 
amount of the Outstanding Obligations shall have the right, by an Act of Obligees, to direct 
the Indenture Trustee: (1) to exercise or to refrain from exercising any right or to enforce 
any remedy granted to it by this Indenture; and (2) to direct the time, method and place of 
the exercise of any such right or the enforcement of any such remedy; provided that , subject 
to Section 7.03, the Indenture Trustee shall have the right not to take any such action if it 
shall determine in good faith that the action would involve it in personal liability, would 
subject it to expenses against which it has not been offered adequate security and indemnity, 
or would be unjustly prejudicial to the Obligees not parties to such direction; and provided 
further that , notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture to the contrary, the 
Indenture Trustee shall be obligated to demand payment of the Guarantees as provided in 
Section 6.02(a) unless the Holders of all the Outstanding Obligations shall have directed 
him not to make demand.  

     (b) Nothing in paragraph (a) shall affect the right of any Obligee to institute any judicial 
or other proceeding, if the Indenture Trustee declines to do so, against the Secretary while 
the Guarantees are in effect or against the Shipowner or the Indenture Trustee if the 
guarantees have terminated under Section 6.04(a)(4); provided, however , that such action 
does not seek to obtain priority or preference over any other Obligees or to enforce any right 
under this Indenture, except for the equal and ratable benefit of all the Obligees.  

      SECTION 6.07. Attorneys' Fees and Costs . In any proceeding for the enforcement of 
any right or remedy under this Indenture, or in any proceeding against the Indenture Trustee 
for any action taken or omitted by it as Indenture Trustee, the court may in its discretion 
assess reasonable costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, against any party litigant, 
having due regard to the merits and good faith of the claims or defense made by such party 
litigant. The provisions of this Section shall not apply to any proceeding instituted by the 
Indenture Trustee or any proceeding instituted by any Obligee against the Secretary or the 
Shipowner for the payment of the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on the 
Obligations.  

      SECTION 6.08. Rescission of Payments . Notwithstanding any other provision of this 



Indenture, or of the Obligations, in the event that any payment to or on behalf of an Obligee 
of the principal of or interest due under any Obligation, or any portion of any such payment, 
shall at any time be repaid by such Obligee in compliance with a final order of a court of 
competent jurisdiction pursuant to any provision of the Bankruptcy Code or any Federal 
Law replacing or superseding such Code, or applicable state law, and regardless of whether 
there has been any previous Indenture Default and any payment pursuant thereto, or whether 
such Obligation shall theretofore have been acquired by the Shipowner or cancelled, or 
whether an instrument satisfying and discharging this Indenture shall have been executed 
and delivered, (1) such Obligation shall not be deemed to have been Retired or Paid and 
shall be deemed to be Outstanding, (2) the return of such payment in whole or in part in 
compliance with the order of such court shall constitute a default in payment of such 
Obligation within the meaning of Section 6.01(a), which default shall be deemed to have 
occurred on the date of such repayment and which default, if continued for 30 days, will 
constitute a Payment Default, (3) the Guarantee of such Obligation and (to the extent 
necessary to enforce such Obligation and Guarantee) this Indenture shall be in full force and 
effect, and (4) the Person required to return such payment or portion thereof shall be deemed 
for all purposes to be a Holder of such Obligation and entitled to enforce such Obligation 
and Guarantee to the extent of such repayment and, if there shall not be any Indenture 
Trustee hereunder then in office, such Person shall also be entitled to exercise on his own 
behalf all the rights of the Indenture Trustee hereunder necessary for such enforcement; 
provided that, in the event the Guarantee of any Obligation shall have terminated for reasons 
set forth in Section 6.04(a)(2) or (4) of this Indenture prior to the aforesaid date of 
repayment the provisions of this Section shall not apply to such Obligation.  

      SECTION 6.09. Assumption of Obligations by Secretary . (a) Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary contained herein, in the absence of a demand under Section 6.02 
hereof and upon the occurrence of a default in the payment of any principal or interest due 
under the Obligations which has continued for 25 days or more or upon the Secretary's 
giving a Secretary's notice under this Indenture, the Secretary may, in its sole discretion, 
prior to receipt by the Secretary of demand for payment of the Guarantees in accordance 
with this Indenture, assume the rights and obligations of the Shipowner under this Indenture 
and the Obligations by (i) giving to the Shipowner and Indenture Trustee a signed notice 
stating that it has assumed the Obligations and the Indenture and (ii) making any payment of 
principal or interest which is due under the Obligations.  

     (b) The Indenture Trustee and the Shipowner hereby agree that, upon the Indenture 
Trustee's receipt of the notice and payments referred to in paragraph (a)(i) and (ii) of this 
section, the Secretary's assumption shall, as of the date of the Secretary's execution of the 
notice, be effective and binding upon the Indenture Trustee and the Shipowner and their 
respective successors or assigns without further act or deed. Upon an assumption by the 
Secretary, the Secretary shall succeed to and be substituted for and may exercise every right 
and power of the Shipowner under this Indenture and the Obligation with the same force 
and effect as if the Secretary has been named as the Shipowner herein and therein. The 
Secretary may exercise its rights under this section as often as it deems appropriate in its 
sole discretion.  

ARTICLE VII  
THE INDENTURE TRUSTEE  

     SECTION 7.01. Acceptance of Trusts . The Indenture Trustee hereby accepts the trusts 
of this Indenture.  

      SECTION 7.02. Eligibility of Indenture Trustee . (a) The Indenture Trustee shall at all 
times be a bank with corporate trust powers or trust company which (1) is organized and 
doing business under the laws of the United States, any state or territory thereof, (2) has a 
combined capital and surplus (as set forth in its most recent published report of condition) of 



at least $25,000,000, and (3) shall not have become incapable of acting or have been 
adjudged a bankrupt or an insolvent nor have had a receiver appointed for itself or for any of 
its property, nor have had a public officer take charge or control of it or its property or 
affairs for the purpose of rehabilitation, conservation or liquidation.  

     (b) Should the Indenture Trustee at any time cease to be eligible, pursuant to this Section, 
to act as trustee, it shall promptly notify the Obligees, the Shipowner and the Secretary of 
such fact; and should the Shipowner obtain knowledge of such ineligibility, it shall promptly 
advise the Indenture Trustee, the Secretary, and the Obligees of all the relevant facts.  

      SECTION 7.03. Rights and Duties of Indenture Trustee . (a) The Indenture Trustee 
shall not be responsible for the correctness of the Recitals in the Special Provisions hereof 
or in the Obligations (except the Indenture Trustee's authentication certificate thereon), all 
of which Recitals are statements made solely by the Shipowner.  

     (b) The Indenture Trustee shall not be responsible for the validity, execution by other 
parties thereto, or sufficiency of this Indenture, the Authorization Agreement, the 
Obligations or the Guarantees.  

     (c) The Indenture Trustee shall exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it by this 
Indenture, and use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise, as a prudent man 
would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of his own affairs.  

     (d) Except during the continuance of any Indenture Default, the Indenture Trustee shall 
perform such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Indenture, and 
no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this Indenture against the Indenture 
Trustee.  

     (e) No provision of this Indenture shall relieve the Indenture Trustee from liability for its 
own negligent action, its own negligent failure to act, or its own willful misconduct; 
provided that:  

     (1) Except during the continuance of an Indenture Default, in the absence of bad faith on 
the part of the Indenture Trustee, the Indenture Trustee may conclusively rely upon 
certificates or opinions conforming to the requirements of this Indenture as to the truth of 
the statements and the correctness of the opinions expressed therein; and  

     (2) The Indenture Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted 
to be taken by it in good faith in accordance with an Act of Obligees relating to the time, 
method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Indenture 
Trustee.  

     (f) Subject to paragraph (i) of this Section, the Indenture Trustee shall be under a duty to 
examine certificates and opinions required by this Indenture to be furnished to it to 
determine whether or not they conform to the requirements hereof.  

     (g) Subject to paragraph (c) of this Section, the Indenture Trustee may rely and shall be 
protected in acting upon any resolution, certificate, opinion, notice, request, consent, order, 
appraisal, report, bond, or other paper or document believed by it to be genuine, to have 
been signed by the proper party or parties and to be in conformity with the provisions of this 
Indenture.  

     (h) Subject to paragraph (c) of this Section, in all cases where this Indenture does not 
make express provision as to the evidence on which the Indenture Trustee may act or refrain 
from acting, the Indenture Trustee shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting 



hereunder in reliance upon an Officer's Certificate as to the existence or nonexistence of any 
fact.  

     (i) Subject to paragraph (c) of this Section, the Indenture Trustee may consult with 
counsel satisfactory to the Indenture Trustee, and an Opinion of Counsel shall be full and 
complete authorization and protection in respect of any action taken, suffered or omitted by 
it hereunder in good faith and in accordance with such Opinion of Counsel.  

     (j) Whenever it is provided that the Indenture Trustee shall take any action, including the 
giving of any notice or the making of any demand, or refrain from taking any action upon 
the happening or continuation of a specified event (including an Indenture Default) or upon 
the fulfillment of any condition or upon the Request of the Shipowner or of Obligees or 
upon receipt of any notice, including a Secretary's Notice, the Indenture Trustee shall, 
subject to paragraph (c) of this Section, have no liability for failure to take such action or for 
failure to refrain from taking such action until a Responsible Officer in the Corporate Trust 
Office, has actual knowledge of such event or continuation thereof or the fulfillment of such 
conditions or shall have received such Request.  

     (k) Subject to paragraph (c) of this Section, the Indenture Trustee shall not be under any 
obligation to exercise any of the trusts or powers hereof at the request, order or direction of 
any Obligees or the Secretary, unless such Obligees or the Secretary shall have offered to 
the Indenture Trustee security or indemnity satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and 
liabilities to be incurred thereby.  

     (l) The Indenture Trustee, in its individual or any other capacity, may become the owner 
or pledgee of Obligations with the same rights it would have if it were not Indenture 
Trustee.  

     (m) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture, the Indenture Trustee shall 
not take any action contrary to the terms of the Authorization Agreement, and any such 
purported action or any attempt to take such action shall be void and of no effect.  

     (n) No provision of this Indenture shall require the Indenture Trustee to expend or risk its 
own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of any of its duties 
hereunder, or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers, if it shall have reasonable 
grounds for believing that repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity against such risk 
or liability is not reasonably assured to it.  

     (o) Whether or not therein expressly so provided, every provision of this Indenture 
relating to the conduct or affecting the liability of or affording protection to the Indenture 
Trustee shall be subject to the provisions of this Section.  

     (p) Upon the execution and delivery of an instrument satisfying and discharging this 
Indenture as provided in Section 12.01 hereof, all duties and obligations of the Indenture 
Trustee hereunder (except with respect to the application of funds for the payment of 
Obligations then held by the Indenture Trustee) shall cease and shall not thereafter be 
revived, whether or not the Indenture shall thereafter be in full force and effect as provided 
in Section 6.08.  

     (q) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture or the Authorization 
Agreement, the Indenture Trustee shall have no duty to exercise any of its rights or powers 
hereunder with respect to a Payment Default by reason of a repayment referred to in Section 
6.08 unless and until it shall have received notice of such default and information 
concerning (1) the date thereof, (2) the Obligation to which such repayment relates, (3) the 
Person making such repayment, (4) the amounts of such repayment attributable to principal, 



premium and interest on such Obligation, and (5) the Interest Payment Date or other date on 
which the Obligee received the moneys to which the court order mentioned in Section 6.08 
relates.  

      SECTION 7.04. Compensation, Expenses and Indemnification of Indenture Trustee. 
The Shipowner shall (1) pay reasonable compensation to the Indenture Trustee and 
reimburse it for its reasonable expenses and disbursements (including counsel fees and 
expenses) and (2) indemnify the Indenture Trustee for, and hold it harmless against, any 
loss, liability or expense which it may incur or suffer without negligence or bad faith in 
acting under this Indenture or the Authorization Agreement. The compensation of the 
Indenture Trustee shall not be limited to the compensation provided by law for a trustee 
acting under an express trust.  

      SECTION 7.05. Resignation and Removal of Indenture Trustee . (a) The Indenture 
Trustee may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Shipowner. Within 10 days 
thereafter, the resigning Indenture Trustee shall give notice of such resignation to the 
Obligees in the manner provided in Section 13.01. If the resigning Indenture Trustee fails to 
do so within such 10-day period, within the next succeeding 10 days the Shipowner shall 
give such notice in the same manner.  

     (b) The Indenture Trustee may at any time be removed by (1) written notice to the 
Indenture Trustee and the Shipowner by the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the 
Outstanding Obligations; or (2) written notice to the Indenture Trustee by the Shipowner or 
the Secretary that the Indenture Trustee has ceased to be eligible under Section 7.02(a).  

     (c) Any resignation or removal of the Indenture Trustee shall be effective only upon 
appointment of a successor Indenture Trustee approved by the Secretary  

      SECTION 7.06. Appointment of Successor Indenture Trustee . (a) If any notice of 
resignation or of removal shall have been given pursuant to Section 7.05, then a successor 
Indenture Trustee may be appointed by the Shipowner; provided that, if such successor 
Indenture Trustee is not so appointed (or has not accepted such appointment) within 15 
calendar days after the giving of any such notice, such appointment may be made (1) by the 
Secretary or (2) by a court of competent jurisdiction upon the application of the Secretary, 
the Shipowner, the retiring Indenture Trustee or any Person who then is, and has been, the 
Holder of an Outstanding Obligation for at least 6 months.  

     (b) No successor Indenture Trustee shall be appointed without the prior written consent 
of the Secretary and until such successor Indenture Trustee shall enter into an amendment to 
the Authorization Agreement as provided therein.  

     (c) If a successor Indenture Trustee is appointed, approved by the Secretary and accepts 
such appointment, the Shipowner shall give notice to the Obligees of such appointment in 
the manner provided in Section 13.01. The failure of the Shipowner to give such notice shall 
not affect the validity of any such appointment.  

      SECTION 7.07. Effect of Appointment of Successor Indenture Trustee . Each successor 
Indenture Trustee shall forthwith, without further act or deed, succeed to all the rights and 
duties of its predecessor in trust under this Indenture and the Authorization Agreement. 
Upon the written request of the successor Indenture Trustee or the Shipowner and upon 
payment by the Shipowner of all amounts due to such predecessor under this Indenture, 
such predecessor shall promptly deliver to such successor Indenture Trustee all sums held 
hereunder, together with all records and other documents necessary or appropriate in 
connection with the performance of the duties of the successor Indenture Trustee under this 
Indenture and shall transfer, assign and confirm to the successor Indenture Trustee all its 



rights under this Indenture in such manner as deemed by such successor Indenture Trustee 
or the Shipowner to be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith.  

      SECTION 7.08. Merger, Consolidation or Sale of Indenture Trustee . In the event of 
any merger (including for the purposes of this Section, the conversion of a state bank into a 
national banking association or vice versa) or consolidation of the Indenture Trustee into 
any other Person or in the event of the sale of all or substantially all the Indenture Trustee's 
corporate trust business, the Person resulting from such merger or consolidation, or the 
transferee in the case of any such sale, shall forthwith notify the Shipowner and, subject to 
Section 7.02(a) and 7.06(b), shall be the Indenture Trustee under this Indenture and the 
Authorization Agreement without further act or deed.  

ARTICLE VIII  

CONSOLIDATION OR MERGER OF SHIPOWNER OR SALE OF VES SEL  

      SECTION 8.01. Consolidation or Merger of Shipowner or Sale of Vessel . (a) Nothing 
in this Indenture shall prevent any lawful consolidation or merger of the Shipowner with or 
into any other Person, or any sale of a Vessel by the Shipowner, the Secretary or a court of 
law to any other Person lawfully entitled to acquire and operate such Vessel or any sale by 
the Shipowner, the Secretary, or a court of law of all or substantially all of its assets to any 
other Person; provided that , except where the Shipowner shall be the Person surviving a 
merger or consolidation, either (1) the Person formed by or surviving such consolidation or 
merger, or the Person to which the sale of such Vessel shall be made, shall expressly 
assume, by Supplemental Indenture, the payment of the principal of and interest (and 
premium, if any) on the Proportionate Part of the Outstanding Obligations, as determined by 
the Secretary, relating to such Vessel and expressly assume the Shipowner's duties under the 
Indenture, or (2) to the extent that the Secretary determines that the Outstanding Obligations 
and the duties under the Indenture are not so assumed, the Shipowner shall redeem the 
principal amount of those unassumed Obligations in accordance with the terms of the 
Obligations and of the Indenture.  

     (b) When a Person so assumes this Indenture and such Proportionate Part of the 
Outstanding Obligations, the Supplemental Indenture shall discharge and release the 
Shipowner from any and all obligations thereunder relating to such Proportionate Part of the 
Outstanding Obligations. In the event of such an assumption by a Person to whom a Vessel 
has been sold (1) such Person shall succeed to, and be substituted for, and may exercise 
every right and power of the original Shipowner with the same effect as if such successor 
Shipowner had been named as the Shipowner herein and (2) such Proportionate Part of the 
Outstanding Obligations shall be surrendered to the Indenture Trustee for appropriate 
notation or for the issuance of new Obligations in exchange for such Proportionate Part of 
the Outstanding Obligations in the name of the successor Shipowner, as required by the 
Secretary. The principal amount of the Proportionate Part of the Outstanding Obligations 
shall be determined by the Secretary.  

ARTICLE IX  
ACTS OF OBLIGEES  

      SECTION 9.01. Acts of Obligees . (a) Except as herein otherwise expressly provided, 
an Act of Obligees shall become effective when it is delivered to the Indenture Trustee and, 
where it is expressly required, to the Shipowner and the Secretary. Proof of execution of any 
instrument appointing an agent or attorney to execute an Act of Obligees made in the 
manner of subsection (b) below shall be sufficient for any purpose of this Indenture.  

     (b) The fact and date of the execution by any Person of any instrument referred to in 



paragraph (a) of this Section may be proved by the affidavit of a witness of such execution 
or by the certificate or acknowledgment of any notary public, stating that the individual 
signing such instrument acknowledged to him the execution thereof. The fact and date of the 
execution of any such instrument, or the authority of the Person executing the same, may 
also be proved in any other manner which the Indenture Trustee (or, if such instrument is 
addressed to the Secretary, the Secretary) deems sufficient.  

     (c) Any Act of Obligees taken by the Holder of any Obligation shall bind every future 
Holder of any of the Obligations in respect of anything done or suffered to be done by the 
Indenture Trustee, any Paying Agent or the Shipowner in reliance thereon, whether or not 
notation of such action is made upon such Obligation.  

ARTICLE X  
SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES  

      SECTION 10.01. Permissible Without Action by Obligees . The Shipowner, the 
Indenture Trustee, or, where applicable, the Secretary, may at any time, without the consent 
of or notice to any of the Obligees, subject to Sections 10.02 and 10.05, enter into an 
indenture or other instrument supplemental hereto and which thereafter shall form a part 
hereof, for any one or more of the following purposes:  

(1) to add to the covenants of the Shipowner;  

     (2) to evidence, pursuant to Article VIII, the succession of another corporation or entity 
to the Shipowner or any assumption of all or part of the Obligations;  

     (3) to eliminate any right reserved to or conferred upon the Shipowner;  

     (4) to make such provisions for the purpose of curing any ambiguity or correcting or 
supplementing any provisions in this Indenture as the Shipowner or the Secretary may deem 
necessary or desirable, provided such provisions are not inconsistent with this Indenture and 
shall not adversely affect the interests of the Obligees;  

     (5) to provide for the issuance of additional Obligations of any series and Stated Maturity 
theretofore issued under this Indenture or to set forth the terms and provisions of any one or 
more additional series of Obligations in accordance with Section 2.04; or  

     (6) to evidence the assumption pursuant to Section 6.09 by the Secretary of the 
Shipowner's obligations under this Indenture and the Outstanding Obligations.  

      SECTION 10.02. Protection of Indenture Trustee . Upon receipt of a Request of the 
Shipowner that the Indenture Trustee execute any Supplemental Indenture and upon receipt 
of any Act of Obligees required pursuant to Section 10.04 and the consent of the Secretary 
required pursuant to Section 10.05, the Indenture Trustee shall enter into such Supplemental 
Indenture; provided that, the Indenture Trustee shall not be obligated to enter into any 
Supplemental Indenture which the Indenture Trustee believes adversely affects the 
Indenture Trustee's own rights, duties or immunities under this Indenture.  

      SECTION 10.03. Reference in Obligations to Supplemental Indentures . Obligations 
authenticated and delivered after the execution and delivery of any Supplemental Indenture 
may, with the consent and approval of the Shipowner and the Indenture Trustee, contain a 
text modified to conform to such Supplemental Indenture or have imprinted or stamped 
thereon a legend with respect to such Supplemental Indenture, but no such modification or 
legend shall be necessary to make such Supplemental Indenture effective.  



      SECTION 10.04. Waivers and Supplemental Indentures with Consent of Obligees . 
With the consent of the Holders of not less than 60% in principal amount of the Outstanding 
Obligations of each series affected thereby, by Act of Obligees delivered to the Shipowner 
and the Indenture Trustee, (x) compliance by the Shipowner with any of the terms of the 
Indenture may be waived or (y) the Shipowner and the Indenture Trustee may enter into any 
Supplemental Indenture for the purpose of adding any provisions to or changing in any 
manner or eliminating any of the provisions of this Indenture or of modifying in any manner 
the rights of the Holders of the Obligations issued under this Indenture; provided that , no 
such waiver or Supplemental Indenture shall:  

     (a) Without the consent of all Obligees affected thereby (1) change the Stated Maturity or 
reduce the principal of any Obligation, (2) extend the time of payment of, or reduce the rate 
of, interest thereon, (3) change the due date of or reduce the amount of any mandatory 
sinking fund payment, (4) reduce any premium payable upon the redemption of any 
Obligation, or (5) change the coin or currency in which any Obligation or the interest 
thereon is payable; or  

     (b) Without the consent of all Obligees (l) terminate or modify any of the Guarantees or 
the obligations of the Secretary thereunder, (2) reduce the amount of any of the Guarantees, 
(3) eliminate, modify or condition the duties of the Indenture Trustee to demand payment of 
the Guarantees or otherwise to comply with the provisions of Sections 6.02 and 6.04, (4) 
eliminate or reduce any of the eligibility requirements for the Indenture Trustee stated in 
Section 7.02, or (5) reduce the percentage in principal amount of the Outstanding 
Obligations of any series, the consent of whose Holders is required for any such 
Supplemental Indenture, or required for any waiver provided herein or to modify any of the 
provisions of this Section.  

     It shall not be necessary for any Act of Obligees under this Section to approve the 
particular form of any proposed Supplemental Indenture, but it shall be sufficient if such 
Act shall approve the substance thereof. Promptly after the execution of any Supplemental 
Indenture pursuant to this Section, the Shipowner shall give notice thereof to the Obligees in 
the manner provided in Section 13.01. Any failure of the Shipowner to give such notice, or 
any defect therein, shall not, however, in any way impair or affect the validity of any such 
Supplemental Indenture.  

      SECTION 10.05. Consent of Secretary . Subject to the provisions of Section 11.01, no 
waiver pursuant to Section 10.04 shall be effective, and neither the Shipowner nor the 
Indenture Trustee shall enter into any Supplemental Indenture, without the prior written 
consent of the Secretary, and any purported action or attempt to take such action forbidden 
to be taken by this Section shall be null and void ab initio and of no legal effect.  

      SECTION 10.06. Continued Validity of the Guarantees . Notwithstanding anything 
herein to the contrary, this Indenture, the Guarantees and the Authorization Agreement shall 
each remain in full force and effect notwithstanding the assumption by the Secretary of the 
Obligations pursuant to Section 6.09, and pursuant to Section 1103(e) of the Act, the 
validity of the Guarantee of any Obligation shall be unaffected.  

ARTICLE XI  

PERFORMANCE OF OBLIGATIONS TO SECRETARY  

      SECTION 11.01. Performance of Obligations to Secretary . Notwithstanding any 
provisions of this Indenture to the contrary, upon termination of the Guarantees pursuant to 
Section 6.04(a), each of the provisions of the Indenture which refers to the rights and duties 
of the Secretary shall not be effective and the Sections containing such provisions shall be 



read as though there were no such rights or duties.  

ARTICLE XII  

SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE OF INDENTURE  

      SECTION 12.01. Satisfaction and Discharge of Indenture . Whenever all Outstanding 
Obligations authenticated and delivered hereunder shall have been Retired or Paid the 
Indenture Trustee shall forthwith deliver to the Shipowner and the Secretary a duly executed 
instrument, in form submitted to it by the Shipowner and reasonably satisfactory to the 
Secretary, satisfying and discharging this Indenture and, at the time such form of instrument 
is submitted to the Indenture Trustee the Shipowner shall deliver to the Indenture Trustee an 
Officer's Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel each stating that all conditions precedent 
herein provided relating to the satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture have been 
complied with. Notwithstanding the satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture, the 
Obligations of the Shipowner to the Indenture Trustee under Section 7.04 shall survive.  

ARTICLE XIII  

MISCELLANEOUS  

      SECTION 13.01. Notices and Demands . Any communication to, the Indenture Trustee, 
the Shipowner or the Secretary shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given or made by 
being mailed, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the Indenture 
Trustee, the Shipowner or the Secretary at their respective addresses appearing in the 
Special Provisions of this Indenture or at such other address as any of them may advise the 
others in writing from time to time. Any communication to, the Obligees shall be deemed to 
have been sufficiently given or made by being mailed, in the same manner, to the address of 
each Obligee last appearing on the Obligation Register.  

      SECTION 13.02. Waivers of Notice . In any case where notice by mail or otherwise is 
provided herein, such notice may be waived in writing by the Person entitled to receive such 
notice, either before or after the event. Waivers of notice shall be filed with the Indenture 
Trustee, but such filing shall not be a condition precedent to the validity of any action taken 
thereon in reliance upon any such waiver.  

      SECTION 13.03. Benefit of Indenture . This Indenture is for the sole benefit of the 
Shipowner, the Indenture Trustee, the Holders and (until the obligations to the Secretary 
shall have terminated as provided in Article XI) the Secretary.  

     SECTION 13.04. Execution of Counterparts . This Indenture may be executed in any 
number of counterparts. All such counterparts shall be deemed to be original and shall 
together constitute but one and the same instrument.  

      SECTION 13.05. Table of Contents; Titles and Headings . Any table of contents, the 
titles of the Articles and the headings of the Sections are not a part of this Indenture and 
shall not be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any of its provisions.  

      SECTION 13.06. Immunity of Incorporators, Stockholders, Limited Partners, Members, 
Officers and Directors . No recourse shall be had for any payment regarding any Obligation, 
or upon any provision of this Indenture, against any past, present or future incorporator, 
stockholder, limited partner, member, officer or director of the Shipowner or of any 
successor company, either directly or indirectly. It is expressly agreed that this Indenture 
and the Obligations are solely the obligations of the Shipowner.  

EXHIBIT 2  



Forms of Floating Rate Note, Guarantee and Trustee's  
Authentication Certificate  

S P E C I M E N N O T E  
$194,855,000.00  

No. 8  

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT GUARANTEED  
SHIP FINANCING NOTE, 1999 SERIES  

Floating Rate Note  
Issued by  

ENSCO OFFSHORE COMPANY  
        Principal and interest guaranteed under Title XI of the Merchant Marine Act, 1936, as 
amended.  

        ENSCO OFFSHORE COMPANY, a Delaware corporation (herein called the 
“Shipowner”), FOR VALUE RECEIVED, promises to pay to Citibank International plc, as 
Facility Agent for the Lenders under the Credit Agreement referred to below at the 
corporate offices of Bankers Trust Company, a New York banking corporation, in its 
capacity as Indenture Trustee, at Four Albany Street, New York, New York 10006, or at 
such other address of the Indenture Trustee or any Paying Agent as the Indenture Trustee 
may direct from time to time in writing, the principal sum of One Hundred Ninety-Four 
Million Eight Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars($194,855,000) on the earlier of (i) June 
30, 2002 or (ii) the first Payment Date which occurs eighteen months or more after the 
Delivery Date, and to pay interest, semiannually on _______ and ________ of each year, 
commencing on _______, 2000, on the unpaid principal amount of this Note at the 
Applicable Interest Rate as defined in the Indenture, until payment of said principal sum has 
been made, and at the same rate per annum on any overdue principal.  

        The principal of and the interest on this Note are payable in immediately available 
funds to the registered Holder hereof at the address specified above in any coin or currency 
of the United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment 
of public and private debts therein provided the Shipowner and the registered owner may 
enter into other arrangements as to payment in accordance with the Special Provisions of the 
Indenture.  

        Any repayment of principal hereon and the interest rate and Interest Period applicable 
thereto shall be recorded on the books and records of the Indenture Trustee, and the 
Indenture Trustee shall send in writing such information on each payment to the Holder, 
who shall endorse such information on Exhibit A to this Note prior to any negotiation 
hereof. The Shipowner agrees that, in any demand for payment pursuant to the provisions of 
the Indenture, the entries endorsed on Exhibit A to this Note and recorded on the books and 
records of the Indenture Trustee shall be prima facie evidence of the unpaid principal 
balance of this Note.  

        This Note is designated as the “United States Government Guaranteed Ship Financing 
Note, 1999 Series”, issued under a Trust Indenture dated as of this date (said Trust 



Indenture, as the same may be amended, modified or supplemented from time to time as 
permitted thereunder, herein called the “Indenture”), among the Shipowner and Bankers 
Trust Company, a New York banking corporation, as Indenture Trustee (said Indenture 
Trustee, and its successor as defined in the Indenture, herein called the “Indenture Trustee”) 
to aid in financing the cost of the Vessel (as defined in the Indenture). Reference is hereby 
made to the Indenture for a definition of all capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise 
defined herein and a description of the rights, limitations of rights, obligations, duties and 
immunities thereunder of the Shipowner and the Indenture Trustee and the rights and 
limitations of rights of the Holder of this Note.  

        In accordance with the terms of an Authorization Agreement dated as of this date 
(herein as in effect, the “Authorization Agreement”), between the United States of America, 
represented by the Secretary of Transportation, acting by and through the Maritime 
Administrator (herein called the “Secretary”) and the Indenture Trustee and by endorsement 
of the guarantee of the United States of America (herein called the “Guarantee”) on this 
Note and the authentication and delivery of the Guarantee by the Indenture Trustee, all 
pursuant to Title XI of the Merchant Marine Act, 1936, as amended and in effect on this 
date (herein called the “Act”), this Note is guaranteed by the United States of America as 
provided in the Authorization Agreement and in the Guarantee endorsed hereon. Reference 
is hereby made to the Authorization Agreement for a description of the rights, limitations of 
rights, obligations, duties and immunities thereunder of the Secretary and the Indenture 
Trustee and the rights and limitations of rights of the Holder of this Note.  

        Section 1103(d) of Title XI of the Act provides that:  

        “The full faith and credit of the United States is pledged to the payment of all 
guarantees made under this title with respect to both principal and interest, including 
interest, as may be provided for in the guarantee, accruing between the date of default under 
a guaranteed obligation and the payment in full of the guarantee.”  

        If an Indenture Default (defined in Section 6.01 of Exhibit 1 to the Indenture as a 
Payment Default or the giving of a Secretary’s Notice) shall have occurred and be 
continuing, the Indenture Trustee, as provided in the Indenture, shall promptly, but not later 
than sixty (60) days from the date of such Indenture Default, demand payment by the 
Secretary of the Guarantee, whereupon the entire unpaid principal amount of this Note then 
Outstanding and all unpaid interest thereon shall become due and payable in United States 
currency on the first to occur of the date which is thirty (30) days from the date of such 
demand or the date on which the Secretary pays the Guarantee. If no demand for payment of 
the Guarantee shall have been made by the Indenture Trustee on or before the thirtieth 
(30th) day following an Indenture Default, the Holder of this Note may, in the manner 
provided in the Indenture, make such demand in place of the Indenture Trustee. In the event 
of an Indenture Default of which the Secretary has actual knowledge, the Secretary, as 
provided in the Authorization Agreement, will publish notice in the Authorized 
Newspapers, which shall include “The Wall Street Journal” (all editions) and “The Journal 
of Commerce”, of the occurrence of such Indenture Default within thirty (30) days from the 
date of such Indenture Default unless demand for payment under the Guarantee shall 
previously have been made by the Indenture Trustee, but any failure to publish such notice 
or any defect therein shall not affect in any way any rights of the Indenture Trustee or any 
Holder of this Note in respect of such Indenture Default.  

        Within thirty (30) days from the date of any demand for payment of the Guarantee, the 
Secretary shall pay to the Indenture Trustee, as agent and attorney-in-fact for the Holder of 
this Note, all of the unpaid interest to the date of such payment on, and the unpaid balance 
of the principal of, this Note in full, in United States currency in cash; provided that, in the 
case of a demand made as a result of a Payment Default, the Secretary shall not be required 
to make any such payment if within such thirty (30) day period (and prior to any payment of 



the Guarantee by the Secretary) the Secretary finds either that there was no Payment Default 
or that such Payment Default was remedied prior to the demand for payment of the 
Guarantee, in which event the Guarantee shall continue in full force and effect.  

        The Holder of this Note by the purchase and acceptance hereof, hereby irrevocably 
appoints the Indenture Trustee as agent and attorney-in-fact for the purpose of making any 
demand for payment of the Guarantee and (in the case of the Indenture Trustee) of receiving 
and distributing such payment; provided that no action or failure to act by the Indenture 
Trustee shall affect the right of the Holder of this Note to take any action whatsoever 
permitted by law and not in violation of the terms of this Note or of the Indenture.  

        In the event of (a) a default, continuing for twenty-five (25) days, in the payment of the 
principal of or interest on this Note when due or (b) any default under the Security 
Agreements, the Mortgages or any related agreement between the Secretary and the 
Shipowner or between the Secretary and any Shipowner, the Secretary shall have the right 
to and may, in its discretion by written notice given to the Indenture Trustee on or after said 
twenty-five (25) day period or after such default but prior to receipt by the Secretary of a 
demand in accordance with the Indenture for payment under the Guarantee, assume all of 
the rights and obligations of the Shipowner under the Indenture and the Note and, if such 
default relates to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Note, make all payments 
then in default under the Note.  

        Any amount payable by the Secretary under the Guarantee shall not be subject to any 
claim or defense of the United States of America, the Secretary, or others, whether by way 
of counter-claim, set-off, reduction or otherwise. Further, the Holder of this Note shall have 
no right, title or interest in any collateral or security given by the Shipowner or any other 
person to the Secretary.  

        After payment of the Guarantee by the Secretary to the Indenture Trustee, this Note (1) 
if it has not then been surrendered for cancellation or cancelled, shall represent only the 
right to receive payment in cash of an amount (less the amount, if any, required to be 
withheld in respect of transfer or other taxes on payments to the Holder of this Note) equal 
to the unpaid principal amount hereof and the unpaid interest accrued hereon to the date on 
which the Secretary shall have paid the Guarantee in full in cash to the Indenture Trustee, 
(2) shall otherwise no longer constitute or represent an obligation of the Shipowner, and (3) 
shall not be entitled to any other rights or benefits provided in the Indenture, subject to 
Section 6.08 of the Indenture.  

        This Note may be prepaid or redeemed upon the terms and conditions provided in the 
Indenture, in whole or in part, at the option of the Shipowner, at any time or from time to 
time upon at least five (5) Business Days’ and not more than sixty (60) days’ prior notice 
given as provided in the Indenture.  

        This Note is also subject to repayment, upon the terms and conditions provided in the 
Indenture and upon like notice, through the operation of a mandatory repayment schedule 
providing for the repayment on _____ and _______ of each year (each, a “Payment Date”), 
commencing on ________, 20__, and on each Payment Date thereafter to and including 
June 30, 2002, at one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof plus interest 
accrued thereon to such date, of a principal amount equal to the applicable semiannual 
installments indicated below and, on the earlier of (i) June 30, 2002 and (ii) the first 
Payment Date which occurs eighteen months or more after the Delivery Date, the entire 
unpaid principal amount of this Note shall be paid in full, together with all interest accrued 
thereon to such date, provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of 
this paragraph, that in case the principal amount of this Note shall be reduced by reason of 
any prepayment or redemption described in the second next succeeding paragraph, the 
principal amount of this Note to be repaid through the operation of the mandatory 



repayment schedule on each subsequent redemption date shall be subject to reduction as 
provided in the Indenture.  

        As used in the foregoing paragraph, the applicable semi-annual principal installment 
due on any Payment Date listed below shall be the installment set forth opposite such 
Payment Date.  

Payment Date 
Installment Amount 

Due 
,2000   $6,495,167   
,2000   $6,495,167   
,2001   $                   
, 2001   $                   

        This Note is also subject to redemption, upon the terms and conditions provided in the 
Indenture, in whole or in part, at one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount 
thereof plus interest accrued thereon to the date of redemption, upon at least thirty (30) and 
not more than sixty (60) days’ prior notice: (a) in the event that Note must be redeemed so 
that the principal amount of all Obligations Outstanding after such redemption will not 
exceed eighty-seven and one-half percent (87.5%) of the depreciated actual cost or actual 
cost, as the case may be, of the Vessel financed by this Note, as determined by the 
Secretary, (b) in the event of an actual, constructive, agreed or compromised total loss of, or 
requisition of title to, or seizure or forfeiture of, such Vessel, (c) in the event that, after an 
assumption by the Secretary of this Note, a purchaser of such Vessel from the Secretary 
does not assume all the rights and obligations of the Shipowner under the Indenture relating 
to such Vessel or (d) in the event of a termination of a contract relating to the construction 
of the Vessel.  

        This Note is also subject to redemption in full, upon the terms and conditions provided 
in the Indenture, at one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof plus interest 
accrued thereon to the date of redemption, in the event and to the extent that, as required or 
permitted under the Indenture, the Mandatory Note Redemption Date has occurred or the 
Note is paid and satisfied with the proceeds from the issuance of Bonds.  

        This Note may also be redeemed upon the terms and conditions provided in the 
Indenture, in whole or in part, at the option of the Secretary, on any Interest Payment Date 
following an assumption of this Note and the Indenture by the Secretary and prior to any 
sale of the Vessel financed by this Note to a purchaser which assumes the Shipowner’s 
rights and obligations under this Note and the Indenture, upon at least thirty (30) and not 
more than sixty (60) days’ prior notice given as provided in the Indenture, at a Redemption 
Price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus 
interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.  

        Any optional prepayment or redemption shall be subject to the receipt of the 
prepayment or redemption monies by the Indenture Trustee or any Paying Agent in 
accordance with the terms of the Indenture. Any amount of this Note called for prepayment 
or redemption shall (unless the Shipowner shall default in the payment of such amount at 
the applicable prepayment or redemption price plus accrued interest) cease to bear interest 
on and after the date fixed for prepayment or redemption.  

        As provided in the Indenture and to the extent permitted thereby, compliance by the 
Shipowner with any of the terms of the Indenture may be waived, and the Indenture and the 
rights and obligations of the Shipowner and the rights of the Holder of this Note thereunder 
may be modified, at any time with the prior consent of the Secretary and, except as 
otherwise expressly provided in the Indenture, the consent of the Holder of at least sixty 
percent (60%) in principal amount of this Note in the manner and subject to the limitations 
set forth in the Indenture; provided that no such waiver or modification shall, without the 
consent of the Holder of this Note: (a) change the Stated Maturity or reduce the principal 



amount of this Note, (b) extend the time of payment of, or reduce the rate of, interest 
thereon, (c) change the due date of or reduce the amount of any scheduled payment, (d) 
reduce any premium payable upon the redemption thereof, (e) change the coin or currency 
in which any Obligation or the interest thereon is payable, (f) terminate or modify any of the 
Guarantee or the obligations of the United States of America thereunder, (g) reduce the 
amount of any of the Guarantee, (h) eliminate, modify or condition the duties of the 
Indenture Trustee to demand payment of the Guarantee, (i) eliminate or reduce the 
eligibility requirements of the Indenture Trustee, or (j) reduce the percentage of principal 
amount of Obligations the consent of whose Holder is required for any such modification or 
waiver.  

        The Indenture provides that this Note shall no longer be entitled to any benefit 
provided therein if the Note shall have become due and payable at Maturity (whether by 
repayment, prepayment, redemption or otherwise) and funds sufficient for the payment 
thereof (including interest to the date fixed for such payment, together with any premium 
thereon) and available for such payment (1) shall be held by the Indenture Trustee or any 
Paying Agent, or (2) shall have been so held and shall thereafter have been paid to the 
Shipowner after having been unclaimed for six (6) years after the date of maturity thereof 
(whether by redemption or otherwise) or the date of payment of the Guarantee, except for 
the right, if any, of the Holder to receive payment from the Shipowner of any amounts paid 
to the Shipowner as provided in (2) above with respect to this Note, all subject, however, to 
the provisions of Section 6.08 of Exhibit 1 to the Indenture.  

        This Note is transferable (to the extent permitted under Section 11.03 o f the Credit 
Agreement) by the registered Holder or by his duly authorized attorney, at the Corporate 
Trust Office of the Indenture Trustee, upon surrender or cancellation of this Note, 
accompanied by an instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Shipowner and the 
Indenture Trustee, duly executed by the registered Holder hereof or his attorney duly 
authorized in writing, and thereupon a new, fully registered Note or Notes of like series and 
maturity for the same aggregate principal amount will be issued to the transferee in 
exchange therefor, each in the principal amount of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) or any 
integral multiple thereof subject to the provisions of the Indenture. The Indenture provides 
that the Shipowner shall not be required to make transfers or exchanges of this Note (1) for 
a period of fifteen (15) days immediately prior to an interest payment date or (2) after 
demand for payment of the Guarantee and prior to payment thereof or rescission of such 
demand as provided in Section 6.02(a) of Exhibit 1 to the Indenture or (3) if all or any 
portion thereof has been selected for repayment, prepayment or redemption in whole or in 
part, except, in the case of a partial repayment, prepayment or redemption, as to the 
unredeemed portion being repaid, prepaid or redeemed in part.  

        The Shipowner, the Secretary, the Indenture Trustee and any office or agency for the 
payment of Notes may deem and treat the person in whose name this Note is registered as 
the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and neither the Shipowner, the Secretary, the 
Indenture Trustee, nor any such office or agency shall be affected by any notice to the 
contrary, whether this Note shall be past due or not.  

        No recourse shall be had for the payment of principal of, or the interest or premium (if 
any) on, this Note, or for any claim based hereon or on the Indenture, against any 
incorporator or any past, present or future subscriber to the capital stock, stock-holder, 
officer or director of the Shipowner or of any successor corporation, as such, either directly 
or through the Shipowner or any such successor corporation, under any constitution, statute 
or rule of law or by the enforcement of any assessment, or otherwise, all such liability being 
expressly waived and released by the acceptance of this Note and by the terms of the 
Indenture; provided that nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed a waiver of any claim 
against any such incorporator, subscriber, stockholder, officer or director for fraud, 
misrepresentation, misappropriation of funds or willful misconduct on the part of such 



person.  

        The Guarantee of the United States extends only to the principal and interest owed 
under this Note and only to the extent specified herein. The United States does not guarantee 
the payment of any other indebtedness of the Shipowner to the Holder or any other Person, 
no matter how the indebtedness arises or whether it is in any way related to the borrowings 
of the principal amount which is the subject of this Note, including, but not limited to, 
premium, the fees and expenses arising under that certain Credit Agreement dated as of this 
date by and among the Shipowner, Govco Incorporated as Primary Lender, Citibank, N.A., 
as Alternate Lender, Citicorp International plc, as Facility Agent and Citicorp North 
America, Inc., as Primary Lender Agent, the “Indemnified Amounts” as defined therein, 
commissions, Liquidation Fees, Breakage Fees, compensation under Section 4.04 of the 
Credit Agreement, “Taxes” or “Other Taxes” as defined in the Credit Agreement, default 
interest under Section 4.02(b) of the Credit Agreement and in the Indenture, interest for any 
“Post-Maturity Period” in excess of the “Guaranteed Interest” (as such terms are defined in 
the Credit Agreement), or any other charges, costs or expenses owed to any Person by the 
Shipowner under the Credit Agreement and not constituting principal or interest owed under 
this Note.  

        This Note may not be amended or modified in any respect without the prior written 
consent of the Secretary.  

        Neither this Note nor the Guarantee endorsed hereon shall be valid or become 
obligatory for any purpose until the Indenture Trustee shall have fully signed the 
authentication certificate endorsed hereon.  

        IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Shipowner has caused this Note to be duly executed by 
the manual or facsimile signatures of its duly authorized officers under its corporate seal or 
facsimile thereof.  

Dated as of December 15, 1999. 
  

  

ENSCO OFFSHORE COMPANY  
   
  

                                     
  BY:                                    
  Title                                    
(SEAL)                                    
Attest:                                      
  

GUARANTEE OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
The United States of America, represented by the Secretary of Transportation, acting by and 
through the Maritime Administrator, pursuant to Title XI of the Merchant Marine Act, 1936, 
as amended, hereby guarantees to the Obligee of the Obligation annexed hereto, upon 
demand of the Obligee or his agent, payment of the unpaid interest on, and the unpaid 
balance of the principal of, such Obligation, including interest accruing between the date of 
default under such Obligation, and the payment in full of this Guarantee. The full faith and 
credit of the United States of America is pledged to the payment of this Guarantee. The 
validity of this Guarantee is incontestable in the hands of any Obligee of such Obligation. 
Payment of this Guarantee will be made in accordance with the provisions of such 
Obligation. 
  
                                UNITED STATES OF AMERICA  
                                SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTATION 



PAYMENTS ON ACCOUNT OF PRINCIPAL  

  
(SEAL OF THE DEPARTMENT  
OF TRANSPORTATION) 
  
                     BY:                              
                        Maritime Administrator 
  
  

TRUSTEE'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

        This is one of the Obligations described in the Indenture and the foregoing Guarantee is 
one of the Guarantees described in the Authorization Agreement.  
                                              
Indenture Trustee 
  
  
        BY:                                  
        Authorized Officer 
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Appendix III to Guarantee Commitment  
Document 7.01  

Contract No. MA-13552  

SECURITY AGREEMENT  

SPECIAL PROVISIONS  

     THIS SECURITY AGREEMENT, dated December __, 1999 (the "Security 
Agreement"), between ENSCO OFFSHORE COMPANY, a Delaware corporation (the 
"Shipowner") and THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA (the "United States"), 
represented by the Secretary of Transportation, acting by and through the Maritime 
Administrator (the "Secretary"), pursuant to Title XI of the Act.  

RECITALS  

     A. The Shipowner has entered into the Construction Contract with Friede Goldman 
Offshore Texas, Limited Partnership (formerly known as TDI Halter, L.P.) (the "Shipyard") 
for the Construction of the Vessel.  

     B. On the date hereof, the Secretary entered into, and the Shipowner accepted a 
Commitment to Guarantee Obligations, Contract No. MA-13550, whereby the United States 
has committed itself to guarantee the payment in full of all the unpaid interest on, and the 
unpaid principal balance of, Obligations (as defined herein) in the aggregate principal 
amount equal to 87.5% of the Depreciated Actual Cost or the Actual Cost of the Vessel, as 
the case may be, on the Closing Date, which amounts are set out in Table A.  



     C. To aid in financing the purchase of the Vessel, the Shipowner has duly executed the 
Indenture, has duly authorized the issuance thereunder of the Obligations and has entered, or 
will enter, into (i) on the date hereof, a floating interest rate term loan facility agreement (the 
"Credit Agreement") providing for a loan of up to the aggregate principal amount of One 
Hundred Ninety Four Million Seven Hundred Thirty Six Thousand United States Dollars 
(US$194,855,000) with Govco Incorporated (the "Primary Lender") and Citibank, N.A. (the 
"Alternate Lender") (the Primary Lender and the Alternate Lender, collectively the 
"Lenders") to be evidenced by one or more promissory notes (the "Note") duly issued by the 
Shipowner pursuant to Section 2.01 of Exhibit 1 of the Indenture, designated "United States 
Government Ship Financing Note, 1999 Series," having the maturity date and interest rate 
set forth therein, and, (ii) on or before the Bond Closing Date, the bond purchase agreement 
(the "Bond Purchase Agreement") with the purchasers named therein, providing for the sale 
and delivery of up to the aggregate principal amount of One Hundred Ninety Four Million 
Eight Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand United States Dollars (US$194,855,000) bonds (the 
"Bonds") duly issued by the Shipowner pursuant to Section 2.01 of Exhibit 1 of the 
Indenture, designated "United States Government Guaranteed Ship Financing Bonds, 7500 
Series" having the maturity date and interest rate set forth therein. The Note and the Bonds 
issued (as the case may be) shall be known as the "Obligations".  

     D. On the date hereof, the Secretary and the Indenture Trustee executed the 
Authorization Agreement, Contract No. MA-13551, which authorizes the Indenture Trustee 
to endorse, execute, and authenticate the Secretary's Guarantee on each of the Obligations.  

     E. As security for the due and timely payment of the Secretary's Note, issued this day by 
the Shipowner, and for the Secretary's issuance of the Guarantees, the Shipowner has 
executed and delivered the Security Agreement, Contract No. MA-13552, and the Financial 
Agreement, Contract No. MA-13553, granting the Secretary a security interest in, among 
other things, the Construction Contract and certain other property, tangible and intangible, 
which the Shipowner now has or hereafter will acquire, and all of the proceeds thereof and 
on the Delivery Date the Shipowner will execute and deliver the Mortgage, Contract 
No.13554 creating a preferred ship mortgage on the Vessel.  

     F. As further security to the Secretary and in consideration of the Secretary's agreeing to 
issue the Guarantees, the Shipowner has granted the Secretary a security interest in the 
Construction Contract and will assign to the Secretary all of the Shipowner's security 
interests in the Vessel, its hull, component parts, machinery, and equipment during the 
construction period and has caused the Shipyard to have executed on this date the Consent 
of Shipyard to the assignment of the Construction Contract to the Secretary.  

     G. In order to implement certain aspects of the transactions contemplated by the Security 
Agreement and the Financial Agreement, the Secretary, the Shipowner and Chase Bank of 
Texas, National Association, a national banking association (the "Depository") have entered 
into the Depository Agreement, Contract No. MA-13555, on the date hereof.  

     NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants herein 
contained, and of other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which 
are hereby acknowledged, and in order to provide security to the Secretary for the 
Secretary's Note provided for herein, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:  

     1. Concerning these Special and General Provisions. This Security Agreement shall 
consist of two parts: the Special Provisions and the General Provisions attached hereto as 
Exhibit 1 of the Security Agreement and incorporated herein by reference. In the event of 
any conflict, or inconsistency between the Special Provisions of this Security Agreement 
and Exhibit 1, the Special Provisions shall control.  

     2. The following additions, deletions and amendments are hereby made to the Security 



Agreement:  

     (a) Each reference in Exhibit 1 to the Security Agreement to the terms "Vessels", "each 
Vessel", "any Vessel" or "such Vessel" shall be amended to read "the Vessel".  

     (b) Each reference in Exhibit 1 to the Security Agreement to the term "Proportionate 
Part" is hereby deleted.  

     (c) Concerning Section 1.03(a). Section 1.03(a) is hereby amended and restated as 
follows:  

     SECTION 1.03. Granting Clause. (a) In order to create a present security interest in the 
Secretary, the Shipowner does hereby grant, sell, convey, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, 
set over and confirm unto the Secretary continuing security interests in all of the right, title 
and interest of the Shipowner in and to all of the following, whether now owned or existing 
or hereafter arising or acquired:  

     (1) The Construction Contract (insofar as it relates to the Construction of the Vessel), 
together with all other contracts, whether now in existence or hereafter entered into, relating 
to the Construction of the Vessel. Said right, title and interest in and to the Construction 
Contract, and the other contracts conveyed to the Secretary by this subsection are hereinafter 
referred to collectively as the "Rights Under the Construction and Related Contracts."  

     (2) The Shipowner's rights to receive all moneys which from time to time may become 
due to the Shipowner with respect to the Construction of the Vessel regardless of the legal 
theory by which moneys are recovered. Said right, title and interest in and to the moneys, 
cash, bonds, claims, and securities conveyed by this subsection are herein referred to 
collectively as the "Moneys Due with Respect to the Construction of the Vessel." Subject to 
the provisions of this Security Agreement, the Secretary acknowledges and agrees that the 
Moneys Due with Respect to the Construction of the Vessel will be paid directly to the 
Depository for application in accordance with this Security Agreement and the Indenture.  

     (3) All goods, whether equipment or inventory appertaining to or relating to the Vessel, 
whether or not on board or ashore and not covered by the Mortgage, and any charter hire 
relating to the Vessel.  

     (4) The Drilling Contract, and all of the Shipowner's rights to receive moneys which may 
from time to time become due to the Shipowner thereunder.  

     (5) The Halter Guaranty, and all of the Shipowner's rights to receive moneys which may 
from time to time become due to the Shipowner thereunder.  

     (6) The Title XI Reserve Fund (if applicable) and all moneys, instruments, negotiable 
documents, chattel paper, and proceeds thereof currently on deposit or hereafter deposited in 
the Title XI Reserve Fund.  

     (7) The Construction Fund and all moneys, instruments, negotiable documents, chattel 
paper and proceeds thereof currently on deposit or hereafter deposited in the Construction 
Fund.  

     (8) All moneys, instruments, negotiable documents, chattel paper and proceeds thereof 
held by the Depository under the Depository Agreement.  

     (9) Proceeds of Policies of Insurance relating to the Vessel and, whether or not insured, 
any general average claims or loss of hire claims Shipowner may have with respect to the 



Vessel.  

     (10) The Shipyard Security Agreement, and all right, title and interest of the Shipowner 
therein.  

     (11) All proceeds of the collateral described in paragraphs (1) through (10) of this 
Section.  

     The Secretary shall have, upon execution and delivery thereof, as further security, certain 
right, title and interest in and to the following:  

     (12) The Mortgage, to be executed and delivered by the Shipowner to the Secretary, as 
mortgagee, on the Delivery Date, covering the Vessel.  

     (d) Concerning Section 2.01(a). Section 2.01(a) is hereby amended and restated as 
follows:  

     (1) The Shipowner is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the 
laws of the jurisdiction designated in the initial paragraph of the Special Provisions hereof 
and shall maintain such existence. The Shipowner has not failed to qualify to do business in 
any jurisdiction in the United States in which its business or properties require such 
qualification, except where such failure to qualify would not have a material adverse effect 
on the business or financial condition of the Shipowner or its ability to perform its 
obligations hereunder, and had and has full legal right, power and authority to own its own 
properties and assets and conduct its business as it is presently conducted;  

     (e) Concerning Section 2.01(a)(4). Section 2.01(a)(4) is hereby amended and restated as 
follows:  

     (4) the consummation of the transactions contemplated by and compliance by the 
Shipowner of all the terms and provisions of the Documents will not violate any provisions 
of the formation documents of the Shipowner and will not result in a breach of the terms and 
provisions of, or constitute a default under any other agreement or undertaking by the 
Shipowner or by which the Shipowner is bound, except where such breach would not have a 
material adverse effect on the business or financial condition of the Shipowner or its ability 
to perform its obligations hereunder, or any order of any court or administrative agency 
entered into in any proceedings to which the Shipowner is or has been a party; and  

     (f) Concerning Section 2.02(b)(1). Section 2.02(b)(1) is deleted and the following 
substituted in lieu thereof:  

(b) Sale, Mortgage, Transfer or Charter of the Vessel.  

     (1) The Shipowner shall not, without the prior written consent of the Secretary, sell, 
mortgage, demise charter or transfer the Vessel, except the foregoing shall not apply to (i) 
Government Uses, (ii) mergers or consolidations permitted by Article VIII or the Financial 
Agreement, (iii) the Drilling Contract, or (iv) any subsequent drilling contract or contracts, 
or charters that are not demise or bareboat charters.  

     (g) Concerning Section 2.02(b)(2). Section 2.02(b)(2) is hereby deleted.  

     (h) Concerning Section 2.02(d)(1). Section 2.02(d)(1) is hereby amended and restated as 
follows:  

     (1) As a condition precedent to each payment by the Shipowner under the Construction 



Contract, the Shipowner shall require an Officer's Certificate from the Shipyard stating that 
once the Shipyard receives said payment, there will be no liens or rights in rem against the 
respective Vessel in respect of the work, services or materials represented by such payment. 
At the Delivery Date of the Vessel, the Shipowner and the Shipyard shall provide an 
Officer's Certificate stating that there are no liens or rights in rem against the Vessel except 
for the Mortgage.  

     (i) Concerning Section 2.02(d)(3). Section 2.02(d)(3) is hereby deleted and the following 
substituted in lieu thereof:  

     (3) Except for Permitted Liens neither the Shipowner, any charterer, the master of any 
Vessel, nor any other Person has or shall have any right, power or authority, without the 
Secretary's prior written consent, to create, incur or permit to be placed or imposed on the 
Vessel any lien, encumbrance, security interest, charge, or rights in rem, and statutory liens 
incident to current operations unless such statutory liens are subordinate to the Mortgage.  

     (j) Concerning Section 2.02(e). Section 2.02(e) is hereby amended and restated as 
follows:  

     (e) Compliance with Applicable Laws. The Shipowner shall at all times be in compliance 
with all applicable U.S. laws, except where the non-compliance therewith would not 
materially and adversely affect the Secretary's security interests hereunder. In addition, the 
Vessel (1) shall be designed to meet, and on the Delivery Date thereof and at all times 
thereafter shall meet all requirements of applicable laws, treaties and conventions, and of 
applicable rules and regulations thereunder, and (2) shall have on board valid certificates 
showing compliance therewith; provided that the foregoing shall not apply if (A) the Vessel 
is in Government Use; (B) there has been an actual or constructive total loss or an agreed or 
compromised total loss of such Vessel; or (C) there has been any other loss with respect to 
such Vessel and the Shipowner shall not have had a reasonable time to repair the same.  

     (k) Concerning Section 2.02(f). Section 2.02(f) is deleted and the following substituted in 
lieu thereof:  

     (f) Operation of the Vessel. The Shipowner shall not (unless otherwise required by any 
military authority of the United States and except during a Government Use (1) cause or 
permit the Vessel to be operated in any manner contrary to law or to any lawful rules or 
regulations of the Maritime Administration, or (2) unless there has been an actual or 
constructive total loss or an agreed or compromised total loss of the Vessel, abandon the 
Vessel in any foreign port.  

     (l) Concerning Section 2.02(h). Section 2.02(h) is deleted and the following substituted 
in lieu thereof:  

     (i) Material Changes in the Vessel. After the Delivery Date of the Vessel, the Shipowner 
shall not make, or permit to be made, any material change in the general dimensions or 
characteristics of the Vessel which changes the capacity of the Vessel to perform as 
originally intended by the Construction Contract, unless the Shipowner shall have received 
the Secretary's prior written consent thereto.  

     (m) Concerning Section 2.03(a). Section 2.03(a) is hereby amended as follows:  

     (a) The Construction Contract shall be maintained in full force and effect insofar as it 
relates to the due performance by the Shipowner and the Shipyard of all their respective 
obligations thereunder and the Shipowner shall not, without the Secretary's prior written 
consent, amend, modify, assign or terminate the Construction Contract or consent to any 



change in the Construction Contract which releases the Shipyard from its obligations to 
comply with the provisions of the Construction Contract or any applicable laws, treaties, 
conventions, rules and regulations; provided that, the Secretary's prior written consent shall 
not be necessary, but prompt written notice to the Secretary shall be given for (1) any 
mandatory or regulatory change to the Construction Contract as a result of any requirements 
of any governmental agency, or (2) any non-mandatory changes that Shipyard and 
Shipowner desire to make which do not exceed, with respect to any item of the Vessel's 
construction, two (2%) percent of the Actual Cost and which do not, in the aggregate, cause 
the Actual Cost to be increased more than five (5%) percent or the delivery and completion 
date of the Vessel to be extended more than fifteen (15) days. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, no change shall be made in the general dimensions and/or characteristics of the 
Vessel which changes the capacity of the Vessel to perform as originally intended by the 
Construction Contract without the Secretary's prior written consent. The Secretary will 
nonetheless retain its authority to review work done under a change order to ascertain 
whether the work should be included in Actual Cost and whether the price charged is fair 
and reasonable. No Advances may be made for work that is not determined to be includable 
in Actual Cost.  

     (n) Concerning Section 2.03. A new subsection (c) is hereby added to Section 2.03 and 
reads as follows:  

     "(c) Notwithstanding anything herein contained to the contrary, the Shipowner shall have 
the exclusive right following and during the continuation of any default by the Shipyard 
under the Construction Contract to negotiate with the Shipyard with respect to the resolution 
of such default or to otherwise enforce whatever remedies may be available to the 
Shipowner, either at law or in equity, arising out of or in connection with such default, for a 
period of thirty (30) days and thereafter for so long as the Shipowner continues to diligently 
prosecute (or demonstrate its good faith intent to diligently prosecute) the enforcement of 
such remedies so as to reasonably protect the interests of the Shipowner and the Secretary; 
provided that the Shipowner shall give prompt written notice to the Secretary of any such 
default and of the resolution thereof; and provided further that the Shipowner may not 
amend, terminate or modify the Construction Contract except in a manner as provided in 
Section 2.03(a)."  

     (o) Concerning Section 2.05(a). Section 2.05(a) is hereby amended and restated as 
follows:  

     (a) Prior to the Delivery Date of the Vessel, the Shipowner shall, without cost to the 
Secretary or, shall insure that the Shipyard has procured insurance for the Vessel as 
provided in the Construction Contract and as contemplated by the Consent of Shipyard; 
provided that, the insurance required by this Section shall be approved by the Secretary.  

     (p) Concerning Section 2.05. (1) In connection with Section 2.05(a) and clause (ii) of the 
initial paragraph of Section 2.05(c), the Secretary shall permit payment of losses up to the 
amount of $1,000,000 to be made directly to the Shipowner under the circumstances 
specified therein; and (2) In connection with Sections 2.05(b)(3) and the last paragraph of 
Section 2.05(e) the maximum amount of self-insurance permitted to the Shipowner under 
the last paragraph thereof shall be $1,000,000 on an annual aggregate basis after application 
of the $250,000 per accident deductible.  

     (q) Concerning Section 2.05(e). In connection with Section 2.05(e), as evidence of 
insurance maintained under Section 2.05, the Shipowner may submit a cover note or 
certificate of insurance setting forth the terms of the policy.  

     (r) Concerning Section 2.11. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2.11, in the 
absence of a Default, the Shipowner shall not be required to give written notice to any 



customer hiring the Vessel of the Secretary's security interest in the proceeds or revenues 
from such drilling contract. The Secretary shall not give such notice to any customer hiring 
the Vessel unless there exists a Default. These provisions do not apply to any UCC 
statement filed in the United States.  

     (s) Concerning Section 2.14. Section 2.14 is hereby amended by adding a sentence to the 
end thereof that reads as follows:  

     "Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shipowner shall not be required to cause to be 
procured or maintained a Surety Bond for so long as the Halter Guaranty remains in full 
force and effect and the rights thereunder have been assigned by the Shipowner to the 
Secretary."  

     (t) Concerning Section 4.02(a). Section 4.02(a) is hereby amended as follows:  

     (a) In the event that (i) a payment is otherwise required under the terms of the Financial 
Agreement to be made into the Title XI Reserve Fund, and (ii) the Shipowner shall receive 
any moneys from any Person in connection with the Construction of the Vessel other than 
the proceeds of insurance that may be paid directly to the Shipowner pursuant to Section 
2.05(a) of this Security Agreement, the Shipowner shall give written notice thereof to the 
Secretary and shall promptly pay the same over to the Depository to be held in the Title XI 
Reserve Fund.  

     (u) Concerning Section 5.03(a)(1). Section 5.03(a)(1) is hereby amended as follows:  

     (1) Responsible Officer of the Shipowner shall deliver an Officer's Certificate, in form 
and substance satisfactory to the Secretary, stating that (A) there is neither a Default under 
the Construction Contract nor the Security Agreement; (B) there have been no occurrences 
which have or would adversely and materially affect the condition of the Vessel, its hull or 
any of its component parts; (C) the amount of the Request is in accordance with the 
Construction Contract including the approved disbursement schedule and each item in these 
amounts is properly included in the Secretary's approved estimate of Actual Cost; (D) with 
respect to the Request, once the Contractor is paid there will be no liens or encumbrances on 
the applicable Vessel, its hull or component parts for which the withdrawal is being 
requested except for those already approved by the Secretary; and (E) if the Vessel has 
already been delivered, it is in class without recommendations affecting class. The 
Shipowner shall also attach an Officer's Certificate of the Shipyard, in form and substance 
satisfactory to the Secretary, stating that there are no liens or encumbrances as provided in 
clause (D) of this subsection and attaching the invoices and receipts supporting each 
proposed withdrawal to the satisfaction of the Secretary.  

     (v) Concerning Section 6.01. Section 6.01 of Exhibit 1 hereto is hereby amended by 
adding the following events which shall constitute a "Security Default":  

     Failure of the Shipowner to repay the Note by issuance of the Bonds within eighteen (18) 
months of the Delivery Date, unless such period is otherwise extended by the Secretary.  

     (w) Concerning Section 6.01(b)(2). Section 6.01(b)(2) is hereby amended as follows:  

     (2) Default by the Shipowner continued after five (5) business days following written 
notice specifying such failure by certified or registered mail to the Shipowner from the 
Secretary in the due and punctual observance and performance of any provision in Sections 
2.02(a), (d), (e), (f), and (g), 2.05 (except (g) and (k) thereof), 2.07, and 2.13.  

     (x) Concerning Section 6.01(b)(5). Section 6.01(b)(5) is hereby amended as follows:  



(5) Any default by the Shipowner in the due and punctual observance and  
performance of any provision in the  

Financial Agreement or the Construction Contract;  

     (y) Concerning Section 9.01. Subject to Section 9.01 of the Security Agreement, any 
notice, request, demand, direction, consent, waiver, approval or other communication, when 
given to a party hereto, shall be addressed to:  

Secretary as:  
SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTATION  
c/o Maritime Administrator  
U.S. Department of Transportation  
400 Seventh Street, S.W.  
Washington, D.C. 20590  

Shipowner as:  

ENSCO OFFSHORE COMPANY  

2700 Fountain Place  
1445 Ross Avenue  
Dallas, Texas, 75202  

Attention: Chief Financial Officer  

Indenture Trustee as:  

BANKERS TRUST COMPANY  

Corporate Trust and Agency Services  
Four Albany Street  
New York, New York 10006  
Attention: Project Finance Group  

     (z) Governing Law. This Security Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties 
hereto shall be governed by and construed in accordance with maritime laws of the United 
States and, to the extent such laws are not applicable, in accordance with the internal laws of 
the State of Texas.  

     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Security Agreement has been executed by the parties as 
of the day and year first written.  
  
Attest:  
                           

SHIPOWNER:  
ENSCO OFFSHORE COMPANY  
 
 
BY:                                                 
NAME:                                           
TITLE:                                            

      
      
      

  UNITED STATES OF AMERICA  
SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTATION  



MARITIME ADMINISTRATOR 
      
Attest:                              BY:                                         

      Secretary  
      Maritime Administration 
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TABLE A 

  

     The Actual Cost of the Vessel as of the date hereof as determined by the Secretary, 
namely, (i) the amounts paid by or for the account of the Shipowner as of the date hereof for 
the Construction of the Vessel, plus (ii) the amount which the Shipowner was on said date 
obligated under the Construction Contract or otherwise to pay from time to time thereafter 
for the Construction of the Vessel less the Depreciation of the Vessel as of the date hereof as 
determined by the Secretary is $222,556,179, both calculated and itemized for the Vessel as 
follows:  

   
Amount  

Paid 

Amount  
Obligated  
To be Paid 

   
   

Total 
  
Contract Price       $  68,700,000       
Changes and Extras       $  23,672,700       
Owner Furnished Items       $100,926,240       
Engineering and Inspection       $  12,000,000       
Interest and Commitment Fees       $  11,600,000       
Estimated Escalation               
Estimated Guarantee Fee       $    5,792,817       
Total Actual Cost       $222,691,757       

Schedule X to the Security Agreement  
Document 7.03  

Schedule of Definitions  

"Act" means the Merchant Marine Act, 1936, as amended and in effect on the Closing Date.  

"Actual Cost" means the actual cost of the Vessel, as set forth in Table A of the Security 
Agreement or as subsequently redetermined by the Secretary pursuant to the Security 
Agreement and the Act.  

"Audited Financial Statements" mean the annual audit of the Guarantor's accounts in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by independent certified public 
accountants or independent licensed public accountants, certified or licensed by a regulatory 
authority of a state or other political subdivision of the United States, who may be the 
Guarantor's regular auditors.  

"Authorization Agreement" means the Authorization Agreement, Contract No. MA-13551 
between the Secretary and the Indenture Trustee, whereby the Secretary authorizes the 
Guarantee of the United States to be endorsed on the Obligations, as the same is originally 



executed, or as modified, amended or supplemented therein.  

"Authorized Newspapers" means The Wall Street Journal and The Journal of Commerce or 
if either ceases to exist, then in such other newspapers as the Secretary may designate.  

"Bond Purchase Agreement" means the agreement for the purchase of the Obligations, 
executed by the Shipowner and the purchaser named therein, as originally executed, 
modified or supplemented.  

"Business Day" means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a bank holiday under the 
laws of the United States or the State of New York. 

"Chapter 313" means the provisions of 46 United States Code Chapter 313, as amended.  

"Classification Society" means the American Bureau of Shipping or as specified in the 
Special Provisions of the Security Agreement, either a member of the International 
Association of Classification Societies ("AIACS") that has been ISO 9000 series registered 
or an IACS member that meets the requirements of the International Maritime Organization, 
is qualified under a Quality Systems Certificate Scheme and recognized by the United States 
Coast Guard and the Secretary as meeting acceptable standards.  

"Closing Date" or "Closing" means the date when the Security Agreement is executed and 
delivered by the Shipowner.  

"Commitment to Guarantee Obligations" has the same meaning as the term Guarantee 
Commitment.  

"Consent of Shipyard" means each, and "Consents of Shipyards" means every, document 
evidencing such Shipyard's consent to the assignment of a Construction Contract to the 
Secretary under the Security Agreement as originally executed, modified, amended or 
supplemented.  

"Construction" means construction of the Vessel, including designing, inspecting, outfitting 
and equipping thereof.  

"Construction Contract" means each, and "Construction Contracts" means every, contract 
relating to the Construction of the Vessel between the Shipowner and the Shipyard, as 
originally executed or as modified or supplemented pursuant to the applicable provisions 
thereof.  

"Construction Fund" has the meaning specified in Article IV of the Security Agreement.  

"Default" when used in the Security Agreement has the meaning attributed to it in Article VI 
thereof.  

"Delivery Date" means the date on which the Vessel is delivered to and accepted by the 
Shipowner.  

"Depository" shall mean the institution designated in the Depository Agreement or any 
successor.  

"Depository Agreement" shall mean the Depository Agreement, Contract No. MA-13555 
among the Shipowner, the Secretary and the Depository, as originally executed or as 
modified or supplemented in accordance with the applicable provisions thereof.  



"Depreciated Actual Cost" means the depreciated actual cost of the Vessel, as set forth in 
Table A of the Security Agreement or as subsequently redetermined by the Secretary 
pursuant to the Security Agreement and the Act.  

"Drilling Contract" means the Drilling Contract dated June 24, 1998 between the Shipowner 
and Burlington Resources Oil and Gas Company, as amended and supplemented from time 
to time.  

"Eligible Investment" has the meaning given by Section 5 of the Financial Agreement.  

""Escrow Fund" means the account held by the Secretary, established under Section 1108 of 
the Act and administered pursuant to Article V of the Security Agreement.  

"Financial Agreement" means the Title XI Reserve Fund and Financial Agreement, Contract 
No. MA-13553, executed by the Shipowner and  
the Secretary, as originally executed or as modified, amended or supplemented.  

"Financial Asset" has the meaning given by Article 8-102(a)(9) of the UCC.  

"Government Use" means the use of the Vessel or requisition of its title required by a 
government or governmental body of the United States of America.  

"Guarantee" means each, and the "Guarantees" means every, guarantee of an Obligation by 
the United States pursuant to Title XI of the Act, as provided in the Authorization 
Agreement.  

"Guarantee Commitment" means the Commitment to Guarantee Obligations, Contract No. 
MA-13550, dated as of December __, 1999, executed by the Secretary and accepted by the 
Shipowner relating to the Guarantees, as originally executed or as modified, amended or 
supplemented.  

"Halter Guaranty" means the Guaranty of Friede Goldman Halter, Inc. (formerly known as 
Halter Marine Group, Inc.) in favor of the  
Shipowner in respect of performance by the Shipyard under the Construction Contract.  

"Increased Security" means the Secretary's Note, the Security Agreement, the Vessel, the 
Security, the Escrow Fund, the Title XI Reserve Fund, the Construction Fund, and any other 
security agreement between the Secretary and the Shipowner relating to any vessels 
financed under the Act, and the Policies of Insurance, and the proceeds of the foregoing.  

"Indenture" means the Trust Indenture dated as of the Closing Date between the Shipowner 
and the Indenture Trustee, as originally executed, or as modified, amended or supplemented. 

"Indenture Default" has the meaning specified in Article VI of the Indenture.  

"Indenture Trustee" means Bankers Trust Company, a New York corporation, and any 
successor trustee under the Indenture.  

"Interest Payment Date" means with respect to any Obligation, the date when any 
installment of interest on such Obligation is due and payable.  

"Long Term Debt" means, as of any date, the total notes, bonds, debentures, equipment 
obligations and other evidence of indebtedness that would be included in long term debt in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. There shall also be included any 
guarantee or other liability for the debt of any other Person, not otherwise included on the 



balance sheet.  

"Maturity" when used with respect to any Obligation, means the date on which the principal 
of such Obligation becomes due and payable as therein provided, whether at the Stated 
Maturity or by redemption, declaration of acceleration or otherwise.  

"Moneys Due with Respect to Construction of the Vessel" has the meaning specified in 
Section 1.03 of the Security Agreement.  

"Mortgage" means the first preferred ship mortgage on the Vessel, Contract No. MA-13554, 
by the Shipowner to the Secretary, as originally executed, modified, amended or 
supplemented.  

"Mortgagee" means the Secretary, as mortgagee under the Mortgage.  

"Mortgagor" means the Shipowner, as mortgagor under the Mortgage.  

"Net Worth" means, as of any date, the total of paid-in capital stock, paid-in surplus, earned 
surplus and appropriated surplus, and all other amounts that would be included in net worth 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, but exclusive of (1) any 
receivables from any stockholder, director, Officer or employee of the Company or from 
any Related Party (other than current receivables arising out of the ordinary course of 
business and not outstanding for more than 60 days) and (2) any increment resulting from 
the reappraisal of assets.  

"Obligation" means each, and "Obligations" means every, obligation of the Shipowner 
bearing a Guarantee that is authenticated and delivered under the Authorization Agreement 
and Indenture.  

"Obligee" means each, and "Obligees" means every, holder of an Obligation.  

"Offering Circular" means the offering circular relating to the issuance and sale the Bonds.  

"Officer's Certificate" means a certificate conforming to Section 1.02 of the Security 
Agreement or the Indenture as the context may require.  

"Outstanding" when used with reference to the Obligations, shall mean all Obligations 
theretofore issued under the Indenture, except: (1) Obligations Retired or Paid; and (2) 
Obligations in lieu of which other Obligations have been issued under the Indenture.  

"Paying Agent" means any bank or trust company meeting the qualifications in Section 7.02
(a) of the Indenture and appointed by the Shipowner under Section 4.02 of the Indenture to 
pay the principal of (and premium, if any) or interest on the Obligations on behalf of the 
Shipowner.  

"Payment Default" has the meaning specified in Section 6.01 of the Security Agreement.  

"Permitted Liens" means  

(1) liens for Taxes not at the time delinquent or thereafter payable without penalty or being 
contested in good faith, provided provision is made to the extent required by generally 
accepted accounting principles for the eventual payment thereof in the event it is found that 
such are payable by the Shipowner,  

(2) liens of carriers, warehousemen, mechanics, materialmen and landlords incurred in the 



ordinary course of business for sums not overdue or being contested in good faith, provided 
provision is made to the extent required by generally accepted accounting principles for the 
eventual payment thereof in the event it is found that such sums are payable by the 
Shipowner;  

(3) maritime liens  

     (A) arising in the ordinary course of business by operation of law payable consistent with 
past practice, and in any event no more than thirty (30) days past due, or that are being 
contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which reserves have been made 
to the reasonable satisfaction of the Secretary or  

     (B) arising in connection with salvage and general average; or  

     (C) arising in connection with crew wages claimed but not paid;  

(4) liens incurred in the ordinary course of business in connection with workmen's 
compensation, unemployment insurance or other forms of governmental insurance or 
benefits, or to secure performance of tenders and statutory obligations entered into in the 
ordinary course of business or to secure obligations on surety or appeal bonds in the 
ordinary course of business; and  

(5) the lien of the Mortgage.  

"Person" or "Persons" means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, 
association, limited liability company, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated 
organization, government, or any agency or political subdivision thereof.  

"Policies of Insurance" and "policies" means all cover notes, binders, policies of insurance 
and certificates of entry in a protection and indemnity association, club or syndicate with 
respect to the Vessel, (including all endorsements and riders thereto), including but not 
limited to all insurance required under Section 2.05 of the Security Agreement.  

"Redemption Date" means a date fixed for the redemption of an Obligation by the Indenture. 

"Related Party" means one that can exercise control or significant influence over the 
management and/or operating policies of another Person, to the extent that one of the 
Persons may be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. Related parties 
consist of all affiliates of an enterprise, including (1) its management and their immediate 
families, (2) its principal owners and their immediate families, (3) its investments accounted 
for by the equity method, (4) beneficial employee trusts that are managed by the 
management of the enterprise, and (5) any Person that may, or does, deal with the enterprise 
and has ownership of, control over, or can significantly influence the management or 
operating policies of another Person to the extent that an arm's-length transaction may not be 
achieved.  

"Request" means a written request to a Person for the action therein specified, signed by a 
Responsible Officer of the Person making such request.  

"Responsible Officer" means (1) in the case of any business entity, the chairman of the 
board of directors, the president, any executive or senior vice president, the secretary, the 
treasurer, member or partner, (2) in the case of any commercial bank, the chairman or vice-
chairman of the executive committee of the board of directors or trustees, the president, any 
executive or senior vice president, the secretary, the treasurer, any trust officer, and (3) with 
respect to the signing or authentication of Obligations and Guarantees by the Indenture 



Trustee, any person specifically authorized by the Indenture Trustee to sign or authenticate 
Obligations.  

"Retired or Paid," as applied to Obligations and the indebtedness evidenced thereby, means 
that such Obligations shall be deemed to have been so retired or paid and shall no longer be 
entitled to any rights or benefits provided in the Indenture if: (1) such Obligations shall have 
been paid in full; (2) such Obligations shall have been canceled by the Indenture Trustee; or 
(3) such Obligations shall have become due and payable at Maturity and funds sufficient for 
the payment of such Obligations (including interest to the date of Maturity, or in the case of 
a payment after Maturity, to the date of payment, together with any premium thereon) and 
available for such payment and are held by the Indenture Trustee or any Paying Agent with 
irrevocable directions, to pay such Obligations; provided that, the foregoing definition is 
subject to Section 6.08 of the Indenture.  

"Rights Under the Construction Contracts and Related Contracts" shall have the meaning 
specified in Section 1.03 of the Security Agreement.  

"Secretary" means the Secretary of Transportation or any officials duly authorized to 
perform the functions of the Secretary of Transportation under Title XI of the Act.  

"Secretary's Note" means a promissory note or promissory notes issued and delivered by the 
Shipowner to the Secretary substantially in the form of Exhibit 2 of the Security Agreement, 
including any promissory note issued in substitution for, or any endorsement or supplement 
thereof.  

"Secretary's Notice" means a notice from the Secretary to the Indenture Trustee that a 
Default, within the meaning of Section 6.01(b) of the Security Agreement has occurred.  

"Security" has the meaning specified in Section 1.03 of the Security Agreement.  

"Securities Account" has the meaning given by Article 8-501 of the UCC.  

"Securities Intermediary" has the meaning given by Article 8-102(a)(14) of the UCC and 
also means the Depository.  

"Security Agreement" means the security agreement, Contract No. MA-13552, dated as of 
the Closing Date, consisting of the special provisions, the general provisions and this 
schedule X, executed by the Shipowner as security for the Secretary, as originally executed 
or as modified, amended or supplemented.  

"Security Default" has the meaning specified in Section 6.01 of the Security Agreement.  

"Shipowner" means ENSCO Offshore Company, a Delaware corporation, and shall include 
its successors and assigns.  

"Shipyard" means Friede Goldman Offshore Texas, Limited Partnership, formerly known as 
TDI-Halter, L.P., a Louisiana limited partnership.  

"Shipyard Security Agreement" means the security agreement by the Shipyard in favor of 
the Shipowner in respect of the Vessel under construction at the Shipyard.  

"Stated Maturity" means the date determinable as set forth in any Obligation as the final 
date on which the principal of such Obligation is due and payable.  

"Successor" means a Person formed by or surviving a consolidation or merger with the 



Shipowner or to which the Vessels have been sold.  

"Title XI" means Title XI of the Act.  

"Title XI Reserve Fund" has the meaning specified in the Financial Agreement.  

"Title XI Reserve Fund and Financial Agreement" means the Financial Agreement.  

"UCC" means the Uniform Commercial Code as enacted in the State of Texas.  

"Vessel" means the semi-submersible drilling unit to be named ENSCO 7500, and financed 
with the Obligations.  

"Working Capital" shall mean the excess of current assets over current liabilities, both 
determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and adjusted as 
follows:  

     (1) In determining current assets, there shall also be deducted: (A) Any securities, 
obligations or evidence of indebtedness of a Related Party or of any stockholder, director, 
officer or employee (or any member of his family) of the Company or of such Related Party, 
except advances to agents required for the normal current operation of the Company's 
vessels and current receivables arising out of the ordinary course of business and not 
outstanding for more than 60 days; and (B) An amount equal to any excess of unterminated 
voyage revenue over unterminated voyage expenses;  

     (2) In determining current liabilities, there shall be deducted any excess of unterminated 
voyage expenses over unterminated voyage revenue; and  

     (3) In determining current liabilities, there shall be added one half of all annual charter 
hire and other lease obligations (having a term of more than six months) due and payable 
within the succeeding fiscal year, other than charter hire and such other lease obligations 
already included and reported as a current liability on the Company's balance sheet.  
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ARTICLE I  
DEFINITIONS; OFFICER’S CERTIFICATES; GRANTING CLAUS E  

         SECTION 1.01. Definitions. All capitalized terms used but, not defined herein, shall 
have the meaning ascribed in Schedule X.  

         SECTION 1.02 . Officer’s Certificates . To satisfy a covenant or condition provided 
for in this Security Agreement, the Responsible Officer of the Person making such Officer’s 
Certificate shall certify that the officer (a) has read such covenant or condition; (b) has made 
or caused to be made such examination or investigation as is necessary to enable the Officer 
to express an informed opinion with respect to such covenant or condition; and (c) believes 
to the best of the Officer’s knowledge that such condition or covenant has been met. An 
Officer’s Certificate shall set forth the pertinent supporting information and shall be subject 
to the Secretary’s review of its adequacy and accuracy.  

         SECTION 1.03. Granting Clause . (a) In order to create a present security interest in 
the Secretary, the Shipowner does hereby grant, sell, convey, assign, transfer, mortgage, 
pledge, set over and confirm unto the Secretary continuing security interests in all of the 
right, title and interest of the Shipowner in and to all of the following, whether now owned 
or existing or hereafter arising or acquired:  

        (1) Each Construction Contract (insofar as it relates to the Construction of a Vessel 
under its related Construction Contract), together with all other contracts, whether now in 
existence or hereafter entered into, relating to the Construction of each Vessel. Said right, 
title and interest in and to the Construction Contracts, and the other contracts conveyed to 
the Secretary by this subsection are hereinafter referred to collectively as the “Rights Under 
the Construction and Related Contracts.”  

        (2) The Shipowner’s rights to receive all moneys which from time to time may become 
due to the Shipowner with respect to the Construction of each Vessel regardless of the legal 
theory by which moneys are recovered. Said right, title and interest in and to the moneys, 
cash, bonds, claims, and securities conveyed by this subsection are herein referred to 
collectively as the “Moneys Due with Respect to the Construction of the Vessels.” The 
Secretary acknowledges and agrees that the Moneys Due with Respect to the Construction 
of the Vessels will be paid directly to the Depository for application in accordance with this 
Security Agreement and the Indenture.  

        (3) All goods, whether equipment or inventory appertaining to or relating to each 
Vessel, whether or not on board or ashore and not covered by the Mortgage, and any charter 



hire relating to each Vessel.  

        (4) The Title XI Reserve Fund and all moneys, instruments, negotiable documents, 
chattel paper, and proceeds thereof currently on deposit or hereafter deposited in the Title 
XI Reserve Fund.  

        (5) The Construction Fund and all moneys, instruments, negotiable documents, chattel 
paper and proceeds  

        (6) All moneys, instruments, negotiable documents, chattel paper and proceeds thereof 
held by the Depository under the Depository Agreement.  

        (7) Proceeds of Policies of Insurance relating to each Vessel and, whether or not 
insured, any general average claims or loss of hire claims Shipowner may have with respect 
to each Vessel.  

        (8) All proceeds of the collateral described in paragraphs (1) through (7) of this 
Section.  

        The Secretary shall have, upon execution and delivery thereof, as further security, 
certain right, title and interest in and to the following:  

        (9) The Mortgage, to be executed and delivered by the Shipowner to the Secretary, as 
mortgagee, on the date hereof, covering each Vessel.  

        (b) The right, title and interest of the Secretary pursuant to Section 1.03(a) is herein, 
collectively, called the “Security.” The Secretary shall hold the Security as collateral 
security for all of the obligations and liabilities of the Shipowner under the Secretary’s Note 
and as collateral security for and with respect to the Guarantees whether now made or 
hereafter entered into.  

        (c) Notwithstanding paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section, (1) the Shipowner shall 
remain liable to perform its obligations under each Construction Contract and the above-
mentioned other contracts; (2) the Secretary shall not, by virtue of this Security Agreement, 
have any obligations under any of the documents referred to in clause (1) or be required to 
make any payment owing by the Shipowner thereunder; and (3) if there is no existing 
Default, the Shipowner shall (subject to the rights of the Secretary hereunder) be entitled to 
exercise all of its rights under each of the documents referred to in this Section and shall be 
entitled to receive all of the benefits accruing to it thereunder as if paragraphs (a) and (b) of 
this Section were not applicable.  

        (d) The Shipowner hereby agrees with the Secretary that the Security is to be held by 
the Secretary subject to the further agreements and conditions set forth herein.  

ARTICLE II  
SHIPOWNER’S REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS  

        The Shipowner hereby represents and agrees, so long as this Security Agreement shall 
not have been discharged, as follows:  

         SECTION 2.01. Shipowner's Representations, Agreements, Organization and 
Existence. (a) General Representations. The Shipowner hereby represents and warrants that 
the following are true statements as of the date hereof and further warrants that they shall 
remain true thereafter:  



        (1) The Shipowner is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the 
laws of the jurisdiction designated in the initial paragraph of the Special Provisions hereof 
and shall maintain such existence. The Shipowner has not failed to qualify to do business in 
any jurisdiction in the United States in which its business or properties require such 
qualification, and had and has full legal right, power and authority to own its own properties 
and assets and conduct its business as it is presently conducted;  

        (2) the Shipowner had and has legal power and authority to enter into and carry out the 
terms of the Guarantee Commitment, the Construction Contract, Bond Purchase Agreement, 
Obligations, Indenture, Security Agreement, Secretary’s Note, Mortgage, Financial 
Agreement, and Depository Agreement (the “Documents”);  

        (3) each of the Documents has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the 
Shipowner and constitutes, in accordance with its respective terms, legal, valid and binding 
instruments enforceable against the Shipowner, except to the extent limited by applicable 
bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or similar laws of general application 
relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors rights as from time to time in effect;  

        (4) the consummation of the transactions contemplated by and compliance by the 
Shipowner of all the terms and provisions of the Documents will not violate any provisions 
of the formation documents of the Shipowner and will not result in a breach of the terms and 
provisions of, or constitute a default under any other agreement or undertaking by the 
Shipowner or by which the Shipowner is bound or any order of any court or administrative 
agency entered into in any proceedings to which the Shipowner is or has been a party; and  

        (5) there is no litigation, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the best of the 
Shipowner’s knowledge, threatened, involving the Shipowner or any of its property which 
could prevent or jeopardize the performance by the Shipowner of its obligations under the 
Documents;  

        (b) Shipowner’s United States Citizenship . The Shipowner is a citizen of the United 
States within the meaning of Section 2 of the Shipping Act, 1916, as amended, and shall 
remain such a citizen for operation in the trades in which the Shipowner proposes to operate 
the Vessels and in the event the Shipowner shall cease to be such a citizen, the Shipowner 
shall notify the Secretary immediately of such fact.  

        (c) Taxes . The Shipowner has paid or caused to be paid all taxes assessed against it, 
unless the same are being contested in good faith or an authorized extension of time has 
been granted.  

         SECTION 2.02 .Covenants Concerning the Vessels . (a) Title to and Possession of the 
Vessels . On the date of this Security Agreement, the Shipowner represents and warrants 
that it lawfully owns each Vessel free from any liens, encumbrances, security interests, 
charges, or rights in rem (subject only to (1) the equity of the Shipyard under the 
Construction Contract, if any, (2) liens on any undelivered Vessel which the Shipyard is 
obligated to discharge under the Construction Contract, (3) any security interest 
subordinated to the Secretary’s security interest permitted under the Special Provisions 
hereof, (4) the Secretary’s rights hereunder and (5) the liens permitted by paragraph (d)(3) 
of this Section). The Shipowner shall, for the Secretary’s benefit, warrant and defend the 
title to, and possession of, each Vessel and every part thereof against the claims and 
demands of all Persons whomsoever.  

        (b) Sale, Mortgage, Transfer or Charter of the Vessels . (1) The Shipowner shall not, 
without the Secretary’s prior written consent, sell, mortgage, demise charter or transfer any 
Vessel to any Person (or charter the Vessel to a Related Party under any form of charter).  



        (2) The Shipowner hereby covenants that: (A) it will not enter into any time charter of 
the Vessels in excess of six months unless the time charter contains the following provision, 
“This time charter is subject to each of the rights and remedies of the Secretary of 
Transportation and has been assigned to the Secretary under a Security Agreement and 
Mortgage, each executed by the Shipowner in favor of the Secretary with respect to the 
Vessels being chartered.” and (B) it shall, within 10 calendar days of entering into any time 
charter in excess of six months, transmit a copy of the time charter to the Secretary.  

        (c) Taxes and Governmental Charges . The Shipowner shall pay and discharge, or 
cause to be paid and discharged, on or before the same shall become delinquent, all taxes, 
assessments, government charges, fines and penalties lawfully imposed upon each Vessel, 
unless the same are being contested in good faith.  

        (d) Liens . (1) As a condition precedent to each payment by the Shipowner under the 
Construction Contract, the Shipowner shall require an Officer’s Certificate from the 
Shipyard stating that once the Shipyard receives said payment, there will be no liens or 
rights in rem against the respective Vessel. At the Delivery Date of each Vessel, the 
Shipowner and the Shipyard shall provide an Officer’s Certificate stating that there are no 
liens or rights in rem against the respective Vessel except for the Mortgage.  

        (2) After the Delivery Date of each Vessel, the Shipowner shall satisfy, or cause to be 
satisfied, within 30 days of its knowledge thereof, any lien or encumbrance or right in rem 
which shall be filed against such Vessel unless the same is being contested in good faith; 
and  

        (3) Neither the Shipowner, any charterer, the master of any Vessel, nor any other 
Person has or shall have any right, power or authority, without the Secretary’s prior written 
consent, to create, incur or permit to be placed or imposed on any Vessel any lien, 
encumbrance, security interest, charge, or rights in rem , and statutory liens incident to 
current operations unless such statutory liens are subordinate to the Mortgage.  

        (e) Compliance with Applicable Laws . The Shipowner shall at all times be in 
compliance with all applicable U.S. laws. In addition, each Vessel (1) shall be designed to 
meet, and on the Delivery Date thereof and at all times thereafter shall meet all requirements 
of applicable laws, treaties and conventions, and of applicable rules and regulations 
thereunder, and (2) shall have on board valid certificates showing compliance therewith; 
provided that the foregoing shall not apply if (A) the Vessel is in Government Use; (B) there 
has been an actual or constructive total loss or an agreed or compromised total loss of such 
Vessel; or (C) there has been any other loss with respect to such Vessel and the Shipowner 
shall not have had a reasonable time to repair the same.  

        (f) Vessels’  Operation . Except when the Vessel is in Government Use, the Shipowner 
shall not (1) cause or permit the Vessels to be operated in any manner contrary to law or to 
any lawful rules or regulations of the Maritime Administration, (2) remove or attempt to 
remove the Vessels beyond the limits of the United States without the Secretary’s prior 
written consent except on voyages with the intention of returning to the United States, or (3) 
abandon such Vessels in any foreign port unless there has been an actual or constructive 
total loss or an agreed or compromised total loss of any of the Vessels.  

        (g) Vessels’  Condition and Maintenance . (1) Each Vessel shall be constructed, 
maintained and operated so as to meet, at all times, the highest classification, certification, 
rating and inspection standards for Vessels of the same age and type as my be imposed by 
the Classification Society; provided that , the foregoing shall not apply if the Vessel has 
been (i) under Government Use, (ii) an actual or constructive total loss or an agreed or 
compromised total loss of such Vessel, or (iii) any other loss with respect to such Vessel and 
the Shipowner shall not have had a reasonable time to repair the same;  



        (2) On the Delivery Date of each Vessel, the Shipowner shall furnish to the Secretary 
an Interim Class Certificate issued for each such Vessel by the Classification Society and 
promptly after the Delivery Date of each Vessel, furnish to the Secretary a Certificate of 
Class with respect to such Vessel issued by the Classification Society. Subsequently, the 
Shipowner shall annually (A) furnish to the Secretary a Certificate of Confirmation of Class 
issued by the Classification Society showing that the above-mentioned classification and 
rating have been retained for each Vessel and (B) furnish to the Secretary copies of all 
Classification Society reports, including periodic and damage surveys for each Vessel; 
provided that , the foregoing shall not apply if the Vessel is in Government Use and the 
governmental body does not permit classification and rating of the Vessel.  

        (3) Notwithstanding Section 2.02(g)(2), if the Vessel is a barge which is not classed, 
then the Shipowner shall, at all times, at its own cost and expense maintain and preserve 
each Vessel, so far as may be practicable, in at least as good order and condition, ordinary 
wear and tear excepted, as at the Delivery Date of such Vessel, and shall perform or cause to 
be performed at least once every five years and at any other time reasonably required by the 
Secretary, a survey and inspection of the Vessels by an independent marine surveyor 
approved by the Secretary; and provided that , no such surveys will be required within the 
last three years prior to the final Stated Maturity of the Obligations. The Shipowner shall 
furnish two copies of the report of such independent marine surveyor to the Secretary within 
15 days of such survey and inspection. The Shipowner shall deliver to the Secretary 
annually an Officer’s Certificate stating the condition and maintenance of each Vessel; 
provided further , that none of this Section shall apply when the Vessel is in Government 
Use.  

        (h) Material Changes in the Vessels . After the Delivery Date of any undelivered 
Vessel or the Closing Date of any already delivered Vessel, the Shipowner shall not make, 
or permit to be made, any material change in the structure, means of propulsion, type or 
speed of such Vessel or in its rig, without the Secretary’s prior written consent.  

        (i) Documentation of the Vessels. Upon the Delivery Date and thereafter, each Vessel 
shall be and shall remain documented under the laws of the United States of America.  

         SECTION 2.03 . Maintenance of Construction Contract . (a) The Construction 
Contract shall be maintained in full force and effect insofar as it relates to the due 
performance by the Shipowner and the Shipyard of all their respective obligations 
thereunder and the Shipowner shall not, without the Secretary’s prior written consent, 
amend, modify, assign or terminate the Construction Contract or consent to any change in 
the Construction Contract which releases the Shipyard from its obligations to comply with 
the provisions of the Construction Contract or any applicable laws, treaties, conventions, 
rules and regulations; provided that , the Secretary’s prior written consent shall not be 
necessary, but prompt written notice to the Secretary shall be given for (1) any mandatory or 
regulatory change to the Construction Contract as a result of any requirements of any 
governmental agency, or (2) any non-mandatory changes that Shipyard and Shipowner 
desire to make which do not exceed, with respect to any item of the Vessel’s construction, 
one (1%) percent of the Vessel’s Contract Price and which do not, in the aggregate, cause 
the Vessel’s Contract Price to be increased more than five (5%) percent or the delivery and 
completion date of the Vessel to be extended more than ten (10) days. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, no change shall be made in the general dimensions and/or characteristics of the 
Vessels which changes the capacity of the Vessels to perform as originally intended by the 
Construction Contract without the Secretary’s prior written consent. The Secretary will 
nonetheless retain its authority to review work done under a change order to ascertain 
whether the work should be included in Actual Cost and whether the price charged is fair 
and reasonable. No withdrawals may be made from the Escrow Fund for work that is not 
determined to be includable in Actual Cost.  



        (b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Construction Contract or 
herein, no changes to the payment milestones and disbursement schedules shall be made 
without the Secretary’s prior written consent, except to the extent reasonably required to 
reflect the change orders under paragraph (a) of this Section.  

         SECTION 2.04. Delivery Requirements. At or prior to the Delivery Date, the 
Shipowner shall have:  

        (a) documented the Vessel under the laws of the United States with the United States 
Coast Guard;  

        (b) executed and delivered to the Secretary the Mortgage (or mortgage supplement) 
substantially in the form of Exhibit 3 annexed hereto;  

        (c) recorded the Mortgage (or, if appropriate, a mortgage supplement) in the National 
Vessel Documentation Center of the United States Coast Guard, or its successor;  

        (d) delivered to the Secretary an Officer’s Certificate (1) from the Shipowner and the 
Shipyard certifying that the Vessel is free of any claim, lien, charge, mortgage, or other 
encumbrance of any character except as permitted under Section 2.02(d); (2) certifying that 
there has not occurred and is not then continuing any event which constitutes (or after any 
period of time or any notice, or both, would constitute) a default under the Security 
Agreement; (3) that the marine insurance as required under Section 2.05 will be in full force 
and effect at the time of Vessel delivery; (4) certifying that the Vessel was constructed 
substantially in accordance with the plans and specifications of the Construction Contract; 
(5) certifying that there have been no unusual occurrences (or a full description of such 
occurrences, if any) which would adversely affect the condition of the delivered Vessel.  

        (e) delivered to the Secretary (1) an opinion of counsel substantially in the form of 
Exhibit A to the form of Mortgage; and (2) a certificate of delivery and acceptance from the 
Shipowner and the Shipyard to the Secretary with respect to the delivered Vessel;  

         SECTION 2.05 . Insurance . (a) Prior to the Delivery Date of each Vessel, the 
Shipowner shall, without cost to the Secretary or, with respect to war risk builder’s risk 
insurance mentioned below, without cost to the Shipyard, cause each Vessel to be insured as 
provided in the Construction Contract and as contemplated by the Consent of Shipyard; 
provided that , the insurance required by this Section shall be approved by the Secretary.  

        (b) Upon the Delivery Date of each Vessel and at all times thereafter, the Shipowner 
shall, without cost to the Secretary, keep such Vessel insured as indicated below and with 
such additional insurance as may be specified by the Secretary in an amount in U.S. dollars 
equal to 110% of the unpaid principal amount of the Proportionate Part of the Secretary’s 
Note, or such greater sum, up to and including the full commercial value of such Vessel as 
may be required by the Secretary. The Shipowner shall provide 30 days prior written notice 
to the Secretary of all insurance renewals.  

        (1) Marine and war risk hull insurance under the latest (at the time of issue of the 
policies in question) forms of American Institute of Marine Underwriters’ policies approved 
by the Secretary and/or policies issued by or for the Maritime Administration (or under such 
other forms of policies as the Secretary may approve in writing) insuring such Vessel 
against the usual risks covered by such forms (including, at the Shipowner’s option, such 
amounts of increased value and other forms of “total loss only” insurance as are permitted 
by said hull insurance policies); and  

        (2) While any Vessel is laid up, at the Shipowner’s option and in lieu of the above-



mentioned marine and war risk hull insurance or marine and war risk hull and increased 
value insurance, port risk insurance under the latest (at the time of issue of the policies in 
question) forms of American Institute of Marine Underwriters’ policies approved by the 
Secretary and/or policies issued by or for the Maritime Administration (or under such other 
forms of policies as the Secretary may approve in writing) insuring such Vessel against the 
usual risks covered by such forms.  

        (3) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shipowner, with the Secretary’s prior written 
consent, shall have the right to self-insure up to the amount specified in the Special 
Provisions hereof for any loss resulting from any one accident or occurrence (other than an 
actual or constructive total loss of any Vessel).  

        (c) All policies of insurance under this Section shall provide, so long as this Security 
Agreement has not been discharged, that payment of all losses shall be made payable to the 
Secretary for distribution by him to himself, the Shipowner and (in the case of the insurance 
required by paragraph (a) of this Section) the Shipyard, except that (i) as provided in 
paragraph (e) of this Section and (ii) under the policies required by paragraph (b) of this 
Section, payment of all losses up to the amount specified in the Special Provisions hereof by 
all insurance underwriters with respect to any one accident, occurrence or event may be 
made directly to the Shipowner unless there is an existing Default, or if the Secretary shall 
have assumed the Shipowner’s rights and duties under the Indenture and the Obligations and 
made any payments in default under the terms of Section 6.09 of the Indenture, in which 
event payment of all losses shall be made payable to the Secretary as aforesaid.  

        Any such insurance recoveries to which the Secretary shall be so entitled shall be 
applied as follows:  

        (1) In the event that insurance becomes payable under said policies on account of an 
accident, occurrence or event not resulting in an actual or constructive total loss or an agreed 
or compromised total loss of any Vessel, the Secretary shall (A) if there is no existing 
Default and if none of the events described in Section 2.07 has occurred, in accordance with 
a Shipowner’s Request, pay, or consent that the underwriters pay, direct for repairs, 
liabilities, salvage claims or other charges and expenses (including sue and labor charges 
due or paid by the Shipowner) covered by the policies, or (to the extent that, as stated in an 
Officer’s Certificate delivered to the Secretary, accompanied by written confirmation by the 
underwriter or a surveyor or adjuster, the damage shall have been repaired and the cost 
thereof paid of such liabilities, salvage claims, or other charges and expenses discharged or 
paid) reimburse, or consent that the underwriters reimburse, the Shipowner therefor and 
(after all known damage with respect to the particular loss shall have been repaired, except 
to the extent the Shipowner, with the Secretary’s written consent, deems the said repair 
inadvisable, and all known costs, liabilities, salvage claims, charges and expenses, covered 
by the policies, with respect to such loss shall have been discharged or paid, as stated in an 
Officer’s Certificate delivered to the Secretary, accompanied by written confirmation by the 
underwriters or a surveyor or adjuster) pay, or consent that the underwriters pay, any 
balance to the Shipowner; or (B) if there is an existing Default, in accordance with a 
Request of Shipowner, pay, or consent that the underwriters pay, direct for the Shipowner’s 
proportion of such repairs, liabilities, salvage claims or other charges and expenses 
(including sue and labor charges due or paid by the Shipowner) covered by the policies and 
hold any balance until the same may be paid or applied under clauses A, C or D of this 
subsection, whichever is applicable; or (C) if the Guarantees shall have terminated pursuant 
to Section 3.02(c) or if the Secretary shall have assumed the Shipowner’s rights and duties 
under the Indenture and the Obligations and made any payments in default under the terms 
of Section 6.09 of the Indenture and none of the events described in Section 2.07 has 
occurred, apply the insurance as provided in Section 6.05; or (D) if the Guarantees shall 
have terminated pursuant to Section 3.02(b) or (d), pay the insurance to the Shipowner;  



        (2) In the event of an accident, occurrence or event resulting in an actual or 
constructive total loss of any Vessel prior to the Delivery Date of such Vessel, the 
Shipowner shall forthwith deposit with the Secretary any insurance moneys which the 
Shipowner receives on account thereof under policies of insurance required by paragraph (a) 
of this Section, and any such insurance moneys shall be held by the Secretary for 10 days 
(or such lesser or further time as the Shipowner and the Secretary may agree upon). Upon 
the expiration of said period of time, (A) if there is no existing Default and if the Shipowner, 
the Shipyard and the Secretary shall have elected not to construct such Vessel under the 
Construction Contract, then said insurance moneys shall be applied, to the extent necessary 
and required pursuant to Section 2.07; or (B) if there is no existing Default and if the 
Shipowner, the Shipyard and the Secretary shall not have made the election contemplated by 
clause (A) of this subsection, then said insurance moneys (together with the Shipowner’s 
funds to the extent, if any, required by the Secretary for deposit on account of interest under 
clause (ii) below) shall be deposited in the Escrow Fund, in such amount and to the extent 
available, so that the moneys in the Escrow Fund after such deposit shall be equal to (i) the 
principal amount of the Proportionate Part of the Outstanding Obligations relating to such 
Vessel at the time of such deposit and (ii) such interest on said deposit, if any, as may be 
required by the Secretary (said moneys to be subject to withdrawal in the same manner as 
moneys originally deposited in said Escrow Fund); and the balance, if any, of such 
insurance moneys held by the Secretary shall be paid to the Shipowner; and  

        (3) In the event of an accident, occurrence or event resulting in an actual or 
constructive total loss or an agreed or compromised total loss of any Vessel, whether prior 
to or after the Delivery Date of such Vessel, and the insurance moneys have not been 
applied as provided in paragraph (c)(2) of this Section, the Shipowner shall forthwith 
deposit with the Secretary any insurance moneys which the Shipowner receives on account 
thereof under policies of insurance required by this Section, and any such insurance moneys 
received by the Secretary, whether from the Shipowner or otherwise, or held by the 
Secretary pursuant to paragraph (c)(2) of this Section, shall (A) if there is no existing 
Default, be applied, to the extent necessary, pursuant to Section 2.07; (B) if there is an 
existing Security Default, be held until the same may be applied under clauses (A), (C), or 
(D) of this subsection, whichever is applicable; (C) if the guarantees shall have terminated 
pursuant to Section 3.02(c) or if the Secretary shall have assumed the Shipowner’s rights 
and duties under the Indenture and the Obligations and made any payments in default under 
the terms of Section 6.09 of the Indenture, be applied as provided in Section 6.05; provided 
that , notwithstanding the foregoing clauses (A), (B) and (C) of this subsection, the 
Shipowner shall not be required to so deposit with the Secretary insurance moneys in an 
amount which, together with funds otherwise available for the redemption of Obligations is 
in excess of that required for the redemption of the Proportionate Part of the Outstanding 
Obligations pursuant to Section 3.05 of the Indenture and for the payment to the Secretary 
of a Proportionate Part of all other sums that may be secured by this Security Agreement 
and the Mortgage; or (D) if the Guarantees shall have terminated pursuant to Section 3.02(b) 
or 3.02(d), be paid to the Shipowner.  

        (d) In the event of an accident, occurrence or event resulting in a constructive total loss 
of any Vessel, the Secretary shall have the right (with the prior written consent of the 
Shipowner, unless there is an existing Default, and at any time prior to the Delivery Date of 
such Vessel also with the prior written consent of the Shipyard) to claim for a constructive 
total loss of such Vessel. If (1) such claim is accepted by all underwriters under all policies 
then in force as to such Vessel under which payment is due for total loss and (2) payment in 
full is made in cash under such policies to the Secretary, then the Secretary shall have the 
right to abandon such Vessel to the underwriters of such policies, free from lien of this 
Security Agreement and the Mortgage.  

        (e) Commencing on the Delivery Date of each Vessel, the Shipowner shall, without 
cost to the Secretary, keep each such Vessel insured against marine and war risk protection 



and indemnity risks and liabilities by policies of insurance approved by the Secretary as to 
form and amount; provided that , (1) the Shipowner shall, as soon as possible before such 
Delivery Date, present any such policy to the Secretary (who shall promptly approve or 
disapprove the same), (2) any approval of a policy under this subsection shall be effective 
until the end of the policy period or until 60 days after the Secretary shall notify the 
Shipowner of a desired change in the form and/or amount thereof, whichever shall first 
occur, and (3) war protection and indemnity insurance shall be required unless the Secretary 
gives written notice to the Shipowner stating that such insurance is not required.  

        Such policies may provide that (1) if the Shipowner shall not have incurred the loss, 
damage, or expense in question, any loss under such insurance may be paid directly to the 
Person to whom any liability covered by such policies has been incurred (whether or not a 
Default then exists), and (2) if the Shipowner shall have incurred the loss, damage or 
expense in question, any such loss shall be paid to the Shipowner in reimbursement if there 
is no existing Default of which the underwriter has written notice from the Shipowner or the 
Secretary, or, if there is such an existing Default, to the Secretary to be held and applied as 
follows: (A) applied as provided in Section 6.05 in the event the Guarantees shall have 
terminated pursuant to Section 3.02(c) or if the Secretary shall have assumed the 
Shipowner’s rights and duties under the Indenture and the Obligations and made any 
payments in default under the terms of Section 6.09 of the Indenture, or (B) to the extent not 
theretofore applied pursuant to Section 6.05, paid forthwith to the Shipowner upon its 
Request in the event there is no existing Default or the Guarantees shall have terminated 
pursuant to Section 3.02(b) or (d) at the date of delivery of such Request; provided that , 
irrespective of the foregoing, with the Secretary’s prior written consent, the Shipowner shall 
have the right to self-insure in an amount up to the limit specified in the Special Provisions 
hereof with respect to each accident, occurrence or event, except that, with respect to cargo 
or property carried, the Shipowner, with the Secretary’s prior written consent, shall have the 
right to self-insure in an amount up to the limit specified in the Special Provisions hereof 
with respect to each cargo or property carried.  

        (f) All insurance required under this Section shall be placed and kept with the United 
States Government or with American and/or British (and/or other foreign, if permitted by 
the Secretary in writing) insurance companies, underwriters’ association or underwriting 
funds approved by the Secretary. All insurance required under this subsection shall be 
arranged through marine insurance brokers and/or underwriting agents as chosen by the 
Shipowner and approved by the Secretary.  

        (g) The Secretary shall not have the right to enter into an agreement or compromise 
providing for an agreed or compromised total loss of any Vessel without prior written 
consent of (i) the Shipyard (prior to the Delivery Date of such Vessel) and (ii) (unless there 
is an existing Default) the Shipowner. If (1) the Shipowner shall have given prior consent 
thereto or (2) there is an existing Default, the Secretary shall have the right in his discretion, 
and with the prior written consent of the Shipyard prior to the Delivery Date of such Vessel, 
to enter into an agreement or compromise providing for an agreed or compromised total loss 
of such Vessel; provided that , if the aggregate amount payable to the Shipowner and/or the 
Secretary under such agreement or compromise, together with funds held by the Secretary 
and available for the redemption of Obligations, is not sufficient to redeem or pay the 
Proportionate Part of the Outstanding Obligations pursuant to Section 2.07, the Secretary 
shall not enter into such agreement or compromise without the Shipowner’s prior written 
consent.  

        (h) During the continuance of (1) a taking or requisition of the use of any Vessel by 
any government or governmental body, or (2) a charter, with the Secretary’s prior written 
consent, of the use of any Vessel by the United States Government or by any governmental 
body of the United States, or by any other government or governmental body, the provisions 
of this Section shall be deemed to have been complied with in all respects if such 



government or governmental body shall have agreed to reimburse, in a manner approved by 
the Secretary in writing, the Shipowner for loss or damage covered by the insurance 
required hereunder or resulting from the risks under paragraphs (a), (b), and (e) of this 
Section or if the Shipowner shall be entitled to just compensation therefor. In addition, the 
provisions of this Section shall be deemed to have been complied with in all respects during 
any period after (A) title to any Vessel shall have been taken or requisitioned by any 
government or governmental body or (B) there shall have been an actual or constructive 
total loss or an agreed or compromised total loss of any Vessel. In the event of any taking, 
requisition, charter or loss contemplated by this paragraph, the Shipowner shall promptly 
furnish to the Secretary an Officer’s Certificate stating that such taking, requisition, charter 
or loss has occurred and, if there shall have been a taking, requisition or charter of the use of 
any Vessel, that the government or governmental body in question has agreed to reimburse 
the Shipowner, in a manner approved by the Secretary, for loss or damage resulting from the 
risks under paragraphs (a), (b), and (e) of this Section or that the Shipowner is entitled to 
just compensation therefor.  

        (i) All insurance required (A) under paragraph (a) of this Section shall be taken out in 
the names of the Shipowner, the United States and the Shipyard as assureds, and (B) under 
paragraph (b) and (c) of this Section shall be taken out in the names of the Shipowner and 
the United States as assureds. All policies for such insurance so taken out shall, unless 
otherwise consented to by the Secretary, provide that (1) there shall be no recourse against 
the United States for the payment of premiums or commissions, (2) if such policies provide 
for the payment of club calls, assessments or advances, there shall be no recourse against the 
United States for the payment thereof, and (3) at least 10 days’ prior written notice of any 
cancellation for the nonpayment of premiums, commissions, club calls, assessments or 
advances shall be given to the Secretary by the insurance underwriters.  

        (j) The Shipowner shall not, without the Secretary’s prior written consent, (1) do any 
act, nor voluntarily suffer or permit any act to be done, whereby any insurance required by 
this Section shall or may be suspended, impaired or defeated or (2) suffer or permit any 
Vessel to engage in any voyage or to carry any cargo not permitted under the policies of 
insurance then in effect without first covering such Vessel with insurance satisfactory in all 
respects for such voyage or the carriage of such cargo; provided that , this paragraph shall 
be subject to the requirements of any military authority of the United States and shall not 
apply in the case of such Vessel if and so long as the title or use of such Vessel shall have 
been taken, requisitioned or chartered by any government or governmental body as 
contemplated by Section 2.07.  

        (k) In the event that any claim or lien is asserted against any Vessel for loss, damage or 
expense which is covered by insurance hereunder and it is necessary for the Shipowner to 
obtain a bond or supply other security to prevent arrest of such Vessel or to release such 
Vessel from arrest on account of said claim or lien, the Secretary, on the Shipowner’s 
Request, may, at the Secretary’s sole option, assign to any Person executing a surety or 
guaranty bond or other agreement to save or release such Vessel from such arrest, all right, 
title and interest of the Secretary in and to said insurance covering such loss, damage or 
expense as collateral security to indemnify against liability under said bond or other 
agreement.  

        (l) Except as the Secretary shall otherwise direct by notice in writing to the Shipowner, 
the Shipowner shall deliver to the Secretary the original policies evidencing insurance 
maintained under this Section; provided that , if any such original policy shall have been 
delivered previously to the Secretary or to a mortgagee by the Shipowner under another ship 
mortgage of the Shipowner, the Shipowner shall deliver a duplicate or pro forma copy of 
such policy to the Secretary. The Secretary or any agent thereof (who may also be an agent 
of the issuer) shall at all times hold the policies delivered as aforesaid; provided that , if one 
or more of said policies are held by an agent of the Secretary, the Shipowner shall, upon the 



Secretary’s request, deliver a duplicate or pro forma copy thereof to the Secretary, and 
provided further , that if the Shipowner shall deliver to the Secretary a Request (1) stating 
that delivery of such policy to the insurer is necessary in connection with the collection, 
enforcement or settlement of any claim thereunder (including claims for return premiums 
and any other amounts payable by the insurer) and (2) setting forth the name and address of 
the Person to whom such policy is to be delivered or mailed for such purpose, and if the 
Secretary approves such Request, the Secretary shall, at the Shipowner’s expense, deliver or 
mail (by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid) such policy in accordance with such 
Request, accompanied by a written direction to the recipient to redeliver such policy directly 
to the Secretary or an agent thereof when it has served the purpose for which so delivered. 
The Shipowner agrees that, in case it shall at any time so cause the delivery or mailing of 
any policy to any Person as aforesaid, the Shipowner will cause such policy to be promptly 
redelivered to the Secretary or an agent thereof as aforesaid. The Secretary shall have no 
duty to see to the redelivery of such policy, but shall have the duty to request the redelivery 
thereof at intervals of 60 days thereafter.  

        (m) Nothing in this Section shall limit the insurance coverage which the Secretary may 
require under any contract or agreement to which the Secretary and the Shipowner are 
parties.  

        The requirements of this Section are expressly subject to the Special Provisions of this 
Security Agreement.  

         SECTION 2.06 . Inspection of the Vessels; Examination of Shipowner’s Records . 
The Shipowner will: (a) afford the Secretary, upon reasonable notice, access to the Vessels, 
their cargoes and papers for the purpose of inspecting the same; (b) maintain records of all 
amounts paid or obligated to be paid by or for the account of the Shipowner for each 
Vessel’s Construction; and (c) at reasonable times permit the Secretary, upon request, to 
make reasonable, material and pertinent examination and audit of books, records and 
accounts maintained by the Shipowner, and to take information therefrom and make 
transcripts or copies thereof.  

         SECTION 2.07 . Requisition of Title, Termination of Construction Contract or Total 
Loss of a Vessel . In the event of requisition of title to or seizure or forfeiture of such 
Vessel, termination of the Construction Contract relating to such Vessel, or the occurrence 
of the circumstances referred to in Section 2.05(c)(3), then all of the following shall apply:  

         (a) The Shipowner shall promptly give written notice thereof to the Secretary.  

         (b) The Shipowner shall promptly pay all amounts it receives by reason of such 
requisition, seizure, forfeiture, termination or total loss ("Loss Event") to the Secretary.  

        (c) After the Secretary has received sufficient funds to retire a Proportionate Part of the 
Outstanding Obligations affected by the Loss Event:  

        (1) if there is no existing Default, (A) the Secretary and the Shipowner shall give notice 
to the Indenture Trustee of a redemption of Proportionate Part of the Outstanding 
Obligations pursuant to Section 3.05 of the Indenture, (B) such amount, if any, held by the 
Secretary, shall be paid by the Secretary to the Indenture Trustee not earlier than 10 days 
prior to, nor later than the opening of business on, the Redemption Date required by Section 
3.05 of the Indenture, (C) the remainder shall next be applied by the Secretary for the 
payment of a Proportionate Part of all other sums that may be secured hereby, and (D) the 
balance shall be paid to the Shipowner including any interest earned on the proceeds which 
are in excess of the amount required to redeem the Obligations;  



        (2) if there is an existing Default and the Guarantees shall not have terminated pursuant 
to Section 3.02, such amounts shall be held until the same may be applied or paid under 
paragraphs (1), (3), or (4) of this subsection, whichever is applicable;  

        (3) if the Guarantees shall have terminated pursuant to Section 3.02(c) or if the 
Secretary shall have assumed the Shipowner’s rights and duties under the Indenture and the 
Obligations and made any payments in default under the terms of Section 6.09 of the 
Indenture, such amounts shall be applied as provided in Section 6.05; or  

        (4) if the Guarantees shall have terminated pursuant to Section 3.02(b) or 3.02(d) such 
amounts shall be paid by the Secretary to the Shipowner.  

Provided that , notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shipowner shall not be required to pay the 
Secretary any amount which the Secretary agrees is in excess of the amount needed for 
redemption of the Proportionate Part of the Outstanding Obligations affected by the Loss 
Event.  

         SECTION 2.08 . Notice of Mortgage . (a) A properly certified copy of the Mortgage 
shall be carried on board each self-propelled Vessel with that Vessel’s documents and shall 
be exhibited on demand to any Person having business with such Vessel or to any 
Secretary’s representative.  

        (b) A notice printed in plain type of such size that the paragraph of reading matter shall 
cover a space not less than six inches wide by nine inches high, and framed, shall be placed 
and kept prominently exhibited in the chart room and in the master’s cabin of a self-
propelled Vessel.  

        (c) The notice referred to in paragraph (b) of this Section shall read as follows:  

“NOTICE OF FLEET MORTGAGE”  
This Vessel is owned by (Insert name of Shipowner) , a (Insert jurisdiction) corporation 
(“Shipowner”), and is covered by a First Preferred Ship Mortgage in favor of the United 
States of America, under authority of Chapter 313, Title 46 of the United States Code. 
Under the terms of said Mortgage neither the Shipowner, any charterer, the master or agent 
of this Vessel nor any other person has any right, power or authority to create, incur or 
permit to be placed or imposed upon this Vessel any lien other than statutory liens incident 
to current operations that are subordinate to the Mortgage.”  
  

         SECTION 2.09. Compliance with 46 U.S.C. Chapter 313 . The Shipowner shall 
comply with and satisfy all of the provisions of Chapter 313, in order to establish and 
thereafter to maintain the Mortgage as a preferred mortgage upon each Vessel.  

         SECTION 2.10 . Performance of Shipowner’s Agreements by the Secretary . If the 
Shipowner shall fail to perform any of its agreements hereunder or under the Mortgage, the 
Secretary may, in its discretion, at any time during the continuance of an event which by 
itself, with the passage of time, or the giving of notice, would constitute a Default, perform 
all acts and make all necessary expenditures to remedy such failure. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the Secretary shall not be obligated to (and shall not be liable for the failure to) 
perform such acts and make such expenditures. All funds advanced and expenses and 
damages incurred by the Secretary relating to such compliance shall constitute a debt due 
from the Shipowner to the Secretary and shall be secured hereunder and under the Mortgage 
prior to the Secretary’s Note and shall be repaid by the Shipowner upon demand, together 
with interest at the rate that would have been paid by the Department of Treasury on the 
expended funds plus 1%.  



         SECTION 2.11 . Uniform Commercial Code Filings; Further Assurances . The 
Shipowner shall (a) furnish evidence satisfactory to the Secretary that financing statements 
under the UCC shall have been filed against the Shipowner and/or the Shipyard in all offices 
in which it may be necessary or advisable in the opinion of the Secretary to perfect the 
Secretary’s security interests, and (b) from time to time execute and deliver such further 
instruments and take such action as may reasonably be required to more effectively subject 
the Security to the lien of this Security Agreement and the Mortgage as contemplated 
thereby, including but not limited to, legal opinions from an independent counsel for the 
Shipowner to the effect that all UCC Financing Statements have been filed to perfect the 
Secretary’s interests in the Security as valid and enforceable first priority perfected security 
interests.  

         SECTION 2.12 . Modification of Formation Agreements . (a) If the Shipowner is 
organized as a general partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company or joint 
venture, then for so long as there is Outstanding any indebtedness to the United States of 
America pursuant to the Act, the partnership agreement, operating agreement, limited 
liability agreement, joint venture agreement (or any agreement constituting such an entity) 
shall not be amended, modified or voluntarily terminated without the Secretary’s prior 
written consent.  

        (b) In the event where any action by the Shipowner, any member of the Shipowner or 
the management of the Shipowner results or would result in dissolution of the Shipowner 
pursuant to its limited liability company agreement or governing law, each member of the 
Shipowner shall forthwith take all steps necessary to reform and reestablish the Shipowner.  

         SECTION 2.13 . Members of Limited Liability Companies . All existing and future 
members of a Shipowner which is a limited liability company (each being a “Member”), 
upon becoming a Member, shall forthwith enter into an agreement with the Secretary, in 
form and substance satisfactory to the Secretary, whereby each Member agrees: (1) that any 
amounts owed by the Shipowner to a Member with respect to its interest (as that or the 
equivalent term is used in the Shipowner’s limited liability company agreement) (the 
“Distributions”) shall be subordinated to the Shipowner’s payment of the Secretary’s Note 
and debts under the Security Agreement, provided that such Distributions may be paid to the 
extent the Shipowner is permitted to pay dividends under the Financial Agreement; (2) that 
in the event of default by the Shipowner under the Security Agreement, the Member shall be 
subordinated in its rights to receive any Distribution or to be paid any sums whatsoever by 
the Shipowner until the Secretary has made a full recovery of any and all amounts owed 
under the Secretary’s Note and the Security Agreement.  

         SECTION 2.14. Concerning the Performance and Payment Bonds . During the 
Construction, the Shipowner shall cause to be maintained Performance Bonds and Payment 
Bonds naming the Shipowner and the Secretary as co-obligees (the “Surety Bonds”) in form 
and substance satisfactory to the Secretary, to be obtained by the Shipyard in the amount of 
the Construction Contract, issued by such surety company or companies as shall be 
satisfactory to the Secretary (the “Surety”). In the event that the price for the work to be 
performed under the Construction Contract is increased, then the Surety Bonds shall be 
increased simultaneously in a corresponding amount. The Shipowner hereby agrees that the 
Secretary shall be the sole loss payee under the Surety Bonds and the Surety shall pay such 
amounts directly to the Secretary for distribution to the co-obligees as their interests may 
appear. The Shipowner hereby agrees that its interest as a co-obligee under each of the 
Surety Bonds is and shall be, upon the occurrence of a Default under the Security 
Agreement, fully subject and subordinate to the rights and interests of the Secretary therein. 
In the event of a default under the Security Agreement, which default results in a payment 
under any of the Surety Bonds, then the Surety Bonds proceeds shall be distributed by the 
Secretary in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.05 hereof. The Shipowner hereby 
irrevocably appoints the Secretary, the true and lawful attorney of the Shipowner, in its 



name and stead, to execute all consents, approvals, settlements and agreements on behalf of 
the Shipowner with respect to any rights related to the Surety Bonds.  

ARTICLE III  
THE SECRETARY’S NOTE  

         SECTION 3.01. Secretary's Note. On this date, the Shipowner has duly executed and 
delivered and the Secretary has accepted the Secretary's Note payable in an amount equal to 
the principal amount of the Obligations.  

         SECTION 3.02 . Termination of the Guarantees . Except as provided in Section 6.08 
of the Indenture, the Guarantee with respect to a particular Obligation, shall terminate only 
when, one or more of the following events shall occur:  

        (a) Such Obligation shall have been Retired or Paid;  

        (b) The Obligees of all the Obligations then Outstanding shall have elected to terminate 
the Guarantees, and the Secretary has been so notified by the Indenture Trustee or all 
Obligees in writing; provided that , such termination shall not prejudice any rights accruing 
hereunder prior to such termination;  

        (c) Such Guarantee shall have been paid in full in cash by the Secretary; or  

        (d) The Indenture Trustee and each Obligee shall have failed to demand payment of 
such Guarantee as provided in the Indenture, Guarantee, or the Act.  

         SECTION 3.03 . Execution of Additional Secretary’s Note . (a) In the event and when 
each new issue of Obligations is executed, authenticated and delivered on a date or dates 
subsequent to the date hereof, as contemplated by, and pursuant to the Indenture, the 
Shipowner shall, at the time of the issuance of such Obligations, execute and deliver to the 
Secretary an additional Secretary’s Note or, at the Secretary’s discretion, an endorsement to 
the Secretary’s Note in an amount equal to the principal amount of, and at the interest rate 
borne by, such issue of Obligations, on the terms stated in the Secretary’s Note.  

        (b) Each Secretary’s Note or endorsement executed and delivered in accordance with 
Section 3.03 shall together with the Secretary’s Note be secured by this Security Agreement 
and the Mortgage.  

ARTICLE IV  
CONSTRUCTION FUND; MONEYS DUE WITH RESPECT TO  

CONSTRUCTION OF THE VESSELS  
         SECTION 4.01 . Construction Fund . (a) The Shipowner has deposited in the 
Construction Fund with the Depository the amount, if any, indicated in the Depository 
Agreement from the proceeds of the Obligation to be held by the Depository in a Securities 
Account in accordance with the terms of the Depository Agreement. This Securities 
Account together with any future deposits and the proceeds from the investment of the 
amounts on deposit shall be called the “Construction Fund.”  

        (b) The Shipowner may withdraw money from the Construction Fund under the same 
procedures and conditions as the Shipowner may withdraw money from the Escrow Fund 
under Section 5.03, except that the Shipowner’s Request for withdrawal will not be subject 
to Section 5.03(a)(2)(A) or 5.03(h). The administration of the Construction Fund shall also 
be subject to the terms and conditions of Sections 5.04 and 5.05.  



         SECTION 4.02 . Moneys Due with Respect to Construction of the Vessels . (a) In the 
event that the Shipowner shall receive any moneys from any Person in connection with the 
Construction of any Vessel, the Shipowner shall give written notice thereof to the Secretary 
and shall promptly pay the same over to the Depository to be held in the Title XI Reserve 
Fund.  

        (b) Upon and after a final determination of Actual Cost in accordance with Section 
5.01, in the absence of a Default, any moneys held by the Depository which are not to be 
applied for the redemption of Obligations under Section 3.04 of the Indenture shall be paid 
to the Shipowner.  

        (c) In the event there is an existing Default, the money shall be held by the Depository 
in accordance with the provisions of the Depository Agreement.  

        (d) In the event the Secretary assumes the Shipowner’s rights and duties under Section 
6.09 of the Indenture or pays the Guarantees, the Depository shall promptly pay all moneys 
including all Moneys Due with Respect to Construction of the Vessels to the Secretary, who 
will apply it in accordance with Section 6.05.  

ARTICLE V  
ACTUAL COST; THE ESCROW FUND  

         SECTION 5.01. Actual Cost Determinations. (a) The Actual Cost of each Vessel (and 
the aggregate Actual Cost of all of the Vessels), determined as of the date of this Security 
Agreement, is as set forth in Table A hereof.  

        (b) The Secretary agrees to: (1) make a final determination of the Actual Cost of each 
Vessel, limited to amounts paid by or for the account of the Shipowner on account of the 
items set forth in Table A hereof and, to the extent approved by the Secretary, any other 
items or any increase in the amounts of such items, such determination to be made as of the 
time of payment by or for the account of the Shipowner of the full amount of said Actual 
Cost of such Vessel, excluding any amounts which are not to become due and payable, and 
(2) promptly give written notice to the Shipowner, of the results of said final determination; 
provided that , the Shipowner shall have requested such determination not less than 60 days 
in advance and shall have furnished to the Secretary not less than 30 days in advance of 
such determination along with a Shipowner’s Officer’s Certificate and a statement by an 
independent certified (or, with the Secretary’s prior written consent, an independent) public 
accountant or firm of accountants of the total amounts paid or obligated to be paid by or for 
the account of the Shipowner for the Construction of such Vessel, together with a 
breakdown of such totals according to the items for which paid or obligated to be paid.  

         SECTION 5.02 . Escrow Fund Deposits . At the time of the sale of the Obligations, 
the Shipowner shall deposit with the Secretary in the Escrow Fund all of the proceeds of that 
sale unless the Shipowner is entitled to withdraw funds under Section 5.03. If the 
Obligations are issued before the delivery of all of the Vessels, then the Shipowner shall 
also deposit into the Escrow Fund on the Closing Date an amount equal to six months 
interest at the rate borne by the Obligations.  

         SECTION 5.03 . Escrow Fund Withdrawals . (a) The Secretary shall within a 
reasonable time after written Request from the Shipowner, disburse from the Escrow Fund 
directly to the Indenture Trustee, any Paying Agent for such Obligations, the Shipyard, or 
any other Person entitled thereto, any amount which the Shipowner is obligated to pay, or to 
the Shipowner for any amounts it has paid, on account of the items and amounts or any 
other items set forth in Table A annexed hereto or subsequently approved by the Secretary, 
provided that , the Secretary is satisfied with the accuracy and completeness of the 



information contained in the following submissions:  

        (1) A Responsible Officer of the Shipowner shall deliver an Officer’s Certificate, in 
form and substance satisfactory to the Secretary, stating that (A) there is neither a Default 
under the Construction Contract nor the Security Agreement; (B) there have been no 
occurrences which have or would adversely and materially affect the condition of the 
Vessel, its hull or any of its component parts; (C) the amounts of the Request is in 
accordance with the Construction Contract including the approved disbursement schedule 
and each item in these amounts is properly included in the Secretary’s approved estimate of 
Actual Cost; (D) with respect to the Request, once the Contractor is paid there will be no 
liens or encumbrances on the applicable Vessel, its hull or component parts for which the 
withdrawal is being requested except for those already approved by the Secretary; and (E) if 
the Vessel has already been delivered, it is in class and is being maintained in the highest 
and best condition. The Shipowner shall also attach an Officer’s Certificate of the Shipyard, 
in form and substance satisfactory to the Secretary, stating that there are no liens or 
encumbrances as provided in clause (D) of this subsection and attaching the invoices and 
receipts supporting each proposed withdrawal to the satisfaction of the Secretary.  

        (2) No payment or reimbursement under this Section shall be made (A) to any Person 
until the Construction Fund, if any, has been exhausted, (B) to any Person until the total 
amount paid by or for the account of the Shipowner from sources other than the proceeds of 
such Obligations equals at least 12-l/2% of the Actual Cost of the related Vessel is made; 
(C) to the Shipowner which would have the effect of reducing the total amounts paid by the 
Shipowner pursuant to clause (B) of this subsection; or (D) to any Person on account of 
items, amounts or increases representing changes and extras or owner furnished equipment, 
if any, set forth in Table A annexed hereto, unless such items, amounts and increases shall 
have been previously approved by the Secretary; provided , however , that when the amount 
guaranteed by the Secretary equals 75% or less of the Actual Cost, then after the initial 12 
1/2% of Actual Cost has been paid by or on behalf of the Shipowner for such Vessel and up 
to 37 1/2% of Actual Cost has been withdrawn from the Escrow Fund for such Vessel, the 
Shipowner shall pay the remaining Shipowner’s equity of at least 12 1/2% (as determined 
by the Secretary) before additional monies can be withdrawn from the Escrow Fund relating 
to such Vessel.  

        (b) The excess, as determined by the Secretary, of any amount on deposit in the Escrow 
Fund which represents interest on the principal amount deposited, over and above the 
amount of interest due on the next Interest Payment Date on the principal amount, as 
determined by the Secretary, remaining on deposit on such Interest Payment Date, may, 
unless there is an existing Default, be disbursed by the Secretary upon the Shipowner’s 
Request made not more than 10 Business Days prior to such Interest Payment Date or made 
within at least 60 days after such Interest Payment Date.  

        (c) The Secretary shall not be required to make any disbursement pursuant to this 
Section except out of the cash available in the Escrow Fund. If sufficient cash is not 
available to make the requested disbursement, additional cash shall be provided by the 
maturity or sale of securities in accordance with instructions pursuant to Section 5.04. If any 
sale or payment on maturity shall result in a loss in the principal amount of the Escrow Fund 
invested in securities so sold or matured, the requested disbursement from the Escrow Fund 
shall be reduced by an amount equal to such loss, and the Shipowner shall, no later than the 
time for such disbursement, pay to the Indenture Trustee, any Paying Agent, the Shipyard, 
or any other Person entitled thereto, the balance of the requested disbursement from the 
Shipowner’s funds other than the proceeds of such Obligations.  

        (d) If the Secretary assumes the Shipowner’s rights and duties under the Indenture and 
the Obligations, and makes any payments in default under the Indenture, or the Secretary 
pays the Guarantees, all amounts in the Escrow Fund (including realized income which has 



not yet been paid to the Shipowner), shall be paid to the Secretary and be credited against 
any amounts due or to become due to the Secretary under the Security Agreement and the 
Secretary’s Note. To the extent payment of the Escrow Fund to the Secretary is not required, 
said amounts or any balance thereof, shall be paid to the Shipowner.  

        (e) At any time the Secretary shall have determined that there has been, for any reason, 
a disbursement from the Escrow Fund contrary to this Section, the Secretary shall give 
written notice to the Shipowner of the amount improperly disbursed, the amount to be 
deposited or redeposited into the Escrow Fund on account thereof, and the reasons for such 
determination. The Shipowner shall thereafter promptly deposit or redeposit, as appropriate, 
such amount (with interest, if any) required by the Secretary into the Escrow Fund.  

        (f) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, the Shipowner shall not seek or 
receive reimbursement for any amount paid to the Shipyard or any Person by the Secretary.  

        (g) In the event that one of the events described in Section 2.07 has occurred with 
respect to one or more of the Vessels or the Secretary shall have paid the Guarantees or shall 
have assumed the Shipowner’s rights and duties under Section 6.09 of the Indenture, the 
Secretary may direct that moneys remaining on deposit in the Escrow Fund may be 
withdrawn in whole or in part for one of the following purposes: (1) application as provided 
in Section 3.05 of the Indenture (but in no event shall any such disbursement for such 
purpose be in an amount greater than the related Proportionate Part of the Outstanding 
Obligations); (2) payment to the Shipowner, or its order, in the event all Outstanding 
Obligations are Retired or Paid, other than by payment of the Guarantees; or (3) application 
as provided in Section 6.05, if the Secretary shall have paid the Guarantees or shall have 
assumed the Shipowner’s rights and duties under the Indenture and the Obligations.  

        (h) Any amounts remaining in the Escrow Fund on the Termination Date of the Escrow 
Fund which are in excess of 87 1/2% or 75% of Actual Cost, as the case may be, shall be 
applied pursuant to Section 3.04 of the Indenture to retire a Proportionate Part of the 
Outstanding Obligations.  

         SECTION 5.04 . Investment and Liquidation of the Escrow Fund . The Secretary may 
invest the Escrow Fund in obligations of the United States with such maturities that the 
Escrow Fund will be available as required for the purposes hereof. The Secretary shall 
deposit the Escrow Fund into an account with the Treasury Department and upon agreement 
with the Shipowner, shall deliver to the Treasury Department instructions for the 
investment, reinvestment and liquidation of the Escrow Fund. The Secretary shall have no 
liability to the Shipowner for acting in accordance with such instructions.  

         SECTION 5.05 . Income on the Escrow Fund . Except as provided in Section 5.03, 
any income realized on the Escrow Fund shall, unless there is an existing Default, be paid to 
the Shipowner upon receipt by the Secretary of such income. For the purpose of this 
Section, the term “income realized on the Escrow Fund,” shall mean with respect to the 
Escrow Fund (1) the excess of the cash received from the sale of securities over their cost 
(less any losses from sale not already paid pursuant to Section 5.03(c)) and (2) cash received 
from the payment of principal and interest on securities.  

         SECTION 5.06 . Termination Date of the Escrow Fund . The Escrow Fund will 
terminate 90 days after the Delivery Date of the last Vessel covered by this Security 
Agreement (herein called the “Termination Date of the Escrow Fund”). In the event that on 
such date the payment by or for the account of the Shipowner of the full amount of the 
aggregate Actual Cost of all of the Vessels set forth in Table A hereof has not been made or 
the amounts with respect to such Actual Cost are not then due and payable, then the 
Shipowner and the Secretary by written agreement shall extend the Termination Date of the 
Escrow Fund for such period as shall be determined by the Shipowner and the Secretary as 



sufficient to allow for such contingencies. If the Secretary shall have earlier made a final 
determination of the aggregate Actual Cost of all of the Vessels in accordance with Section 
5.01, the Termination Date of the Escrow Fund shall be deemed to be the date of such final 
determination; provided that , if as a result of such final determination, a redemption of 
Obligations is required pursuant to Section 3.04 of the Indenture, the Termination Date shall 
be the date specified as the Redemption Date in the notice of redemption given pursuant to 
Section 3.08 of the Indenture.  

ARTICLE VI  
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES  

         SECTION 6.01. What Constitutes "Defaults;" Continuance of Defaults. Each of the 
following events shall constitute a "Default" within the meaning of Section 6.01:  

        (a) A default in the payment of the whole or any part of the interest on any of the 
Outstanding Obligations when the same shall become due and payable; or default in the 
payment of the whole or any part of the principal of any of the Outstanding Obligations 
when the same shall become due and payable, whether by reason of Maturity, redemption, 
acceleration, or otherwise, or any default referred to in Section 6.08 of the Indenture; and 
continuation of such default for a period of 30 days shall constitute and is herein called a 
“Payment Default.” Any corresponding default with respect to the interest on, or the 
principal of, the Secretary’s Note is also deemed to be a Payment Default;  

        (b) The following shall constitute and each is herein called a "Security Default:"  

        (1) Default by the Shipowner in the due and punctual observance and performance of 
any provision in Sections 2.01(b), 2.02(b) and (i), 2.03, 2.04, 2.09, 2.11, 2.12, 2.14, 8.01 and 
8.02;  

        (2) Default by the Shipowner continued after written notice specifying such failure by 
certified or registered mail to the Shipowner from the Secretary in the due and punctual 
observance and performance of any provision in Sections 2.02(a), (d), (e), (f), and (g), 2.05 
(except (g) and (k) thereof), 2.07, and 2.13.  

        (3) Default by the Shipowner continued for 30 days after written notice by certified or 
registered mail to the Shipowner from the Secretary in the due and punctual observance of 
any other agreement in this Security Agreement or in the Mortgage;  

        (4) The Shipowner shall become insolvent or bankrupt or shall cease paying or 
providing for the payment of its debts generally, or the Shipowner shall be dissolved or 
shall, by a court of competent jurisdiction, be adjudged a bankrupt, or shall make a general 
assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or shall lose its charter by forfeiture or otherwise; 
or a petition for reorganization of the Shipowner under the Bankruptcy Code shall be filed 
by the Shipowner, or such petition be filed by creditors and the same shall be approved by 
such a court of competent jurisdiction; or a reorganization of the Shipowner under said Code 
shall be approved by a court, whether proposed by a creditor, a stockholder or any other 
Person whomsoever; or a receiver or receivers of any kind whatsoever, whether appointed in 
admiralty, bankruptcy, common law or equity proceedings, shall be appointed, by a decree 
of a court of competent jurisdiction, with respect to any Vessel, or all or substantially all of 
the Shipowner’s property, and such decree shall have continued unstayed, on appeal or 
otherwise, and in effect for a period of 60 days;  

        (5) Any default in the due and punctual observance and performance of any provision 
in the Financial Agreement or the Construction Contract;  



        (6) Any representation or warranty made relating to the execution and delivery of this 
Security Agreement, the Mortgage, the Guarantee Commitment or the Financial Agreement, 
or in any certificate required to be furnished pursuant thereto, shall prove to be incorrect in 
any material respect;  

        (7) Any event constituting a Default under any security agreement or preferred 
mortgage under Chapter 313, relating to any other vessel or vessels owned by the 
Shipowner and financed under the Act;  

        (8) Any additional Security Default prescribed in the Special Provisions hereof; and  

        (9) Any event constituting a default under any bareboat or time charter or contract of 
affreightment of the Vessel.  

        At any time following the occurrence of a Security Default, the Secretary may give the 
Indenture Trustee a Secretary's Notice with respect to such Security Default, after which the 
Indenture Trustee and the Obligees shall have the right to make demand for payment of the 
Guarantees in accordance with the Indenture and the Authorization Agreement, unless the 
Secretary shall have assumed the Shipowner's rights and duties under the Indenture and the 
Obligations, and made any payments in default under Section 6.09 of the Indenture.  

         SECTION 6.02 . Acceleration of Maturity of the Secretary’s Note . The Secretary 
may, by giving written notice to the Shipowner, declare the principal of the Secretary’s Note 
and interest accrued thereon to be immediately due and payable, at any time after (a) the 
Secretary shall have been obligated to pay the Guarantees pursuant to the terms of the 
Indenture and the Authorization Agreement, or (b) the Secretary shall have assumed the 
Shipowner’s rights and duties under the Indenture and the Obligations, and made any 
payments in default under the terms of Section 6.09 of the Indenture. Thereupon, the 
principal of and interest on the Secretary’s Note shall become immediately due and payable, 
together with interest at the same rates specified in the Secretary’s Note.  

         SECTION 6.03 . Waivers of Default . (a) If the Secretary shall not have assumed the 
Shipowner’s rights and duties under the Indenture and the Obligations, and made any 
payments in default under the terms of Section 6.09 of the Indenture, and if the Secretary 
determines that an event which, with the passage of time, would become a Payment Default, 
has been remedied within 30 days after the occurrence of such event, upon a Request by the 
Shipowner, the Secretary shall waive the consequences of such event.  

        (b) If the Secretary shall not have assumed the Shipowner’s rights and duties under the 
Indenture and the Obligations, and made any payments in default under the terms of Section 
6.09 of the Indenture, and if the Secretary shall have determined prior to payment of the 
Guarantees that a Payment Default has been remedied after the expiration of the aforesaid 
30-day period, but prior to the date of demand by the Indenture Trustee or an Obligee for 
payment under the Guarantees, upon a Request by the Shipowner, the Secretary shall waive 
such Default.  

        (c) If the Secretary shall have determined prior to the expiration of the period required 
for payment of the Guarantees that a Payment Default had not occurred or has been 
subsequently remedied by the Shipowner (and if the Secretary shall not have assumed the 
Shipowner’s rights and duties under the Indenture and the Obligations, and made any 
payments in default under the terms of Section 6.09 of the Indenture and prior to any 
payment of Guarantees), the Secretary shall notify the Indenture Trustee and the Shipowner 
of such determination, and, the Secretary shall waive such Default.  

        (d) The Secretary, in its sole discretion, may waive any Security Default or any event 



which by itself, or with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would give rise 
to a Security Default; provided that , such Default is waived prior to the Secretary giving to 
the Indenture Trustee the Secretary’s Notice.  

        (e) The Secretary shall notify the Shipowner and the Indenture Trustee in writing of 
any determinations made under paragraphs (a), (b), and (c) of this Section, and the Secretary 
shall waive the consequences of any such Default, and annul any declaration under Section 
6.02, and the consequences thereof.  

        (f) No waiver under this Section shall extend to or affect any subsequent or other 
Default, nor impair any rights or remedies consequent thereon.  

        (g) No waiver under this Section shall be deemed to have occurred because the 
Secretary shall have assumed the Shipowner’s rights and duties under the Indenture and the 
Obligations, and made any payments in default under the terms of Section 6.09 of the 
Indenture.  

         SECTION 6.04 . Remedies After Default . (a) In the event of a Default, and before 
and after the payment of the Guarantees or the assumption by the Secretary of the 
Shipowner’s rights and duties under the Indenture and the Obligations, and the making of 
any payments in default under the terms of Section 6.09 of the Indenture, the Secretary shall 
have the right to take the Vessels without legal process wherever the same may be (and the 
Shipowner or other Person in possession shall forthwith surrender possession of the Vessels 
to the Secretary upon demand) and hold, lay up, lease, charter, operate, or otherwise use the 
Vessels for such time and upon such terms as the Secretary may reasonably deem to be in 
the Secretary’s best interest, accounting only for the net profits, if any, arising from the use 
of the Vessels, and charging against all receipts from the use of the Vessels, all reasonable 
charges and expenses relating to such Vessel’s use.  

        (b) Upon either (i) payment of the Guarantees or (ii) the Secretary’s assumption of the 
Shipowner’s rights and duties under the Indenture and the Obligations, and the making of 
any payments in default under Section 6.09 of the Indenture, the Secretary shall have the 
right to:  

        (1) Exercise all the rights and remedies in foreclosure and otherwise given to 
mortgagees by Chapter 313;  

        (2) Bring suit at law, in equity or in admiralty to recover judgment for any and all 
amounts due under the Secretary’s Note, this Security Agreement and the Mortgage, collect 
the same out of any and all of Shipowner’s property, whether or not the same is subject to 
the lien of the Mortgage, and in connection therewith, obtain a decree ordering the sale of 
any Vessel in accordance with paragraph (b)(4) of this Section;  

        (3) Have a receiver of the Vessels appointed as a matter of right in any suit under this 
Section (and any such receiver may have the rights of the Secretary under paragraph (b)(4) 
of this Section);  

        (4) Sell any Vessel, free from any claim of the Shipowner, by a public extrajudicial 
sale, held at such time and place and in such manner as the Secretary may reasonably deem 
advisable, after twice publishing notice of the time and place of such sale prior to the 
proposed sale in the Authorized Newspapers to the Shipowner. Such publication and 
mailing is to be made at least 10 Business Days prior to the date fixed for such sale; 
provided that , such sale may be adjourned from time to time without further publication or 
notice (other than announcement at the time and place appointed to such sale or adjourned 
sale). It shall not be necessary to bring any such Vessel to the place appointed for such sale 



or adjourned sale;  

        (5) Accept a conveyance of title to, and to take without legal process (and the 
Shipowner or other Person in possession shall forthwith surrender possession to the 
Secretary), the whole or any part of any Vessel and the Security wherever the same may be, 
and to take possession of and to hold the same;  

        (6) In the Secretary’s discretion, take any and all action authorized by Sections 1105
(c), 1105(e) and 1108(b) of the Act and any and all action provided for, or authorized, or 
permitted by, or with respect to the Increased Security;  

        (7) Receive, in the event of an actual or constructive total loss, or an agreed or 
compromised total loss, or a requisition of title to or use of any Vessel, all insurance or other 
payments therefor to which the Shipowner would otherwise be entitled, such insurance 
moneys to be applied by the Secretary in accordance with Section 6.05; and  

         (8) Pursue to final collection of all the claims arising under this Security Agreement 
and to collect such claims from, the Increased Security.  

        (c) The Shipowner hereby irrevocably appoints the Secretary the true and lawful 
attorney of the Shipowner, in its name and stead, to make all necessary transfers of the 
whole or any part of the Increased Security in connection with a sale, use or other 
disposition pursuant to Section 6.04(a) or 6.04(b), and for that purpose to execute all 
necessary instruments of assignment and transfer. Nevertheless, the Shipowner shall, if so 
requested by the Secretary in writing, ratify and confirm such sale by executing and 
delivering to any purchaser of the whole or any part of the Increased Security, such proper 
bill of sale, conveyance, instrument of transfer, or release as may be designated in such 
request.  

        (d) No remedy shall be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every remedy 
shall be cumulative and in addition to any other remedy.  

        (e) No delay or omission to exercise any right or remedy shall impair any such right or 
remedy or shall be deemed to be a waiver of any Default.  

        (f) The exercise of any right or remedy shall not constitute an election of remedies by 
the Secretary.  

        (g) If the Secretary discontinues any proceeding, the rights and remedies of the 
Secretary and of the Shipowner shall be as though no such proceeding had been taken.  

         SECTION 6.05 . Application of Proceeds. (a) The proceeds (from sale or otherwise) 
of the whole or any part of the Increased Security and use thereof by the Secretary under 
any of the foregoing powers, (b) the proceeds of any judgment collected by the Secretary for 
any default hereunder, (c) the proceeds of any insurance and of any claim for damages to the 
whole or any part of the Increased Security received by the Secretary while exercising any 
such power, and (d) all other amounts received by the Secretary, including amounts which 
are required by Sections 2.05 and 2.07 shall be applied by the Secretary as follows:  

        (1) to the payment of all advances and all reasonable charges by the Secretary pursuant 
to this Security Agreement;  

        (2) to the payment of the whole amount of the interest then due and unpaid upon the 
Secretary's Note;  



        (3) to the payment of the whole amount of the principal then due and unpaid upon the 
Secretary's Note;  

        (4) to the Secretary for application to any other debt of the Shipowner due to the 
Secretary under any other financing insured or guaranteed by the Secretary under to the Act; 

        (5) to the Indenture Trustee for its reasonable fees and expenses; and  

        (6) any balance thereof remaining shall be paid to the Shipowner.  

         SECTION 6.06 . General Powers of the Secretary . (a) In the event any Vessel shall 
be arrested or detained by a marshal or other officer of any court of law, equity or admiralty 
jurisdiction in any country or nation of the world or by any government or other authority, 
and shall not be released from arrest or detention within 15 days from the date of arrest or 
detention, the Shipowner hereby authorizes the Secretary, in the name of the Shipowner, to 
apply for and receive possession of and to take possession of such Vessel with all the rights 
and powers that the Shipowner might have, possess and exercise in any such event. This 
authorization is irrevocable.  

        (b) The Shipowner irrevocably authorizes the Secretary or its appointee (with full 
power of substitution) to appear in the name of the Shipowner in any court of any country or 
nation of the world where a suit is pending against the whole or any part of the Increased 
Security because of or on account of any alleged lien or claim against the whole or any part 
of the Increased Security, from which the whole or said part of the Increased Security has 
not been released.  

        (c) The following shall constitute a debt due from the Shipowner to the Secretary, and 
shall be repaid by the Shipowner upon demand: all reasonable expenses incurred pursuant to 
paragraphs (a) or (b) of this Section and all reasonable expenses incurred incident to the 
exercise by the Secretary of any remedies pursuant to Section 6.04(b) or the assumption by 
the Secretary of the rights and duties of the Shipowner under the Indenture and the 
Obligations, and the making of any payments in default under the terms of Section 6.09 of 
the Indenture (including, but not limited to, fees paid to the Indenture Trustee for expenses 
incident to said assumption of the Indenture by the Secretary), together with interest at the 
rate that would have been paid by the Department of Treasury on the expended funds plus 
1%. The Secretary shall not be obligated to (nor be liable for the failure to) take any action 
provided for in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section.  

ARTICLE VII  
AMENDMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO  

THE SECURITY AGREEMENT, MORTGAGE AND INDENTURE  
         SECTION 7.01 . Amendments and Supplements to the Security Agreement and the 
Mortgage . This Security Agreement and the Mortgage may not be amended or 
supplemented orally, but may be amended or supplemented from time to time only by an 
instrument in writing executed by the Shipowner and the Secretary.  

         SECTION 7.02 . Amendments and Supplements to the Indenture . Notwithstanding 
any provisions in the Indenture, the Shipowner agrees that no amendments or supplements 
will be made to the Indenture without the Secretary’s prior written consent, and any 
purported action contrary to this Section shall be null and void ab initio and of no force and 
effect.  

ARTICLE VIII  



CONSOLIDATION, MERGER OR SALE  
         SECTION 8.01 . Consolidation, Merger or Sale . (a) Nothing in this Security 
Agreement or the Mortgage shall prevent any lawful consolidation or merger of the 
Shipowner with or into any other Person, or any sale of a Vessel or Vessels to any other 
Person lawfully entitled to acquire and operate such Vessel or Vessels, or any sale by the 
Shipowner of all or substantially all of its assets to any other Person; provided that , the 
Secretary shall have given its prior written consent to such succession, merger, 
consolidation or sale.  

        (b) Any Successor shall (by indenture supplemental to the Indenture, and by instrument 
amending or supplementing this Security Agreement, and the Mortgage, as may be 
necessary), expressly assume the payment of the principal of (and premium, if any) and 
interest on the Outstanding Obligations in accordance with the terms of the Obligations, 
shall execute and deliver to the Secretary, an endorsement to the Secretary’s Note in form 
satisfactory to the Secretary, shall expressly assume the payment of the principal of and 
interest on the Secretary’s Note, and shall expressly assume the performance of the 
agreements of the Shipowner in the Indenture, this Security Agreement, the Mortgage and 
any related document.  

        (c) Upon the assumption of the documents listed in paragraph (b) of this Section, the 
Secretary shall consent to the surrender of each Vessel’s documents pursuant to 46 U.S.C. 
12110(c)(3), as amended; provided that , concurrently with such surrender, such Vessel 
shall be redocumented under the laws of the United States.  

        (d) In the event of any sale of less than all the Vessels, the Secretary shall determine if 
there will remain adequate security for the Guarantees after discharge of any such Vessel or 
Vessels from the Security Agreement and Mortgage, and (1) the Shipowner shall redeem, 
together with any premium and/or accrued interest thereof, the Proportionate Part of the 
Outstanding Obligations relating to such Vessel or Vessels in accordance with the 
provisions of Article Third of the Indenture, or (2) the Person to which such sale shall have 
been made (the “Transferee”), shall assume the documents listed in paragraph (b) of this 
Section. Upon any such assumption, the Transferee shall succeed to and be substituted for 
the Shipowner with the same force and effect as if it had been named in the Indenture, the 
Obligations, this Security Agreement and the Mortgage (and such other documents) to the 
extent the same relate to such Proportionate Part of the Outstanding Obligations and to such 
Vessel or Vessels.  

         SECTION 8.02 . Transfer of a General Partner’s or a Joint Venturer’s Interest . (a) If 
the Shipowner is organized as a partnership or a joint venture, a general partner or a joint 
venturer may lawfully transfer its respective interests under the terms of the partnership or 
joint venture agreement to any Person and may be released from all of their obligations 
thereunder and under this Security Agreement or the Mortgage; provided that , (i) the 
Secretary shall have given its prior written consent to the proposed transaction and (ii) the 
transferee shall assume in full all of the existing obligations which the transferring general 
partner or joint venturer has under the applicable partnership or joint venture agreement, this 
Security Agreement, the Mortgage and any related document.  

ARTICLE IX  
NOTICES  

         SECTION 9.01 . Notices . Except as otherwise provided in this Security Agreement 
or by the Act, all notices, requests, demands, directions, consents, waivers, approvals or 
other communications may be made or delivered in person or by registered or certified mail, 



postage prepaid, addressed to the party at the address of such party specified in the Special 
Provisions hereof, or at such other address as such party shall advise each other party by 
written notice, and shall be effective upon receipt by the addressee thereof.  

         SECTION 9.02 . Waivers of Notice . In any case where notice by publication, mail or 
otherwise is provided for by this Security Agreement, such notice may be waived in writing 
by the Person entitled to receive such notice, either before or after the event, and such 
waiver shall be deemed the equivalent of such notice.  

         SECTION 9.03 . Shipowner’s Name or Address Change . The Shipowner shall not 
change its name or its address without first providing written notice to the Secretary of the 
new name and/or the change in address.  

ARTICLE X  
DISCHARGE OF SECURITY AGREEMENT AND THE MORTGAGE  

         SECTION 10.01 . Discharge of Security Agreement and the Mortgage . (a) If the 
Obligations and the related Secretary’s Note shall have been satisfied and discharged, and if 
the Shipowner shall pay or cause to be paid all other sums that may have become secured 
under this Security Agreement and the Mortgage, then this Security Agreement, the 
Mortgage and the liens, estate and rights and interests hereby and thereby granted, shall 
cease, determine, and become null and void, and the Secretary, on the Shipowner’s Request 
and at the Shipowner’s cost and expense, shall forthwith cause satisfaction and discharge 
and duly acknowledge such satisfaction and discharge of this Security Agreement and the 
Mortgage to be entered upon its and other appropriate records, and shall execute and deliver 
to the Shipowner such instruments as may be necessary, and forthwith the estate, right, title 
and interest of the Secretary in and to the Security, the Increased Security, and any other 
securities, cash, and any other property held by it under this Security Agreement and the 
Mortgage, shall thereupon cease, determine and become null and void, and the Secretary 
shall transfer, deliver and pay the same to the Shipowner.  

        (b) If all of the Guarantees on the Outstanding Obligations shall have been terminated 
pursuant to Sections 3.02(b) or 3.02(d), the Secretary shall assign to the Shipowner this 
Security Agreement, the Mortgage and the liens, estate, rights and interests hereby and 
thereby granted.  

ARTICLE XI  
MISCELLANEOUS  

         SECTION 11.01 . Successors and Assigns . All the covenants, promises, stipulations 
and agreements of the Secretary and Shipowner in this Security Agreement shall bind the 
Secretary and Shipowner and its respective successors and assigns. This Security Agreement 
is for the sole benefit of the Shipowner, the Secretary, and their respective successors and 
assigns, and no other Person shall have any right hereunder.  

         SECTION 11.02. Execution in Counterparts. This Security Agreement may be 
executed in any number of counterparts. All such counterparts shall be deemed to be 
originals and shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.  

         SECTION 11.03 . Shipowner’s Rights in Absence of Default . Except during the 
existence of a Default, the Shipowner (1) shall be permitted to retain actual possession and 
use of the Vessel, and (2) shall have the right, from time to time, in its discretion and 
without the consent of or release by the Secretary, to dispose of, free from the lien hereof 
and of the Mortgage, any and all engines, machinery, masts, boats, anchors, cables, chains, 



rigging, tackle, apparel, furniture, capstans, outfit, tools, pumps, pumping and other 
equipment, and all other appurtenances to the Vessels, and also any and all additions, 
improvements and replacements in or to the Vessels or said appurtenances, after first or 
simultaneously replacing the same with items of at least substantially equal value.  

         SECTION 11.04 . Surrender of Vessels’  Documents . The Secretary shall consent to 
the surrender of each Vessel’s documents in connection with any redocumentation of such 
Vessel required on account of alterations to such Vessel which are not prohibited by this 
Security Agreement and by the Mortgage.  

         SECTION 11.05. Applicable Regulations. Only the provisions of the regulations 
issued under Title XI of the Act as in effect on the date hereof (46 C.F.R. 298) shall control 
the Security Agreement provisions.  

         SECTION 11.06 . Table of Contents, Titles and Headings . The table of contents, and 
titles of the Articles and the headings of the Sections are not a part of this Security 
Agreement and shall not be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any of its 
provisions.  
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        THIS CREDIT AGREEMENT, dated as of December 15, 1999, by and among 
ENSCO OFFSHORE COMPANY, a Delaware corporation (the “Shipowner”), GOVCO 
INCORPORATED, a Delaware corporation (the “Primary Lender”), CITIBANK, N.A., a 
national banking association (the “Alternate Lender”), CITIBANK INTERNATIONAL 
PLC, a bank organized under the laws of England, as facility agent for both the Primary 
Lender and the Alternate Lender and their respective successors and assigns (in such 
capacity, the “Facility Agent”), and CITICORP NORTH AMERICA, INC., a Delaware 
corporation, as administrative agent for the Primary Lender and its commercial paper 
holders (in such capacity, the “Primary Lender Agent”).  

BACKGROUND  
WHEREAS:  

        (A) by this Agreement, the Lenders have agreed to establish a credit facility (the 
“Credit Facility”) in the aggregate amount of up to One Hundred Ninety-Four Million Eight 
Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars ($194,855,000), pursuant to which (i) the Primary 
Lender may, in its discretion, subject to the terms and conditions hereof, extend financing to 
the Shipowner for the manufacture, construction, fabrication, financing and purchase by the 
Shipowner of the Vessel and (ii) if the Primary Lender chooses at any time not to extend 
any such financing for the Vessel, then, subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the 
Alternate Lender shall, if before the earlier of either June 30, 2002, or the first Payment 
Date which occurs eighteen months or more after the Delivery Date, extend such financing 
or any undisbursed portion thereof;  

        (B) the establishment of the Credit Facility is made in reliance upon the commitment of 
the United States to guarantee under Title XI of the Merchant Marine Act of 1936, as 
amended, the payment of the unpaid interest on, and the unpaid balance of, the principal of 
the Floating Rate Note, including interest accruing between the date of an Indenture Default 
under the Floating Rate Note and the payment in full of the Guarantee;  

        (C) a condition to the Lenders’ extension of the Credit Facility under this Agreement is 
the timely receipt of Certificates Authorizing Advances and the issuance of the Guarantee of 
the Floating Rate Note; and  

        (D) the Credit Facility may be utilized by the Shipowner in accordance with the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement.  

        NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants 
herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:  

        SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS AND PRINCIPLES OF CONSTRUCTION  

        1.01 Defined Terms. For the purposes of this Agreement, unless otherwise defined 
herein, the following terms shall have the following meanings:  



        “Accelerated Repayment” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.02(b) of this 
Agreement.  

        “Act” shall mean the Merchant Marine Act, 1936, as amended, and in effect on each 
Closing Date.  

        “Advance Date” shall mean, in relation to any Advance, the Business Day on which the 
applicable Lender shall make such Advance.  

        “Advances” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.03 of this Agreement.  

        “Affiliate” or “Affiliated” shall mean any Person directly or indirectly controlling, 
controlled by, or under common control with, another Person.  

        “Agents” shall mean the Facility Agent and the Primary Lender Agent collectively.  

        “Agreement” or “Credit Agreement” shall mean this Credit Agreement dated as of 
December 15, 1999 among the Agents, the Shipowner, the Primary Lender and the Alternate 
Lender, including any attachment thereto, as the same may be amended, modified or 
supplemented in accordance with the application provisions thereof.  

        “Alternate Lender” shall mean Citibank, N.A., a national banking association, and its 
successors and permitted assigns under Section 11.03.  

        “Applicable Interest Rate” shall mean  

        (a) with respect to any portion of the Credit Facility that is funded by the Primary 
Lender through its issuance of commercial paper notes and so long as the Primary Lender is 
the holder of the indebtedness related to such funded portion, the “Applicable Interest Rate” 
defined in the Indenture pursuant to clause (ii) (a) of the definition thereof (without giving 
effect to any amendments after the date hereof); and  

        (b) with respect to any portion of the Credit Facility that is funded by the Alternate 
Lender or to the extent that a portion of the Credit Facility held by the Primary Lender is 
assigned to the Alternate Lender or to any other assignee, then, from and after the applicable 
Advance Date or the effective date of such assignment, as the case may be, a rate per annum 
equal to the “Applicable Interest Rate” defined in the Indenture pursuant to clause (ii) (b) of 
the definition thereof (without giving effect to any amendments after the date hereof).  

        Notwithstanding any other provision hereof or the Indenture, the Applicable Interest 
Rate shall not include the Post Maturity Interest Rate described in Section 4.02(b).  

        “Authorization Agreement” shall mean the Authorization Agreement, Contract No. 
MA-13551, dated the Closing Date, between the Secretary and the Indenture Trustee, 
whereby the Secretary authorizes the Guarantee of the United States of America to be 
endorsed on the Floating Rate Note, as the same is originally executed, or as modified, 
amended or supplemented in accordance with the applicable provisions thereof.  

        “Available Amount” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.01 of this 
Agreement.  

        “Base Rate” shall mean, for any Interest Period or any other period, a fluctuating 
interest rate per annum as shall be in effect from time to time which rate per annum shall at 
all times be equal to the higher of:  



        (a) the rate of interest announced publicly by Citibank, N.A. in New York, New York, 
from time to time, as Citibank, N.A.'s base rate; or  

        (b) 1/2 of one percent per annum above the latest three-week moving average of 
secondary market morning offering rates in the United States for three-month certificates of 
deposit of major United States money market banks, such three-week moving average being 
determined weekly on each Monday (or, if any such day is not a Business Day, on the next 
succeeding Business Day) for the three-week period ending on the previous Friday by 
Citibank, N.A. on the basis of such rates reported by certificate of deposit dealers to and 
published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or, if such publication shall be 
suspended or terminated, on the basis of quotations for such rates received by Citibank, 
N.A. from three New York certificate of deposit dealers of recognized standing selected by 
Citibank, N.A., in either case adjusted to the nearest 1/4 of one percent or, if there is no 
nearest 1/4 of one percent, to the next higher 1/4 of one percent.  

        “Benchmark Rate” shall have the applicable meaning assigned to such term in the 
Indenture as in effect on the date hereof.  

        “Bond Purchase Agreement” shall mean a Bond Purchase Agreement substantially in 
the form of Exhibit A hereto.  

        “Bonds” shall mean each bond issued by the Shipowner substantially in the form of 
Exhibit 2B to the Indenture, appropriately completed.  

        “Breakage Fees” shall have the meaning set forth in the Indenture.  

        “Business Day” shall mean any day on which dealings in Dollar deposits are carried on 
in the London interbank market and on which commercial banks in London and New York 
City are open for domestic and foreign exchange business.  

        “Certificate Authorizing Advances” shall mean, with respect to an Advance, a 
certificate from the Secretary authorizing such Advance in the form of Exhibit C hereto.  

        “Closing Date” shall mean the date on which the Lenders fund the initial Advance or 
Advances.  

        “Commercial Paper” shall have the meaning set forth in the Indenture as in effect on 
the date hereof.  

        “Credit Facility” shall have the meaning set forth in Whereas Clause (A) of this 
Agreement.  

        “Credit Facility Amount” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.01 of this 
Agreement.  

        “Delivery Date” shall mean the date on which the Vessel has been delivered to and 
accepted by the Shipowner.  

        “Depository Agreement” shall mean the Depository Agreement, Contract No. MA-
13555, dated the Closing Date, among the Shipowner, Chase Bank of Texas, National 
Association as Depository-Bailee, and the Secretary, as the same is originally executed, or 
amended, modified or supplemented in accordance with the applicable provisions thereof.  

        “Disposition of Indebtedness” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11.03 of this 
Agreement.  



        “Dollars, ”“U.S. Dollars,”“U.S.D.,”“ U.S.”“$” shall mean the lawful currency of the 
United States of America.  

        “EII” shall mean Ensco International Incorporated, a Delaware corporation.  

        “EII Guaranty” shall mean that certain Guaranty of even date herewith executed by EII 
in favor of the Lenders and the Agents.  

        “EII’s Financial Statements” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 8.01(h) of this 
Agreement.  

        “Eurodollar Reserve Percentage” shall mean with respect to any Interest Period or Post 
Maturity Period the reserve percentage applicable to Citibank, N.A. during such period 
under regulations issued from time to time by the Board of Governors of the Federal 
Reserve System (or any successor) (or if more than one such percentage shall be so 
applicable, the daily average of such percentages for those days in such period during which 
such reserve shall be so applicable) for determining the maximum reserve requirement 
(including, without limitation, any emergency, supplemental or marginal reserve 
requirement) for Citibank, N.A. in respect of liabilities or assets consisting of or including 
Eurocurrency Liabilities as that term is used in Regulation D of the Board of Governors of 
the Federal Reserve System as in effect from time to time.  

        “Event of Default” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.01 of this Agreement.  

        “Final Advance Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.02 of this 
Agreement.  

        “Financing Offer” shall mean that certain letter agreement between Citicorp North 
America, Inc., Citibank International PLC and the Shipowner dated as of May 18, 1999 in 
contemplation of the financing arrangements evidenced by this Agreement.  

        “Floating Rate Note” shall mean a Note substantially in the form of Exhibit 2 to the 
Indenture, appropriately completed.  

        “Governmental Authority” shall mean the government of any country, any agency, 
department or other administrative authority or instrumentality thereof, and any local or 
other governmental authority within any such country.  

        “Guarantee” or “Guarantees” shall mean the guarantee of the Floating Rate Note by the 
United States of America pursuant to Title XI of the Act, as provided in the Authorization 
Agreement.  

        “Guarantee Commitment” shall mean the Commitment to Guarantee Obligations, 
Contract No. MA-13550, dated as of the Closing Date, executed by the Secretary and 
accepted by the Shipowner with respect to the Guarantees, as originally executed or as 
modified, amended or supplemented in accordance with the applicable provisions thereof.  

        “Guaranteed Interest” shall mean the interest payable on the outstanding principal 
amount of the Floating Rate Note, to the extent covered by the Guarantees, but specifically 
excluding any interest obligations arising under Section 4.02(b).  

        “Holder” shall mean each holder of a Floating Rate Note.  

        “Indemnified Amounts” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11.09 of this 
Agreement.  



        “Indenture” shall mean the Trust Indenture dated as of the Closing Date, between the 
Shipowner, and the Indenture Trustee, as the same is originally executed, or as modified, 
amended or supplemented in accordance with the applicable provisions thereof.  

        “Indenture Default” shall have the meaning specified in Article VI of Exhibit 1 to the 
Indenture.  

        “Indenture Trustee” shall mean Bankers Trust Company, a New York banking 
corporation, and any successor trustee permitted under the Indenture.  

        “Interest Payment Date” shall mean the date when any installment of interest on the 
Floating Rate Note is due and payable.  

        “Interest Period” shall have the meaning set forth in the Indenture.  

        “Lender” shall mean either the Primary Lender or the Alternate Lender, as the case 
may be.  

        “Lenders” shall mean, collectively, the Primary Lender and the Alternate Lender.  

        “LIBOR” shall, in relation to any Interest Period or to any Post-Maturity Period 
occurring pursuant to Section 4.02(b) of this Agreement, have the meaning set forth in the 
Indenture as in effect on the date hereof.  

        “Lien” shall mean any lien, lease, mortgage, pledge, hypothecation, preferential 
arrangement relating to payments, or other encumbrance or security interest.  

        “Liquidation Fee” shall have the meaning set forth in the Indenture.  

        “Liquidation Period” shall have the meaning set forth in the Indenture.  

        “Mandatory Note Redemption Date” shall have the meaning set forth in the Indenture.  

        “Maturity” shall mean the date on which the principal of, or interest on, the Floating 
Rate Note becomes due and payable as therein provided, whether on a Payment Date, at the 
Stated Maturity or by prepayment, repayment, redemption or declaration of acceleration or 
otherwise.  

        “Mortgage” shall have the meaning set forth in the Indenture.  

        “Other Taxes” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6.02(a) of this Agreement.  

        “Outstanding Principal” shall mean, with respect to the Floating Rate Note at any time, 
the outstanding principal amount thereof.  

        “Payment Date” shall mean the date when any installment of principal on the Floating 
Rate Note is due and payable, which will be the date occurring six (6) months after the 
Delivery Date or December 31, 2001, whichever is earlier, the date which is six (6) months 
after such date, and each anniversary of the foregoing dates; provided, that if any such day is 
not a Business Day, then the applicable Payment Date shall be extended to the next 
succeeding Business Day.  

        “Payment Default” shall have the meaning specified in Section 6.01(a) of Exhibit 1 to 
the Indenture.  



        “Person” shall mean any individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability 
company, joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization 
or government or any agency or political subdivision thereof.  

        “Post Maturity Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.02(b) of this 
Agreement.  

        “Primary Lender” shall mean Govco Incorporated and any substitute Primary Lender 
permitted under Section 11.03.  

        “Quotation Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.02(b) of this 
Agreement.  

        “Redemption” shall mean with respect to the redemption of the Floating Rate Note, the 
repayment or prepayment of the Floating Rate Note as applicable.  

        “Redemption Date” shall mean a date fixed for the prepayment, repayment or 
redemption of the Floating Rate Note by or pursuant to Section 4 of this Agreement, Article 
Fourth of the Indenture, or Article III of Exhibit 1 to the Indenture.  

        “Redemption Price” shall mean, the price at which the Floating Rate Note is to be 
prepaid, repaid, or redeemed pursuant to Section 4 of this Agreement, Article Fourth of the 
Indenture, or Article III of Exhibit 1 to the Indenture.  

        “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of Transportation or any official or official body 
from time to time duly authorized to perform the duties and functions of the Secretary of 
Transportation under Title XI of the Act (including the Maritime Administrator, the Acting 
Maritime Administrator, and to the extent so authorized, the Deputy Maritime Administrator 
and other officials of the Maritime Administration).  

        “Secretary’s Note” shall mean a promissory note issued and delivered by the 
Shipowner to the Secretary described in Article Third of the Security Agreement and shall 
also mean any promissory note issued in substitution for and replacement thereof pursuant 
to the Security Agreement.  

        “Security Agreement” shall mean the security agreement, dated the Closing Date, 
executed by the Shipowner and the Secretary relating to the security in respect to the 
Guarantees, as originally executed or as modified, amended or supplemented in accordance 
with the applicable provisions thereof.  

        “Shipowner” shall mean Ensco Offshore Company, a Delaware corporation, together 
with its successors and assigns, provided that, in the event the Secretary assumes any 
obligations of the Shipowner as contemplated by the provisions of Sections 6.09 of Exhibit 
1 to the Indenture, the term “Shipowner” as used in this Agreement shall not include the 
Secretary.  

        “Shipowner Documents” shall mean the Security Agreement, the Mortgage, the Title 
XI Reserve Fund and Financial Agreement, the Depository Agreement and the Secretary’s 
Note.  

        “Shipyard” shall mean Friede Goldman Offshore Texas, Limited Partnership, formerly 
known as TDI-Halter, Limited Partnership, a Louisiana limited partnership.  

        “Stated Maturity” shall mean the date determinable as set forth in the Floating Rate 
Note as the final date on which the principal of such Note is due and payable.  



        “Taxes” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6.02(a) of this Agreement.  

        “Title XI Reserve Fund and Financial Agreement” shall mean that certain Title XI 
Reserve Fund and Financial Agreement, Contract No. MA-13553, dated as of the Closing 
Date, executed by the Shipowner and the Secretary, as amended, modified or supplemented 
in accordance with the applicable provisions thereof.  

        “Transaction Documents” shall mean this Agreement, the Floating Rate Note, the 
Indenture, the Financing Offer, the EII Guaranty and all other instruments, agreements and 
documents executed and/or delivered by or on behalf of the Shipowner in connection with 
the foregoing, provided, however, that the term Transaction Documents shall not include the 
Shipowner Documents.  

        “Trigger Rate” shall have the applicable meaning assigned to such term in the 
Indenture as in effect on the date hereof.  

        “United States” shall mean the United States of America.  

        “Unpaid Amount” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.02(b) of this 
Agreement.  

        “Vessel” shall mean the semi-submersible drilling unit now known as ENSCO 7500 
currently under construction pursuant to the construction contract with the Shipyard.  

        1.02 Principles of Construction.  

        (a) The meanings set forth for defined terms in this Agreement shall be equally 
applicable to both the singular and plural forms of the terms defined.  

        (b) The headings of the Sections in this Agreement are included for convenience only 
and shall not in any way affect the meaning or construction of any provision of this 
Agreement.  

        (c) In the computation of time periods from one specified date to a later specified date, 
the word “from” shall mean “from and including” and the words “to” and “until” shall each 
mean “to but excluding”.  

        (d) References to Sections, unless otherwise indicated, shall mean and be references to 
the corresponding Sections of this Agreement.  

        SECTION 2. THE CREDIT FACILITY  

        2.01 Amount. (a) The Lenders hereby establish the Credit Facility, upon the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement, in favor of the Shipowner in the maximum aggregate 
amount of up to One Hundred Ninety-Four Million Seven Hundred Thirty-Six Thousand 
Dollars ($194,855,000), (as such amount may be reduced pursuant to paragraph (b) below, 
the “Credit Facility Amount”), to enable the Shipowner to finance the manufacture, 
construction, fabrication, financing and purchase of the Vessel. The Primary Lender intends 
but is not obligated to fund Advances through the issuance and sale of commercial paper. 
The Primary Lender may, at its option, elect at any time not to fund any Advances or any 
portion thereof, in which case the Alternate Lender will, subject to the terms and conditions 
provided herein and so long as the Final Advance Date has not occurred, be obligated to 
fund such Advances or the undisbursed portion thereof, as applicable up to an amount (the 
“Available Amount”) equal to the excess of the Credit Facility Amount over the aggregate 
cumulative amount of all Advances previously made hereunder.  



        (b) The Shipowner has the right, upon not less than ten (10) Business Days’ prior 
written notice to the Facility Agent, to terminate in whole or reduce ratably in part the 
Credit Facility Amount; provided, that the Shipowner may in no event reduce the Credit 
Facility Amount to an amount less than the Outstanding Principal.  

        2.02 Availability. Advances under the Credit Facility may, subject to the conditions set 
forth in Section 5, be made on any Business Day up to and including the Final Advance 
Date. The “Final Advance Date” shall mean the earliest of (i) June 30, 2002, (ii) the first 
Payment Date which occurs eighteen months or more after the Delivery Date, (iii) the date 
on which the Shipowner has issued Bonds under the Indenture to refinance the Floating Rate 
Note or (iv) the date on which the Available Amount has been reduced to zero.  

        2.03 Advances and Minimum Amount of Utilizations. Upon satisfaction of the 
conditions set forth in Sections 3.01, 5.01 and 5.02, advances shall be made from the 
Primary Lender (or if the Primary Lender fails to make such advances, then from the 
Alternate Lender) to the Shipowner (“Advances”) in accordance with Section 3.01. 
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the Shipowner may not request 
an Advance for an amount (a) less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) or (b) more than 
the Available Amount.  

        2.04 Floating Rate Note. The Shipowner agrees that to evidence its obligation to repay 
all Advances made hereunder and to pay interest accrued thereon, it shall issue and deliver 
to the Facility Agent the Floating Rate Note. Such Floating Rate Note shall (i) be in the 
form of Exhibit 2A to the Indenture; (ii) bear the Secretary’s Guarantee, and (iii) be valid 
and enforceable as to its principal amount at any time to the extent of the aggregate amounts 
then disbursed and outstanding thereunder.  

        2.05 Liquidation Fee. If any of the Outstanding Principal is paid on any date other than 
an Interest Payment Date or if an Interest Period ends on any date which is not an Interest 
Payment Date pursuant to clause (iv) contained in the definition thereof, then the Shipowner 
shall pay to the Facility Agent, for the benefit of the Primary Lender, the Liquidation Fee, if 
any, owed on account of such termination. Such Liquidation Fee shall be due and payable 
on demand.  

        SECTION 3. MAKING OF ADVANCES  

        3.01 Borrowing Procedures. Upon the Facility Agent’s receipt of a written request for 
an Advance at least three (3) Business Days prior to the proposed advance date setting forth 
the proposed amount of such Advance, the Facility Agent shall notify the applicable Lender 
to disburse funds to the Shipowner in accordance with the terms of such request and subject 
to the terms of this Agreement; provided that, if the request for such Advance and the 
related Certificate Authorizing Advance do not specify an Advance date, then the Advance 
Date shall be the third Business Day (or such earlier or later Business Day as is requested by 
the Shipowner and is acceptable to the Facility Agent and the applicable Lender) following 
the Facility Agent’s receipt of such request. Promptly following each Advance, the Facility 
Agent shall transmit to the Indenture Trustee written confirmation that the Advance was 
made and the amount thereof, together with a copy of the related Certificate Authorizing 
Advance.  

        SECTION 4. TERMS OF THE CREDIT FACILITY  

        4.01 Principal Repayment. The Shipowner shall repay the Outstanding Principal in 
three (3) installments, two (2) successive semi-annual installments of $6,495,167 each, with 
each such installment to be payable on a Payment Date, and on the earlier of June 30, 2002 
or the first Payment Date which occurs eighteen months or more after the Delivery Date, the 



Shipowner shall repay in full the remaining Outstanding Principal.  

        4.02 Interest Payment.  

        (a) On each Interest Payment Date, the Shipowner shall pay interest on the Outstanding 
Principal, calculated at an interest rate per annum equal to the Applicable Interest Rate 
therefor, as determined for each successive Interest Period. The weighted average cost of 
Commercial Paper used to determine the Applicable Interest Rate shall be determined by the 
Primary Lender Agent and the Primary Lender Agent shall not later than five (5) Business 
Days prior to each Interest Payment Date notify the Facility Agent, the Indenture Trustee 
and the Secretary of the Applicable Interest Rate for the Interest Period to end on such 
Interest Payment Date. In the event that the Primary Lender funds any Advances under the 
Credit Facility and subsequently assigns the outstanding amounts thereof to the Alternate 
Lender or another party, the interest rate on the Advances so assigned shall be determined 
pursuant to clause (a) of the definition of “Applicable Interest Rate” for the period prior to 
the effective date of such assignment and pursuant to clause (b) of such definition for all 
periods after such date. Interest on the Advances shall be paid on each Interest Payment 
Date.  

        (b) The Shipowner shall pay to the Facility Agent for the benefit of the Person entitled 
to any Unpaid Amount, on demand, interest on such Unpaid Amount (to the extent 
permitted by applicable law) for each Post Maturity Period at an interest rate per annum (the 
“Post-Maturity Interest Rate”) equal to two percent (2%) above the interest rate otherwise 
then applicable under Section 4.02(a); provided, that if such Unpaid Amount consists of 
principal on the Floating Rate Note as to which Guaranteed Interest continues to accrue, the 
Post-Maturity Interest Rate on such Unpaid Amount shall be limited to the incremental 
amount of additional interest required to be paid under this Section 4.02(b) and shall equal 
two percent (2.0%) per annum. In the absence of an Indenture Default, any interest which 
shall have accrued under this Section 4.02(b) in respect of an Unpaid Amount shall be due 
and payable and shall be paid by the Shipowner on demand on such dates as the Person to 
whom such Unpaid Amount is owed may specify by written notice to the Shipowner, or if 
there is an Indenture Default, any interest which shall have accrued under this Section 4.02
(b) in respect of an Unpaid Amount shall be due and payable immediately and shall be paid 
by the Shipowner without demand and any payment by, or on behalf of, the Shipowner 
hereunder shall be governed by Section 7.02 and the provisions of the last paragraph of 
Section 9.01.  

        As used herein, “Unpaid Amount” means all or any part of principal, accrued interest, 
fees or other amounts owing to either Agent or any Lender under this Agreement or the 
Floating Rate Note which is not paid in full when and as due and payable, whether at Stated 
Maturity, by acceleration or otherwise, or any sum due and payable by the Shipowner to 
either Agent or any Lender under any judgment of any court or arbitral tribunal in 
connection with this Agreement which is not paid on the date of such judgment. “Post 
Maturity Period” shall mean with respect to the period from the date an Unpaid Amount was 
due until such amount shall have been paid in full, each successive period, the first of which 
shall start on the date such Unpaid Amount was due (or the date of any such judgment or 
arbitral award, if earlier) and each other of which shall start on the last day of the preceding 
such period, and the duration of each of which shall be one day, or if LIBOR applies, then 
from and including the Quotation Date for such Post Maturity Period to but excluding the 
next Quotation Date or such other duration selected by the Person to whom such Unpaid 
Amount is due, provided, however, that in the case of any Accelerated Repayment, the first 
such Post Maturity Period applicable thereto shall be of a duration equal to the unexpired 
portion of its then applicable Interest Period; and provided, further, that in the case of Post 
Maturity Periods of one day, interest which accrues during such Post Maturity Period shall 
not begin to bear interest unless and until it remains unpaid at the end of the then applicable 
Interest Period. “Accelerated Repayment” shall mean any part of the principal of the 



Floating Rate Note which became due and payable on a day other than its Payment Date. 
“Quotation Date” in relation to any Post Maturity Period means the day on which quotations 
would ordinarily be given by Citibank, N.A. in the London interbank market for dollar 
deposits for delivery on the first day of that period, provided, however, that if, for any such 
Post Maturity Period, quotations would ordinarily be given on more than one date, the 
Quotation Date for that period shall be the last of those dates.  

        4.03 Prepayment. (a) The Shipowner may from time to time prepay all or part of the 
Outstanding Principal evidenced by the Floating Rate Note, provided that: (i) any partial 
prepayment shall be in a minimum principal amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000,) 
unless otherwise required by the Indenture; (ii) the Shipowner shall have given the Facility 
Agent and the Indenture Trustee prior written notice of the prepayment (which notice shall 
be given not less than five (5) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date of 
prepayment); (iii) the Shipowner shall have paid in full all amounts due under this 
Agreement as of the date of such prepayment, including, without limitation, interest which 
has accrued to the date of prepayment on the amount prepaid and all other amounts payable 
hereunder relating to the prepayment; (iv) any amount prepaid hereunder may not be 
reborrowed; and (v) if the Primary Lender shall have funded the Advance, pursuant to 
Section 2.01, which is to be prepaid, then Shipowner shall pay to the Facility Agent, for the 
benefit of the Primary Lender, on demand, the Liquidation Fee, if any, owed on account of 
such prepayment.  

        (b) The Floating Rate Note shall be mandatorily prepayable under the circumstances 
and at the times set forth in the Indenture. Without limiting the foregoing, (i) the Shipowner 
shall, upon issuance of any Bonds, prepay the Outstanding Principal of the Floating Rate 
Note in full and (ii) if the Shipowner receives written notice that the applicable Benchmark 
Rate equals or exceeds the applicable Trigger Rate, or if a Mandatory Note Redemption 
Date has otherwise occurred under the Indenture, then, unless the Secretary has waived in 
writing the requirement under the Indenture that the Floating Rate Note be redeemed on the 
Mandatory Note Redemption Date, the Outstanding Principal of the Floating Rate Note 
shall be due and payable in full on such Mandatory Note Redemption Date. Any amounts so 
prepaid or repaid may not be reborrowed and each such mandatory prepayment shall be 
accompanied by all interest which has accrued to the date of prepayment on the amount 
prepaid, any Liquidation Fees payable on account of such prepayment and any 
compensation owing to the Lenders on account of such prepayment under Section 4.04.  

        (c) Upon delivery to the Shipowner and the Secretary of the instrument satisfying and 
discharging the Indenture contemplated by Section 12.01 of the Exhibit 1 to the Indenture, 
all of the Shipowner’s indebtedness, liabilities and obligations under this Agreement 
(including, without limitation, any payment obligations under the Financing Offer 
incorporated into Section 6.01 of this Agreement) shall become immediately due and 
payable without demand upon, or notice to, the Shipowner.  

        (d) Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary herein, the Shipowner or the 
Secretary (after the Secretary’s assumption of the Floating Rate Note pursuant to Section 
6.09 of Exhibit 1 to the Indenture) may from time to time prepay all or part of the principal 
amount of the Floating Rate Note without any prepayment penalty or premium in 
accordance with Article III of Exhibit 1 to the Indenture except that the Shipowner (but not 
the Secretary) may be obligated as a result of such prepayment to make any payments 
provided for under Section 4.03(a) above or Section 4.04 below.  

        4.04 Recapture. (a) The Shipowner shall pay to the Facility Agent for the benefit of the 
applicable Lender, upon the written request of such Lender, such amounts as shall be 
sufficient (in the reasonable judgment of such Lender) to compensate such Lender for any 
loss, expense or liability (including, without limitation, any loss, expense or liability 
incurred by reason of the liquidation or redeployment of deposits from third parties or in 



connection with obtaining funds to make or maintain any Advance) which such Lender 
reasonably determines is attributable to:  

        (i) any failure to make scheduled payments on a Payment Date or any payment due in 
connection with any Redemption; or  

        (ii) any failure by the Shipowner to borrow any Advance for which a written request 
for Advance has been issued; or  

        (iii) any revocation of a notice of prepayment given pursuant to Section 4.03(a); or  

        (iv) any prepayment of the Floating Rate Note (including, without limitation, due to the 
issuance of any Bonds) to the extent that (i) such Floating Rate Note (or the portion so 
prepaid) is being funded by the Alternate Lender and (ii) such prepayment is other than on 
an Interest Payment Date.  

        Any such written request shall set forth in reasonable detail the basis of the calculation 
of such loss, expense or liability.  

        (b) Without prejudice to any other provision hereof (and at the Shipowner’s expense), 
the Facility Agent and the Alternate Lender shall use such reasonable efforts as each shall 
determine in its sole discretion to minimize any loss, expense or liability under this Section 
4.04; provided that neither the Facility Agent nor any Lender shall be obligated to take any 
actions under this Section 4.04(b) if the Facility Agent or such Lender has determined, in its 
sole discretion, that such actions would cause it to incur any material costs or expenses or 
would otherwise be disadvantageous to it in any material respect.  

        4.05 Limit of United States Guarantee. None of the interest (other than Guaranteed 
Interest), fees, and expenses arising under this Agreement and none of the Indemnified 
Amounts, commissions, Liquidation Fees, Breakage Fees, compensation under Section 4.04, 
Taxes, Other Taxes, default interest set forth herein, interest at the Post-Maturity Interest 
Rate or any other charges, costs, expenses, or indebtedness owed by the Shipowner under 
this Agreement to any Person (except for indebtedness evidenced by the Floating Rate Note 
as described in the immediately succeeding sentence) is guaranteed by the United States. 
The Guarantee of the United States extends only to the principal and interest owed under the 
Floating Rate Note and only to the extent specified therein.  

        SECTION 5. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT  

        5.01 Conditions Precedent to Lender’s Obligations Under this Agreement. (a) The 
agreement of the Primary Lender to make any Advances under this Agreement and any 
obligations of the Alternate Lender to fund any Advances under this Agreement shall be 
subject to the delivery to the Facility Agent of the following documents on or before the 
Closing Date:  

        (i) This Agreement, the Floating Rate Note and the EII Guaranty. This Agreement fully 
executed by the parties hereto in form and substance satisfactory to the Agents and the 
Lenders, which shall be in full force and effect, the Floating Rate Note fully executed by the 
Shipowner, with the Guarantee thereon endorsed by, or on behalf of, the United States; and 
the EII Guaranty, in form and substance satisfactory to the Agents and the Lenders, fully 
executed by EII.  

        (ii) Existence. Certificates of Incorporation and Certificates of good standing under the 
laws of Delaware for each of the Shipowner and EII, evidencing the full power, authority 
and legal right of each of the Shipowner and EII to own its property and to carry on its 



business as now conducted.  

        (iii) Authority. Certificates of director’s resolutions or other evidence in form and 
substance satisfactory to the Agents of the authority of the Shipowner to execute, deliver, 
perform and observe the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Floating Rate Note and 
the Indenture and of this Agreement and the authority of EII to execute, deliver, perform 
and observe the terms and conditions of the EII Guaranty and evidence of authority 
(including specimen signatures) for each Person who, on behalf of the Shipowner or EII, 
signed this Agreement, the Floating Rate Note, the Indenture and/or the EII Guaranty, as 
applicable or will otherwise act as representatives of the Shipowner in the operation of the 
Credit Facility.  

        (iv) Governmental and Other Authorizations. Copies, certified as true copies by duly 
authorized officers of the Shipowner and EII, of each consent, license, authorization or 
approval of, and exemption by, any Governmental Authority and any governmental 
authorities within the United States or elsewhere (except for consents, licenses, 
authorizations, approvals or exemptions required in the ordinary course of business from 
governmental authorities in connection with the operation of the Vessel), which are 
necessary or advisable (i) for the execution, delivery, performance and observance by the 
Shipowner of this Agreement, the Floating Rate Note and the Indenture; (ii) the execution, 
delivery, performance and observance by EII of the EII Guaranty and (iii) for the validity, 
binding effect and enforceability of this Agreement, the Floating Rate Note, the Indenture 
and the EII Guaranty as against the Shipowner or EII, as applicable or, if no such consent, 
license, authorization, approval or exemption is necessary, a written certification from the 
Shipowner to such effect.  

        (v) Legal Opinions. (1) Opinion of legal counsel for the Shipowner and EII concerning 
this Agreement, the Floating Rate Note, the Indenture and the EII Guaranty, (2) Opinion of 
Sidley & Austin addressed to the Agents and the Lenders concerning this Agreement, the 
Indenture and the Floating Rate Note and (3) Opinion of the Chief Counsel of the Maritime 
Administration dated the Closing Date, signed by or on behalf of such Chief Counsel, 
addressed to the Agents and the Lenders to the effect that the Guarantees and the 
Authorization Agreement have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the United 
States of America, and constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the United States of 
America enforceable in accordance with their respective terms.  

        (vi) Guarantee Commitment. A copy of the fully executed Guarantee Commitment, 
which shall be in full force and effect until completion of the Closing.  

        (vii) Authorization Agreement. The fully executed Authorization Agreement, which 
shall be in full force and effect.  

        (viii) Indenture. The fully executed Indenture, together with all Shipowner Documents 
required under the Indenture to be executed on or before the Closing Date, all of which shall 
be in full force and effect.  

        (ix) No Proceedings Letter. A letter from the Secretary in the form of Exhibit B hereto 
agreeing to be bound by the covenants set forth in Section 11.10 hereof regarding the filing 
of certain proceedings against the Primary Lender.  

        (b) The agreement of the Primary Lender to make any Advances under this Agreement 
and any obligations of the Alternate Lender to fund any Advances under this Agreement 
shall be subject to the following additional conditions precedent being satisfied as of the 
Closing Date:  



        (i) Fees and Expenses. All “Up-Front Fees” described in the Financing Offer and all 
accrued fees and out-of-pocket expenses due and payable to the Facility Agent or its counsel 
in accordance with the terms of the Financing Offer shall have been fully paid or provisions 
satisfactory to the Facility Agent shall have been made for payment of such amounts 
concurrently with the making of the initial Advance.  

        (ii) No Restrictions. No law, regulation, ruling or other action of any Governmental 
Authority shall be in effect or shall have occurred, the effect of which would be to restrain, 
prevent or otherwise impose any materially adverse conditions on any party’s ability to 
fulfill its obligations under this Agreement.  

        5.02 Conditions Precedent to Each Advance Under this Agreement. The agreement of 
the Primary Lender to fund any Advance under this Agreement and any obligations of the 
Alternate Lender to fund any Advances under this Agreement (including in each case the 
initial Advance) shall be subject to the following additional condition precedent being 
satisfied as of the related Advance Date:  

        (a) Certificate Authorizing Advance The Facility Agent shall have received from the 
Secretary a Certificate Authorizing Advance on which certificate the Lenders and the 
Agents may conclusively rely.  

        SECTION 6. FEES AND EXPENSES  

        6.01 Fees. The Shipowner shall pay or cause to be paid: (i), on the Closing Date, to the 
Primary Lender Agent, the Up-Front Fee in the percentage described in the Financing Offer 
based on the Credit Facility Amount; (ii) on each Payment Date and on the date the Floating 
Rate Note is repaid in full, to the Facility Agent for the benefit of the Alternate Lender, the 
Commitment Fee at the rate described in the Financing Offer based on the average daily 
Available Amount outstanding during the Interest Period then ending and calculated on the 
basis of a 360 day year and actual days elapsed; and (iii) to the Person entitled thereto such 
other fees, expenses and other amounts as are set forth in the Financing Offer in each case 
when and as due in accordance with the terms thereof, which payment terms are 
incorporated herein by this reference.  

6.02   Taxes.  

        (a) The Shipowner agrees to pay all amounts owing by it under this Agreement 
(including, without limitation, any amounts under the Financing Offer and owing under 
Section 6.01 of this Agreement) or the Floating Rate Note free and clear of and without 
deduction for any and all present and future taxes, levies, imposts, deductions, charges or 
withholdings, and all liabilities with respect thereto, excluding in the case of any Lender, 
taxes imposed on its income and franchise taxes imposed on it in lieu of income taxes and 
property by either (i) the jurisdiction under the laws of which the Lender is organized or any 
political subdivision thereof, or (ii) the jurisdiction of the Lender’s applicable lending office 
or any political subdivision thereof (all such non-excluded taxes, levies, imposts, 
deductions, charges, withholdings, and liabilities being hereinafter referred to as “Taxes”). 
In addition, the Shipowner agrees to pay any present or future stamp or documentary taxes 
or any other excise or property taxes, charges or similar levies which arise from any 
payment made hereunder (including, without limitation, any payments made under Section 
6.01) or under the Floating Rate Note or from the execution, delivery, or registration of, or 
otherwise with respect to, this Agreement or the Floating Rate Note (hereinafter referred to 
as “Other Taxes”).  

        (b) The Shipowner further agrees:  



        (i) that, if the Shipowner is prevented by operation of law from paying any such Taxes 
or Other Taxes, or if any such Taxes or Other Taxes are required to be deducted or withheld 
from any amount otherwise payable by the Shipowner to either Agent or any Lender under 
this Agreement (including, without limitation, under Section 6.01) or the Floating Rate 
Note, then the Shipowner will pay to such Agent or such Lender, as applicable, an 
additional amount sufficient to enable such Person to receive the same amount that it would 
have received on an after-tax basis if such Taxes or Other Taxes had been payable or if such 
deduction or withholding had not been required;  

        (ii) that the Shipowner shall, at the request of the affected Lender or either Agent, 
execute and deliver to such Lender such further instruments as may be necessary or 
desirable to effect the payment of the increased amounts as provided for in subsection (i) 
above, provided, however, that the Shipowner may not amend the Floating Rate Note 
without the prior written consent of the Secretary;  

        (iii) that the Shipowner shall hold the Agents and the Lenders harmless from and 
against the full amount of Taxes and Other Taxes (including, without limitation, any Taxes 
or Other Taxes imposed by any jurisdiction on amounts payable under this Section 6.02) 
and any and all liabilities (including, without limitation, penalties, interest and expenses) 
arising from, or with respect to, any Taxes or Other Taxes (whether or not properly or 
legally asserted) and whether paid, or payable, by the Shipowner, either Agent, any Lender 
or any other Person;  

        (iv) that, at the request of the Facility Agent, the Shipowner shall provide the Facility 
Agent within the later of thirty (30) calendar days after such request or thirty (30) calendar 
days after the payment of such Taxes or Other Taxes, a document evidencing the payment 
of such Taxes or Other Taxes by the Shipowner; and  

        (v) that each payment under this Section 6.02 shall be made within ten (10) Business 
Days from the date the Facility Agent makes written demand therefor. Each demand for 
payment by the Facility Agent under this Section 6.02(b)(v) for amounts paid or incurred by 
a Lender or Agent shall be accompanied by a certificate (with accompanying documentation 
supporting the demand) showing in reasonable detail the basis for and the calculation of the 
amounts demanded, which certificate, in the absence of manifest error, shall be conclusive 
and binding for all purposes.  

        (c) Each Lender which is organized under the laws of a jurisdiction other than the 
United States or any state therein shall, prior to the date such Lender becomes a party 
hereto, furnish to the Facility Agent and the Shipowner, such properly completed and duly 
signed forms and/or certificates as may be necessary or advisable under United States law to 
claim any reduction of or exemption from any Taxes or Other Taxes which the Shipowner 
may be required to withhold from any payments owed under this Agreement or the Floating 
Rate Note or with respect to which the Shipowner may be required to provide 
indemnification under this Section 6.02. If any such Lender which is organized under the 
laws of a jurisdiction other than the United States or any state therein fails to furnish such 
forms and, as a result thereof, the Borrower is required to pay withholding Taxes for the 
account of such Lender then, notwithstanding the first sentence of Section 6.02(a), the 
Borrower shall be permitted to withhold such Taxes from any amounts paid to such Lender 
under this Agreement or the Floating Rate Note.  

        (d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the agreements in this 
Section 6.02 shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the payment of the 
Floating Rate Note and all other amounts due hereunder.  

        6.03 Expenses. The Shipowner agrees, whether or not the transactions hereby 
contemplated shall be consummated, to pay, or reimburse the Agents and the Lenders 



promptly upon demand for the payment of all reasonable and duly documented costs and 
expenses arising in connection with the preparation, printing, execution, delivery, 
registration, implementation, amendment, modification of or waiver or consent under this 
Agreement, the Floating Rate Note, the Indenture and the Financing Offer, including, 
without limitation, the reasonable and duly documented out-of-pocket expenses of the 
Agents and the Lenders (incurred in respect of telecommunications, mail or courier service, 
travel and the like), and the fees and expenses of one set of outside counsel for the Agents 
and the Lenders. The Shipowner shall also pay all of the costs and expenses (including, 
without limitation, the fees and expenses of counsel) incurred by or charged to the Agents 
and the Lenders in connection with the enforcement of this Agreement, the Floating Rate 
Note, the Indenture or the Financing Offer or the protection or preservation of any right or 
claim of the Facility Agent or any Lender arising out of this Agreement, the Floating Rate 
Note, the Indenture or the Financing Offer.  

        6.04 Additional or Increased Costs.  

        (a) If, due to either (i) the introduction of or any change in or in the interpretation of 
any law or regulation or (ii) the compliance with any guideline or request from any central 
bank or other Governmental Authority (whether or not having the force of law), there shall 
be any increase in the cost to a Lender of agreeing to make or making, funding or 
maintaining the Advances or the Credit Facility, then the Shipowner shall from time to time, 
upon demand by a Lender, pay to such Lender additional amounts sufficient to compensate 
such Lender for such increased cost.  

        (b) If a Lender determines that compliance with any law or regulation or any guideline 
or request from any central bank or other Governmental Authority (whether or not having 
the force of law) affects or would affect the amount of capital required to be maintained by 
such Lender or any corporation controlling such Lender and that the amount of such capital 
is increased by or based upon the existence of such Lender’s commitment to lend hereunder 
and other commitments of this type, then, upon demand by such Lender, the Shipowner 
shall immediately pay to the Facility Agent, for the benefit of such Lender, from time to 
time as specified by the Facility Agent, additional amounts sufficient to compensate such 
Lender or such corporation in the light of such circumstances, to the extent that such Lender 
reasonably determines such increase in capital to be allocable to the existence of its 
commitment to lend hereunder.  

        (c) Before making any such demand for payment by the Facility Agent under this 
Section 6.04, a Lender shall first make a reasonable investigation as to whether the 
increased costs of such compliance can be avoided, without the incurrence of a material 
disadvantage by such Lender, by shifting the office through which such Lender funds and 
maintains the Advances or the Credit Facility to another office owned and managed by such 
Lender.  

        (d) Each demand for payment by the Facility Agent under this Section 6.04 shall be 
accompanied by a certificate showing in reasonable detail the basis for the calculation of the 
amounts demanded, which certificate, in the absence of manifest error, shall be conclusive 
and binding for all purposes.  

        (e) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the agreements in this 
Section 6.04 shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the payment of the 
Floating Rate Note and all other amounts due hereunder.  

        SECTION 7. PAYMENTS  

        7.01 Method of Payment.  



        (a) All payments to be made by the Shipowner under this Agreement and the Floating 
Rate Note shall be made without setoff or counterclaim in Dollars in immediately available 
and freely transferable funds no later than 1:00 P.M. (New York City time) on the date on 
which due. Payments made after such time on any date shall be deemed to have been 
received on the next succeeding Business Day. The Shipowner shall pay the principal and 
Guaranteed Interest on the Floating Rate Note to the Indenture Trustee and all other 
amounts due under this Agreement directly to the Facility Agent, for its benefit or the 
benefit of the other parties hereto, in each case, by wire transfer in same day and 
immediately available and freely transferable funds. Wire transfer instructions shall be 
provided to the Shipowner and Indenture Trustee in writing by the Facility Agent at least 
three (3) Business Days before the applicable Payment Date.  

        (b) Except as otherwise provided herein, whenever any payment would otherwise fall 
due on a day which is not a Business Day, the due date for payment shall be the 
immediately succeeding Business Day, and interest and fees shall be computed in 
accordance with Section 11.01.  

        7.02 Application of Payments; Subordination of Lenders’ Rights. In the absence of an 
Indenture Default, the Agents and the Lenders shall apply payments received by it under 
this Agreement and the Floating Rate Note (whether at Stated Maturity, by reason of 
acceleration, prepayment or otherwise), in the following order of priority: (i) Guaranteed 
Interest; (ii) installments of principal due under the Floating Rate Note; (iii) interest due 
other than the amount described in clause (i) above; (iv) all amounts due under Section 6.01; 
and (v) all other amounts due under this Agreement and not otherwise provided for in this 
Section 7.02. Upon the occurrence of an Indenture Default, the Lender shall hold any 
payments it receives after an Indenture Default from, or on behalf of, the Shipowner under 
this Agreement (including payments under Section 6.01 and payments in respect of any 
claims pertaining to this Agreement, including, without limitation, claims for fraud, 
misrepresentation, misappropriation of funds or willful misconduct) and any related 
agreement (excluding payments received from the Secretary to pay Guaranteed Interest on 
or principal of the Floating Rate Note) and shall promptly deliver such payments to the 
Secretary (without deduction for any setoff or counterclaim of either Agent or any Lender) 
if the Secretary has been required to honor the Guarantee. All such amounts received during 
an Indenture Default and delivered to the Secretary in accordance with the preceding 
sentence shall be applied first to pay, satisfy and discharge all amounts owed by the 
Shipowner to the Secretary under the Secretary’s Note and the Mortgage and then, if any 
remain, to pay, satisfy and discharge any and all amounts owed to the Agents and the 
Lenders.  

        SECTION 8. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY THE SHIPOWNER  

        8.01 Representations and Warranties. The Shipowner represents and warrants to the 
Lender that, as of the Closing Date and as of each Advance Date:  

        (a) Existence and Authority. The Shipowner is duly organized, validly existing and in 
good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware, has been duly qualified to do 
business in, and is in good standing as a foreign corporation in each jurisdiction except 
where failure to be so qualified would not result in a material adverse effect on the 
Shipowner’s business, financial condition, prospects, operations or its ability to repay the 
Advances and has full power, authority and legal right to own its properties and conduct its 
business as it is presently now conducted. The Shipowner is a “citizen of the United States” 
within the meaning of Section 2 of the Shipping Act, 1916, as amended for the purpose of 
operating the Vessel in the trades or manner in which the Shipowner proposes to operate the 
Vessel.  

        The Shipowner has full power, authority and legal right (i) to execute and deliver this 



Agreement, the Floating Rate Note and the Indenture, (ii) to perform and observe the terms 
and provisions of each of said documents to be performed or observed by it, (iii) to 
consummate the transactions contemplated thereby and (iv) to own its properties (including, 
without limitation, the Vessel) and to conduct its business as presently conducted and as 
proposed to be conducted.  

        (b) Government and Other Authorizations. All consents, licenses, authorizations and 
approvals of, filings with, and exemptions by, any Governmental Authority and any other 
Persons that are necessary or advisable: (i) for the execution, delivery, performance and 
observance by the Shipowner of this Agreement, the Floating Rate Note, the Indenture and 
any other Transaction Documents to which it is a party and (ii) for the validity, binding 
effect and enforceability as against the Shipowner of this Agreement, the Floating Rate 
Note, the Indenture and the other Transaction Documents to which it is a party have been 
obtained and are in full force and effect. Neither the Indenture nor the Floating Rate Note is 
required to be qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 or otherwise to be registered 
under any securities laws.  

        (c) Restrictions. The execution, delivery and performance or observance by the 
Shipowner of the terms of, and consummation of the transactions contemplated by, this 
Agreement, the Floating Rate Note, the Indenture and the other Transaction Documents to 
which the Shipowner is a party do not and will not conflict with or result in a breach or 
violation of: (i) its charter, by-laws or similar documents; (ii) any applicable federal or state 
law of the United States, or any other ordinance, decree, constitutional provision, regulation 
or other requirement of any Governmental Authority (including, without limitation, any 
restriction on interest that may be paid by the Shipowner); or (iii) any order, writ, injunction, 
judgment or decree of any court or other tribunal binding or otherwise with jurisdiction over 
the Shipowner. Further, the execution, delivery and performance, observance or 
consummation by the Shipowner of the transactions contemplated by, this Agreement, the 
Floating Rate Note, the Indenture and the other Transaction Documents to which it is a party 
does not and will not conflict with or result in a breach of any agreement or instrument to 
which the Shipowner is a party, or by which it or any of its revenues, properties or assets 
may be subject, or result in the creation or imposition of any Lien upon any of the revenues, 
properties or assets of the Shipowner pursuant to any such agreement or instrument (other 
than the Liens created by the Shipowner Documents).  

        (d) Binding Effect. This Agreement, the Indenture, the Floating Rate Note and any 
other Transaction Documents to which it is a party have been duly executed and delivered 
by the Shipowner. Each of this Agreement, the Floating Rate Note, the Indenture and such 
other Transaction Documents constitutes a direct, general and unconditional obligation of 
the Shipowner which is legal, valid and binding upon it and enforceable against it in 
accordance with its respective terms, except as limited by bankruptcy, fraudulent transfer, 
insolvency or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally. All 
obligations evidenced by the Floating Rate Note will be entitled to the benefits of the 
Guarantees and the Authorization Agreement.  

        (e) Legal Proceedings. No legal proceedings are pending or, to the best of the 
Shipowner’s knowledge, threatened before any court, arbitrator, or governmental agency 
which might: (i) materially and adversely affect the Shipowner’s condition (financial or 
otherwise), business, prospects or operations; (ii) restrain or enjoin or have the effect of 
restraining or enjoining the performance or observance by the Shipowner of the terms and 
conditions of any of this Agreement, the Indenture, the Floating Rate Note or any other 
Transaction Documents; or (iii) in any other manner question the validity, binding effect or 
enforceability against the Shipowner of any of this Agreement, the Indenture, the Floating 
Rate Note or any other Transaction Documents.  

        (f) Use of the Vessel. The Vessel will be used for lawful purposes.  



        (g) EII’s Financial Statements. EII’s Financial Statements present fairly the 
consolidated financial condition of EII and its consolidated subsidiaries at the date of such 
statements and the results of consolidated operations for such fiscal year. EII’s Financial 
Statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
in the United States consistently applied. Except as fully reflected in such Financial 
Statements, there are no liabilities or obligations with respect to EII, the Shipowner or any 
other subsidiary of EII of any nature whatsoever (whether absolute, accrued, contingent or 
otherwise and whether or not due) for the period to which EII’s Financial Statements relate 
that, either individually or in the aggregate, would be material to the Shipowner. “EII’s 
Financial Statements” shall mean the consolidated year-end financial statements of EII and 
its subsidiaries furnished to the Facility Agent prior to the date of this Agreement.  

        (h) No Taxes. There is no Tax imposed on or in connection with the execution or 
delivery of this Agreement, the Indenture, the Financing Offer, the Floating Rate Note or the 
other Transaction Documents or any payment to be made by the Shipowner to the Facility 
Agent or any Lender under this Agreement, the Indenture, the Financing Offer, the Floating 
Rate Note or the other Transaction Documents, in each case other than Taxes on or 
measured by the net income of either Agent or any Lender; provided that no representation 
is made as to any withholding of payments for Taxes as to any Lender organized under the 
laws of a jurisdiction other than the United States or any state therein and which does not 
provide the forms or certificates contemplated by Section 6.02(c).  

        (i) Defaults. No Event of Default has occurred and is continuing and no event or 
circumstance has occurred and is continuing which with the passage of time, the giving of 
notice or both would constitute an Event of Default.  

        8.02 Covenants of the Shipowner. The Shipowner covenants that until all amounts 
owing under this Agreement and the Floating Rate Note have been paid in full, the 
Shipowner will, unless the Agents and the Lenders shall have consented in writing:  

        (a) Compliance with Agreements and Applicable Laws. The Shipowner shall perform 
each of its obligations under this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents and 
comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations applicable to it, including those 
relating to labor matters and environmental laws, the payment of taxes and other liabilities 
and the filing of tax returns with respect thereto.  

        (b) Maintenance of Existence and Conduct of Business. The Shipowner shall: (i) do or 
cause to be done all things necessary to preserve and keep in full force and effect its 
corporate existence and its rights, licenses, permits, charters, franchises and registrations 
and (ii) continue to conduct its business substantially as now conducted or as otherwise 
contemplated to be conducted.  

        (c) Use of Proceeds. The Shipowner shall use the proceeds from each Advance solely 
to finance the construction and acquisition of the Vessel and shall use the proceeds from the 
issuance of any Bond to repay in full amounts owed under the Floating Rate Note. No 
proceeds of any Advance will be used to purchase or carry any “margin stock” (as such term 
is defined in applicable regulations of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System as in effect from time to time) or to extend credit to others for the purpose of 
purchasing or carrying any margin stock.  

        (d) Books and Records; Access. The Shipowner shall keep proper books of record and 
account in which full and correct entries shall be made of all financial transactions and the 
assets and business of the Shipowner in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and shall permit the Facility Agent or any Affiliate thereof to make or cause to be 
made inspections and audits of any such books, records and papers and to make extracts 
therefrom and copies thereof from time to time as required in order to assure that the 



Shipowner will be in compliance with its obligations under this Agreement and the other 
Transaction Documents.  

        (e) Notice of Defaults. The Shipowner shall promptly, but in no event later than five 
(5) Business Days after a responsible officer obtains actual knowledge of the occurrence of 
an Indenture Default or an Event of Default (or event which, with giving of notice or the 
passage of time, would constitute an Indenture Default or Event of Default), notify the 
Facility Agent and the Indenture Trustee of any such event and forward to the Facility 
Agent a copy of any report of such event required by the Transaction Documents.  

        (f) Financial Reports. Beginning with the fiscal year in which this Agreement is 
executed and continuing until all amounts owing under this Agreement and the Floating 
Rate Note have been paid in full, the Shipowner shall cause EII to, concurrently with 
delivery to the Secretary, furnish to the Facility Agent a copy of all financial reports 
furnished to the Secretary pursuant to the Title XI Reserve Fund and Financial Agreement.  

        (g) Litigation; Material Events. The Shipowner shall promptly, but in no event later 
than five (5) Business Days after a responsible officer obtains actual knowledge thereof, 
notify the Facility Agent of the occurrence of any legal proceedings of the sort described in 
Section 8.01(e) and of any other legal proceedings or other event which might be reasonably 
likely to have a material adverse effect on the Shipowner’s condition (financial or 
otherwise), business or operations or its ability to perform its obligations under Transaction 
Documents to which the Shipowner is a party; provided, however, that such duty to notify 
the Facility Agent shall not apply to legal proceedings already disclosed by EII in a 10-Q or 
10-K, a copy of which has been delivered to the Facility Agent.  

        (h) Other Acts. From time to time, the Shipowner shall do and perform any and all acts 
and execute any and all documents as may be necessary or as reasonably requested by the 
Facility Agent or the Indenture Trustee in order to effect the purposes of this Agreement and 
to protect the interests of the Lenders in the Floating Rate Note and the interests of the 
Lenders in the Guarantee.  

        (i) Successors. The Shipowner shall require that any successor to all or substantially all 
of its business as a result of any merger or consolidation with any other entity; dissolution or 
termination of legal existence; sale, lease, transfer or other disposal of any substantial part of 
its properties or any of its properties essential to the conduct of its business or operations, as 
now or hereafter conducted; any change in control; any agreement to do any of, or any 
combination of, the foregoing, to assume all of the Shipowner’s indebtedness, liabilities and 
obligations under this Agreement and the Floating Rate Note pursuant to documentation in 
form and substance satisfactory to the Agents, the Lenders, and the Secretary.  

        (j) Mandatory Redemption. In the event that the Floating Rate Note is required to be 
redeemed pursuant to paragraph (a)(2) of Article Third of the Indenture (without giving 
effect to any amendments after the date hereof), then the Shipowner shall, at its expense, 
unless the Secretary has waived in writing the requirement that the Floating Rate Note be 
redeemed on such Mandatory Note Redemption Date, undertake all actions required on its 
part on or prior to the Mandatory Note Redemption Date to cause Bonds to be issued the 
proceeds of which will be used to redeem the Outstanding Principal (and, if applicable, the 
Guaranteed Interest) of the Floating Rate Note in full or otherwise redeem the Floating Rate 
Note in full. Without limiting the foregoing, the Shipowner shall (i) cooperate with the 
Agents, the Alternate Lender and Salomon Smith Barney Inc. (or any Affiliate thereof 
which agree to underwrite the Bonds) in the preparation of a prospectus or placement 
memorandum relating to such Bonds, (ii) provide Salomon Smith Barney Inc. (or any such 
other Affiliate thereof which agree to underwrite the Bonds) with access to its officers and 
agents in connection with the issuance of such Bonds, (iii) provide such information and 
shall undertake such other actions as may be reasonably requested by the Agents, the 



Alternate Lender and/or Salomon Smith Barney Inc. (and/or any such other Affiliate thereof 
which agree to underwrite the Bonds) in order to ensure a timely issuance of Bonds and (iv) 
unless the Secretary has waived the requirement that the Floating Rate Note be redeemed on 
such Mandatory Note Redemption Date, execute a Bond Purchase Agreement providing for 
the issuance and sale of Bonds in an aggregate principal amount equal to the Outstanding 
Principal amount of the Floating Rate Note and providing for the application of proceeds to 
prepay the Floating Rate Note or otherwise redeem such Floating Rate Note in full.  

        SECTION 9. EVENTS OF DEFAULT  

        9.01 Events of Default. Upon the occurrence of any of the following events or 
conditions (each, an "Event of Default"):  

        (a) any failure by the Shipowner to pay any principal under the Floating Rate Note 
when due and payable and any failure by the Shipowner to pay any interest or other amounts 
owed under the Floating Rate Note or under this Agreement which is not paid within three 
(3) Business Days of the date such interest or other amounts became due and payable 
hereunder or under the Floating Rate Note; or  

        (b) any representation or warranty made or deemed made by the Shipowner in this 
Agreement or in connection herewith, shall have proven to have been false or misleading in 
any material respect as of the date when made or deemed made;  

        (c) any failure by the Shipowner to comply with its obligations under Section 8.02(c), 
8.02(e), or 8.02(j), any failure of EII to comply with its obligations under Section 3(iii), 3
(v), or 3(viii) of the EII Guaranty, or any failure by the Shipowner or EII to perform or 
comply with any of their respective obligations set forth in this Agreement or the EII 
Guaranty, as applicable, (exclusive of any events specified as an Event of Default in any 
other subsection of this Section 9.01), which failure, if capable of being cured, remains 
uncured for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof has been given to the 
Shipowner by the Facility Agent; or  

        (d) any judgment against the Shipowner shall have been entered on a claim not covered 
by insurance in an amount which, if the Shipowner were required to pay such judgment, 
would be reasonably likely to materially and adversely affect the ability of the Shipowner to 
pay its indebtedness under this Agreement or any Note, which judgment shall have 
remained unpaid, unvacated, unbonded or unstayed by appeal or otherwise for a period of 
thirty (30) days from the date of its entry;  

        (e) the Shipowner shall be unable to pay its debts when and as they fall due or shall 
admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as they fall due or shall become insolvent; or 
the Shipowner shall apply for or consent to the appointment of any liquidator, receiver, 
trustee or administrator for all or a substantial part of its business, properties, assets or 
revenues; or a liquidator, receiver, trustee or administrator shall be appointed for the 
Shipowner and such appointment shall continue undismissed, undischarged or unstayed for 
a period of sixty (60) days, or the Shipowner shall institute (by petition, application, answer, 
consent or otherwise) any bankruptcy, arrangement, readjustment of debt, dissolution, 
liquidation or similar executory or judicial proceeding; or a bankruptcy, arrangement, 
readjustment of debt, dissolution, liquidation or similar executory or judicial proceeding 
shall be instituted against the Shipowner shall remain undismissed, undischarged or 
unstayed for a period of sixty (60) days; or  

        (f) an Indenture Default has occurred and is continuing and, if such Indenture Default 
arises under Section 6.01(a)(2) of the Indenture, the Secretary’s Notice given with respect 
thereto remains in full force and effect; or  



        (g) this Agreement shall cease to constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of 
the Shipowner;  

        then, and in any such event, and at any time thereafter, if such event is continuing, and 
if there is no Indenture Default (or if there is an Indenture Default, only after the Secretary 
has received all payments due under the Secretary’s Note and the Mortgage), the Facility 
Agent, by written notice to the Shipowner and the Secretary, shall have the right to institute 
any judicial or other proceedings under this Agreement to recover all amounts then owing 
under this Agreement, except that, for so long as the Guarantee is in effect, Lender’s sole 
recourse to the recovery of principal and Guaranteed Interest owed under the Floating Rate 
Note shall be to exercise its rights under the Indenture and the Guarantee to demand 
payment from the Secretary under the Guarantee. Without limiting the foregoing, the Agents 
and the Lenders agree that (i) the existence of an Event of Default shall not terminate their 
funding obligations under this Agreement unless the Secretary otherwise consents in writing 
and (ii) so long as an Indenture Default exists, all amounts received during such period 
from, or on behalf of, the Shipowner shall be applied in the manner set forth in Section 7.02. 
Except as expressly provided above in this Section 9.01, presentment, demand, protest and 
all other notices of any kind are hereby expressly waived. Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Agreement, if Section 9.01(e) is applicable, the Agents and/or any Lender 
may file appropriate claims in connection therewith, but shall apply any funds collected as a 
consequence of said filings in accordance with the provisions of Section 7.02 of this 
Agreement.  

        SECTION 10. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION  

        10.01 Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND 
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK 
(WITHOUT REGARD TO ITS PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAW OTHER THAN 
SECTION 5-1401 OF THE NEW YORK GENERAL OBLIGATIONS LAW).  

        10.02 Submission to Jurisdiction. The Shipowner hereby irrevocably agrees that any 
legal suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the Indenture, 
the Financing Offer, the Floating Rate Note or any of the transactions contemplated hereby, 
may be instituted by the other parties hereto in the Federal Courts (or, if such court refuses 
to take jurisdiction, any New York State Court) sitting in the Borough of Manhattan, City of 
New York, State of New York and hereby irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted 
by law, any objection which it may have now or hereafter to the laying of the venue or any 
objection based on forum non conveniens, or based on the grounds of jurisdiction with 
respect to any such legal suit, action or proceeding and irrevocably submits generally and 
unconditionally to the jurisdiction of any such court in any such suit, action or proceeding. 
The Shipowner agrees that a judgment, after exhaustion of all available appeals, in any such 
action or proceeding shall be conclusive and binding upon it and may be enforced in any 
other jurisdiction by suit upon such judgment, a certified copy of which shall be conclusive 
evidence of the judgment. The Shipowner waives personal service of any summons, 
complaint, or other process, which service may be made by such or any other means 
permitted by New York law.  

        10.03 Service of Process. (a) In the case of the courts of the State of New York or of 
the Federal courts sitting in the State of New York, the Shipowner hereby designates, 
appoints and empowers CT Corporation System, 111 EighthAvenue, New York, NY 10011, 
as its authorized agent to accept, receive and acknowledge, for and on behalf of such party, 
its properties and revenues, service of any and all process which may be served in any 
action, suit or proceeding of the nature referred to above in the State of New York, which 
appointment shall be irrevocable until the appointment and acceptance of a successor 
authorized agent pursuant to the provisions of Section 10.03(d).  



        (b) The Shipowner further agrees that such service of process may be made personally 
or by mailing or delivering a copy of the summons and complaint or other legal process in 
any such legal suit, action or proceeding to the Shipowner in care of its agent designated 
above at the aforesaid address, and such agent is hereby authorized to accept, receive and 
acknowledge the same for and on behalf of the Shipowner and to admit service with respect 
thereto. Service upon such agent shall be deemed to be personal service on the Shipowner 
and shall be legal and binding upon the Shipowner for all purposes notwithstanding any 
failure to mail copies of such legal process to the Shipowner or any failure on the part of the 
Shipowner to receive the same, and shall be deemed completed upon the delivery thereof to 
such agent whether or not such agent shall give notice thereof to the Shipowner or upon the 
earliest other date permitted by applicable law (including, without limitation, the United 
States Foreign Sovereign Immunities Act of 1976, as amended).  

        (c) To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Shipowner further irrevocably agrees 
to the service of process of any of the aforementioned courts in any suit, action or 
proceeding by the mailing of copies thereof by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 
requested, to the Shipowner at the address referenced in Section 11.02, such service to be 
effective upon the date indicated on the postal receipt returned from the Shipowner.  

        (d) The Shipowner agrees that it will at all times continuously maintain an agent to 
receive service of process in the State of New York on behalf of itself and its properties and 
revenues, and, in the event that for any reason its agent designated above shall not serve as 
its agent to receive service of process in the State of New York on its behalf, the Shipowner 
shall promptly appoint a successor satisfactory to the Facility Agent so to serve, advise the 
Facility Agent of such appointment, and deliver to the Facility Agent evidence in writing of 
the successor agent’s acceptance of such appointment. The foregoing provisions constitute, 
among other things, a special arrangement for service between the parties to this Agreement 
for the purposes of 28 U.S.C. 1608.  

        10.04 Waiver of Security Requirements. To the extent the Shipowner may, in any 
action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement be entitled under applicable 
law to require or claim that the Facility Agent, the Primary Lender Agent or the Lenders 
post security for costs or take similar action, the Shipowner hereby irrevocably waives and 
agrees not to claim the benefit of such entitlement.  

        10.05 No Limitation. Nothing in this Section 10 shall affect the right of either Agent or 
the Lenders to serve process in any manner permitted by law or to commence legal 
proceedings or otherwise proceed against the Shipowner in any jurisdiction; provided, 
however, that except as provided in Section 9.01, in the event of an Indenture Default, 
neither any Agent nor any Lender may proceed against the Shipowner without the 
Secretary’s consent unless the Secretary has received full payment under the Secretary’s 
Note.  

        SECTION 11. MISCELLANEOUS  

        11.01 Computations. Each determination of an interest rate, fee or other amounts by the 
Lender or any other Person pursuant to any provision of this Agreement, the Financing 
Offer or the Floating Rate Note, in the absence of manifest error, shall be conclusive and 
binding on the Shipowner. All computations of interest and fees hereunder and under the 
Floating Rate Note and the Financing Offer shall be made on the basis of a year of 360 days 
and actual days elapsed.  

        11.02 Notices. Except as otherwise specified, all notices given hereunder shall be in 
writing, and shall be given by mail, telecopier, telex or personal delivery and shall be 
deemed to be given for the purposes of this Agreement on the day that such notice is 
received by the intended recipient thereof. Unless otherwise specified in a notice delivered 



in accordance with this Section 11.02, all notices shall be delivered to the parties hereto and 
to the Indenture Trustee and the Secretary at their respective addresses indicated below:  

To the Facility Agent and the Lenders: 
     Address  CITIBANK INTERNATIONAL PLC, as Facility Agent 
     P.O. Box 242 
     336 Strand 
     London, England WC2R 1HB 
     Attention: Loans Agency 
     Fax:  44-171-500-4482/4484 
     Telephone:  41171-500-4242/1415 
To the Primary Lender Agent: 
     Address:  CITICORP NORTH AMERICA, INC. 
     399 Park Avenue 
     New York, New York 10043 
     Attention:  Structured Trade Finance 
Facsimile:  (212) 793-2330 
Telephone:  212) 559-6787 
  
To the Shipowner: 
     Address: 
     ENSCO OFFSHORE COMPANY 
     2700 Fountain Place 
     1445 Ross Avenue 
     Dallas, Texas 75202-2792 
     Attention: Chief Financial Officer 
     Telephone: (214) 922-1500 
     Facsimile: (214) 855-0300 
  
To the Secretary: 
     Address: 
     SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTATION 
     c/o Maritime Administrator 
     400 Seventh Street, S.W. 
     Washington, D.C. 20590 
     Attention: Office of Ship Financing 
     Telephone: (202) 366-5744 
     Facsimile: (202) 366-7901 
  
To the Indenture Trustee: 
  
     Address: 
     Bankers Trust Company 
     Four Albany Street 
     New York, New York 10006 
     Attention: 
     Corporate Trust and Agency Services 



     Project Finance Group 
     Telephone: (212) 250-8869 
     Facsimile: (212) 250-6725 

        11.03 Disposition of Indebtedness. Any Lender, as provided in the Indenture, may sell, 
assign, transfer, negotiate, or otherwise dispose of all or any part of its interest in, or all or 
any part of the Shipowner’s indebtedness under, this Agreement and the Floating Rate Note 
to any party (collectively, a “Disposition of Indebtedness”), and any such party shall enjoy 
all the rights and privileges of a Lender under this Agreement and the Floating Rate Note to 
the extent of the interest assigned thereby; provided, however, that (i) no Lender may assign 
any commitment to fund any Advance hereunder without the prior written consent of the 
Facility Agent, the Shipowner and the Secretary (which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed); (ii) each Disposition of Indebtedness to any Person shall require the 
prior written consent of the Facility Agent (which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed); (iii) each Disposition of Indebtedness to any Person (other than to 
Citibank, N.A., any Affiliate of Citibank, N.A., any other Alternate Lender previously 
approved under this clause (iii), or any substitute Primary Lender which is managed by the 
Primary Lender Agent and whose short-term commercial paper rating is greater than or 
equivalent to that of the Primary Lender at the time of such assignment) shall require the 
prior written consent of the Shipowner and the Secretary (which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed); (iv) if such assignee Lender is organized under the laws 
of a jurisdiction other than the United States, then such assignee must deliver to the Facility 
Agent and the Shipowner the documents contemplated by Section 6.02(c); (v) (except for a 
disposition from the Primary Lender to the Alternate Lender) the Shipowner shall not, as a 
result of such disposition, be required to pay to or for the benefit of such party any amount 
under any yield protection or withholding tax indemnity provision hereunder that is greater 
than the amount that the Shipowner would have been required to pay to the Primary Lender 
or the Alternate Lender, as applicable, had no such disposition occurred, as determined at 
the time such Disposition of Indebtedness occurred; and (vi) in the event of any assignment 
by any Alternate Lender to any other Alternate Lender, no such assignment shall become 
effective unless and until the assigning Alternate Lender shall have paid (or shall have 
caused its assignee to have paid) to the Facility Agent a processing and recordation fee of 
$3,000, which fee shall compensate the Facility Agent for the costs and expenses of 
documenting such assignment and payment of which fee shall relieve the Shipowner of any 
obligation to pay such costs and expenses; provided further, however, that any Lender may 
pledge or grant participations in all or any part of its interest in all or any part of the 
Shipowner’s indebtedness under this Agreement and the Floating Rate Note, without the 
consent of the Facility Agent or the Shipowner (w) to any federal reserve bank as security 
for its obligations to such federal reserve bank, (x) so long as prior written notice of such 
assignment is given to the Facility Agent, the Shipowner and the Secretary, to any Affiliate 
of the Lender or to any substitute Primary Lender described in clause (iii) of this sentence, 
(y) no such pledge or grant of a participation described in the foregoing proviso shall relieve 
the Alternate Lender of its commitment to fund any Advance hereunder, and (z) each 
Lender shall retain the sole right to approve, without the consent of any participant, any 
amendment, modification or waiver of any provision of this Agreement and the Floating 
Rate Note other than any amendment, modification or waiver which forgives principal, 
interest or fees or reduces the interest rate or fees payable pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement with respect to any such Advance or commitment in which such participant has 
an interest, postpones any date fixed for any regularly-scheduled payment of principal of, or 
interest or fees on, any such Advance or commitment. The Shipowner shall, at the request of 
the Facility Agent, execute and deliver to the Facility Agent for the benefit of the assigning 
Lender or to any party that such Lender may designate, any such further instruments as may 
be necessary or desirable to give full force and effect to a Disposition of Indebtedness by 
such Lender.  

        11.04 Disclaimer. Neither any Agent nor any Lender shall be responsible in any way 



for the performance of the Shipyard with respect to the Vessel, and no claim against the 
Shipyard or any other Person will affect the obligations of the Shipowner under this 
Agreement or the Floating Rate Note.  

        11.05 No Waiver; Remedies Cumulative. No failure or delay on the part of any Agent 
or any Lender in exercising any right, power or privilege under this Agreement, the Floating 
Rate Note or the Indenture or any other Transaction Document and no course of dealing 
between or among the Shipowner, the Agents and the Lenders shall operate as a waiver of 
the rights of any Agent and/or the Lenders as against the Shipowner under this Agreement; 
nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege hereunder or under 
the Floating Rate Note or the Indenture preclude the Agents and the Lenders from 
exercising against each other any other right, power or privilege hereunder or thereunder. 
The rights and remedies expressly provided herein are cumulative and not exclusive of any 
rights or remedies which the Agents and the Lenders would otherwise have. No notice to or 
demand on the Shipowner in any case shall entitle the Shipowner to any other or further 
notice or demand in similar or other circumstances or constitute a waiver of the rights of any 
Agent or any Lender under this Agreement to any other or further action in any 
circumstances without notice or demand. Notwithstanding any other provision to the 
contrary herein, no provision in this Agreement or any other related agreement preserves 
any rights in favor of the parties against the Secretary in the event that either party fails or 
delays to exercise any rights, powers, or privileges under this Agreement, the Floating Rate 
Note or the Indenture or engages in any particular course of dealing.  

        11.06 Currency. All payments of principal, interest, fees or other amounts due 
hereunder and under the Floating Rate Note shall be made in Dollars, regardless of any law, 
rule, regulation or statute, whether now or hereafter in existence or in effect in any 
jurisdiction, which affects or purports to affect such obligations.  

        11.07 Severability. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the illegality or 
unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not in any way affect or impair the 
legality or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.  

        11.08 Amendment or Waiver. This Agreement may not be changed, discharged or 
terminated without the written consent of the parties hereto, and no provision hereof may be 
waived without the written consent of the party to be bound thereby. There may be no 
change, discharge, termination or claim of waiver of the terms of this Agreement without 
the prior written consent of the Secretary, who is entitled to enforce his rights under this 
Agreement as an intended third party beneficiary to this Agreement. The parties hereto 
acknowledge, however, that nothing in this Agreement creates in either the Shipowner or 
any Agent or any Lender any right whatsoever against the Secretary.  

        11.09 Indemnification. Without limiting any other rights that the Agents and the 
Lenders may have hereunder or under applicable law, the Shipowner hereby agrees to 
indemnify each Agent and each Lender from and against any and all damages, losses, 
claims, liabilities and related costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
Advances (all the foregoing being collectively referred to as “Indemnified Amounts”) 
awarded against or incurred by such Agent or such Lender arising out of or as a result of this 
Agreement or the Floating Rate Note excluding, however, Indemnified Amounts to the 
extent determined by a court of competent jurisdiction in a final, non-appealable order, to 
have resulted from gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Facility Agent, 
the Primary Lender Agent, the Primary Lender or the Alternate Lender, as the case may be. 
In the event of an Indenture Default, all amounts received by the Lender pursuant to such 
indemnification after an Indenture Default shall be held and paid in the manner required by 
Section 7.02.  

        11.10 No Proceedings. Each of the Shipowner, the Alternate Lender and the Agents 



hereby agrees that it will not institute against, or join any other person in instituting against, 
the Primary Lender, any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency or liquidation 
proceeding, or any other proceeding under any federal or state bankruptcy or similar law, so 
long as any commercial paper issued by the Primary Lender shall be outstanding or there 
shall not have elapsed one year plus one day since the last day on which any such 
commercial paper shall have been outstanding.  

        11.11 Setoff. In addition to, and without limitation of, any rights of the Lenders under 
applicable law, but subject to Section 7.02, if any Unpaid Amounts are outstanding at any 
time, any Agent and/or any Lender may offset any indebtedness owing from such Agent, 
such Lender or any Affiliate thereof to the Shipowner (including all account balances, 
whether provisional or final and whether or not collected or available) and may apply such 
offset amount toward the payment of such Unpaid Amounts; provided, however, that if an 
Indenture Default has occurred and is continuing, any such amounts so received shall be 
held and paid in the manner required by Section 7.02.  

        11.12 Benefit of Agreement. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of and be enforceable by the respective successors and assigns of the parties hereto; 
provided, however, that the Shipowner may not assign any of its rights or obligations 
hereunder without the prior written consent of the Agents, the Secretary and the Lenders and 
the Lenders may not assign any of their rights and obligations hereunder except as provided 
in Section 11.03.  

        11.13 Waiver of Jury Trial. Each of the Shipowner, the Agents and the Lenders hereby 
waives its respective rights to a trial by jury of any claim or cause of action based upon or 
arising out of or related to this Agreement, any assignment or the transactions contemplated 
hereby, in any action, proceeding or other litigation of any type brought by any party against 
the other parties, whether with respect to contract claims, tort claims, or otherwise. Each of 
the Shipowner, the Agents and the Lenders agrees that any such claim or cause of action 
shall be tried by a court trial without a jury. Without limiting the foregoing, the parties 
further agree that their respective right to a trial by jury is waived by operation of this 
section as to any action, counterclaim or other proceeding which seeks, in whole or in part, 
to challenge the validity or enforceability of this Agreement, any assignment or any 
provision hereof or thereof. This waiver shall apply to any subsequent amendments, 
renewals, supplements or modifications to this Agreement or any assignment.  

        11.14 Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of 
which when taken together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. Delivery of an 
executed counterpart of a signature page to this Agreement by facsimile shall be effective as 
delivery of a manually executed counterpart of this Agreement.  

        11.15 Conflicts with Indenture. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Agreement, in 
any conflict between this Agreement and the provisions of the Indenture or the Shipowner 
Documents, the Indenture and/or the Shipowner Documents shall govern the agreement 
between the parties hereto, but only with respect to the subject matter thereof. 
Notwithstanding the previous sentence, any provision in the Indenture (or any other 
agreement the Shipowner has entered into with any other Person) purporting to release the 
Shipowner of any indebtedness, liability or obligation shall not apply to any indebtedness, 
liability or obligation of the Shipowner hereunder and no termination of the Indenture (or 
any other agreement the Shipowner has entered into with any other Person) shall affect the 
continued effectiveness of this Agreement, which shall continue in full force and effect until 
the Credit Facility has been terminated and all indebtedness, liabilities and obligations of the 
Shipowner hereunder have been fully discharged and satisfied, the Floating Rate Note has 
been paid, satisfied and discharged in full, and there has elapsed a year and a day from the 
last payment received from, or on behalf of, the Shipowner. The parties hereto acknowledge 



and agree that the Lenders and the Agents are not beneficiaries of the Shipowner Documents 
and certain other documents relating to the Indenture, and nothing in this Section 11.15 
purports to confer any such rights upon the Lenders or the Agents.  

        11.16. Notices Under Indenture. The Facility Agent hereby agrees to give all notices 
contemplated to be given by it under the Indenture (as in effect on the date hereof or as 
hereafter amended with the consent of the Facility Agent) for the purpose of calculating the 
Applicable Interest Rate, Breakage Fees, LIBOR, Liquidation Fees and Liquidation Period 
as defined therein, all such notices to be given at the times and in the manner contemplated 
by the Indenture. The Facility Agent hereby further agrees that the Secretary and the 
Indenture Trustee shall be entitled to rely on such calculations for the purposes set forth in 
the Indenture and shall be third-party beneficiaries of the Facility Agent’s covenants and 
agreements contained in this Section 11.16.  

        11.17 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, the Financing Offer and the Floating Rate 
Note contain the entire agreement among the parties hereto regarding the Credit Facility.  

        IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has caused this Agreement to be 
duly executed and delivered as of the date first above written.  

  
ENSCO OFFSHORE COMPANY,  
as Shipowner  
  

CITIBANK, N.A., as Alternate Lender  
   
  

By:                                             
                       (Signature) 

By:                                             
                       (Signature) 

Name:                                             
                       (Print) 

Name:                                             
                       (Print) 

Title:                                             
                       (Print) 

Title                                             
                       (Print) 

GOVCO INCORPORATED, as Primary 
Lender  
BY: CITICORP NORTH AMERICA, Inc.,  
its attorney-in-fact 

CITICORP NORTH AMERICA, INC.,  
as Primary Lender Agent  
  

By:                                             
                       (Signature) 

By:                                             
                       (Signature) 

Name:                                             
                       (Print) 

Name:                                             
                       (Print) 

Title:                                             
                       (Print) 

TitleBy:                                             
                       (Print) 

CITIBANK INTERNATIONAL PLC,  
as Facility Agent 

   
   
  

By:                                             
                       (Signature)                                                                    
Name:                                             
                       (Print) 

                                            
                        

Title:                                             
                       (Print) 

                                            
                        

 

Exhibit 21.1 
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT 

  

       The following list sets forth the name and jurisdiction of incorporation of each 



subsidiary of the Registrant (other than certain subsidiaries that, considered in the aggregate 
as a single subsidiary, would not constitute a significant subsidiary) and the percentage of 
voting securities owned by each subsidiary's immediate parent as of December 31, 1999. 
Each such subsidiary is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

  

   
Percentage  
of Voting  
Securities  
Owned by  
Registrant 

Percentage  
of Voting  
Securities  
Owned by  
Registrant 

      ENSCO Drilling Company (Delaware)   100 %     
           ENSCO de Venezuela, C.A. (Venezuela)       100 % 
           ENSCO Drilling (Caribbean), Inc. (Cayman Islands)       85 % 
                ENSCO Drilling Venezuela, Inc. (Cayman Islands)       100 % 
     ENSCO Holding Company (Delaware)   100 %     
           ENSCO Offshore Company (Delaware)       100 % 
                ENSCO Offshore U.K. Limited (U.K.)       100 % 
                 ENSCO Australia Corporation I (Delaware)       100 % 
                     ENSCO Offshore Partnership (Australia)       1 % 
                ENSCO Australia Corporation II (Delaware)       100 % 
                     ENSCO Offshore Partnership (Australia)       99 % 
     ENSCO Incorporated (Texas)   100 %     
     ENSCO Limited (Cayman Islands)   100 %     
     ENSCO Marine Company (Delaware)   100 %     
     ENSCO Oceanics Company (Delaware)   100 %     
           ENSCO Netherlands Ltd. (Cayman Islands)       100 % 
           ENSCO Asia Pacific PTE. Limited (Singapore)       100 % 
           Petroleum Finance Corporation (Cayman Islands)       100 % 
           ENSCO Brazil Servicos de Petroleo Limitada (Brazil)       99 % 
           ENSCO Drilling Company (Nigeria), Ltd. (Nigeria)       99 % 
      ENSCO Offshore International Company (Cayman)   100 %     
     Dual Holding Company (Delaware)   100 %     
           ENSCO Offshore Company II (Delaware)       100 % 
                ENSCO Qatar Company (Delaware)       100 % 
           ENSCO Oceanics Company II (Delaware)       100 % 
                ENSCO Maritime Limited (Bermuda)       100 % 
                      Dual Drilling Arabia, Ltd. (Saudi Arabia)       50 % 
                ENSCO Asia Company (Texas)       100 % 
                      P. T. Dual Perkasa Offshore (Indonesia)       80 % 
                      SOBRAPER Sociedade Brasileira de Perfuacoes 
(Brazil)       99 % 
           ENSCO Platform Company (Texas)       100 % 
                Dual Drilling Nigeria Ltd.(Nigeria)       100 % 
                Dual Drilling de Venezuela (Venezuela)       100 % 
          ENSCO Offshore International Company II (Cayman 
Islands)       100 % 
           ENSCO Malaysia Company (Delaware)       100 % 
                 Sime Gerudi (M) Sdn. Bhd.(Malaysia)       49 % 

 

Exhibit No. 23.1 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS  

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form 
S-3 (Nos. 333-37897, 333-03575, 33-64642, 33-49590, 33-46500, 33-43756 and 33-42965), 
and Form S-8 (Nos. 333-58625, 33-40282, 33-41294, 33-35862, 33-32447 and 33-14714) of 
ENSCO International Incorporated of our report dated January 24, 2000, except as to Note 
12, which is as of February 14, 2000, relating to the financial statements, which appears in 
this Form 10-K.  

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  
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ARTICLE 5 
This schedule contains summary financial information extracted from the December 31, 1999 financial statements and is qualified in its 
entirety by reference to such financial statements. 

MULTIPLIER: 1,000 

PERIOD TYPE 12 MOS 
FISCAL YEAR END DEC 31 1999 
PERIOD START JAN 01 1999 
PERIOD END DEC 31 1999 
CASH 144,400 
SECURITIES 20,900 
RECEIVABLES 58,700 
ALLOWANCES 4,400 
INVENTORY 5,100 
CURRENT ASSETS 272,800 
PP&E 2,077,500 
DEPRECIATION 500,400 
TOTAL ASSETS 1,978,000 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 134,800 
BONDS 371,200 
PREFERRED MANDATORY 0 
PREFERRED 0 
COMMON 15,600 
OTHER SE 1,225,400 
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 1,978,000 
SALES 0 
TOTAL REVENUES 363,700 
CGS 0 
TOTAL COSTS 250,800 
OTHER EXPENSES 109,400 
LOSS PROVISION 0 
INTEREST EXPENSE 19,300 
INCOME PRETAX 5,200 
INCOME TAX (2,900) 
INCOME CONTINUING 6,700 
DISCONTINUED 0 
EXTRAORDINARY 0 
CHANGES 0 
NET INCOME 6,700 
EPS BASIC .05 
EPS DILUTED .05 


